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Seventeenth Annual Report, for the Year Ending April 30, 1887.

Department of Docks, )
Battery Place, North River, >

New York, April 30,1887. )

Pier “ A"

To the Honorable Abram S. Hewitt, Mayor ofthe City ofNew York :

Sir— T he Department of Docks, in pursuance of section 719, of chapter 410, Laws of 1882,
has the honor to present its Annual Report for the year commencing May 1, 1886, and ending
April 30, 1887, containing, “ 1. The name, occupation and compensation of all persons appointed
and employed by said Department. 2. A statement of the action of the Board for the past year,
classified with reference to the various subjects and duties which have engaged the attention of the
Board. 3. A list of the orders and rules made by said Board, and a description of the contracts
made by said Department, the payments made by said Department and the purposes and amounts
thereof; and the leases made by said Department, for what term, at what rent, to whom, and
for what property.”

Very respectfully,
LUCIUS J. N. STARK,
TAMES MATTHEWS,
JOSEPH KOCH,
Commissioners.

FIRST.

The following is a list of those who were employed by the Board, April 30, 1887, showing the
name, occupation and compensation of each, respectively:

* Commissioners' Office.
B. W. Ellison, Secretary

$3,000 00 per annum.

Francis E. Moon, Chief Clerk.. 2.000 00

John H. Matthews, Clerk to the Treasurer 2.000 00 “
James Weir, Apportionment Clerk.. 2.000 00 “
Charles Miller, Jr., Recording Clerk 1,440 00 “
George H. Laughlin, Jr., Engrossing Clerk 1,500 00 “
Louis S. Kellogg, Clerk 1.200 00 >
Berthold Sommer, Index Clerk 900 00 “
John Simpson, Dock Master. 1.800 00 “
Patrick Curley, Dock Master 1.800 00 “
Patrick J. Brady, Dock Master 1.800 00 “
Joseph B. Erwin, Dock Master 1.800 00 “
Anthony Hartman, Dock Master. 1.800 00 “
Charles B. Husted, Dock Master. 1.800 00 "
Charles H. Thompson, Dock Master 1.800 00 “
Edward Abeel, Dock Master 1.800 00 “
Eugene McCarthy, Dock Master..... 1.800 00 "
Chas. P. Blake, Dock Master 1.800 00 “
Joseph F. Sharkey, Dock Master.... 1.800 00 *o
John Callan, Dock Master. 1.800 00 “
David W. Bogert, Janitor 1.200 00 wx
Nelson Parker, Assistant Janitor. 750 00 *
Thomas H. Ferris, Assistant Janito 2 00 per day.
Max Drucker, Messenger. 100 00 per month.
George S. Hunt, Messenger 8 00 per week.
J. Dewitt Foshay, Doorman and Watchman 25 per hour.
Michael Magee, Doorman and Watchman . Bl
Bernard Garvey, Doorman and Watchman.. A
Mary Dowling, Cleaner 1 @per day.
Catharine Lyons, Cleaner 1 30 “

Engineer-in-Chief's Office.

George S. Greene, Jr., Engineer-in-Chief

$6,000 00 per annum.

Willard A. Nichols, First Assistant Engineer 3,000 00

Edward C. Reynolds, Assistant to Engineer-in-Ch 2,000 00
Henry C. Freeman, Clerk to Engineer-in-Chief.... 1,800 00 “
Alfred U. Jacobs, Clerk 1,200 00 “
Frank P. Rush, Clerk 1,000 00 *
Edward Gottschall, Searcher of Water Grants............. 1,200 00 “
Frederick Lange, Stationery Clerk and Messenger.........coo....... 1,200 00 *“
Alex. M. Goge, Draughtsman 1,000 00 *
N. J. Vander Weyde, Draughtsman....... 1,000 00 “
John A. Duntze, Draughtsman 1,200 00

Edgar B. Gosling, Draughtsman 900 00  “

Robert M. Kid, Draughtsman no 00 per month.

On Permanent Work, North River.

William W. Maclay, Superintendent of Section. $2,500 00 per annum.

Winfield S. Lasher, Assistant Engineer.... 2,000 00 "
Patrick White, Foreman of Piling and Woodwork 100 00 per month.
Mortimer W. Casper, Inspector of Pier Building 50 per hour.

George W. Carpenter, Inspector of Dredging.
John McDonough, Inspector of Dredging.
Thomas Hanly, Foreman of Dockbuilders.
Daniel Hart, Foreman of Dockbuilders..
Martin Miller, Foreman of Dockbuilders

If 2
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Edwin A. Gregory, Foreman of Laborers 35 o«

John Jackson, Foreman of Laborer 5

Adoniram Fairchild, Diver 7 00 ‘per day of
: ;4 hours or

Frank Paul, Diver 500 'jess

Patrick Griffin, Divers’ Tender 35 per hour.

John R. Leary, Divers’ Tender 3%

Effingham V. Smith, Timekeeper 900 00 per annum.
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On Floating Property.

John H. Corley, Superintendent of Machinery
David H. Lane, Clerk, Floating Property..
Samuel Fitzpatrick, Office Keeper and Messenge
Thomas Stuyvesant, Captain, Derrick “ City of New York™ .
Richard Munster, Rigger and Captain, io-ton Derrick
* Charles A. Martin, Captain Tug “ Manhattan ”
John Sloan, Pilot, Tug “ Manhattan " .......
Edward Lasher, Eugineer, Tug “ Manhattan ”.
Daniel McCullough, Deckhand, Tug “ Manhattan”
Thomas McGrath, Deckhand, Tug “ Manhattan " ....
John Heenan, Fireman
Henry Condon, Fireman
Edward Conklin, Captain, Pile Driver
William Love, Captain, Pile Driver
William H. Rose, Engineer, io-ton Derric
Robert Kyles, Engineer, Pile Driver..
Frank D. Smith, Engineer, Pile Driver.
Dennis F. Eagan, Engineer, Pile Drive
William H. Burnham, Engineer, Pile D
Joseph W. Beebe, Temporary Engineer,
Montraville M. Smith, Engineer....
James Vandegrift, Fireman
Patrick H. McCullough, Roundsman

Pile Drive

Surveying Force.

Number 4,423.

$1,500 00 per annum.
900 00 “

15 00 per week.

2550 «

18 00

125 00 per month.

100 00 *“

100 00

50 00 *

50 00 *

60 00

60 00 *
35 per hour.
3B -

21 00 per week.
35 per hour.

15 00 per week.
100 00 per month.

Frederick P. Thompson, Surveyor
J. Frank Johnson, Leveler

$2,000 00 per annum.
1,200 00 “

Patrick Crowley, Rodman

15 00 per week.

John F. Williams, Rodman

15 00

Hiram C. Calkins, Hydrographer

100 00 per | month.
100 00

Irving K. Taylor, Hydrographer
Tames W. Dixeman, tr., Chainman

12 00 per week.

William McCarthy, Chainman

12 00 “

John Post, Boatman

15 00 *

15 00

Charles Thompson, Boatman
Tames J. White, Boatman..

1500 1"

Randolph Gardniere, Messenger

75 00 per month.

John S. Markham, Scowman

15 00 per, week

Charles Williams, Scowman

15 00

Ole Olssen, Scowman

15 00

General Repairs Force,

David F. McCarthy, Superintendent of Repairs
f John C. Donohue, Clerk, General Repairs Fo
John W. Ingalls, Clerk...
William J. Trimble, Temporary Clerk

$2,000 00 per annum.

1,000 00 *

On the Works.

Robert M. Sterritt, Foreman, West Fifty-seventh Street Yard,
Marcus Cane, Janitor, West Fifty-seventh Street
Theodore F. Ailing, Blacksmith.
Richard McCarthy, Blacksmith’'s Helper.
William H. Cunliffe, Painter,
William C. Rogers, Painter
John Bruton, Mason and Stone CUtter.........ooiriiinieniininns
John J. Boyle, Carpenter
Hugh Daly, Carpenter.
John R. Grant, Carpenter
Marcellus Grant, Caroenter
Daniel McLaughlin, Carpenter.
Frank Doughty, Carpenter
Charles Eagle, Carpenter
Edward Freel, Carpenter
John McNamara, Carpenter
William Fisher, Rigger
Louis J. Quistwater, Rigger

Watchmen, 16% Cents per Hour.

Thomas J. Larkin.
Patrick McNary.
Terence McGough.
John Murray.

Lawrence F. Broderick.
John Crandall.

William Cringle.
Patrick Donnelly.

John Gannon.

$100 00 per month.
100 00 *
35 per hour.
20 “

35 ;
3%

35
15 00 per week.
15 00 “

James O'Reilly.
Edmund K. Stephens.
William Strowbridge.
Amos Stokey.

Temporary Watchmen, 16% Centsper Hour.

George Kimball.
Albert Spitzer.

Robert Mularkey.

Dockbuilders, 28 Centsper Hour,

William Barr.
Edward Brady.
John Benson.
Charles Clark.
James Clark.

John Daniels.
Joseph Doyle.

John Duke.

Daniel Duffy.
William Dally.
Edward Fitzpatrick.
John Fitzpatrick.
Patrick Geoghegan.
William Gibbons.

Patrick Horan.
William Jordan.
Thomas Kieman.
John Love.
Alexander Law.
Peter McArdle.
Matthew McDonald.
Ronald McDonald.
John J. McEntee.
Martin N. O’Donnell.
John Malone.
Thomas Moran.
Timothy Murphy.
Patrick H. Murray.

Laborers, 23 Centsper Hour,

James W. Carson.
Jeremiah Collins.
Thomas Cody.
Thomas Coaay.
Patrick Coyle.
William H. Cox.
Charles W. Crossen.
Charles Daniels.
James Darby.
Richard Dever.
George J. Davis.

Thomas Aheam.
Alexander Aikman.
Tames Bagley.
William Baillie.
George Bambury.
Christopher Barden.
William Barrett.
John Barrett.
Edward Barry.
James Bransneld.
Michael Broderick.

Thomas E. Brady. hn Devine,
Peter Brown. Iseph Devlin,
Peter Burke. ohn Dillon.

Simon Binswanger.
Patrick Butler:
Dennis Caniff.
Bartholomew Carr.
Thomas C. Carroll.

Thomas B. Doran.
William Dowling.
William H. Ellis.
John English.
John C. Farlow.
* Suspended.

Caleb A. Simms.

Thomas Molloy.
Michael Monoghan,
Peter Nolan.
Patrick Ryan.
Joseph Shivnan.
James Smith, No. I.
James Smith, No. 2.
John Stokey.
Charles Swanson.
Ambrose C. Tanner.
Patrick Whalen.
James Wood.

Michael Farrell.
Jeremiah Fitzpatrick.
William J. Gavin.
Andrew Gallagher.
Bartley Hartens.
games Keane.
latthew Keefe.
William Kehoe.
Bernard Kelly.
Patrick Kelly.
James Kennedy.
Michael H. Leach.
John Lestrange.
Patrick Lestrange.
Hugh McCann.
Edward McDonald.
Henry C. McCord.
James P. McCaffrey.
Patrick McGowan.

t On sick leave, without pay.
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John McGrath.
Dennis McLaughlin
John McSorley.
Alexander McVitty.
Timothy McMahon.
James McKeever.
Thomas Mahan.
Dennis Meehan.
Thomas Malloy.
Patrick Maguire.
Louis F. Merlino.
James Mallon.

John Murphy.
Nicholas Murphy.
Richard Mulroy.
John Moroney.
Daniel Nolan.
Robert Nolan.
Frank Pierson.
Patrick Quinn.
Thomas Quinlan.
Jeremiah Quinn.
George Rafferty.
John Reeves.

Appointments from May |, 1886, to April 30, 1887 :

May 3, 1886.— Edward Lasher, Temporary Engineer, Tug “ Manhattan.”

May 3, 1886.—John McDermott, Laborer.

May 3, 1886.—-John Heenan, Temporary Fireman, Tug “ Manhattan.”

May 10, 1886.—John J. Hagan, Richard Reilly, Michael Horan, Thomas C. Mack, Peter Bray,
Edward R. Smith, Laborers.

June 4, 1886.— Thomas Darby, Hugh McCann, Laborers.

July 23, 1886.—John J. Simpson, Dock Master.

August 5, 1886.—John Murphy, Laborer.

August 20, 1886.— Henry Thomas, Christopher Barden, Laborers.

August 27, 1886.— Matthew Keefe, Laborer.

September |, 1886.— Daniel Foley, Carpenter.

" September 16, 1886.—James Clark, Dockbuilder.

September 24, 1886.—James Hayes, Laborer.

September 24, 1886.— Thomas McGrath, Deckhand, Tug “ Manhattan.”

September 29, 1886.— Henry Condon, Fireman, Tug “ Manhattan.”

October 14, 1886.—James Molloy, Laborer.

William J. Riley
Michael Ryan.
Edmund Sneridan.
Edward R. Smith.
John Scanlon.
Jacob Sussman.
Thomas Sullivan.
Patrick Smith.
Henry Thomas.
Charles S. Thompson.
Frank Whelan.

October 21, 1886.— Patrick Curley, Dock Master.

October 21, 1886.— Richard McCarthy, Blacksmith’s Helper.

October 21, 1886.—John Daniels, Michael Monohan, Charles Eagle, Thomas Freel, Dock-
builders.

October 21, 1886.— Andrew Gallagher, Dennis Caniff, Patrick Burke, James McKeever, Bart-
ley Hartens, Frank Wheelan, John Barrett, Rhoday Kennedy, Richard Diver, Patrick Jones, Tames
Purcell, Bartholomew Carr, Joseph Curry, William McToilly, Patrick Quinn, W. C. Rogers, James
Carroll, Frank Morgan, William Kyle, Richard Mulry, Thomas Quinlan, Michael Broderick,
George Rafferty, William Barrett, Laborers.

November 11, 1886.—W. C. Rogers, Painter.

November 11, 1886.— Charles Clark, John Duke, John Malone, Dockbuilders.

November |1, 1886.—John Reilly, Henry C. McCord, Joseph Devlin, Thomas Tully, James
McAleer, Frederick Schabert, Timothy McMahon, John C. Farlow, Humphrey Driscoll, Walter
Crook, John Moroney, William Reilly, James McCormick, George Bambury, Laborers.

November 16, 1886.— Charles B. Husted, Dock Master.

November 16, 1886.— William J. Trimble, Temporary Clerk.

November 16, 1886.— William Gibbons, John Horan, Thomas Cody, Patrick Horan, Alexander
Law, Michael Crowley, Dockbuilders.

November 16, 1886.— Dominick Brown, Laborer.

November 16, 1886.—-John Stevenson, Marcus Cane, Temporary Watchmen.

November 26, 1886.—Jacob Sussman, Laborer.

December 1, 1886.— George Davis, Laborer.

December 8, 1886.— Patrick Coyle, William McPoland, Laborers.

December 16, 1886.— Frank Doughty, Carpenter.

December 16, 1886.— Charles Daniels, Volkert C. Roth, Michael Camey, Laborers.

December 24, 1886.— James McCaffrey, Alexander Aikman, Thomas Cody, Laborers.

December 31, 1886.— Michael Ryan, Alexander McVetty, John English, John Scanlon, Peter
Burke, Laborers.

January 7, 1887—Robert M. Kid, Draughtsman.

January 7, 1887—George H. Kimball, Temporary Watchman.

January 10, 1887— Caleb A. Simms, Temporary watchman.

January 10, 1887—John Devine, Laborer.

January 12, 1887— Robert Mularky, Temporary Watchman.

January 12, 1887— Thomas Coady, Thomas Molloy, James Cloonan, John Reeves, Laborers.

January 12, 1887—Christopher Barden, Dockbuilder.

January 28, 1887—John McDonough, Inspector of Dredging.

January 28, 1887— Frank Pierson, Jeremiah Quinn, Thomas Sullivan, Robert Nolan, Laborers.

January 28, 1887— Daniel Duffy, Dockbuilder.

January 28, 1887— Albert Spitzer, Temporary Watchman.

February 10, 1887— Thomas H. Ferris, AssistantJanitor.

February 10, 1887—Thomas Ahem, Laborer.

February 10, 1887— James Wood, Dockbuilder.

February 10, 1887— Edward Freel, Charles Eagle, Carpenters.

February 16, 1887 —Thomas Moran, Dockbuilder.

February 16, 1887— Nicholas Murphy, Laborer.

February 23, 1887—John J. McEntee, Dockbuilder.

March 2, 1887—Thomas B. Doane, Laborer.

March 5, 1887—-John McNamara, Carpenter.

March 5, 1887— Patrick Maguire, William Baillie, Laborers.

March 18, [887—Thomas Doran, James Mallon, William H. Cox, Christopher Barden, John
Lestrange, Peter Burke, Stephen A. Filan, Benjamin Eckstein, Laborers.

April 2, 1887— Ole Olsen, Scowman.

April 4, 1887— Frank D. Smith, Engineer on Pile Driver.

April 6, 1887— William Darling, Laborer.

April 14, 1887—Ambrose C. Tanner, Charles Swanson, William Dally, Charles Hill, Dock-
builders.

April 14, 1887— Patrick McGowan, Patrick Smith, Louis F. Merlino, Daniel Nolan, James
Kennedy, Laborers.

April 20, 1887— Simon Binswanger, Laborer.

April 30, 1887—Martin N. O’Donnell, Joseph Doyle, Edward Fitzpatrick, James Murphy,
John Benson, Dockbuilders.

April 30, 1887— Patrick Lestrange, James Bransfield, Laborers.

Resigned, discharged, etc., from May 1 1886, to April 30, 1887 :

May 10, 1886—James Bagley, Jr., Blacksmith's Helper, resigned.

July 21, 1886—Thomas Darby, Laborer, discharged.

July 22, 1886— Peter Burke, James J. Brooks, Patrick Butler, Thomas Began, Dominick Brown,
George Bums, Christopher Barden, Peter Bray, Thomas Corland, Matthew Corbett, Patrick Cal-
lahan, Peter Curry, Martin Donohue, Thomas Dwyer, Thomas W. Gibbons, James H. Gaven,
George J. Greene, David L. Haggerty, John J. Hagen, Matthew Keefe, George W. Leavitt, Luke
McAvinney, John McCarthy, William McPoland, John McDermott, Nicholas Mulligan, Hugh
Mallon, Francis Murray, Samuel O. Pray, Mortimer Quinn, Richard Reilly, Cornelius Sullivan,
Edward C. Smith, John Stevenson, August Sussman, Thomas Murray, Bartholomew Carr, Michael
Horan, Laborers, discharged.

July 23, 1886— Watson Atkinson, Saw Filer, discharged.

July 23, 1886— George W. Wanmaker, Abram Duryee, Dock Masters, discharged.

July 25, 1886—Ambrose C. Tanner, Dockbuilder, discharged.

September 1, 1886—Charles Nimmo, Laborer, resigned.

September 1, 1886—John Keating, Chainman, died.

October 17, 1886—Daniel Mullane, Laborer, discharged.

October 21, 1886— Thomas Freel, Dockbuilder, discharged.

October 27, 1886— Rufus Fowler, Carpenter, resigned.

November 11, 1886 -William Costello, James Fitzsimmons, Patrick Horan, Thomas Moran,
Charles Raynor, Charles Eagle, Samuel Wilkinson, Dockbuilders, discharged.

November 11, 1886—Joseph Curry, Patrick Jones, Richard Kearney, John McNamara, John
Molloy, Louis F. Merlino, W. C. Rogers, Patrick Wise, William Fox, Frederick Kammerdeiner,

Laborers, discharged.

November n, 1886— George Fallon, Blacksmith, discharged.

November n, 1886—Charles J. Adams, John W. Brown, Thomas Cary, Patrick Derry, John
A. Hall, John J. Harden, Albert G. Lawson, Patrick McFadden, Frank Mitchell, John J. Murphy,
Jr., Frederick Meyer, Laurence F. Osborn, Watchmen, discharged.

November n, 1886—William H. Burns, Laurence Cahill, Cornelius Donovan, Edward Freel,
Carpenters, discharged.

November 11, 1886— William Harrison, James Kelly, John O’Brien, masons, discharged.

November 26, 1886—James Kennedy, Laborer, discharged.

December 6, 1886—James McCormick, Laborer, discharged.

December 8, 1886— Frederick Schabert, Laborer, discharged.

December 8, 1886— Daniel Foley, Arthur McAdam, Ship Carpenters, discharged.

December 8, 1886— Frederic Perry, Bookkeeper, dropped from the roll.

December 11, 1886— George O. Beach, Apportionment Clerk, dropped from the roll.

December 15, 1886— William Kyle, Laborer, discharged.

December 10, 1886—Wm. McToilly, Laborer, discharged.

January 12, 1887— William Shedlock, Superintendent Machinery, discharged.

i
1

RECORD. December 2, 1887.

February 10, 1887—John M. Smith, Dock Master, resigned.

March 10, 1887— Thomas P. Ryan, Laborer, discharged.

March 18, 1887—James Cloonan, Thomas B. Doane, Laborers, discharged.

April 6, 1887— Benjamin Eckstein, Laborer, discharged.

April 9, 1887— Patrick J. McDonagh, Carpenter and Caulker, discharged.

April 30, 1887— Stephen A. Filan, Laborer, discharged.

April 30, 1887—Charles Hill, Dockbuilder, discharged.

April 30, 1887— Bennett W. Ellison, Secretary, resigned.

The following changes in rates of compensation and official designation of employees were
made:

May 3, 1886—Compensation of Cleaners employed in Department Offices, Pier “A,” North
River, increased thirty cents per day.

July 22, 1886— Edward Gottschall, Private Secretary to the President, assigned to the position
of Searcher of Water Grants, on and after August 1, 1886, at $1,200 (subject to Civil Service
examination).

July 22, 1886—The office of Private Secretary to [the President was abolished, to take effect
August 1, 1886.

July 22, 1886—David W. Bogert, Janitor, reduced to $900 per annum.

July 22, 1886— Berthold Sommer, Index Clerk, assigned to perform duty as Clerk and Mes-
senger, at $900 per annum.

October 20, 1886— Pay of Painters increased from 30 to 35 cents per hour.

Compensation fixed as follows:

November 16, 1886— David F. McCarthy, Superintendent of Repairs, $2,000 per annum.

November 16, 1886— Frederick P. Thompson, Surveyor, $2,000 per annum.

November 16, 1886— William Shedlock, Superintendent of Machinery, $2,000 per annum.

November 16, 1886— E. C. Reynolds, Assistant to Engineer-in-Chief, $2,000 per annum.

November 16, 1886— Winfield S. Lasher, Assistant Engineer, $2,000 per annum.

November 16, 1886— George H. Laughlin, Jr., Engrossing Clerk, $1,500 per annum.

November 16, 1886— Max Drucker, Messenger, $1,200 per annum.

November 16, 1886—David W. Bogert, Janitor, $1,200 per annum.

November 16, 1886—John Duntze, Draughtsman, $1,200 per annum.

November 16, 1886—John W. Ingalls, Clerk, $1,000 per annum.

December 8, 1886— Position of Bookkeeper and Assistant Bookkeeper abolished.

December 8, 1886— Chief Clerk substituted.

January 12, 1887— Henry C. Freeman, $1,800 per annum.

January 28, 1887— Position of Dock Superintendent abolished.

February 25, 1887— Irving K. Taylor, Hydrographer, $1,200 per annum.

February 25, 1887— Compensation of Scowmen, $15 per week of six days.

March 2, 1887—J. Frank Johnson, Leveler, $1,200 per annum.

SECOND.

The Board submits the following statement of the subjects and duties which have engaged its
attention during the year ending April 30, 1887 :

I.—Organization.

June 9, 1886—Commissioner Stark elected President of the Board for the year ending April
30, 1887.

June 10, 1886—Commissioner Matthews waselected Treasurer of the Board for the year ending
April 30, 1887.

Il.—General Duties.

The duties which, under existing statutes, are imposed upon this Department, and which the
Board governing the same is authorized to perform, are varied, many of which are purely legislative,
and were exercised by the State Legislature prior to the creation of a Board of Docks, and of which
the following form substantially the leading features:

To manage and supervise the entire water-front of the city, private as well as public, to see
that these properties are kept in suitable condition and repair for general use, and that the slips,
basins and wharves are properly dredged.

To make rules and regulations concerning the use of the water-front, and to set aside portions
thereof for special kinds of commerce best calculated to promote the general business interests and
commercial welfare of our city.

To carefully investigate all plans relating to erections, structures and superstructures upon any
part of the water-front, as well as to closely examine into and pass upon every proposed modifica-
tion or increase of terminal facility.

To carry out a reconstruction, on the “ new plan,” ofthe whole water-front property.

And, generally, the obligation to promote and protect the commercial growth of the city by
adopting practical plans for the improvement of its wharf and dock system.

A report of the Commissioners on the operations of the water-front.

Revenue, Etc.

The total revenues of the Department which have accrued within the year amount to $1,260,-
036.58. In addition to the above, there was collected by the Finance Department for rent of slips
for ferry purposes, all under the care of this Department, the sum of $184,558.86.

The Department deposited during the year with the City Chamberlain, for the redemption of
the city debt, $1,311,971.01.

The audited expenses during the year amount to $389,169.82, being for new work ; building
new piers, etc., $216,582.41 ; for repairs to piers, etc., not built on the new plan, $119,421.58; for
office rent, clerk hire, and general expenses of principal office, $53,165.83.

Expenses,

THIRD.

In compliance with the third provision of the law, as previously cited, the following information
is submitted:
I.—Orders and Rules Made by the Board.

July 15, 1886— Rules and regulations were adopted for the government and proper care of
piers, bulkheads, slips, and other wharf property, to take effect August I, 1886.

December 22, 1886— Resolution adopted redistricting the water-front of the North river into six
districts, as follows:

District No. 2— From Pier A, North river, to Pier, new 27, foot of Hubert street.

District No. 4—From Pier, new 27, North river, to and including Pier at West Eleventh street,
North river.

District No. 6— From West Eleventh street to West Twenty-third Street Ferry, North river.

District No. 8—From West Twenty-third Street Ferry to West Forty-second street, North river.

District No. 10— From West Forty-second street, North river, to foot of Sixtieth street, North
river.

District No. 12— From foot of Sixtieth street, North river, to Yonkers and Spuyten Duyvil
creek, and from North river to King's Bridge, Harlem river.

BOARD OF DEPARTMENTj[OF DOCKS.
Rules and Regulations

Established for the government and proper care of piers, bulkheads, slips and other wharf prop-
erty, under the provisions of sections 711 and 717, of chapter 15 of the Laws of 1882, as follows:
Section 711. The Department of Docks shall have exclusive charge and control, subject in the
particulars hereinafter mentioned to the Commissioners of the Sinking Fund of said city, of all the
wharf property belonging to the corporation of the City of New York, including all the wharves,
piers, bulkheads and structures thereon, and waters adjacent thereto, and all the slips, basins, docks,
water-fronts, land under water and structures thereon, and appurtenances, easements, uses, reversions
and rights belonging thereto, which are now owned or possessed by the said corporation, or to
which said corporation is or may become entitled, or which said corporation may acquire under the
provisions hereof or otherwise ; and said Department shall have exclusive charge and control of
the repairing, building, rebuilding, maintaining, altering, strengthening, leasing and protecting
said property and every part thereof, and of all the cleaning, dredging and deepening necessary
in and about the same. Said department is also hereby invested with the exclusive government and
regulations of all wharves, piers, bulkheads and structures thereon, and waters adjacent thereto,
and all the basins, slips and docks, with the land under water in said city not owned by said cor-
oration.
P Sec. 717. The Department of Docks shall establish and enforce all needful rules and regula-
tions for the government and proper care of all the property placed in its charge and under its con-
trol by the provisions of this title relating thereto, and shall furnish a copy of such rules and regu-
lations to all the owners and occupants of such .property, and shall make all needful orders and
adopt all resolutions necessary to carry out the provisions of this title relating thereto into effect,
and fix penalties for disobeying such rules, regulations and orders, and shall publish such orders.
The violation of or disobedience to any rule, regulation or order of said Department shall be a mis-
demeanor, punishable by a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars, or by imprisonment not exceed-
ing thirty days, or by both such fine and imprisonment, on complaint of said Department.
The penalties aforesaid may be recovered by suit in the name of the Mayor, Aldermen and Com-
monalty of the City of New York, and such suit shall be prosecuted by the counsel to the said cor-
poration, when directed by the Board ; and no defendant in any such suit shall be permitted to
i plead ignorance of any such order, rule or regulation.
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Rules and Regulations.

Rute i.— No piles shall be driven, nor shall any platform be erected, nor shall any filling in
of any kind be made on any part of the water-front of the city, without a written permit therefor
being first had and obtained from the Board, under a penalty of one hundred dollars for every such
offense, to be recovered from the owner, lessee or occupant, of any pier or bulkhead, or of any water-
front property or right, who shall cause or permit any such work to be done upon his premises be-
fore such permit therefor has been obtained, and under the further penalty of twenty dollars for
each and every day which shall elapse before any piles so driven, or platform so erected, or material
so filled in, without such permit being first obtained, shall be removed, after the expiration of the
HW which may be allowed for such removal, by a notice served upon such owner, lessee, or occu-
pant, by the Dock Master for the district, to be also recovered from such owner, lessee or occu-
pant.

Rule 2.— No shed, building, office, tally-house, or other structure shall be erected, nor shall
any derrick, hoisting-mast, coal-hopper, sign or advertising device, or other erection, or obstruction
of any kind, be placed or maintained upon any pier, bulkhead or other wharf structure, nor upon
any reclaimed land, without a written permit therefor being first had and obtained from the Board;
and if the owner, lessee or occupant of any such premises, or the owner, lessee or agent, of any
such structure, erections or obstructions, shall fail to comply with a notice served by the Dock
Master for the district, to remove any such structure, erection or obstruction, after the expiration of
the time allowed by such notice for the removal, such owner, lessee, occupant or agent, shall for-
feit and pay a penalty of twenty dollars per day for each and every day which shall elapse before
any such structure, erection or obstruction, shall be removed, after the expiration of the time for
the removal thereof specified in said notice.

Rute 3.—No cargo shall be discharged from any vessel upon any bulkhead or wharf structure,
at which such vessel is being unladen, after service by the Dock Master for the district, upon the
owner, consignee, master or other officer or stevedore, ofsuch vessel, of a notice that such bulkhead or
structure will be endangered by the placing of additional cargo thereon, under a penalty of one
hundred dollars for every such offense, and a further penalty ec[ual in amount to the damages ot
every description which shall be caused by the further discharging of cargo upon such bulkhead or
wharf structure, after the service of the said notice, both of such penalties to be recovered from such
owner, consignee, master or other officer or stevedore, severally and respectively.

Rute 4.—All goods, merchandise and materials of every kind landed or placed on any pier,
bulkhead or other wharf structure, or upon reclaimed land, must be removed therefrom without
unnecessary delay, and within twenty-four hours after the Dock Master for the district shall have
served upon the owner, shipper or consignee of such cargo, a notice toremove the same, under a
penalty of twenty dollars per day for each and every day during which any part of said cargo shall
remain upon such pier, bulkhead, structure or land, after the expiration of the said twenty-four
hours, to be recovered from such owner, shipper or consignee, severally and respectively.

Rute 5.—AIll goods, merchandise and materials of every kind encumbering any pier, bulk-
head or other wharf structure, or reclaimed land, after the time designated for the removal thereof
shall have expired, will be liable to be removed by the Board to any warehouse or yard, at the sole
risk and expense of the owner of any such property, and all expense incurred for such removal and
storage, or otherwise, shall be and become a lien thereon, and such goods, merchandise and materi-
als will not be delivered to the owner until the expense of such removal and storage has been paid.

Rute 6.— No person shall construct or maintain any engine-house, tally-house, or other small
structure, under a permit of the Board, on any unshedded pier or other wharf structure, unless the
same be placed on wheels so as to admit of easy removal thereupon when required, and to prevent
the accumulation of dirt or refuse thereunder, under a penalty of ten dollars per day for each and
every day which may elapse before the discontinuance of such offense.

Rute 7.— No vessel of any kind shall be loaded or discharged by horse-power, nor shall
stones or similar cargo be discharged from any vessel, upon any pier, bulkhead or other wharf
structure, unless proper planking be provided to protect the surface of such pier, bulkhead or other
wharf structure from injury consequent upon the travel of the horse, or the throwing of the stones,
or similar cargo, thereupon, under a penalty of five dollars a day for each horse so employed, and
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of twenty dollars for each offense of discharging such stones or like cargo, upon such pier, bulk-
head, or other wharf structure, to be recovered From the owner, consignee, master or stevedore, of
any such vessel, severally and respectively ; and if such penalty be recovered for using horses, or
discharging stones or similar cargo, upon wharf property belonging to the corporation under lease,
it shall be paid to the lessee thereof, but if such penalty be recovered for using horses, or discharg-
ing stones or similar cargo, upon wharf property not owned by the corporation, it shall be paid to
the owner thereof.

Rute 8.—No sand shall be discharged from any vessel unless canvas or similar material be
extended from the vessel’s side to the bulkhead or wharf structure at which such vessel is being un-
ladened, to prevent the falling of the sand into the water, and if the surface of any such wharf
structure is not sufficiently tight to prevent the sand dumped thereon from going through into the
water, then no sand shall be discharged thereon from any vessel, unless canvas or similar material
be first laid thereon to receive the sand, under a penalty of twenty dollars for each offense, to be
recovered from the owner, consignee, master or stevedore, of any such vessel, severally and re-
spectively ; and if such penalty be recovered on account of sand discharged upon wharf property
belonging to the corporation, under lease, it shall be paid to the lessee thereof, but if such penalty
be recovered on account of sand discharged upon wharf property not owned by the corporation, it
shall be paid to the owner thereof.

Rute 9.— The owners, lessees and occupants of every pier, wharf and bulkhead in the City of
New York shall keep the same in good repair, and the slips adjacent thereto properly dredged,
and whenever, in the judgment of the Board, it shall be necessary so to do, written notices shall be
served upon the owners, lessees or occupants, or collector of wharfage of any such pier, wharf or
bulkhead, or the slip adjoining the same, on or in which repairs or dredging are required by said
Board, specifying the nature or extent of the repairs or dredging so required, and the time within
such repairs must be made, or such dredging done ; and in case the owners, lessees or occupants so
notified, fail to comply with the terms and requirements of such notice, they shall forfeit and pay a
penalty of twenty-five dollars per day for every day which shall elapse before they comply with
such notice.

Rure 10.— No ashes, refuse, offal, fruit, vegetables or any other substances shall be thrown
into the waters surrounding or adjacent to any pier or bulkhead, or any other part of the water-
front of the city, undera penalty of twenty-five dollars for every such offense, to be recovered from
the owner, lessee, or occupant, severally and respectively, of a pier, bulkhead, wharf, structure, or
other property from which any such substance shall be tnrown, or from the person actually throw
ing the same ; or if such substance be thrown from any vessel lying in waters within the jurisdiction
of the Department, whether berthed or not, then such penalty to be recovered from the owner, con-
signee or master of such vessel, severally and respectively.

Rute ii.—No snow or ice shall be dumped into the waters adjacent to the water-front of the
city, except from the piers, bulkheads and other places designated from time to time by the Board,
for such dumping, under a penalty of twenty-five dollars for each ofiense, to be recovered from the
owner, lessee or occupant of any pier, bulkhead or other wharf property from which any such snow
and ice shall be dumped, or from the person actually dumping the same, severally and respectively.

Rute 12.—All lumber, brick or other material in bulk, discharged on any pier or bulkhead
not shedded, shall be at once removed, or, if not so removed, shall be placed at least twenty feet
from the edge of the bulkhead, pending removal, under a penalty of twenty-five dollars per day
for each and every day such lumber, brick or other material shall remain on the bulkhead, to be
recovered from the owner or consignee of such lumber, brick or other material, or from the person
placing, or causing the same to be placed, on such bulkhead, severally and respectively.

Rule 13.—The charges for wharfage and dockage of all vessels admitted to any of the piers
or bulkheads constructed under the new plans adopted by the Department, shall be at the same
rates as are now, or shall hereafter be, fixed and established by laws of this State, until otherwise
ordered by the Board.

Rute 14.—The term “ Board," when used in the foregoing rules and regulations, shall be
taken to mean “ The Board of the Department of Docks of the City of New York,” and the term
“ Corporation,” when so used, shall be taken to mean “ The Mayor, Aldermen and Commonalty
of the City of New York.”

Il.—Description of Contracts Made by the Board.

Description of Contract.

Michael Nolan and

Wm. T. Nolan
Richard Cronin.
P. Sanford Ross.
Union Dredging Co
John D. Walsh.
John L. Eagan

For furnishing granite for bulkhead wall

For building Pier and approach at West Fortieth street. North river. ...
For repairing Pier, old 54, North river, at toot of Perrystreet

For dredging at sundry mmed places on the North and East rivers.
Repairing Pier at foot of West Nineteenth street, North river..
Painting shed and repairing its metal covering on Pier, new 43, North river.

Fearon & Jenks.
John W. Flaherty.
Union Dredging Co.
ThomasO’Connell and
Michael J. Coffey..

ring the bulkhead between Pier 18 and Pier 19, East river,
ng Pier at Bogart street, No' th river.

Building new wooden Pier at foot of West Thirty-fourth street. North river, andl
repairing inner end of existing Pier.

John Gillies.

Building Pier, new 32, and approach on thesite of P er, old 41, East river, and for re-
pairing the crib bulkhead thereat

John Gillies.

John W. Flaherty....

Building a crib bulkhead from West Seventy-seventh street to West Seventy- elghlh 1
street, North river,

William P. Kelly..

Ill.—Payments Made by the Board.

The Commissioners of Docks have made requisitions upon the Finance Department for pay
ments, in satisfaction of liabilities incurred, from April 30, 1086, to May 1, 1887, amounting in all
to the sum of $380,169.82, and herewith submit, annexed to the Statement of the Revenues and
Disbursements, a full showing of said payments, and for what purposes.

IV.—Leases Made by the Board.

I.— All leases made during the year by the Board, of wharf property owned by the corpora-
tion, including land under water, are shown in the Rent Roll accompanying this report, which fully
expresses the time, rental, to whom, and for what property each of said leases was respectively
made. Lo
The Rent Roll, herewith submitted, shows fully, as required by law, all leases made during
the year. It also gives the termination of all leases during said period, and all leases in force on
the 30th day of April, 1887, and also, in like manner, all leases in force May |, 1887.

All of which is very respectfully submitted,

L. T. N. STARK, Commissioners
[Seal.] TAMES MATTHEWS, of
JOSEPH KOCH, Docks.

B. W. E1rtison, Secretary.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND DISBURSEMENTS.
Account with the Mayor, Aldermen and Commonalty, and Balance Sheetfor April 30, 1887.

Statement op the Revenues and Disbursements of the Department of Docks For and During the
Year Ending April 30, 1887.
DOCK AND SLIP RENT
|.—Revenue
Amount of rents accrued and wharfage collected during the year ending April 30,
1BB7 towit:
. 'To lessees of corporation wharf property....
a To occupants of limd under water, the property of the corporation, covered
by wharfimprovements erected by permission of the department..
3. Amount of wharfages collected within the year from unleased corporation
wharfproperty.

30
$1,360,036 58

Contract Price. Date of Expiration.

69 cents per cubicyard.... Nov. 16, x886 Nov. 23,1886 July 15,1887.
$39,440 00 Nov. x6,1886 Nov. 16, 1886 March 15,1887, or within specified time thereafter.
16,500 co Dec. 15, 1836 Jan. 6,1887 March x, 1887, extended to May x, 1887.
ao cents per cubic yard... Dec. 1, x886 Dec. 22,1886 April x, 1887, extended to April 28, 1887.
,274 00 Dec. 15,1886 Dec. 23,1887 February x, 1887.
1,560 00 Mar. xo, 1887 Mar. 31,1887 May 15,1887, extended to Maya 4, 1887, and May 1
1887.
2100 00 Dec. 27,1886 March x, 1887, or within specified time thereafter.
6,500 00 Dec. 15, 1886 March 1,1887, or within specified time thereafter.
20cents per cubic yard... Dec. 27,1886 Jan. 10,1887 August xs, 1887.
. .975 po Mar. 2,1887 Mar. 12,1887 June 1, 1887, extended toJune 3.
Class x> Mud" dredging,
22 cents per cubic
yard. Classa: Crib
dredging, $150 per
cubic yard. Class
Pier, etc., $40,844, Feb. 15,1887 August 1,1887, extended to August 15.
Class x : Repairs to bulk-
head etc.,$2,315. Class
2: New Pier end ap-
proach, $21,460. Class
3: For rip-rap, etc., 4c
cents per cubic yard.. Mar. 14, 1887 July x, 1887, or within specified time thereafter.
Class x : Mud dredging,
30 cents per
yard. Class 2 :
dredging, $x.so perl
cubic yard. Class 3:
Pier, etc., $19,750.... Mar. 9, June xs, 1887, extended toJuly ao.
fClass x: Mud dredging,
cents per cubic
yard. Class 2 : Crib
bulkhead  complete,
etc., $x6,080. Apr. 6,1887 July x, 1887, extended toJuly 20.

Il.—Distribution :
Cash—
Amount of moneys deposited during the year with the Chamberlain to the
credit of the Commissioners ofthe Sinking Fund, for the redemption of the

City debt $t:81971 01

Deduct these amounts included in the said moneys, but not applicable to rents
payable during the year, to wit:
Sums received at public sale of leases of corporation wharf prop-
erty, being deposits made by purchasers as security for the
execution on their part of their leases respectively, which
leases are to date from May x, 1887, or subsequently, and
which deposits are to be applied as rent first accruing under
such leases as shall be duly completed, or in default to become

forfeited. $34,823 75
Proceeds ofsales of old material 224 80
Collections received from the Counsel to the Corporation insettle-

ment of claims placed in his hands prior to May x, 1886.... X7.n0 83

Leaving this amount deposited during the year as rents and wharfage from
Corporation wharf property (except from premises in use under ferry leases

made with die Comptroller) $1,259,811 58
Claims for unpaid rents during the year, placed inthe hands of the Counsel to X
the Corporation for 225 00
- - $1,260,036 58

DOCK BONDS.

Total amount of *Dock Bonds of the City of New York," directed by the Commissioners of
the RinUng Fund, to be issued for the usesand purposes of the Department of Dacks, from
the date of its organization in May, 1870, to April 30,1887.... .... 112,553,500 00

Ofthe above, the balance in Comptroller’s hands April 30,1887, was...... 3*4.939 86

Leaving net expenditure for 17 years.
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DOCK FUND.
I.—Receipts :
x. Amount of proceeds of Dock Bonds approximated as being in the hands of the
Comptroller on May i, 1886, for the uses and purposes of this Departmenl

as per Annual Report for the year ending April 30, 1886... $193,470 33
a. Amount of proceeds of Dock Bonds directed to be issued by rs
of the Sinking Fund, July 5,1885, under requisition of this Department, by
resolution, June 35, 1885, upon the Commissioners of the Sinking Fund, for
Dock Bonds to the amount of $2,000,000, confirmed and ratified by them
Sep’.ember 17, 1886, upon the Comptroller, to issue said amount of bonds, of
which the latter sold $500,000, at per cent, premium.. 517.277 5°
3. Amount of money received in and during the year, and deposited with the
Chamberlain for the uses and purposes cf the Department; being reimburse-
ments for the cost of repairs to wharfproperty notowned by the Corporation
and for the use of Department appliances and dumping-grounds, furmshmg
maps and tracings, etc 3,861 85
$7x4,609 68
Deduct the amountof short issue of Dock Bonds of requisition of Septem-
ber 5,1879, charged back 500 00
$714,109 68
1l.—Expenditure :
Amount of bills and claims audited in and during the year ending April 30, 1887, and trans-
mitted to the Finance Department for payment, being for materials and supplies furnished,
and for services rendered to this Department, to w it:
x. For Construction—
For bills and claims audited, as per Schedule B..........cccccooiniinne $89,258 64
As per Schedule C.:
Salaries of' the Commissioners.... $9,000 00
Salaries of the Construction force... 44,960 89
Pay-rolls of Surveyor's force— Captains, engi-
neers, crews and watchmen on floating prop-
erty, dock builders, laborers, blacksmiths,
carpenters and masons, etc., on Construction
force 73,362 88
---$916,582 41
2. For General Repairs—
For bills and claims audited as per Schedule D . $98,237 82
As per Schedule E .:
Pay-rolls of dock builders, watchmen, carpenters |nspectors
and engineers on General Repairs force... 21,183 76
- 119,421 58
3. For Annual Expense—
For bills and claims audlted as per Schedule F .. $6,472 12
As per Schedule G
Salaries of officers and 46,693 71
-—- —--53.i60 83
389,169
111.—Balance :
Amount of proceeds of Dock Bonds in the hands of the Comptroller on April 30, 1887, for use of
this Department $324,939

New Y ork, April 30, 1887,
Respectfully submitted to the Board,
FRANCIS E. MOON, Chief Clerk
Approved and adupl
Lucius J. N. Stark,
Tames Matthews,
Joseph K och.

The Mayor, Aldermen and Commonalty of the City of New York in account with the Board
of the Department of Docks for and during the year ending April 30, 1887.

Dr. Cr.
To deposits ofmoney with the Chamberlain [ 315,832 86 By balance, April 30. 1886, as per report for
To bills and claims audited for materials e year ending that date $1,168
and supplies furnished and for services ren- By Dock and Slip rent. 1,260,
dered, to wit yr for Dock Bond 500,
On Construction account.. 216,582 41 | By premium on 500,000 Dock Bonds.. 17,
on General Repairs accoun 119,421 58 By rent 34,
On Annual Expense account.... 53,165 83 | By reimbursement for repairs to private
To shortissue of Dock Bonds of Requisition wharves, and for use of Department plant  1,X17 xo
« of September 5, 1879, charged back. 500 00 || By sales of maps, etc 27 50
To compromise by Comptroller, Rent for j By fines and penaltie: X,160 1
Pier at West 36th street, N. R ... 7:396 8 1By sale of dump tickets X,
To compromise by Comptroiier, claim By moneys credited to Dock Fund 3,

against Jas. W. Boyle for rent of one-half By sale of old material
each of Piers 56 and 57, E. R

Balance carried forward.......

3.446 25
1,272,545 09

$2,988,890 85 $2,988,890 85

By balance, April 30,1887.... ..$1,272,545 09

New York, April 30, 1887.
LUCIUS J. N. STARK,) Commissioners,
JAMES MATTHEWS, V composing the
JOSEPH KOCH, J Board of Docks.

Balance Sheet, April 30, 1887.

$1,000 00 The Mayor, Aldermen and Commonalty of

Sundry Debtors for unpaid rents in hands Rents paid in advance of May x, 1887... eea

ofCounselto the Corporation for collection

34.823 75

{as per Schedule 1) 114.738 37
Dock Fund.. 324.939 86
Floating Plant (as per Schedule K 176,900 00
Acquired real property.. $3%.7%4 4°
$1,272,545 09 $1,272,545 09

SCHEDULE A.

Ledger Balances, April 30, 1887.
Dr. Fox- Cs.
48 Finesand penaltie $1,160 00
3 Sales ofmap 27 50
$119,421 58 60  Generalrepair:
53.165 83 9 Annual expense
x8  Contingent Fund
« 41738 37 40 Unpaid rents in hands of Counsel to the Corporation.......
321,078 ox 34  Dock Fund
o Dock and sliprent..... 1,960,036 58
8 The Mayor, Aldermen and Commonally ofthe City of New York. *674.738 94
7®  Repairs for private owners, etc.. . 1,1X7 X0
53* 7%4 4° Acquired property
3 Dump ticket: %557 *5
3,252 46 70 recovered
176,900 00 3 Floating plant
1.315.832 86 William M. lvins, Chamberlain
9x6,582 41 4 Construction account..
o+ Sales old material 924 80
9 Rentadva 34.8'3 75
#*973.685 92 $2,973,685 99
SCHEDULE B.
Bills and Claims Audited on Construction Account.
Contractfor Building Piers.
Richard Cronin #25,12776
« . *35.1%7 76
Dredging.
Union Dredging Co #24,028 00
— 24,028 00

D ecember 2,
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Cement.
Edward Thiele - #2,110 00
Tarres Brand... 9°° °5
Haebler & Co >37 5°
Lumber and Piles.
Bell Bro #3,639 88
A. T. Decker & Co S16 48
C. & R. Poillon 81 00
Garret E. Green 171 80
A. J. Murray 1,271 23
George Kerr 4,125 00
Coalfor Tug, Pile Driver, etc.
Ward & Olyphant. #2,061 74
Meeker & Co 671 25
Broken Stone, Cobble, Rip-rap and Sand.
Brown & Fleming *5.474 *6
Jeremiah Reed 110 23
Stationery and Printing.
Martin B. Brown *1,103 14
L. W. Ahren’s Stationery and Printing Co.... 55 14
Isaac J. Oliver 119 00
J. Wm. Hannan & Co 193 27

General Expenses, including Insurance, Paving, Plumbing, Gas Fitting, Tools and
Maintenance of Floating Plant and Department Yards.

Hodgman & Co *261 80
Patterson Bros 959 25
Thomas Martin 131 10
Metropolitan Telephone and Telegraph Co. 574 92
Thomas C. Townsend.. 144 70
Nason Manufacturmgco 20 73
Clark & Wilkin 27 00
A. V. Abbott 11 00
Kurtz, Blanchard & Co 89 50
F. W. Devoe & Co 399 88
Gaskell & Greenlie 1,294 88
Theron S. Atwater 36 75
P. Keahon 10 50
J. S. Barron 89 19
Thomas Hall 55 00
Victor Vierow 1,020 00
George F. Doak 1,463 76
Jordan L. Mott Iron Work 156 01
W. & J. Sloane 67 56
Babcock & Wilcox Co 760 00
John W. Sullivan 1,756 22
Wm. Walls’ Son 1,127 93
Pierson & Co 61 38
T. G. Sellew 22 00
V. G. Hedden & Son 266 77
Ruhle Bros. 130 00
Lyon Manufacturing Co 114 0O
John F. W alsh 114 50
W. S. Estey 3 48
H. C. & J. H, Caulkin 87 50
Jenkins & Tregarthen 253 50
C. E. Zindars.... 61 50
P. Sanford Ro 217 00
Continental Fire Insurance Co 31 50
Niagara Fire Insurance Co 47 25
Continental Fire Insurance Co 125 00
Knickerbocker Insurance Co. 78 25
American Fire Ins. Co 125 00
John Morris...... 53 00
The ./Etna Insurance Co. 125 00
Havilah M. Smith & Son 63 64
German-American Insurance Co 188 00
Wm. B. Ferguson & Son 45 00
Manufacturers’ and Builders’ Fire Ins. Co... 875 00
James Matthew: 206 33
A. Edward Barthol 25 20
R. D. Jackson & Co 26 80
Annin & Co 67 60
John Merry 16 48
Popham & Co 14 25
McNab & Harlin Manufacturing Co 228 63
A.B. & W. T. Westervelt 197 5°
Joel W. Mason & Co 979 50
Adolph Starke 720 00
Noyes & Wines 7 00
New York Belting and Packing Co. 44 51
New York Coal Tar and Chemical Co 89 60
Hoyt Paper Tube Co 19 00
Frank B. Heddenberg 22 00
F. W. Beatty 54 80
Thomas C. Dunham *, 471 92
M. Boorman 10 00
E.C. Hazard 784
J. S. Conover.... 547 00
SCHEDULE C.
Pay-Rolls Audited on Construction Account.
Commissioners o f Docks.
Lucius T. N. Stark $3,000 00
Tames Matthew: 3,000 00
Joseph Koch 3,000 00
Construction Force.
G. S. Greene, Jr. #6,000 00
Willard A. Nichols. 3»°°° 00
William W. Maclay. 2,500 00
Winfield S. Lasher 1,892 22
Edward C. Reynold i,73° 55
David F. McCarthy 1,73 55
Frederick P. Thompson 1,124 15
William Shedlock 173 55
John H. Corley 169 35
Henry C. Freeman <593 01
Alexander M. Goge 1,000 00
Robert M. Kid 40807
Nicholas T. Vander Weyde 1,000 00
John A. Duntze >,938 33
Edgar B. Gosling 9°° 00

Frederick Lange 1,200 00
Frank P. Rush

1887.

*3,>47 55

9,865 39

*73* 99

5,584 49

>,470 55

>73°> 9>
#89,258 64

9,000 00



2, 1887.

D ecember

Edward Gottschall

Alfred U. Jacob

Hiram C. Calkin
Irving K. Taylor

$goo 00
1,200 00
1,20000
95000

Patrick White
Robert M. Steritt

Patrick H. McCullough
J. F. Johnson
Effingham V. Smith

1,200 00
1,200 00
1,200 00
95000
00000

David H. Lane

goo00

Marcus Cane.

363at

94611

John W. Ingall
William J. Trimble:

41000

John C. Donohue
Charles Nimmo

243 09
300 00
goo00

Randolph Gardniere
Charles A. Martin
John Sloan
Edward Lasher

31048
948 39
935 49
13348

Henry Condon
John Heenan
Thomas McGrath
Daniel H. McCullough

33000
10968

$44,960 89

Surveying Force, Captains, Engineers, Crews and Watchmen on Floating Property,
Dock Builders, Laborers, Blacksmiths, Carpenters and Masons on the Con-

struction Force.
24 half-monthly rolls from May 1, 1886, to May 1, 1887

* SCHEDULE D.

Bills and Claims Audited on General Repairs Account.

Contractsfor Repairing Piers.
John W. Flaherty
Edward J. Fearon and William H. Jenk
John D. Walsh
P. Sanford Ro:
John Gillie

Dredging.

Union Dredging Co

Lumber and Piles.

Edward McCue
McCue & Nealis

Printing.

Martin B. Brown
Isaac J. Oliver

General Expenses, including Advertising, Testing, Iron, Paints, Oils, Old

Thomas C. Townsend
John F. Baxter
A. V. Abbott

Gaskell & Greenlie
James Hammond
Samual A. Suydam
Sunday Mercury.
Journal of Comme
McLaughlin & Loyd
Henry Gelhaar & Co
Isaac Hall's Sons....
N. Y. Coal Tar and Chemical Co
Thomas C. Dunham.
Fairbanks & Co
Horace Theall.

SCHEDULE E.

73362 88
$216,582 41
$6,550 00
2,100 00
1*274 00
4770 22
3)i.3 81
$23,808 04
$59,212 10
59,212 10
3)349 25
ey* 60
............... 13,296 68
$546 00
74 00
............... 620 00

Iron, Chains, etc.

$140 22
250 00
35 5
326 33
47 00
34 45
)
15 00
140 00
167 25
80 64
13 46
10 90
32 50
1,301

$98,237 82

Pay-rolls Audited on General Repairs Account.

Dock-builders, Laborers, Watchmen, Carpenters, Inspectors and Engineers on

General Repairs Force.
24 half-monthly rolls, from May 1,1886, to May i,~i887....

SCHEDULE F.

21,183 76

$119,421 58

Bills and Claims Audited on Annual Expense Account.

Office Rent, Stationery, Printing, Fire Insurance and Contingent Expenses.

Patterson Bro:
Metropolitan Telephone and Telegraph Co
Evening Post Job Printing Office

Clark & Wilkin
F. W. Devoe & Co
Colgate & Co
J.S.Barron & Co
Manhattan Peal Estate Association
J.H. Caulfield
Sheppard, Knapp & Co
Martin B. Brown
J.W. Hannan & Co
Consolidated Gas Company
Continental Insurance Co.
Niagara Fire Insurance Co
Knickerbocker Insurance Co.....
German American Insurance Co
Manufacturers’ and Builders’ Fine Insurance Co....
James Matthew:
F. Perry.
Annin & Co
J.W. Mason & CO...oovviiiiiiii e
Home of Industry
Wyckoff, Seaman & Benedict.
Hesford & Son
National Press Intelligence C
T.G. Sellew

SCHEDULE G.

Pay-Rolls Audited on Annual Expense Account.

R.W. Ellison, Secretary.
Francis E. Moon, ChiefClerk.. .
James Weir, Apportionment Clerk, H
George O. Beach, Apportionment Clerk
Frederick Perry, BookJke?per.....
John H. Matthews, Clerk to Treasurer
Edward Gottschall, Private Secretary to President.......

$24 89
78 60

2,008

$6,472 12

$3,000 00
2,000 00
2,000 00
1,226 93
1,472 33
1,973 if-

375 00

THE CITY RECORD.

Recording Clerk
ENGrossing Clerk.......oocoevevieveenenerisniscsieennns

Charles Miller, Jr.,
George H. Laughlin, Jr.,
Louis S. Kellogg, Clerk
Berthold Sommer, Clerk
Joseph L. Liscomb, Dock Superintendent
George W. Wanmaker, Dock Maste
John Simpson, Dock Master
John M. Smith, Dock Master
Patrick J. Brady, Dock Master
Joseph B. Erwin, Dock Master.
Abram Duryee, Dock Master.
Edward Abeel, Dock Master.
Eugene McCarthy, Dock Master......
Charles P. Blake, Dock Master
Joseph F. Sharkey, Dock Master.
John Callan, Dock Master
Anthony Hartman, Dock Master
Patrick Curley, Dock Master
Charles B. Husted, Dock Master
Charles H. Thompson, Dock Master.
4780Q W. Bogert, Janitor....
Max Drucker, Messenger.
George S. Hunt, Messenger
Mary Dowling, Cleaner
Catharine Lyons, Cleaner
J. De Witt roshay, Doorman......... H
Michael Magee, Doorman
Bernard Garvey, Doorman
Nelson Parker, Assistant Janitor.
Thomas H. Ferris, Assistant Janitor
James Hayes, Assistant Janitor

SCHEDULE H.

$f 440 00
'.338 34
[200 00

925 00
500 00
450 00

Wharfage from Unleased Wharves for the Year Ending April 30,

On North River.

Bulkhead between Piers, old 21 and 23
South half Pier, old 2
New made ground between Plers new 20 and new 21
North half Pier, old 34
Bulkhead between Piers, old 35 and old 36,

o 41

“ M

Pier, new 43

40
Bulkhead south of Pier, old 54

Pier, old 54
Bulkhea h s‘Le{of West Eleventh street.
Bulkhea nk-street

Pier at Bethune street

Bulkhead at Gansevoort stree:
Bulkhead between Gansevoort street an
Pier north of Bogart street...
Pier north of Bloomfield street
Bulkhead foot of Bloomfield stree
Bulkhead south of Little West Twelftth street
Pler at Little West Twelfth street.
West Thirteenth stree
“  West Fifteenth street.
“  West Sixteenth street.
“  West Seventeenth stree
West Eighteenth street
West Nineteenth street
“  West Twenty-first street.
Bulkhead platform at West Twenty-fourth street
“ between Piers, new 54 and new 55...
Pier, new 57 |
“ new 59
* new 60
Pier at West Thirty-fourth street......
“ Thirty-fifth street
* Thirty-seventh street .
“ Fortieth street
“ Forty-fourth street
Bulkhead at West Forty-fifth street
Pier at West Forty-sixth street.
“ Forty-seventh street

> Fifty-first street.
“ Fifty-fifth street .

Bulkhead between Seventy-eighth and Seventy-ninth streets.....
Pier at West Seventy-ninth street
Bulkhead between Eightieth and Eighty-first streets.
Pier at West Ninety-sixth street
i One Hundred and Thirtieth street.
- One Hundred and Thirty-first stree
“ One Hundred and Fifty-second street.

Bogart street

On East River.
Bulkhead at Battery
Pier 7. FE
West half Pier 12
Bulkhead between Piers 18 and 10.........cccccecuuenna.
West half Pier 10.
Pier 25 and halfBulkhead adjoining
Pier 37
Pier 41 and half Bulkhead West Side.
Bulkhead East Side Pier 41
P«r 43
Pier 44

5 427 84
'554 00

Pier 48
Pier« .
Bulkhead at Cprleara street
Cherry street
North half Pier 56, south half Pier 57, and bulkhead between...
Upper half of Pier 58
Pier 60 and bulkhead north side.
Pier 61 and bulkhead north sid
Pier 6
Pier at Fifth street
Bulkhead at Fourteenth street
Fifteenth street
Eighteenth street
" Twenty-second street.......

* Twenty-fifth street
Twenty-sixth street.
“ Twenty-eighth street.
Twenty-ninth street
Thirtieth street.....

I)NNHIMINY

|
- D)F)TIONY
[rr

ReCYear ***

&62A no

.32 00
4,496 g9
*845 37
1,812 00
3,7*7 30

153 96

*65 90

233 37

267 08

410 27

74

225 67

448 39
%164 fo
364 00
57« 5*
1,040 00
385 66

687 63
1,040 00
698 74
2,233 30
498 10
3*% 75
2,370 61
1joi8 71

g-
iqg 42

1 cio JJ

1,621 41
6,657 77
168 50
3,607 *3
3,4335%
3, 970 oe
6 88

73| 73

125
892
620 53

2,888
518 06
700 18

19 19
46 07
35 46
270 39
91 00

$46,693 71

$53,165 83

1887.

$80,899 25
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Dec. 5, 1883..
Pier at Thirty-second street. 97 Mar. s, 1884
Bulkhead at East Thirty-sixth street 3+ °3 Morris Wasel. . e o paay L1595 38 ox
Pier at Thirty-seventh street 4® 4* Patrick Muiray. For Wharfage, May 11885 58 90
“  Thirty-eighth street. *Q° *@ ?ﬁg;‘:s";(‘]“ree~ For Wharfage, May 1,1885 *35 SO
gu:t:eag betl\:Neen Ilhirty eighth and Thirty ninth streets.... 8:9;?@00 James L. Miller 15 mos. rent to May 1,1887 375 00
ulkhead at Fortieth street
$**4,738 37
Forty-second street. *49 95
Bump at Forty-fifth street i09 00
Bulkhead at Forty-sixth street *1®5
East Forty-eighth street, 25
“ East Fifty-fourth street . 222 55
Bulkhead between Sixtieth and Sixty-second streets, and pier at si ty- SCHEDULE J.
Bulkieecsgitsg;g PR 2 ég Judgments Recovered by the Counsel to the Corporationfor Claimsfor Unpaid W harf Rents.
East Seventieth street 12° 00
“ East Seventy-third street 3@»°9
Bulkhead platform at East Seventy-fifth street. & T® Whom Against
Bulkhead and platform between East Seventy-Eighth and East Seventy-
ninth street. *nEr
Pier at Eighty-sixth street g April 14,1880 75 $3,479 75
Bulkhead at East Ninety-third street | °3 JS:\?,ETIQ?:CYV Dec. 14, 1880 379 g° g& 8
| S Dec. 29, 1880 333 56
Crib bulkhead and Ferry at East Ninety-ninth street... »335 5 $64.804 60 e Y IR ® suesra
April as, 1883 780,
. P -*6,907 4a
On Harlem River. Mar. 101881 a.4% 34 10430 4
* 1839
Float at East One Hundred and First street #24 00 x';,ri', ;Z'}fsi} 37 82 3, 6
Pier at East One Hundred and Second street. 2°4 43 July 291881 1,366 67 6,240 53
Bulkhead at East One Hundred and Fourth stree igh Ig June 4, 1880 99 60 540
Bulkhead and platform at East One Hundred and Fifth stree 58 44 Mar. 30,1861 s 4305
Bulkhead at East One Hundred and Sixth street... 434 70 April 90,1881 439 99 2 5379
East One Hundred and Seventh stree 2*4 T Jan. 15,1881 2389 60 *3.439 60
Pier at East One Hundred and Ninth street..... 165 5@ Oct. ao, i88x 73908 -
Float at East One Hundred and Sixteenth street 40 00 M e el s
Pier at East One Hundred and Seventeenth street... 3*3 95 April 30, 83 1,800 36 7.426 36
Bulkhead and platform at East One Hundred and Twentieth street. 53 87 John E. Hoagland Nov. 36, x88t 29a 13 94a 13
Pier at East One Hundred and Twenty-fifth stree 31 49 Jesse Ryder Nov. 36,1881 193 86 e
“  East One Hundred and Twenty-ninth street 2@8 00 EMPIre City 108 COLuuimiriiiiiiiiiitiii i e Jan. 27, 1882 CER]
ifty-fi Wwm. H Brown Feb. 16,1882 2,011 31
Bulkhead at One Hundred and Fifty-fifth street. 1B 12 (@5 45 John Burns.. April 39, x88a 57 35
2% John Brennan and others, composing West india Fruit Dealers
July 6, **780 55
Total wharfage collected for the year... $147,809 30  paniel Dailey gac‘:f' g' :gg gg
Frederick Schecker.... . oct xa 883 97
Collateral Judgment ag e, surety for .
David Tracy 3~ 67
SCHEDULE | John D. Tracy 99% 19
: Dillon Ransom
Claims placed with the Counsel to the Corporation for Collection, and for which no return was A e oct. 9,1882
made prior to May 1, 1887.
Against John Darrow.
William Bradley.
Oyster Bay and Funiington Sieamboat Co..
B e i 9.750 00 SCHEDULE K.
Benjamin Terwilliger. 900 . .
Daniel Darrow :,g%o% Statement of Valuation of Floating Plant, April 30, 1887.
422750 The jgo-ton derrick "City of New York " . $90,000 00
Jhgﬁ;riéalgaa Steamboat C o w378 io-ton derrick 5,000 00
Sundry deficits prior 10 June, 1878, awaiting legal disposition " tug “ Manhattan 25,000 00
by the Law Department.. 28,35&; gg " two dredges, Nos. "3 ” and "4 " . . 15,000 00
Thomas C. Burke. - 'J ten pile drivers, Nos. * 1,” “2” “3,” “5” “6” “7” “8 9,” " 10”
Thomas Fitzpatrick. i,337 & d “ ” 27,000 00
Erie Railway Co 9-375 00 . an n B s !
allo 56 “ eight deck Scows “B,” "C,” "D,” “E,” "F,” "May, Jim,” andl
Steam Yacht “ Yosem ite... o253 “ Willie ” 12,000 00
Owner or owners Dry Dock Pier 62, East river. 9832 % * boring-machine * Woodcock ” 2,000 00
j‘;sherf"‘_'c‘é"af(‘i'er 17300 " diver'sscow “ G ' and small diver’s scow 600 00
Joseph Cooper... May 1,1883, to May 1, 1884 275000  “ nineteen yawl-boats, three skiffs, two bateaux and three sounding-boats 300 00
Wilhiam H. Wood. May 1,1883, to May 15,1884 x.fn so
Poter b, Walen Aug. 1, 1883, to May z, 1886 3843 75 $176,900 °q
Collis P. Huntington Sept. 19, 1883, 17.500

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures of the Department of Docks from

Total Gross
Revenue from Leased .
Wharves and

Wharfage

For Years Ending April 30.

Total Annual
Expenditures
Audited.

Salaries of

idi x¢ $486,449 xa ,000
For Year aiding 1871... $ﬁ*§’,§§§ 95?4 1075608 ox 28,25 65
447328 0% 622,878 03 50,000
e SR 4w
650.781 83 '693/603 96 gg% %
706,607 78 433,089 9° !
86 486,934 69 11,850 8
763,132 37 373435 68 11,281 x8
0,465 41 599.768 63 6.000 GO
865,071 89 481
x,062,162 54 1,180,097 44
1163 893 %6 953.007 85 000 00
246,858 19 760,106 80 9.00000
138050 1 1,020,207 51 8000
1,228, 1376.7f9 72 .
1 3801169 82 9.000 00
$14,040,631 51 §12,559.530 98 $390,573 34

Commissioners.

Salaries
of Secretary and
Subordinates.

$48,183 56

30,335 3
31,4x6 67
43%92 *9
46,693 71

$603,356 7*

Office Rent,
Stationery and
Incidentals of

ommissioners’
ffice

132x3 81
**.379 73

x4 00
6,472 13

$371,397 84

+ Of the expenditures for 1885, 533,062 75 was for the purchase of wharf property,

121.65

Salaries of

Enginebr-in-Chief
AND

Subordinates.

the Organization of the Department in May, 1870, to April 30, 1887.

Bills and Claims
Audited on
Construction,
including Labor

Pay-Rolls.
$40.0°5 30 $3*3.993 68
. 877.63* 93
8070 % 428,545 08
33,383 6: 8x6,100 X0
37,674 3® 1,409,269 xo
8,500 603,735 68
29.965 95 499 00

. Eo
Ban & 249068 %
28.450 00 488,338 89
30,735 50 5%5.044 45
33,869 9X 829,050 37
33,084 00 75,641 ox
37,860 85 575,080 87
45,703 4* 416,151 29
P *99.358 44
4 . % & 162,621 52
$653,644 *6 $9,343,7%4 39

Bills and Claims
Audited on
General Repairs,

including

Labor Pay-Rolls.

Construction and

General
airs
ined.

Re-
com-

374383 37
*55.526 97
94.735 96
78,493 66

98 YO
119,421 58

$1,069,661 33

Rent-Roll or List of Leases Made by this Department, at what Term, at what Rent, to whom, andfor what Property, together with a List of all Permits or Licenses Made or Granted
during the Year.

Lessee or Occupant.

North River.

Pier,
Eulkhead north of Pier, new 1..
Reclaimed land south of Pier, old .

Land under water for platform between Piers 2 and 3.
Land under water for extension to bulkhead between
Piers 3and 6, and widening Piers 4 and 5
Land under water for platforms at bulkheads

Piers6and 8..
Land under water for pla‘form south side Pier 8.,
Land under water for platform between Piers 8 and 9
Land under water for extension to Pier 9 ......
Land under water for platform at bulkhead north

Pier xo, and widening north side of Pier.
North half Pier xa and halfbulkhead.
Pier 13 and halfbulkhead southerly.
Land under water for platforms between Piers xa and 13,

and 13 and 14
South halfPfer 14 and bulkhead adjoining.
Land under water for platform south of Pier 16, and ex-

South haIfPler 18 and 33 feet bulkhead southerly.....

Iron Steamboat Co
Cavanagh & Collin:
Pennsylvania R. R. Co.
Lehigh Valley R. R.Co.

Pennsylvania R. R.Co

New York & Baltimore Transportation Line.
Central R. R. Co. of New Jersey

Clark & Seaman.
William Cmikshank. agent

Metropolitan Steamship Co..
Central R. R.Co. of New Jersey.
Central R. R. Co. of New Jersey...

Central R. R. Co. of New Jersey
Francis S. Lathrop....

Pennsylvania R. R.Co
Associates of the Jersey Co.

Term of Tenancy.

May x, 1881, to May 1, 1891 $30,100per ann.

May x, 1885, to May x, 1888
At pleasure of the Board ...
At pleasure of the Board....
May 1,1883, to May 1,1893

At pleasure of the Boar

At pleasure ofthe Board.

At pleasure of the Board.....
May 1,1885, to May 1,1890
May x, 1885, to May 1, if

At pleasure of the Board.
Nov. x, x88i, to May x, 18l

At pleasure of the Board.
May x, 1886, to May x, 1891

7.600
Xs,000

1.600
*7,850

1.000
8.000

Right of Tenancy.

Received
during
Year

By public sale, March 22,1881.

Y public sale, March 30,1885.
By resolution, August x6, 1882.
BY resolution, August 18,1886.

By resolution, August 8, 1883.

By resolutions, January a, 1878 and April 30,1884..

By resolution, January 5, 1881.

By resolutions, October 9,1879 and April 30,1884
By resolutions, October 9, 1879 and April 30, 1884..

By resolution, July a6,188a.

By public sale, March 30, 1885.
By public sale, March 30,1885.

By resolution, August 5, *879.

By public sale, October 31,1881
By resolutions, July 9, *879 *nd April 30,1884.

By public sale, April is, 1

$30,100 00
950 00
x,000 00
375 00

**4 95
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TjnH under water for platform between Piers 18 and 19,

Land* under "water" for piatforms between Piers 18 and
0ld 20.

Pier, old ao and bulkhead southerly.

Land under water for extension to Pier, old 2

Pier, old al and bulkhead adjoining south side

7.3nH under water for platform at bulkhead north of Pier,

old 38 - -
Land under water for extension to platform northof Pier,

old a8
Pier 29 (except use of water on north side).
Piers, new 20 and new ax, and 560 feet bulkl

ly from north side of Pier, old 29 ..
Land under water for platform south side of Pier, old 33.
Land underwater for platform south side of Pier, old 33.
One hundred feet bulkhead southerly from Franklin street
One hundred feet bulkhead southerly from Franklin street

Pier, old

Land under water for platform south Slde Pier, old 36 .
Pier old 36

inches bulkhead southerly from

Fifty ‘festbulkhesd northerly from North Moor street..
Pier, new 26.
One hundred feet bulkhead southerly from Hubert street

rs, new 27 and new 28 and bulkhead between.......
r, old 39.

1,and under water for platform north side of Desbrosses
street
r, old 40 and bulkhead northerl
Plel' new 34and one-half bulkhea

each Side.

r, new 35
One hundred and ten feet of bulkhead between F'I
35and Pier, new 3

Pier, new 36.

Half bulkhead southerly and half bulkhead noitherly o!
Pier, new 37
Pier, new 38.

Pier, new 40 (except use of water on north side).......
Water, north side of Pier, new 40..
Pier, new .

Bulkhead 94 feet each side of Pier, new 41
Reclaimed land, southerly of Pier, new 42.

T.anH under water, southerly of Pier, new 42.

Pier, new 42,

Pier, new43...

Piers, new 44 and new 45, bulkhead between and one-

halfbulkhead north of Pier, new 45..
Pier, new 46....

Pier, new 47 and bulkhead southerly and bulkhead along
easterly side of approach to Piers, new 46 and new 47.
Bulkhead south ol Pier, old 54..
Pier at Jane street.
Pier at Horatio street.. -
Pier at Gansevoort street (with reservation to cancel, it
required for new public market)..
Land under Waler for platform at bulkhead south of
Thirteenth s
Berth for ice barge on nor
teenth street
Pier at Twentieth street.
Pier at Twenty-first street
Pier at Twenty d str
Land under water tor platform and ferry racks betw'een
West Twenty-second and West Twenty-third streets

Land under water for platform north offerry at Twemy
third street

Pier, new 54,

Pier, new .

Pier at Thirty-sixth street..
Land under Water for extension to Pier at Forty third

Land Under water Souih side Fiftieth Strest
Pier at Fifty-e ghth street. . .
Dumping Board at Fi hth streetand Twelfth avenue
Site for Pier at Fifty-ninth street
Land under water between Sixtieth and Sixty-fifth streets

(for erection of two piers).
Land under water between south line of Sixty-fifth and

south line of Seventy-second streets, weslerly to

established pier line of 1868.
Pier at One Hundred and Twenty-ninth street

East half of Pier 4. ssee».
Bulkhead and platform bet

Pier 6.
West half Pier 8
East half Pier x8
Land under water for platform soulh of Pier 2
East half Pier 20—
Bulkhead Platform between Piers 20 and ax..
West half Pier 21....
East half Pier 24 and half bulkhead adjoining.
T.3«d under water for platform easterly and westerly |
of Pier 27..
West half Pier 26 and half bulkhead adjoinini
Land under water for platform between Piers
East half Pier 33, west half Pier 34, and bulkhead 1

etween ...
Tand under water for platform between Piers 33 and 34.

Land under water for widening east side and extension to

Pier 3ﬂand halt bulkhead westerl
Land under water for platform between Piers 38 and 39
Pier 40 and halfbulkhead easterly, including platform..

Land under water for platform between Piers 49 and 50.

Tnnd under water for platform at bulkhead south of
Land under'water tor platform between Piers 50and 51.
East half Pier sx, west half Pier 52, and bulkhead, etc.

between (except reservation for public bath at

BullAead”etc.*, at and south* of Houston street.

rd street (except reservation for Pohce boat).

site for pier, 130 feet south of Houston street
Pier atTi
Pier at Fifth street.
Bulkhead at Twentieth street.
Bulkhead south of Twenty-fourth street, north of ferry

pre
Pier at Thirty-first street. .
South halfand outer end pier at Thirty-third street
North helf pler at Thirty-third street (except reservation
of outer end).
Bulkhead at Thirty
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Lessee or Occupant.

Delaware, Lackawanna & Western R. R. Co

John H. Starin.
Francis MacDonald
Francis MacDonald
William Coverly..

Old Colony Steamboat Co.

old Colony Steamboat Co
Providence & Stonington Steamship Co.

N.Y., Lake Erie & Western R. R. Co.
Catskill Evening Line.
N.Y., West Shore & Buffalo R. R. Co.
Van Sickler & Co
Hunt & Donaldson.

Homer Ramsdell...

Bogert & Morgan, agents...
Bogert & Morgan, agents (assignees)..

Morgan’s Louisiana & Texas R. R. & Steamship Co
Morgan’s Louisiana & Texas R. R. & Steamship Co.
old Dominion Steamship Co
James D. Wynkoop

Pennsylvania R. R. Co
ASSotiates of the Jersey Co. and A Van Santvoord and
H. P. Farrington...

New Jersey R. R. & Transportation Co...
Harvey P. Farrington
Pacific Mail Steamship Co
H.Yonge, Jr., agent...

Polhemus & Winni

Providence and Stonington Steamship Co., assignee.

C. P. Huntington

C. P.Huntington (with covenant for ten years renewal)
Williams & Guion

Francis W.J. Hurst (National S.S. Co., limited)..

Cunard Steamship Co. (Limited)
Cunard Steamship Co. (Limited)—substituted..
Delaware, Lackawanna & Western R. R. Co. (assignee)

Delaware, Lackawanna & Western R. R. Co.
Hudson Tunnel Railway Co...

Hudson Tunnel Railway Co

Compagnie Generate T ransatlantique.
Baltimore & Ohio R. R. Co...

Oceanic Steam Navigation Co
C. P. Huntington.

Daniel Shea..

Drew & Bucki.

A.C. Cheney.
chkerbocker ‘ice Co
C.T. Van Santvoord
C.T. Van Santvoord

N. Y., Lake Erie & Western R. R.Co.

Twenty-third street Railway Co.
Funch, Edye & Co., agents.
Pirn, Forwood & Co., agents...

Central & Hudson R

R.

Co.,

N. Y. Central & Hudson R. assignee, etc..
chkerbocker Ice Co..
James
Union Stock vard & Market Go
John Chester.
N. Y. Central & Hudson R. R. R. Co....

N. Y. Central & HudsonR. R. R. Co....

N. Y. Central & Hudson FT. R.
D. G. Yuengling, Jr-..

.Co....

Central & Hudson R
Central & Hudson R.
Central & Hudson R.
Central & Hudson R.
Central & Hudson R.
Lake Erie & Western R. R. CO0.
iam D. Morgan..
Mallory & Co...
. H. Mallory & Co
C. H. Mallory & Co
C. H. Mallory & Co

Hartford ana N. Y. Transportation Co.

R
R
R.
R
R.

Y.
LY.
LY.
LY.
LY.
LY,
“H

po0szzZZZZ

Baltimore & Ohio Railroad Co.

New Haven Steamboat Co.
Long IslandR. R. Co..

Thomas Clyde
Thomas Clyde..

Geo. H. Penmman.
Maine Steamship Co
Peter Charles.
Frank Phelps.
N.Y., New Haven & Hartford

R. Co., assignee

N.Y., New Haven & Hartford R. R.Co..
Harlem River & Port ChesterR. R.Co...

Joseph V. Brown.
Nassau Ferry Co.

Nassau Ferry Co.
Ridgewood ice Co.
Joseph V. Brown
H. L. Herbert & Co.

Greenpoint Ferry Co
Joseph V. Brown..
East River Ferry Co

East River Ferry Co.
Jeremiah Skidmore's Sons.

Term op Tenancy.

May x, 1878, to 3 mos. notice

At pleasure of the Board...
May x, 1868, to 3 mos. notice
June 15,1874, to 3mos. notice
May x, 1880, to May 1,1883

(holding over).

At pleasure of the Board...

At pleasure of the Board...
May 1,1886, to May 1,1891

Aug. 13,1881, to Aug. x, 1891
At pleasure of the Board...
At pleasure of the Board...
May x, 1885, to May x, 1887
May x, 1887, at pleasure of
the Board .
May x, 1879, to removal for
new pier.
At pleasure of the Board..
Feb. 1,1880, to removal for
new pier.

Dec. 23,1884, to May x, 1886
Feb. xi, 1885, to May 1,1886
May x, x88x, to May 1, 1891
Dec. 23, 1884, and January

14,1885, to May x, 1888
Sept, x, 1884, to Sept. 1, 1894

May x, 1879, to removal for
new pier..

At pleasure of the Board..

May 1,1883, to May 1, 1893

Sept, X, 1884, to Sept, x, 1889

May 1,1883, to May x, 1893

April ix, 1887, at pleasure of
the Boar
June x, x88x, to June x, x8jx

May x, 1883, to May x, 1893

To May x, 1
May 1,1878, m ‘May x, xe88

Feb. 1,1878, to Feb. 1,1
May 1,1879, to
Nov. 1,1880, to
Sept. 1, i88x, to

May 1,1889
May 1,
Sept, 1, 1891

Sept, x, 1686.t0 Sept. 1,150
,'1881, to Jan. 1, X
(holdlng over)...
Jan. x, 1881, to Jan. X, 16E
(holding over)...

(Nov. x, 1876, to Nov. x, 181
1Nov. 1,1886, to Nov. 1, i8<
. X886, at pleasure of
the Board..

March 7,1887, to completion]
of rebuilding Pier, new 37,
N.

May x, 1886, to
May x, 1884, to
May 1, 1884, to
May 1,1884, to

May 1, x8ox
May x, 1887
May 1, 1887
May 1,1887

May x, 1885, to May 1,1888

At pleasure ofthe Board

At pleasure of the Board....
May 1,1886, to May 1,189
May 1,1886, to May x, 1891
May 1, 1886, to May 1,1891

March 18,1887, at pleasure
of the Board..

At pleasure of the Board...
Jan. 1, 1882, to Jan. x, 1892.
May x, 1882, to Feb. 1, x8g

July x, 1882, to July 1, 1892
Nov. i, 1873, to Nov. x. 1883

(holding over)
Dec. 5,186, to Oct. 8,1894

At pleasure of the Board..
At pleasure of the Board..
May x, 1886, to May 1,189
At pleasure of the Board..
Nov. x, 1877, to Nov. 1,1887

Aug. x, 1884, to Aug. x, 1894

May 1,1880, to
May i, 1885, to

May 1,18
May 1, x88

May 1,1886, to
May 1, 1886, to
May 1,1886, to
May i, 1886, to
May 11886, to
May 1,1884, to May 1, 188;
May 1, 1885, to May 1, 188!
At pleasure of the Board..
Aug 15,1883, to May x. 1838
May 1,1885, to May 1,1888
May x, 1886, to May 1, 1891
May i, 1886, to May x, 1891
(Nov. 1, 1886, at pleasure
i of the Board........
May x, 1886, to May 1,
At pleasure of the Board...
(May 1, 1886, at pleasure
) of the Board..
May 1,1886, at pleasure of
the Board..

May 1,1891
May 1, 189:
May 1, 1891
May 1,18
May 1, 18!

Nov. 1,1878, to May*x, 1879
Nov. 1, x88x, to May 1, if
At pleasure of the Board
May 1,1882, to May 1, ¥
Jan. 1. 1851, at pleesure ol
the Board..

At pleasure of the Board.
At pleasure of the Board.

May i, 1885, to
Nov. 1,1878, to

May :
May :

May *, 1879, to
May i, 1885, to
May x, X886, to
May x, 1885, to

May 1, i
May 1,1
May X, 1
May 1, :
June 1, x88i, to

ay X, 1884, to
ay 1,1886, to

June x,

May x,:
May 1,

May x, x88x, to
May x, X886, to

May x,
May x,

59«*75
250.00

3,5<»
1,500
30,000

1.000
(fromjuly xx88x)
30,000 per ann. (
30,500 J
2,000 per mo.

45,500per ann.

17,000 per ann
6t/00 M.
1600 1
1230

150 per mo
3000per and.
3500 I
2500

X00 per mo,
20.000per,ann
200 “

4,000per ann.

(forfirstfiveyrs.
2,250 2dfive yrs.
300per ann.

Right or Tenancy.

By resolutions, March 6,1878 and April 30,1884

By resolutions, May 15,1873 and December 15, 1875,
By the Mayor, etc., lease dated December 6, 1867.
By resolution, March xx, 1874..

By public sale, April 13,1880..

By resolutions July g and 23,1879..

By resolution June 10,1886.
By public sale, April 15,1886.

By resolutions July 14,1875, and August xa, 1881
By resolution August 5,1885.
By resolution April 29,1885..
By purchase with lease March 13,1885.

By resolution April 30,1887..

By resolution 27,1878
By resolution August 8,1877.

By resolutions November 27,1878, April 30,1879, and June
22, 1881

By purchase December 23, 1884.

By purchase, February ix, 1885.

By resolutions, August 14, 1878, and April 27, May xxs
and May 25, x88

By purchase, December 23,1884, and January 19, 1885.

By resolution, May 25,188

By resolution, November 27,1878...
ion, 2,1871

By resoluuon April 25,1883.
By resolutions, July 23and 31, and August 3,1874.
By resolution, June 6,1883.

By resolution, April 6,1887,.
By resoluuons November 20,1879, and April 27, and June

By publlc sale, April 27, X883,

By resolution, June 24,1886..

By resolutions, April 26, 1876, and January 30, 1878, and
September 6,1875..

By resolutions, April 26,1876,
1878,

and January 30 and July 17

By resolutions, April 26,1876,
By resolutions, April 26,1876,
By resolutions, April 29,1881,
- cember 21,1881
By resolution, August 20, X886 ...

and April 29, 1878
and November 10, X880
September x, x88i, and De-

By resolutions, March 23,1881, and January 7 ,1885.....

By resolution, March 23, i88x ...
By resolution, February x8,1875..

By resolution, September 29,1886..

By resolution, December 4,1873....

By resolution, April 4,1887..

By publicsale, April 15,1886.
By public sale, April 21,1884.
By public sale, April 21,1884.
BY public sale, April 21,1884.

By public sale, March 30,1885...

By resolution, November 1,1876.....

By resolution, April 30, 1887.
By public sale, April 15, x886.
By public sale, April 15, 1886.
By public sale, April 15,1886.

By resolutions, October 20,1886, and January 7,1887..

By resolution, June 5,1882

By resolutions, June 30,1880, and November 16, 1881.

By resolutions, July 7,1880, December 14, and December
28,1851, and April xa, 1882..

By resolutions, December 8,1880, and July 19, 1882,

By resolutions, September 13,1873, and February 6,1884
resol October 8, 1884

By resolutions, September 25 and November 21,1873.
By resolution, February 13,1884.
By public sale, April 15,1886
By resolution, March 14,1883
By resolutions, August 16,1876, and November 7,1877

ol

By r n, April 23,1884,

By resolution, April 28,1880
By public sale, March 30,1885.

By public sale. April 15, x886..
By public sale,April 15,1886..
By public sald, April 15, x886..
By public salel, April 15,1886..
By public sale, April 15,1886..
By public sale April ax, 1884..
By public salei March 30,1885.
By resolution, March 27,1878.
By public sale, April 27, 1883,
By public sale, March 30,188p.
By public sale, April 15,1886.

By public sale, April 15,

By resolution, September 15, x886.
By public sale, April 15,1886..
By resolution, December 24, 1884.

By resolution, August 20,1886....

By resolution, August 20,1886...

By public sale, December x6, 1878..
By public sale, October 31, x88x.
By resolution June x6,1875.
By public sale March 29, x88x.

By resolutions November 22,1880, and July ax, x886

By resolution May a6, 1880...
By resolutions May 7, 1884, and November 6, 1879.

By public sale March 30,1885...

By public sale December 16,1878
By resolution January 8,1870
By public sale March 30,1885.
By public sale April 15,188
By public sale March 30,1885.

By public sale March as, x88x
By public sale April ax, 1884.
By public sale April 15,1886

By public sale May; 27,1880
By public sale April 15, x886 .

3383

Received
during
Year.

150 00

30.000 00
70.000 00

3008 76
30,000 00
30.000 00

92,500 00
7,500 00

4.5%6 13

17,000 00
6,500 00
1,600 00
1,230 00

1,500 00
1,675 00
>,000 co
=500 00

9,16% 67
275 00
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Bulkhead and dump at Thirty-ninth street.
Bulkhead at Forty-third street
Bulkhead and dump at Forty-fifth street.

Bulkhead at Forty-seventh street...
Bulkhead at Forty-ninth streef.

THE CITY RECORD

Lessee or Occupant.

Long Island Land Fertilising Co
James L. Miller..
Schwarzschild & Sulzberge:

Owens & Co..
M. Goodwin

Pier at Fifty-third street o

Ice Co

Site for bulkhead between Fi ty-sixth and Fifty-seventh

street:

Site for platform, etc., south of Sixty-third street..
Land under water for platform at Sixty-Third street.

Crib bulkhead and platform between Sixty-third and

Sixty-Fourth streets..
Site for bulkhead at Seventy-fourth street.

Site for platform between Seventy-ninth and Eightieth)

Harlem River.

Berth for float, north side pier at One Hundred and

Twenty-fifth street.

Land under water south side One Hundred and Twenty-

sixth street

Land under water for bridge pier at One Hundred and

Twenty-ninth street ana Second avenue..

List of Leases sold at Public Sale, held April 9th, 1887, to take effect on and after May 1st, 1887, for what Term, at what Pent, to whom, andfor what Property.

North River.

Pier, old 20, and bulkhead on southerly side, the bulkhead
between Pier, old 20, and Pier, old 21, and Pier, old 21

Bulkhead between Pier, old 21, and Pier, old 23.
South halfPier, old 2.

North half Pier, old 34...

Bulkhead and Platform 87 feet 6 in. southerly of North

Moorestr

Bulkhead 50 ft. northerly from North Moore street, and

platform in front of same..

Bulkhead south of Pier, old 54, commencing about 107
feet south Ofthe South side ofthe pier and extending
southerly about 300 feet to the approach to Pier,

Pier at Bethune street.

Bulkhead extending from Pier at foot of Gansevoort street
to Pier, old 57, near the foot of Bogart street (with
reservation to cancel, if required, for new Public

Market)

Bulkhead between Pier,' old 57 and Pier, old 58 (with
serration to cancel,
Market)

if required, for new Public

Bulkhead between Pier, old 58, and Pier, cld 59 (with re
servation to cancel, if required, for new Public

Market).

Pjer, new 60.

Pier at West Thirty-fifth street
Pier and Temporary Approach at
Bulkhead at West Forty-Firststreet....
Pier at West Forty-fourth street...

Bulkhead at West Forty-fifth street..

Bulkh ad on the southerly half of West Ninety- soventn

Bulkhead between West One Hundred and Thirtieth and
West One Hundred and Thirty-first streets, and the
southerly side of the pier at West One Hundred and

Thirty-first street..
Pier at West One Hundred and Fifty-second street

East halfof Pier 33, west half of Pier 34, and bulkhead
tween.

rm betwe

Schmitt & Koehne.
Ehrenreich Brothers.
Neidlinger, Schmidt & Co

Neidlinger, Schmidt & Co.
Thomas Patten.

Murphy & Nesbit

Edward McGrath..

George T. Gaden & Co.

Suburban Rapid TransitCo.

Lessee or Occupant.

Baltimore and Ohio Railroad Co
The New York Steam Co

S. D. Coykendall and James E. Morris....

Morgan's Louisiana & Texas R.R. andS.S.Co

Morgan's Louisiana & Texas R. R. and S. S. Co.

N.Y. City Ice Co.

Mutual Benefit Ice Co
James McCIenahan
Pennsylvania R. R.
Western Stock Yard Co
John A. Bjuker..
New York House Manure Co.
James McLaughlin

J.Cox&Co...

Fort Lee Ferry Co .
John A. Bouker__

New Haven Steamboat Co.

Pier 3Sand half bulkhead westerly.
Pier 43....

Southerly side and end of Pier 55 and the bulkhead at

the footof Cherry street.
North half Pier 56, south hall of P

Northerly half Df Pier 52 foot of Stanton stree
Bulkhead at foot of East Fourth street..
Bulkhead at the foot of East Fifteenth street.

157, and bulkhead

F. W Wright..

Thomas O’Brien...

C. E. Murtagh
C. E. Murtagh.
Romain & Co.
R. Ingli

Louis Brandt.

Bulkhead at the foot of East Eighteenth street

Pier at East Twenty-fifth street.
Pier at Thirty-first street.
Pier at the foot of East Thirty-second
Bulkhead at the foot of Fast Thirty sixth stree:
Bulkhead at the foot of East Fortieth stree
Bulkhead at the foot of East Forty-first street .
Bulkhead at the foot of East Forty-fourth street
Bulkhead, etc.,

between East Fifty-fourth street and

Brown
seph V. Brown...

" Starin
ham & C

Equitable Gas Light Co
Equ:table Gas Light Co
Jacob Fl

East Fifty-fifth street.

Bulkhead platform between East Sixtieth and East Sixty-
first street, and the bulkhead platform at East Sixty-

first street.

Bulkhead platform between East Sixty-first street and

the Pier at East Sixty-second street..,
Bulkhead at foot of East Sixty-third street
Bulkhead, etc., between East Sixty-third street ant
Sixty-fourth street
Ikhead, etc., at toot 1
Ikhead at the foot o f
The bulkhead at East Seventy-

Seventy-ninths tr e

ghth street, the bulkhead
platform between East Seventy-eight!1 street and
East Seventy-ninth slreel and the Pier at East

Isaac Untermye
Cavanagh & Collin:

Knickerbocker Ice Co.
Neidlinger, Schmidt & Co.,

Neidlinger, Schmidt & Co.
Neidlin.er, Schmidt & Co.
F. P. Eastma

Bulkhead at the foot of cas( Nlnely -ninth street.

H rlem River.

Bulkhead platform at foot of East One Hundred and
F

ourth sf

Bulkhead platform at East One Hundred and Fifth

street .
Bulkhead at East One Hundred and Sixth street..

i IceCo..
Cavanagh & Collins.

Lehman Levy..

Kane & Wright
A. Scott.

Rents collected during the year, as above:

Term or Tenancy.

May 1, 1886, to May x, 189:
May t, 1885, to May x, 1881
May 1, 1883, to May t. 1881

(holding over)...
May 1, 1886, to May 1, 1831
May 1, xE86, to May 1, 180:
May i, 1885, to May 1, 1881

At pleasure of the Board...

At pleasure of the Board

June 1, 1874, to June 1,1884
(holding over)....

May r, 1884, to May 1, 1887
At pleasure of the Board...
fMay x, 1878, to termination
1 of occupancy of upland

At pleasure of the Board... 25 per qr.

At pleasure of the Board... 400per ann

At pleasure of the Board...

Term of Tenancy.

May 1, 1857, to May X, 1892 436,000 per ann.
May x, 1887, to May % 1oas

May 1, 1887, to Ma

May 1,1887, to May 1,1888

May x, 1887, to May 1,

May x, 1887, to May X,

May x, 1887, to May 1,1890
May 1, 1887, to May 1, 1888

May x, 1887, to May 1, x888
May 1, 1887, to May :

1887, to May x, 1
May : 1887, to May 1, i

May 1 1887, to May 1, 1

May ; 1887, to May x, 18921
May = 1887, to May 1,1888
May 1,1887, to May 1, 1892
May x, 1887, to May x, 1888

May 1, 1887, to May 1, i6f

May : 1887, to May t, 1801
May ; ,x8£6, to May 1, 1S88

May 1, 1887, to May x, 1888

May 1, 1887, to May 1892
May x 1887, ay
May 1 1887,to May x, 1

g

May i, 1887, to May x, 189

May x 1887,to May 1, 1890
May x May 1, ifljfl
May x 2887, to May x, 1
May 1, 1887, to May 1, 1868
May i, 1887, to May 1,1888
May x 1887, to May x, 1890
May i. 1887,to May 1, 1892
May i, 1887,to May 1, 1892
May x 1887, to May 1, 1890
May X 1887, to May X, i~
May 1 1887, to May i, 1
May x, 1887, to May x, 1

May 1, 1887, to May x, 1892

May i, 1887, to May 1,

May 1, 1887, to May x, 1890
May x, 1887, to May 1,

May 1, 1887, to May x, 1892
May x. 1887, to May 1, 1890
May x. 1887 to May x, 1890

May: ,1887, to May i,
May 1887, to May 1, 1890

May x, 1887, to May X,:

May 1,1887, to May x, 1890
May 1, 1887, to May 1, 1890

SUMMARY.

From North River water-front,

From East River

D ecember 2

Right of Tenancy.

By public sale April 15, x886.
By public sale March 30,1885

By public sale April 27,1883.
By public sale April 15, 188
By public sale April xs, 1886.
By public sale March 30, 1885,

By resolutions April 27, X877, and April 30, 1884.
By resolution December 24, 1878.

By resolutions May 28,1874, and July 16, 1884.

By public sale April 21. 1884,
By resolution November 21,187

By resolution May 3,.1878..

Total..

By resolution April 24, 1878....

By resolution June 29,1883...
By resolutions April 4,1883, and June so, 1883...

Total.....

Right of Tenancy.

By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887
By public sale, April 9,1887
By public sale, April 9,1887

By public sale, April 9,1887....

By public sale, April 9,1877....

By public sale, April 9,1887.
By public sale, April 9,1887.

By public sale, April 9,1887.

By public sale, April 9,1887

By pu sale, April 9,

sale, April 9,
By public sale. April o
By public sale, April 9,

By public sale, April 9,
By pubi c sale, April 9,
By public sale, April 9,

By public sale, April 9,

By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9,1887.

By public tale, April 9,1887.

By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.

By public sale, April! 9,1887.

By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, Aptil 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April9, 1887.
By public sale. April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale. April 9, 1887.

By public sale, April 9,1887.

By public sale, April 9, 1887.

By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9,1887.

By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.

By public sale, April 9, 1887.
By public sale, April 9, 1887.

By public sale, April 9, 1887

By public sale, April 9,1887
By public sale, April 9,1887

132,434 t»

From Harlem River

Wharfages collected from unleased properly :

1 #i,x 13,003 a8

On North River water-front.

On East sad Harlem River

t-fnriw - Jt

Received durfrg the year

Unpaid rents and wharfage placed with Counsel to the Corporation during the year for

Total Revenue for the year ending May 1, 1887.

33 ™M
#1,260,036 58

1887.

Received
during
ear.
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REPORT OF THE ENGINEER-IN-CHIEF.

Department of Docks, Pier “A,” foot of Battery Place, N. R.,1
Office of the Engineer-in-Chief,
New York, May i, 1887. )

To the Board ofDocks :
Gentlemen— | have the honor to submit the following report of the work under my charge
and supervision during the year ending April 30, 1887.

NORTH RIVER— WORK UNDER NEW PLAN

Battery Section— Embracing the boat landing, Pier, A and Pier new 1, North river, and about
80 feet ofbulkhead north of Pier, new 1.

Pier A— This pier has been completed, with the exception of the asphalt covering of its deck or
top, upon the plan described in the annual report for 1885 and 1886.

Some of the iron work of the pier has been painted.

Temporary steps of wood have been placed at the door, and plans and specifications prepared
and submitted to the Board for improvement of the approach to the pier and of the adjacent boat
landing.

An additional boiler for the steam heating has also been built and put in place on the pier.

Chambers Street Section —Extending from the north side of Pier, old 29, to 91.70 feet north of
the north side of Pier, new 21, a distance of 651.70 feet.

Length of piling to date... 670.50 feet
“ base blocks to date 603.42
“ -+ E " course of granite to date 569.64 *
Equivalent length of completed wall to date 589.40 *

Some filling has been received upon this section, and levels have been taken on filling in
of wall to ascertain the rate of its settlements.

Horse-car tracks of the Chambers and Grand street Ferry Railroad Company have been laid
on the new-made land in front of the Pavonia Ferry, under permit of the Board dated October 21,
1886, and also of the Houston, West street and Pavonia Ferry Railroad Company, under permit of
the Board dated October 27, 1886.

North Moore Street Section—Extending from a point 21 feet south of the south side of Pier,
new 26, North river, to a point half-way between North Moore street and Franklin street, a distance
of about 340 feet. -

rear

Dredging to date.. 190.00 feet.
Stone filling to date 160.00 *
Equivalent length of completed wall 34*66 “

Nothing has been done upon this section. Negotiations are pending for purchase of 125 feet Df
old bulkhead property which will terminate the injunction of July 7, 1881, and allow the work then
stopped to proceed.

Beach Street Section—Extending from 21 feet south of the south side of Pier, new 26, to 95 feet
of the north side of Pier, new 26, a distance of 196 feet.

Length of piling to date 172.00 feet.
base blocks to date 168.83 “
“ E” course of granite to date. 121.02
Equivalent of completed wall to date 167.90
A cluster of guard-piles has been maintained at the northerly end of the section to protect

unfinished work
The lease of the old bulkhead on the section having been terminated, the gap between Piers,
new 26 and new 27, will soon be closed by building the bulkhead or river wall.

Laight Street Section.— Extending from 95 feet north of the north side of Pier, new 26, North
river, to the southerly side of Pier, old 39, a distance of about 500 feet.
Length of piling for the vear 0.00feet; to date, 344-05 feet

“ base blocks tor the year . 84.73 “ “ 339*37 «
* o« “ E " course of granite for the year 104.71 * " 301.95 *
Equivalent length of completed wallfor the year 0.00 * 335*°°

Some old platforms and sheds have been removed, and some filling put in on this section.

The iron shed of the Pennsylvania Railroad Company, 65 feet wide, and extending from
southerly side of Pier, new 26, to northerly side of Pier, new 27, which was begun last year, has
been completed, and a temporary pavement laid in front of it by the same company.

Sections North of Canal Street.
The sections north of Canal street on which the bulkhead or river wall has been completed

are as follows :

Length of "E”

R TSP cOURSE O . Equivalent

Section. . Length of Com-
G'ag'te. under  “ojcted Wall.

oping.

' 8

spring v 40674 40674

148.41 148.41

Houston 109.89 109.89
103.51

561.46 561.46

C sop e 1,111.5%

Xotal length. 3.3*7-83 3.37306

These sections embrace Piers, new 34 to new 47, inclusive of both.

Repairs have been made to the pavement when carried down by the settlement of the newly
made land upon which it rests.

Pier, new 35 is being rebuilt by the Ocean Steamship Company, H. Yonge, Jr.,
lessee, under the resolution of the Board, passed June 6, 1883.

The railroad track from Pier, new 36 to the New York Central and Hudson River Railroad
on West street has been taken up, the Providence and Stonington Steamship Company, present
lessees of the pier, having no use forit. <

. Pier, new 37 was burned to the water's edge on February 28, 1887, during a strong north-
westerly gale and very low tide, and the iron shed on the bulkhead, from half way between Piers,
new 36 and 37, to half way between Piers, new 37 and new 38, which was nearly completed,
was very badly damaged. No repairs to the pier or shed have been made since the fire.

Pier, new 41, N.R., an iron shed on the bulkhead, extending from halfway between Piers,
new 40 and 41, to half way between Piers, new 41 and 42, has been begun by Delaware, Lacka-
wanna and Western Railroad Company, lessee, under permit of the Board, passed August 20, 1886.

Waiting places for pedestrians have been placed on two of the cross-walks leading to the
Christopher Street Ferry across the new made land and pavement to afford protection against teams
in the long crosswalk of 180 feet. They have been built of wood, but should they prove useful
and successful it will probably be advisable to replace them with stone or iron when they are worn

agent and

*The repairs to Pier, new 46 and shed upon it have not yet been reached.

West Twenty-third Street Section, South End —Extending from 10 feet south of the northerly
side of West Twenty-third street to 43.27 feet north of Pier, new 57, a distance of 1,238.2 feet.
Length of piling for the year 0.00 feet; lo date 968.00 feet.

base block 00.0 878.23 *

> *E” course of granite for the year . 0.0 " 78753 *

“ Extra course of granite... 206.19 bl 205.19 “
Approximate equivalent length of completed wall for the year. 0.00 “ 915.00

On account of the various injunctions restraining the Department from proceeding with the
construction on this section, no work has been done upon it except the maintenance of the tem-
porary roadways to the piers, and refilling the newly-made ground where settlement made it ad-
visable, renewing temporary backing logs, etc.

West Twenty-third Street Section, North AW — Extending from 43.27 feet north of Pier,
new 57, to the northerly line of West Thirtieth street, extended, a distance oi 615.42 feet.
Length’of piling for the year 0.00 feet; to date 500.00 feet.

“ base block 000 . 47i*80
*« « E " course of granite for the year..... - 0.00 442.12
Approximate equivalent length of completed wall for the year... 0.00 “ 492,00 “

For the reasons as apply to the West Twenty-third street section, south end, only the
same general work has been done upon this section as upon the above.
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West Thirty-first Street Section.- -Extending from the northerly side of West Thirtieth street
to the northerly side of West Thirty-first street, a distance of 257.5 feet.

Length of piling for the year 0 00 feet., to date 257.5 feet.

base blocks for the year 2575 *“

“ “E ™ course of granite 77* " 2575 “
Approximate equivalent length of completed wall for the year,

except coping 5*io" ¥ 257%5

All the granite, except the coping, has been set upon this section, and the filling behind the
wall is being put in.

Plans and specifications are nearly completed for building Pier, new 61, 500 feet in length by
100 feet wide, at the foot of West Thirty-first street, and the dredging necessary for this pier is
partly done.

West Thirty-second Street Section.— Extending from the northerly side of West Thirty-first
street to the northerly side of West Thirty-third street, a distance of 515 feet.
Length of piling for the year 95.0 feet to date 95.0 feet

“ base blocks for the year .5
Approximate equivalent length of completed wall for the year.. 49.0 “ 49.0 *

Under unanimous resolution of the Board, passed October 22, 1885, the work of building the
wall upon this section has been carried on, and the dredging, placing of cobbles and rip-rap, the
piling and wood work and setting of concrete blocks and granite have been done, so that the wall
can soon be completed to receive the new pier at foot of West Thirty-second street, the plans and
specifications for which are being prepared.

West Fortieth Street.— A new pier under the new plan, with a temporary approach to it, was
begun under Contract No. 231, in November, 1886, and is now substantially though not fully com-
pleted ; it is 500 feet long and 60 feet wide.

EAST RIVER.

Pier, new 32.— Under resolution of the Board of December I, 1886, the removal of Pier, old
41, East river, at the foot of Pike Slip wa” begun, and under Contract No. 241, the construction
of Pier, new 32, East river, was begun, and is now in progress.

The necessary maps and form of application, and other information necessary for application
to the Commissioners of the Land Office for grant of lands under water, in accordance with section
720 of chapter 410 of the Laws of 1882, known as the New York City Consolidation Act, have
been made and prepared, and the application for the grant was made on the 10th day of March,
1887, but has not yet been acted upon by the Commissioners of the Land Office.

The examination of the Harlem river water front has been continued, and the results have been
mapped and put in condition for study and use.

Work of Construction not under New Plan.
NORTH RIVER.
W est Seventy-seventh to West Eightieth Street.

Under Contract No. 243 the construction of new wooden crib-work bulkhead from southerly
side of Seventy-seventh to southerly side of Seventy-eighth street was begun April 15, 1887,
and the work is now in progress and will probably be completed before .1st of August, 1887, and
the filling on the existing bulkheads from Seventy-eighth to Eightieth street leveled and cared for.

West One Hundred and Fifty-eighth Street.

Examinations have been made for a pier at foot of West One Hundred and Fifty-eighth street,

and plans and specifications for the same are in progress.
EAST RIVER.
E ast Seventy-sixth Street.

Examinations have been made of the bottom, with view of preparing plans and specifications
for building small pier at foot of East Seventy-sixth street.

East Eightieth Street.

Examinations have been made and plans and specifications are nearly ready for building a
small dumping-board pier at the foot of East Eightieth street.

General Repairs.

The repairs to unleased piers, bulkheads, etc.,
extensive are, on

have been very numerous, and among the more

North River.
Shed on Pier, new 43.
Pier, old 54.
Pier at Bogart street.
Pier at West Nineteenth street.
Pier at West One Hundred and Fifty-second street.

East River.
Bulkhead between Piers 18 and 19.
Pier at East Thirty-seventh street.
In the Appendix a detailed statement of all the repairs is given, together with a statement in
detail of repairs made to various structures on the water front for other City Departments.
The number or other designation of each pier has been painted on its outer end as a guide to
persons passing along the water front in boats or vessels.

Floating Property.

The list of pieces of floating property is changed from that of last year only by the omission of
the scow “ Joe,” condemned.

Three new scows are to be built during the coming year under resolution of the Board of
December 8, 1886.

The ioo-ton derrick “ City of New York " has done the usual work.

The tug “ Manhattan” has done nearly all the towing for the Department, and the various
other pieces of the floating property have been used as required, and kept m order.

Surveying Party.

Base lines and bench marks have been verified from time to time in connection with the con-
struction of the bulkhead wall, and of piers at the different sections of the North river, and from
them lines and levels have been given during the progress of the work.

Lines and levels have also been given for contract work on general repairs on both rivers.

The quantities of sand, broken stone for concrete, rip-rap and cobble stone delivered at the
various sections have been measured and calculated.

Surveys and examinations have been made over 170,194 linear feet of water front. These sur-
veys have been plotted and put on file in this office, and tracings have been prepared therefrom.

1,259 rod soundings, to ascertain the depth of soft mud, have been taken, of which 544 were
on the North river and 715 on the East and Harlem rivers.

88,170 disk soundings, to ascertain the depth of water, have been taken on the North, East and
Harlem rivers in 512 slips, of which 43,271 were taken in 197 slips on the North river, and 44,899
in 315 slips on the East and Harlem rivers.

379 rod soundings and 2,446 disk soundings were for construction, and 880 rod soundings and
85,724 disk soundings for general repairs, examinations, etc., taken before and after dredging, all
of which have been reduced, plotted and placed on record in this office.

. All the dredging done by the Department and the dumping of all dredged material have been
supervised, and the dredging done by private parties has also been supervised.

The accounts of all dredging done by the Department have been kept, and from them monthly
reports, statements for estimates, etc., have been made, and receipts given as required.

The automatic tide gauges at Pier A and Pier, new 43, North river, and those on Harlem river,
have been attended to and their records preserved and filed.

West Fifty-seventh Street Yard—Eight concrete base-blocks have been made at this yard
during the year. There have been received 1,719 barrels ot cement, and samples of each lot have
been tested, and eleven tests have been made of cement not used by the Department, for private
parties on payment to the treasurer of proper fee. All the iron and blacksmith work for the
Department has been done here, and stores and supplies received and issued to the various sections
of work as required.

East Seventeenth Street Yard.—This yard has been kept in order and used for storage of
granite and other materials, which have been issued to the work as required.

I herewith submit an Appendix, containing—

A summary of the work of construction under the “ new plan.”,

A summary of the work of construction not under the “ new plan.”

A table of wharfage room made by the Department of Docks during the year.
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A summary of work at the Department yards.

A summary of the work of “ General Repairs.”

A summary of work done for other Departments.

A summary of work done for and at the expense of alleged owners, lessees and others.

A summary of the work on “ Floating Property.”

A list of the contracts under which work has been done during the year.

A list of the forms of contracts and specifications submitted to the Board of Docks during the

year.
A statement in detail™of the dredging done by the Department of Docks during the year.
A table of the dredging done by lessees or owners during the year by order or under permit of

the Board of Docks.
v dA statement of stock on hand, purchased, fabricated and issued at West Fifty-seventh Street
ard.
A statement of granite on hand, received and issued at East Seventeenth Street Yard.
A full statement of the work done by owners and lessees of piers and bulkheads, and by others,
by order or permit of the Board of Docks, and under my general supervision.

The following are among the most important of such works :

North River.

Castle Garden, North river.— Extensive repairs to platform and shed on platform in front of
Castle Garden were made by the Commissioners of Emigration. Begun March io and finished
April 29, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers 2 and 3, North river— A platform and shed upon it was built by the
Lehigh Valley Railroad Company, covering about 2,210 square feet. Begun September 4 and
finished December 6, 1886.

Pier 9, North river.—The shed on Pier 9, North river, was destroyed by fire on January 29,
1887, and a new shed was begun on March 29, 1887, and is now in progress.

Bulkhead between Piers, old 28 and 29, North river.— A platform on piles with a shed thereon
was built by the Old Colony Steamboat Company, covering about 7,180 square feet of land under
water. Begun February 18, 1887, and is not quite completed.

West Fourteenth street, North river.— The new ferry house, racks, etc., of the Hoboken Land
flzggGImprovement Company at West Fourteenth street were completed and first used on May 3,

West Twenty-third street, North river.— A new platform, float bridge and racks were built by
the New York, Lake Erie and Western Railroad Company immediately south of West Twenty-third
street ferry to be used for the landing of cars loaded with freight. The work was begunon Novem-
ber 17, 1886, and finished on March 17, 1887.

West Seventieth street, North river.— The pier belonging to the New York Central and Hudson
River Railroad Company just south of West Seventieth street, North River, was destroyed by fire,
and is being repaired and rebuilt by the said company. Work was begun on April 21, 1887, and
still in progress.

East River.

Pier 2, East river.- The easterly half of Pier 2, East river, was removed, and ferry house,
racks, bridges and platforms were erected by the South Brooklyn Ferry and Steam Transportation
Company. Work was begun on July 29, 1886, and finished April 18, 1887.

Pier 49, East river.— Thorough and extensive repairs were made to Pier 49, East river, and the
shed thereon was rebuilt by the alleged owners. The work was begun on February 10, 1887, and
finished April 30, 1887.

Harlem River.

One Hundred and Fourteenth to One Hundred and Fifteenth street, Harlem river.—A crib
bulkhead was built by Mr. John Dwight from the northerly line of One Hundred and Fourteenth
street to the middle of the block between One Hundred and Fourteenth and One Hundred and
Fifteenth streets. Begun on October If, 1886, and finished February 19, 1887.

One Hundred and Fifteenth to One Hundred and Sixteenth streets, Harlem river.—A crib
bulkhead was built by the New York Steam Company from the northerly side of One Hundred and
Fifteenth street to the southerly side of One Hundred and Sixteenth street, under permit of the
Board. Work was begun on September 3, 1886, and finished December 1, 1886. The filling-in
behind the bulkhead is still in progress.

From One Hundred and Thirty-fifth to One Hundred and Thirty-eighth street, West side of |
Harlem river.— An extensive crib-work bulkhead with two slips was built by H. A. Cram. The
work was begun on August 26, 1886, and the crib-work has been completed, but the filling in rear
of same is still in progress.

Willis avenue, East side of Harlem river.— A new slip for the use of car floats was constructed
by the New York, New Haven and Hartford Railroad Company. Begun February 10, 1886, and
finished October 2, 1886.

One Hundred and Fifty-fifth to One Hundred and Fifty-seventh street, West side Harlem
river.— An extensive crib-work bulkhead was begun by Mrs. Sarah Lynch on November 3, 1886,
and is still in progress.

One Hundred and Sixty-first street, East side of Cromwell's Creek.—The crib-work bulkhead
and filling-in behind the same, begun in 1885 by J.J. Astor, is still in progress.

One Hundred and Eighty-first stieet, Harlem river.—The false work for the construction of
the new bridge over the Harlem River (Manhattan Bridge) and a great variety of other work in
connection with the bridge has been supervised.
~  The Appendix concludes with a table of new wharfage room made by private owners during

Very respectfully, your obedient servant,
G. S. GREENE, Jr., Engineer-in-Chief,

APPENDIX.
Summary o fthe Journalofthe Workfor the Year ending April 30, 1887.

Work of Construction Under the New Plan.

NORTH RIVER WATER FRONT.
Battery Section.

Pier*A " N.R.

Under Resolution of the Board, July 3, 1884.

painting iron girders

October 1 to 17, 1886.— Bottom flanges of the iron girders and exposed iron work on the deck
and sides of the pier were painted with two coats of metalic paint.

STEPS FOR BUILDING.
Under Secretary’s Order, No. 6121.

December 13, 1886, to January 26, 1887.— Temporary wooden steps and platform were made
at the southerly entrance of the building, using 704 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce, and 54 feet,
B. M., of pine.

Chambers Street Section.

Under Resolution of the Board, November 24, 1877, and November 21, 1878.

*

EARTH FILLING.

June 25 and 26, 1886.—A trench in the earth filling was dug north of Chambers street
office to drain off the stagnant water.

March 3 and 4, 1887.— Earth filling was excavated over the old wooden sewer box on the new
made land between Piers, new 20 and 21, North river. Several small holes repaired in same, and
the earth filling replaced and properly rammed.

Bulkhead between Piers, new 20 and 21, N. R.
PLACING WOODEN BOXES.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 6081.

December 3 to 5, 1886.— Two wooden boxes of 4-inch spruce plank, about two feet square,
with perforated covers, were made and placed on the new made land to drain off the water between
Piers, new 20 and 21, North river, over openings cut in the sewer box discharging at the outer end
of Pier, new 21, North river.

D ecember 2, 1887.

RECORD

Laight Street Section.
Under Resolution of the Board July 30 and November 30, 1880.

REMOVING OLD WORK.

July 12 to jji, 1886.— Part of old platform and.shed just east of the new bulkhead wall opposite

and between Piers, new 27 and 28, North river, was removed by the Pennsylvania Railroaa Com-

pany.

August 26 to November 16, 1886.— Old sheathing, decking and square timbers were removed
in front of Piers, new 27 and 28, North river, to make way for earth filling.

EARTH FILLING.
September 9, 1886, to February 24, 1887.— 3,669 loads of earth filling were received on tickets,
and were placed in rear of the bulkhead wall. Total to date, 21,127 loads on tickets and 461 loads

free.
The approach leading to Pier, new 27, North river, was shored up, having been disturbed by

the filling at the north of it.
EXAMINATION OF WALL FOUNDATION.
March 12, 1887.— Wall foundation was examined by diver, with reference to removing the
mud, in order to proceed with building the new bulkhead wall.

Pier, new 34, to Pier, new 42, N.R.
EXAMINATION OF PAVEMENT.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 3501.
Levels were taken by the surveying party on the newly paved land between Piers, new 34 and
42, North river, at different times during the year.

Pier, new 36, N.R.
RELAYING PAVEMENT.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 5952.

November 8 to December 23, 1886.— Railroad tracks and wooden ties were removed by the
New York Central and Hudson River Railroad Company. The area was then graded by the force
of the Department, and the removed pavement was replaced by Mr. George F. Doak, under
Treasurer’'s Order No. 12069. The coal-tar and gravel were then filled in the joints by Depart-
ment labor.

Bulkhead between Piers, new 41 and 42, N.R.
LAYING BLOCK STONE PAVEMENT.
Under Resolution of the Board October 20, 1886.

November 1 to December 4, 1886.—Old cobble pavement was taken up, placed on scow and
transferred to the West Thirty-second Street Section, and used as rip-rap stone in rear of bulkhead
wall. The area was then graded, material placed on scow and transferred to the West Thirty-
second Street Section, and deposited in rear of the bulkhead wall. The area, 758 square yards, was
paved with Belgian blocks by Mr. George F. Doak, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12057.

Building Silt Basin near Pier new 42, N.R.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 6043.

December 17, 1886, to April 8, 1887.— The granite paving blocks were taken up and cleaned
by Department labor. The ground was excavated to the brick sewer, a silt basin delivered by
Jordan L.Mott Iron Works, under Treasurer's Order No.12m, was put in place, and a 6 inch
drain-pipe connection was then made between the silt basin and the sewer by Mr. Thomas C. Town-
send, under Treasurer's Order No. 12112. The earth filling was then replaced and rammed to
grade by Department labor. The removed pavement was replaced by Mr. George F. Doak, under
Treasurer’s Order No. 12113. The coal-tar and gravel were filled in the joints by Department
labor.

Building Silt Basin near Pier, new 43, N.R.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 6042.

December 11, 1886, to April 11, 1887.— The granite paving blocks were taken up and cleaned
and the ground excavated to the brick sewer by Department labor.

A silt basin, delivered on the work by Jordan L. Mott Iron Works, under Treasurer's Order
No. 12111, was put in place, and a 6-inch drain-pipe connection was then made between the silt
basin and the sewer by Mr. Thomas C. Townsend, under Treasurer's Order No. 12112. The earth
was then replaced and rammed to grade by Department labor. The removed pavement was re-
placed by Mr. George F. Doak, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12113. The coal-tar and gravel were
filled in the joints by Department labor.

New Made Land opposite Christopher Street Ferry, N.R.
WAITING PLACES.
Under Secretary's Order No. 5861.
October 18 to November 20, 1886.— Three new waiting places were built and placed, using
1,682 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" yellow pine.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 6089.

December 13 to January 26, 1886.— Two new waiting places were built and placed, using 696
feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" yellow pine, and 178 feet, B. M., of 4-inch yellow pine.

West Twenty-third Street Section— South End.

Under Resolution of the Board November 5, 1880.

Temporary Roadway to Pier, new 54, N. R.
September 16 and 17, 1886.— Hole in the plank roadway was repaired.

Bulkhead between Piers, new 54 and 55, N. R.
December 22 to 31, 1886.— Mounds of earth were leveled off, a trench was dug and a wooden
box placed in same to drain off the water from the bulkhead.

Temporary Roadway to Pier, new 55, N.R.
May 15, June Il and 12, July 28 and August 30, 1886.— The plank roadway was repaired.
October 9 and 25, and November 1, 1886.— Holes in the plank roadway were repaired.
November 17 to 24, 1886.— The temporary roadway leading to the pier was sheathed with
12,896 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce plank.

Temporary Roadway to Pier, new 56, N.R.

No.5507.— A hole in the roadway was repaired. Begun and finished July 1, 1886.

No. 5522.— The backing logs were refastened. Begun and finished July 7, 1886.

November 24 to 28, 1886.— Patched sheathing on temporary roadway leading to the pier with
second-hand material.

West Twenty-seventh Street Office.

December 20 to 25, 1886.— Section Office was removed from Pier, new 57, North river, toPier,

new 60, North river, foot of West Thirtieth street.

Recapitulation of Work done and to be done on Bulkhead W all at West THnenty-third Street
Section, South End.

Given in Linear Feet of Wall.

Work to bk Completed

Completed Ti;a'
1886-7. oo, Not Stopped
Enjoined.  fuj,Rofion.

. Feet. Feet. Feet
Dredging.... 3683 3683
Cobbie E 283 1383

448.3 4482
3713 3713
281.3 3813
960. 3783 3783
8314 4068 405.8
Cross caps. 8314 4068 406.8
BDeCkbnlg"k 797.27 440.96 440.96
ase-blocks 87834
A8 " course granits 1954 R BY
450.67 450.67
Coping.... 305.19 348.46 ¥ y
Completed wall. 53347 34846 8% %3,;‘3
Equivalent length of completed wall. 5. 36 333
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D ecember 2,
West Twenty-third Street Section, North End.
Under Resolutions of the Board, June 28, 1882.
Bulkhead W all Proper.
May 27, 28 and 29, 1886.— Bulkhead wall was examined by the divers to ascertain if the base
course of granite had a proper bearing on the concrete blocks.
Temporary Roadway Leading to Pier, new 59.
No. 6451.—A hole in deck of approach was repaired with 425 feet, B.M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished April 29, 1887.
Temporary Roadway Leading to Pier, new 60, N. R.

October 6, 1886, March 19 to 22, 1887.—A hole in the plank roadway was repaired, raised,
leveled up and repaired the roadway.

Temporary Sewer Box.

November 18, 1886, to February 13, 1887.— A wooden sewer-box 450 feet in length (3 feet by
6 feet, inside section), extending from the foot of West Thirtieth street to the sewer opening in the
new bulkhead wall was built, and the filling removed for said sewer-box was replaced around it.

Recapitulation of Work Done and to be Done on the Bulkhead W all, West Twenty-third Street
Section, North End.

In Linear Feet of Wall

Completed Work. Work to be Completed.

Work.
in Total to Stopped by
1886-7. Date.  'MProgress. Yiinction.  rotal

Feet. Feet. Feet. Feet. Feet.

Dredging 615.42
Cobbles. 435-00 180.42 180.49
Rip-rap 430.00 195.4% 195.43
Piles Driven 500.00 1x5.4* 115.43
Binding Frame. 400.00 1*5.4* 195.43
400.00 “35.4% 135.42
478.94 X36.48 136.48
47+-39 143-03 *43.03
431.0s 184.40 84.40
471.80 143.62 143.62
* course granit 469.18 *53-%4 *53-%4
“'E” course granit a4%1% *73*30 *73.30
COPiNg..ccvvruen 3x2.36 120.00 43*.36
Wall actually complete 19~.53 31*. 36 181.53 493-»9
Equivalent length of completed wall 49~ 6. 117 4% *23.42

West Thirty-first Street Section.
Under Resolution of the Board, August 8 and September 19, 1883.
Bulkhead W allProper.
STONE FILLING.

May 5, 1886.— 75 cubic yards of rip-rap stone were delivered and placed in front of the bulk-
head wall north of Pier, new 60, North river, which completed all the stone filling required for the
bulkhead wall of this section. Total to date, 9,457 cubic yards.

FILING AND WOODWORK.
Decking.

May 12 to 15th, 1886.— 210 square feet of 4-inch deck plank were placed on the caps on a
length of wall 17.5 feet south of the north line of the West Thirty-first Street Section, which com-
pletes the decking required for this section.

MASONRY.
Granite.

May 12 to July 16, 1886— 73 pieces of granite were set and backed with 200 batches of concrete,

which completes the granite for this section (except coping).
EXAMINATION OF BULKHEAD WALL.

May 25, 26, 27 and 28, 1886.— The bulkhead wall was examined by the divers to ascertain

if the base course of granite had a proper bearing on the concrete blocks.
POINTING GRANITE.
August 2 to 26, 1886.— The joints in granite north of Pier, new 60, North river, were pointed.

EARTH FILLING.

May 1, 1886, to May 1, 1887.— 5,050 loads of earth filling were received, on tickets, and
placed in rear of the bulkhead wall, making a total to date, 20,731 loads on tickets, and 1,364 free
loads.

TEMPORARY BACKING LOGS.

June 10, Il and 15, 1886.— Temporary backing logs were removed from the bulkhead wall

north of Pier, new 60, North river, to make way to set the additional i*-io" course of granite.

Recapitulation o f Work Done and to be Done on the West Thirty-first Street Section.

In Linear Feet of Wall.

Completed Work.
Work to be

Completed.
In 1866-7. Total to Date.
Feet. Feet. Feet.
Dredging.... *57.5
Cobble: *57-5
Rip-rap 54.3 *37-5
Piles driven. 357.5
Binding frame 575
Piles cut. *57-5
Longitudinal cap *57-5
Cross . 937.5
Deckii - 17-5 *57-5
Base blocks.... 357.5
“ A B course granite 3.86 2575
«c” " - 5-*0 957.5
*D" “ “ 8.80 157-5
= « “ o 77 *57.5
“ F " extracourse granite 357.5 -57.5
Coping : *97.3
Equ.valent length of completed wall except the coping 5.10 *57-5

West Street Section.
Resolution of the Board October 22, 1885.
Bulkhead W all Proper.

DREDGING.

Thirty-second

November 1 to 13, 1886.-14,526 cubic yards of mud were excavated and removed from site of
the proposed bulkhead by the Union Dredging Company, under Treasurer's Orders Nos. 12009

and 12077.
March 10 to 23, 1887.— 10,641 cubic yards of mud were excavated and removed from site of

the proposed bulkhead wall by the Union Dredging Company, under Treasurer’s Orders Nos.
12077 and 12194, making a total to date of 35,971 cubic yards.

stone filling.

May 3 toJune 22, 1886.— 599 cubic yards of cobble stone, and 1,631 cubic yards of rip-rap
stone were delivered and placed on wall foundation by Messrs. Brown & Fleming.

May 6, 1886.— A dry-rubble wall of rip-rap stone was put up at the south end of the section to
retain the cobble stone in place.

RECORD 3387

June 3 to 8, 1886.— A bulkhead of 3-inch spruce plank was put up bv the diver at the north
end of the concrete blocks (as far as they had been set) from the slope of the cobble up to about
ow-water mark.

November 3 to December 22,1886.— 2,525 cubic yards of cobble stone were delivered by Messrs.
Brown & Fleming, of which 1,823 cubic yards were deposited on wall foundation and 702 cubic
yards were discharged on the bulkhead wall north of Pier, new 60, North river, for use during the
cold weather, and 2,075 cubic yards of rip-rap stone were delivered and placed on wall foundation
by Messrs. Brown & Fleming.

March 10 to May 1, 1887.— 2,513 cubic yards of cobble stone and 3,520 cubic yards of rip-rap
stone were delivered and deposited on wall foundation by Messrs. Brown & Fleming.

March 1 to April 21, 1887.—702 cubic yards of cobble stone, previously stored on the bulk-
head wall north of Pier, new 60, North river, were transferred and deposited on wall foundation by
Department labor, over area on which the concrete blocks were to be placed, also between the
caps.

Total stone filling deposited to date, 7,940 cubic yards of cobble stone, and 10,125 cubic yards
of rip-rap stone.

March 9 to 11, 1887.— The mud was washed out over the slope at north end of section, prior
to putting the filling, with a water jet thrown by a pump on Pile Driver No. 5, assisted by divers.

PILING AND WOODWORK.

Vertical Piling.

December 22, 1886, to May |, 1887.— Sights were put by which to drive piles ; 362 vertical
piles were driven, regulated and stay-lathed. To date, 622 vertical piles, and 100 bearing piles—
6 of which were extra piles driven for base block. One pile broke in driving.

Bracing Piling
January 24 to May 1, 1887.—61 bracing piles were driven and regulated.
Binding Frames.

February 14 to April 15, 1887.—4 binding frames were made, and with the aid of divers were

sunk and keyed to place, making a total of 7 frames now in place.
Sawing Off Piles.

March 4 and 5, 1887.—71 foundation piles for the concrete blocks were sawed off by the saw

cutting machine, and the high grade piles to receive the capping were cut off by hand.
Capping.

May 18 to 28, 1886.— Ends of caps were sawed off where projecting in the way of the granite
to be set; also chock ces were made and placed underneath ends of caps.

March 28 to April 13, 1-887.— The bracing piles were sawed off by hand, and were prepared
to receive the longitudinal caps. 216 lineal feet%to date 412 lineal feet) of longitudinal capping,
and 24 (to date 47) transverse caps were placed.

Decking.
May 5 to June 18, 1886.— 2,773 square feet of 4-inch planking was placed on the caps rear of
Il

Receiving Lumber.
November 26 to December 1, 1886.— Lumber for use on this section was received from Messrs.
Bell Bros., under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12031.

Mooring Piles.
December 23, 1886 ; January 12 and 21, March 26 and April 4, 1887.— 17 piles were driven to
moor floating property, 12 of which were new and five old piles.

Inspecting Piles.
December 15 to 21, 1886; February 15 and 18; March 15, 17 and 28, 1887.— The piles deliv-
ered on the work by Mr. George Karr, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12037 were inspected.
October 8 and 9, 1886.— Piles that had got adrift were properly secured.

Locating Foundation Piles.

March 4 to 10, 1887.— The foundation piles on which the concrete blocks were to be placed
were located by the divers by means of wire screens.
Timber Basin.
April 13 to 16, 1887.— 12 old piles were driven south of the approach leading to Pier, new 60,
North river, to form a basin to keep timber in. Old piles timber and pile butts were transferred

from the north side of the approach to Pier, new 60, to the basin, to make way for earth filling be-
ing put in by Mr. Robert Ray Hamilton, attorney, under Secretary’'s Order No. 6215.

Masonry.
Granite.
May 17 to July 29, 1886.— 59 pieces of granite were set and backed with i80j£ batches of con-
crete.
Pointing Granite.
August 26 to September 1, 1886.— The joints in granite were pointed.

Concrete Blocks.

March 31 to April 4, 1887.— Cement, sand and broken stone were loaded on scow at West
Fifty-seventh Street Yard, and six concrete foundation blocks were loaded by the derrick “ City of
New York " on scows for use at this section.

April 4to 7, 1887.—Prepared mattresses for setting the concrete foundation blocks on, and six
Were placed by the derrick “ City of New York,” assisted by divers.

Chain Holes.

April 7, 1887.—The chain holes between the concrete foundation blocks were filled with con-
crete in bags.

Removing Old Work.

October 18 to November 1, 1886.—33 old oak, and 133 white pine piles were pulled up ; old
sheathing, deck and square timbers were removed from outer end of old pier foot of West Thirty-
second street, to make way for driving piles, etc., for the new bulkhead wall work at this section ;
also 6 old oak piles were driven to protect the northwest corner of the old pier left standing.

November 1 to 21, 1886.— 191 old white pine piles were pulled up ; old sheathing, deck and
square timbers were removed from the outer end of old pier, between West Thirty-second and West
Thirty-third streets, to make way for driving piles, etc., for the new bulkhead wall work at this
section.

Recapitulation of Work Done and to be Done on the Bulkhead Wall,
Street Section.

West Thirty-second

In Linear Feet of Wall.

Completed Work.

In 1886-7. Total to Date.
Feet.
Dredging 990.00
Cobble: 179.00 254.00
Rllp—rdap.. 180.00 940.00
Piles driven 229.30
Binding fram %ZSL% 230.30 28470
Piles cut... 79.29 144.99 370.7*
Longitudinal caps 79.29 144.99 370.7*
Cross cap: 72.*9 144.99 % 1%
Decking. xx8.18 XB. 3
Base blocks. 72.79 372.7*
A B course of granit 68.94 *68! 24 ¥(

* “ “ 63.45 3-45 45+-55
“D” 59-87 9.87
“E” 9.30
“F " extra course ofgranite 9.30
Coping... 5*5.00
Wall actually complete
Equivalent length of completed wall 355.60

Pier, New 61, N. R.
Under Resolution of the Board, March 16, 1887.
DREDGING

April 21 to May 1,1887.-16,837 cubic yards of mud were excavated and removed by the Union
Dredging Company, under Treasurer’s Orders Nos. 12231 and 12232.
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Pier at Fortieth Street, N.R.
Under Resolution of the Board, October 6, 1S86.
Work of building a new pier and approach, under Contract No. 231, was begun NovembeY 17,
1886, and is in progress.
EAST RIVER.
Pier 37, E.R.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 5879.
October 21, 1886.— Examination was made for a new pier on the site of Pier 37, E. R.

Pier 41, E.R.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 5880.
October 21 and 22, 1886.— Examination was made for a new pier on the site of Pier 41, E. R.

Pier, new 32, E.R.
Under Resolution of the Board, December 1, 1886.

December 2, 1886.—The outer end of Pier, old 41, was removed.
The work of constructing a new pier, to be known as Pier, new 32, East river, on the site of
Pier, old 41, under Contract No. 241, was begun March 15, 1887, and is in progress.

Work of Construction not under New Plan.
NORTH RIVER.
W est Seventy-seventh Street to West Seventy-ninth Street, N. R.
CRIB BULKHEAD.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 6073.
December 20 to Decemher 24, 1886.— Test piles were driven preparatory to preparing plans
and specifications for a new crib bulkhead.
April 15, 1887.— William P. Kelly, contractor, began the construction of a new crib bulkhead
under Contract No, 243. The work is in progress.
West Seventy-eighth to West Eightieth Street, N.R.
CRIB BULKHEAD.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 5920.

November 17 to November 30, 1886.— Dirt and rubbish were removed and the surface of
the bulkhead leveled off.
West One Hundred and Fifty.eighth Street.

NEW PIER.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 5872.

October 23 to October 26, 1886.— Test piles were driven in the course of an examination as
to the practicability of building a new pier.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 6200.

February 23 to March 8, 1887.— Eighteen test piles were driven preparatory to preparing plans
and specifications for a new pier.

EAST RIVER.
E ast Seventy-sixth Street.
NEW PIER
Under Secretary’s Order No. 6248.

March 25 to 26, 1887.— Six test piles were driven preparatory to preparing plans and specifica-
cations for a new pier.
EastEightieth Street.
DUMPING BOARD.
Under Secretary’s Order No. 6251.
March 22 to March 25, 1887.— Eight test piles were driven with a view to building a new
dumping board.

New W harfage Room, in Lineal Feet, made during the Year ending April 30, 1887.

WORK UNDER THE “ NEW PLAN.”
North river—
New Wall at West Thirty-first street... 5.i
“ “ Thirty-second street no.4
Total wall line 115-5

DEPARTMENT YARDS.
West Fifty-seventh Street Yard, N.R.
Under Resolution of the Board, November 21, 1883.

June 7 to June 8, 1886.—On the southerly side of the pier a new fender-pile was driven, and
the old fender-piles were chocked, and the deck sheathing was patched with 1,303 feet, B. M., 4-inch
spruce.

January 10 to January 19, 1887.— A platform was built adjoining the pier on the southerly side
and inner end ; 20 piles were driven and 8 cross-caps were puton and chocked up ; 6,720 feet,
B. M., of 12" x 12" second-hand timber being used.

January 15 to January 20, 1887.— A piece of old side cap was removed and replaced with new;
two fender-piles were refastened, and the vertical sheathing at the outer end of the pier was re-
paired.

WORK DONE AT THE YARD.

May 1, 1886, to April 30, 1887.— Iron work was made and repaired by the blacksmith for work
on Construction, General Repairs, West Fifty-seventh Street Yard, Floating Property, East Seven-
teenth Street Yard, and for the Surveying Party. 1,719 barrels of Portland cement were received
and stored for Department use, and samples tested.

April 4 to 30, 1887.— Concrete moulds and cores were set up and taken down as required to
make the concrete foundation blocks. 8 concrete foundation blocks were made, containing 264.24
cubic yards of concrete.

May 12, 1886, to April 11, 1887.— Tests were made of sample barrels of the following-named
brands of Portland cement, and the results reported and recorded :

Under Secretary’s Order No. 5347, “ London ” brand.

Under Secretary's Order No. 5354, “ New Castle” brand.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 5425, “ Crown " brand.

Under Secretary's Order No. 5616, “ Burham " brand.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 5749, “ J. W. Benney ” brand.

Under Secretary’s Order N 0.5838, “ Fire-Proof B. Co.” brand.

Under Secretary’'s Order No. 5898, “ Giant " brand.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 6063, “ Croschowitz ” brand.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 6115, “ Anchor ” brand.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 6336, “ Stettiner " brand.

Under Secretary’s Order No. 6344, “ Stettin " brand.

East Seventeenth Street Yard, E.R.

WORK DONE AT THE YARD.

May 7 and 8, 1886.—Guys of yard derrick and rapid transit engine were repaired and
strengthened.

May 10, 1886.— Granite was transferred to scow “ C " for use at sections north of West Twenty-
third street.

May 20, 1886.— 3,054 pounds of % -inch by 12-inch spike were transferred to the West Fifty-
seventh Street Yard.

June 5, 1886.— Unused granite from sections north of West Twenty-third street was received
and stored for future use.

June 5 and 6.— Granite was transferred to scow “ C " for use of sections north of West Twenty-
third street.

July 17, 1886.— Screw bolts and cast-iron washers were delivered to General Repairs.

2. 1887.

D ecember

RECORD.

July 2, 1886.— Screw bolts and cast-iron washers were delivered to sections south of West
Twenty-third street.

November 6, 1886.—The old oak piles that came from outer end of old pier removed to the
foot of West Thirty-second street were received at the yard.

December 18, 1886, to March 12, 1887.— Under Secretary’'s Order No. 6090. 4 holes were
excavated to receive 4 pieces of granite, which were prepared as anchorage for tne derrick guys in
the yard.

yDecember 18 to 29, 1886.—Samples of granite were prepared for testing, under Treasurer's
Order No. 12139.

March 12 to 14, 1887.— Received granite under Contract No. 230 from Messrs. Nolan & Son.

April 21 to 25, 1887.— Received granite under Contract No. 230 from Messrs. Nolan & Son.

Statement of General Repairs for the Year ending April 30, 1887.
NORTH RIVER.
“A," N.R.

Engineer's Order.—The deck of the pier was cleared up, old material being transferred to the
East Seventeenth Street Yard. Begun and finished October 26, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6222.—3 new white oak spring piles were driven ; fender piles were
rechocked and refastened, and wearing pieces were put on ; 320 feet, B. M., of new 6"xio" white
oak, and 330 feet, B. M., of io"xio" yellow pine beingused. Begun April 26, 1887 ; in progress.

Secretary’'s Order No. 6046.— The chafing pieces attached to spring piles on north side of pier
were repaired with 140 feet, B. M., 6"xlo" white oak. Begun and finished April 28, 1887.

Pier

Bulkhead between Pier “Aand Pierl, N.R.

Engineer’s Order.— A small building on the bulkhead, between Pier “ A " and Pier 1, North
river, was removed to Pier “ A,” North river. Begun and finished August 9, 1886.

Bulkhead south ofPier, new 1, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6096.— Guard timbers were placed around hydrant; 384 feet, B. M., of
12"xi2" yellow pine timber being used. Begun and finished December 10, 1886.

Pier, old 23 (south half), N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5420.— Five oak fender piles were refastened on southwest comer of
Begun June 1 and finished June 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5580.— Five old oak pile stumps were pulled ; 5 new oak spring piles, 1
second-hand oak spring pile and 4 old spring piles were driven ; 6 old spruce stumps were pulled, a
chock was put on, vertical sheathing was patched with second-hand plank, oak piles were fastened
with 100 pounds of chain, 1 second-hand bearing pile was driven, old deck relaid on extension,
backing-log was put on, and deck patched with 1,020 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce plank. Begun
July 26 and finished August 4, 1880.

Secretary’s Order No. 5532.— The sheathing was patched with 2,500 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce plank, and 1,200 feet, B. M., of old sheathing was relaid. Begun July 9 and finished July
10, 1886.

pier.

Pier, old 33 (south half) N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5647.—The deck was patched with second-hand plank.
finished August 16, 1886.

Secretary s Order No. 5719.— Holes in deck were patched with 135 feet, B. M., of second-
hand plank. Begun and finished September 4, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5882.— The sheathing was patched with 1,190 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce, and 225 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun October 13 and finished October 14,
1886.

Begun and

Secretary’s Order No. 6029— The sheathing was patched at entrance with 1,995 feet, B. M.,
of new 3-inch spruce plank. Begun November 22 and finished November 24, 1886.
Engineer’'s Order.— Posts were fastened and stanchions were repaired. Begun and finished
March 23, 1887.
Secretary’s Order No. 6352.— The sheathing on deck was repaired with 27,980 feet, B. M., of
new 8-inch spruce. Begun April 12 and finished April 20, 1887.

Pier, old 34 {north half) N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5558.— The deck was patched with 265 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce,
and 286 feet, B. M., of hewn yellow pine was laid for backing-log. Begun and finished July 24,
1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5759.— The sheathing was patched with 1,530 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce plank. Begun September 13 and finished September 14, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5852.— A hole in the pavement on the approach was repaired.
and finished October 7, 1880.

Secretary’s Order No. 6039.— The sheathing was patched with 1,511 feet, B. M., of new
3-inch spruce plank. Begun December 31, 1886, and finished January 8, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6093.— A backing-log was put on and fastened; cross-caps were
blocked up with 420 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" second-hand timber; 5 new spruce spring piles, and
4 new oak spring piles were driven and chocked with second-hand material; fender piles were
fastened with 200 pounds of chain, and the sheathing was repaired with 1,000 feet, B. M., of new
3-inch spruce. Begun December 28, 1886, and finished April 21, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6409.— Stringers were put on, using 1,072 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12"
hewn yellow pine ; spring piles were fastened with 100 pounds of chain ; backing-pieces and verti-
cal fenders were put in, and new sheathing on deck was laid with 2,995 feeb M., of new 3-inch
spruce, and 2,530 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun April 21 and finished April 26, 1887.

Begun

Bulkhead between Piers, old 35 and 36, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5313.— The pavement was repaired. Begun May 3 and finished May 6,
1886.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5346.— The sheathing was patched with 540 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished May 10, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5528.— The gangway was repaired with 423 feet, B. M., of hewn yellow
pine, and holes in bulkhead were patched with 360 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce plank, and
108 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun July 8 and finished July 10, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5630.— The sheathing on the platform was patched with 276 feet, B. M.,
of 3-inch spruce plank. Begun and finished August 10, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6072.— Holes in the platform were patched with 510 feet, B. M., of new
inch spruce plank. Begun and finished December 3, 1886.

Secretary” Order No.5992.— The deck of the bulkhead was sheathed with 5,583 feet, B. M.,

of second-hand 3-inch, and 7,832 feet, B. M., second-hand 4-inch plank ; 2 old stumps were pulled

and 2 new fender piles were driven and fastened with chain ; backing pieces were repaired with 300

feet, B. M., of second-hand 4-inch plank, and repairs were made to pavement, consisting of filling

in with earth and stone and repaving. Begun December 4, 1886, and finished April 5, 1887.

3-

Pier, old 42, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5274.— Four stumps of piles were pulled ; spring piles were refastened
with chain ; new facing timbers were put in with 572 feet, B. M., of hewn yellow pine ; 12 new
spruce fender piles were driven and fastened ; new backing piece was put in with 696 feet, B. M.,
of yellow pine ; deck and sheathing were patched with 4,020 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce and
with second-hand plank ; 6 oak spring piles were driven and fastened, and 1 old fender pile pulled
and reset. Begun May 11 and finished May 18, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5389.—4 spring piles were pulled ; 3 spring piles chained ; 40 feet of
second-hand timber put in for rangers ; gangway planked with 340feet, B. M., of new 4-inch spruce,
and with second-hand plank and backing pieces were refastened. Begun May 26 and finished May

Secretary’s Order No. 5651.— The spring piles on the south side of the pier were refastened.
Begun and finished August 20, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5737.— The deck and sheathing were patched with 2,040 feet, B. M., of
4- inch, and 3,015 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce plank.
15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6208.— The old deck of the approach was taken up for examination of
repairs required, and the deck was repaired with 720 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce plank. Be-
gun February 26 and finished March 2, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6232.—4 oak piles were fastened ; 7 old piles were pulled, and | driven;
13 new spruce spring piles and 1 new oak spring pile were driven and fastened ; 16 chocks were
put on with second-hand material; a mooring post was reset; a backing log was repaired; the foot
path on the approach was patched with second-hand material, and the deck of the pier was sheathed
with 15,999 foet» B. M., of new 4-inch spruce plank. Begun March 10 and finished April 20, 1887.

Canal to West Tenth Street, N. R.

Secretary's Order No. 6154.— Scupper holes under backing logs from Canal to West Tenth
street, North river, were cleaned out. Begun January 20 and finished January 29, 1887.

Begun September 14 and finished September
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2, 1887.

Spring to West Tenth Street, N. R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5432.— Silt basins on the new made land between Spring and West
Tenth streets were cleaned out. Begun June 7 and. finished June 14, 1886.

Resolution of Board, June 2d, 1886.— Silt basins on the new made land between Spring and
West Tenth streets were cleaned out. Begun June 25 and finished July 2,1886 ; also begun January
7 and finished January 18, 1887.

New Made Land near Pier, new 35, N.R.

Secretary's Order No. 6057.— The granite paving blocks were taken up around silt basin and
silt basin was lowered about 8 inches, and a gutter made to lowest part of the depression in pave-
ment at this point to drain off the water.

The removed pavement was then replaced and joints filled with coal-tar and gravel.
April 11 and finished April 17, 1887.

Begun

New Made Land near Pier, new 36, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6126.— Silt basin on the new made land in front of the pier was cleaned

out. Begun and finished January 4, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers, new 35 and 36, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6163.— 1 second-hand wooden cleat was put on and fastened.
and finished January 26, 1887.

Begun

Bulkhead between Piers, new 37 and 38, N. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5713.— The backing logs were patched with 196 feet, B. M., of 4-inch

yellow pine. Begun and finished Septemper 8, 1886.
Secretary’'s Order No. 6141.— 1 second-hand iron cleat was put on and fastened. Begun and
finished January 15, 1887.
Bulkhead between Piers, new 38 and 39, N. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5713— The backing log was patched with 316 feet, B. M., of 4-inch

yellow pine. Begun September 4 and finished September 7, 1886.

Pier, new 40, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5267.— The sewer box underneath the pier on its westerly side for a
distance of 40 feet by 2 feet in width, just east of the column system, was repaired with 3-inch
yellow pine. Begun May 6 and finished May 14, 1886.

New Made Land near Pier, new 40, N,R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6210.— 2 pieces of granite were prepared at the East Seventeenth Street
Yard, and were placed to repair cross-walk leading to the pier, with joints properly filled with
coal-tar and gravel. Begun February 27 and finished April 20, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers, new 40 and 41, N.R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5703.— An iron cleat was put on and backing log repaired with 312 feet,
B. M., of 12" x 12" yellow pine. Begun September 4 and finished September 7, 1886.
Bulkhead south o fPier, new 42, N.R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6182.— Scupper holes were bored and enlarged in backing log to drain
water from bulkhead. Begun and finished February 14, 1887.
Bulkhead between Piers, new 42 and 43, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5418.— An iron cleat was put on bulkhead.
3, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5511.— An iron cleat was put on bulkhead.
1886.

Begun and finished June
Begun and finished July 2,

Pier, new 43, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5086.— The water pipe upon the pier was repaired by Mr. Thomas C*
Townsend, under Treasurer’s Order No. 11780, and boxed by Department labor. Begun February
9 and finished May 6, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5268.— The roof of shed upon the pier was repaired by Mr. Samuel A.
Suydam, under Treasurer’s Order No. 11870. Begun May 4 and finished May 22, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5419.— Iron gate was repaired. Begun June 1 and finished July 6, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5438.— The sheathing was patched with 135 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spfuce. Begun and finished June 11, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5628.— An iron cleat was placed on south side of pier and chock put on.
Begun August 16 and finished August 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5871.— A portion of the pavement at the entrance to pier was taken up
and cleaned. The filling under the pavement was then excavated to about low water; the old
piles that had been left standing in the work, and that caused the uneven settlement of the pave-
ment, were cut off, and the earth filling was replaced and rammed to grade. The granite blocks
were replaced by Mr. George F. Doak, under Treasurer's Order No. 12043. The coal-tar and
gravel were then filled in the joints by Department labor. Begun October 13 and finished
November 15, 1886.

Secretary s Order No.6013.— Holes were bored in the deck of the innner end of the pier to
drain off water that accumulated in front of the pier. Begun and finished November 23, 1886.

Secretary’s Order N0.5981.-5 spring piles were pulled and redriven; 1 new oak spring
pile was driven ; piles were fastened with chain ; chocks were put on and fenders were repaired,
96 feet, B.M ., of yellow pine being used. Begun November 20 and finished November 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6080.— The sheathing was patched with 1,200 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce plank. Begun December 29 and finished December 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6168.— Fender piles were rechocked and refastened on south side of pier
with second-hand material; 5 oak piles were pulled and redriven and fastened ; 2 new oak fender
piles were driven, and 17 chocks put on with second-hand material. Begun January 28 and finished
February 1, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6191.— The gas pipe leading to the pier was repaired by the Consolidated
Gas Company. The paving blocks taken up by the Consolidated Gas Company were replaced,
and joints in same were filled with coal tar and gravel. Begun February 12 and finished February

I~ Secretary’'s Order No.6279.— The roof of shed and leaders were repaired by Messrs. Henry
Gelhaar & Co., under Treasurer’s Order No. 12234. Begun April 1 and finished April 15, 1887.

Contract No. 235.— The metal covering of the outside of the shed and of the office building
was repaired by Mr.John L. Eagan, contractor, under Contract No.235. The outside surfaces of
the shed on the pier, including the office building at the inshore end, the doors, windows, etc., were
all thoroughly scraped to remove the old loose paint, and were then primed and painted with two
good coats ofpaint. The surfaces of the roof and skylights were cleaned and painted. Begun
April 1, 1887; in progress.

Secretary’s Order No. 6379.— About 200 square yards of granite pavement were taken up near
the south side of the entrance to the pier; the paving blocks cleaned, and the area graded up with
earth filling to the new grade, ready to replace the pavement. Begun April 20, 1887 ; in progress.

Pier, new 46, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No.5275.-2 sliding doors at the pier were raised and replaced, also the
wheels which carry the doors were refastened. Begun May 15 and finished May 18, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5497.— 10 oak spring piles were driven, chocked and fastened, 200
pounds of chain being used; 2 oak spring piles were pulled, spliced and redriven; new chocks
were put on and fastened with 797 feet, B. M., of new hewn yellow pine ; 2 new oak fenders were
put on, and leader wds repaired. Begun June 28 and finished July 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5959— 2 spring piles were pulled and 2 reset Begun November 24 and
finished November 26, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6014.— Leaks in’ the water pipe were repalred by Mr. Thomas C Town-
send under Treasurer’s Order No. 12055. Begun November 26 and finished November 27, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No. 6047.— Repairs were made to doors of shed. Begun November 26 and

flnlshed November 29, 1886.
Engineer’s Order.— Examination of pier by divers.

T . - e e e W

Begun November 16 and finished Decem-
*** |Secretaiy’s Order No. 6110.— Water-pipe was boxed with 540 feet, B. M.,
Begun December 27 and finished December 28, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No. 6111.— Loose spring piles on outer north corner of pier were fastened
Begun and finished December 27, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5966.— The sheathing was patched with 1,530 feet, B. M., of new 3-mch
spruce. Begun December 27 and finished December 28, 1886.  *

Secretary’s Order No. 6209.— hanging door was repaired and
fastened. Begun February 24 and finished February 25, 1887.

of new 3-inch spruce.

loose spring piles were
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Secretary’s Order No. 6245.— 20 new bearing piles and one second-hand pile were driven ; 11
half-round oak fenders were puton ; piles were pulled under side cap and fastened, and chocks put
on, 390 feet* B. M., of second-hand material being used. Begun March 16 and finished March
22, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6257.— Repairs were made to shed. Begun March 23,1887 ; in progress.

Approach to Piers, new 46 and 47, N, R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5337.— The dock was patched with 270 feet, B. M.,
spruce, and loose plank were spiked. Begun May 4 and finished May 17, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5375.—The deck was patched with 205 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce, and 45 feet, B. M., ofsecond-hand plank. Begun and finished May 21, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5390.— The deck and sheathing were patched with 30,0x50 feet, B.. M.,
of new 4-inch spruce, and 3,170 feet, BiM., of new 3-incnJspruce. Begun May 26 and finished
June 15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5556.—Old sheathing was removed for examination and replaced with
second-hand plank. Begun July 23 and finished July 24, 1886.

of new 3-inch

Approach to Pier, new 47, N. R.

Secretary's Order No. 6386.— The sheathing was repaired with 12,000 feet, B. M., of new
4-inch, and 750 feet, B. M., ofnew 3-inch spruce. Begun April 21 and finished April 23, 1887.

Bulkhead Platform south o fPier, old 54, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5714.— The deck was patched with 250 feet,
spruce. Begun September 7 and finished September 8, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 6255.— The cross caps were blocked up and “ A" braces, fenders and
girders put on and fastened ; mooring posts set. Begun March 25 and finished March 28, 1887.

B. M., of new 3-inch

Pier, old 54, N R.

Secretary's Order No. 5391.— 4 old cross caps were spliced ; 31 old bearing piles were cut o ff;
85 feet of side ranger and 20 bench caps were put in ; 1 new spruce bearing pile was driven ; the
sheathing was patched with 2,000 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce ; the outer 160 feet of pier and
and backing log was put down across pier 160 feet from outer end with second-hand material.
Begun May 26 and finished June 6, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5324.—The deck was patched with 135 feet, B. M.,
spruce. Begun and finished May 4, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5671.—Hole in deck was patched with second-hand plank.
finished August 19, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5759.— The sheathing was patched with 2,253 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun September 10 and finished September 11, 1886.

Engineer’'s Order.— One test pile was driven. Begun and finished September 27, 1886.

Engineer's Order.— Two test piles were pulled and redriven. Begun and finished October
9, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order NO/6037.—A portion of the fence was replaced with second-hand 3-inch
plank. Begun and finished November 27, 1886.

P. Sandford Ross, contractor, put a new superstructure on the pier and rebuilt the bulkhead
from mean low water, under Contract No. 232. Begun January 17 and finished April 30, 1887.

of new 3-inch

Begun and

Pier at West Eleventh Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5396.—The deck and sheathing was patched with 3,910 feet, B. M., of
new 3-inch spruce. Begun May 28 and finished May 29, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5273.—The deck and sheathing was patched with 90 feet, B. M., of
3-inch spruce. Begun May 3 and finished May 21, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5339.— One second-hand mooring pile was put in on outer end, north
side of pier. Begun and finished July 15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5859.— The pavement at the entrance was repaired.
14 and finished October 18, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5933.— The sheathing on deck was patched with 3,400 feet, B. M., of
new 3-inch spruce, and the backing log was fastened. Begun November 5 and finished November

Begun October

8, 1886.
Pier at Bethune Street, N. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5416.— Spikes and bolts projecting from fenders were driven in. Begun
and finished June 2, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5553.— Spikes projecting from sides of pier were driven in. Begun and
finished July 22, 1886.
Secretary’'s Order No. 5754.— Half-round fenders were bolted and pile chained. Begun Sep-

tember 17 and finished September 18, 1886.
Secretary's Order No. 6012.— 3 oak fender piles on outer north corner were fastened with chain
and chocked with second-hand material. Begun and finished December 9, 1886.

Bulkhead south of West Twelfth Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6373.—A fence was put up with second-hand material.
finished Apru 12, 1887.

Begun and

Bulkhead at Jane Street, N. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5564.— The bulkhead was repaired, 3,346 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce
laid, and the pavement at entrance repaired. Begun August 5 and finished August 6, 1886.
Pier at Horatio Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5565.— The bulkhead was repaired ; planked the roadway of approach
with 3,067 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce, and the pavement at entrance was repaired. Begun
August 2 and finished August 5, 1886,

Pier north of Bogart Street, N. R.

Begun and finished September 27, 1886.
Begun October 8 and finished Octo-

Engineer’s Order.— One old pile was pulled.

Engineer’s Order.— Two old bearing piles were pulled.
ber 9, 1886.

Engineer's Order.—John Flaherty, contractor, put a new superstructure on the pier ; repaired
the cribwork under it, and laid an approach to it, under Contract No. 237. Begun January 10 and
finished March 30, 1887.

Pier north of Bloomfield Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5554.—Projecting spikes on sides of pier were driven in.
finished July 22, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5755.— Half-round fenders were bolted.
16, 1886.

Begun and
Begun and finished September

Approach to Pier at Little West Twelfth Street, N. R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5566.—The pavement at the entrance was repaired.
and finished August 4, 1886.

Pier at Little West Twelfth Street, N. R,

Begun August 3

Secretary’'s Order No. 5555.— Projecting spikes on sides of pier were driven in.
finished July 22, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5635.— | fender and | chock were put on and fastened, and fender
spikes and bolts driven in. Begun and finished August 13, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5750.— Half-round fenders were bolted.
17, 1886.

Begun and

Begun and finished September

Pier at West Thirteenth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5460.— 9 spruce fender piles and 4 spruce bearing piles were driven ;
2 old fender piles were reset and fastened ; 2 second-hand mooring piles were driven, chocked and
fastened, ana the sheathing was patched with 998 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun June
21 and finished June 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5841.— The sheathing was patched with 1,020 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun October 5 and finished October 6, 1886.

Pier at West Fifteenth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6018.— Loose and projecting spikes on sides of pier were driven in and
fenders fastened. Begun December 6 and finished December 7, 1886.

Pier at West Sixteenth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6018.— Loose and projecting spikes on sides of pier were driven in;
fenders and loose fender piles were refastened, and 2 half-round oak fenders were put on. Begun
December 4 and finished December 8, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5938—Holes in deck of approach were patched with 947 feet, B. M.,
of new 4-incfi, and no feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun and finished November 9, 1886.
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Pier at West Seventeenth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5361.—1 fender pile was fastened on outer southerly comer of pier.
Begun May 14 and finished May 16, 1886. *

Secretary’s Order No. 6033.— Mooring piles were repaired and deck patched with 255 feet, B.
M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun December 2 and nnished December 6, 1886.

Pier at West Eighteenth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5393.— The sheathing on deck was patched with 999 feet, B. M., of new
3-inch spruce, and the pavement at entrance was repaired. Begun May 26 and finished May 27,
1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5421*—3 new oak fender piles were driven and fastened on outer southerly
corner, and 1 new oak fender pile was driven on north corner of pier. Begun Tune 3 and finished
June 5, 1886. *

Secretary’s Order No. 5551.— The deck was patched with no feet, B. M., new 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished July 22, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5677.— The sheathing was patched with 360 feet, B. M., of 3 inph
spruce. Begun and finished August 26, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5728.—The deck was patched with 75 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished September 9, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5763.—The deck was patched with 45 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished September 13, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5783.— The sheathing was patched with 501 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished September 22, 1876.

Secretary’s Order No. 5907.— The sheathing was patched with 561 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun October 29 and finished October 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6018.—Loose and projecting spikes on sides of pier were driven in.
Begun December 1 and finished December 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6070.— Holes in deck were patched with 130 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished December 1, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6051.— The old backing log on north side of pier was cut out and
replaced with new, 504 feet, B. M., of 12"xi2" second-hand timber being used. Begun January
5 and finished January 6, 1887. 1

Secretary’s Order No. 6034.—Old mooring posts were removed and 3 new ones were put in,
with second-hand material; the deck was patched with 460 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank, and
80 feet, B. M., of new 4-inch spruce, and 130 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce plank, and mooring
posts were chocked with second-hand material. Begun January 5 and finished January 11, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6367.— The backing log was repaired and sheathing on deck with 723
feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun and finished April 30, 1887.

Approach to Pier at West Nineteenth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5743.— Repairs were made to approach and pavement at entrance thereto,
2,000 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce being used. Begun September 6 and finished September 9, 1886.

Pier at West Nineteenth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5908.—The sheathing was patched with 1,989 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun October 28 and finished October 30, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 6018.— Loose and projecting spikes on sides of pier were driven in.
Begun and finished December I, 1886.

John D. Walsh, contractor, put new sheathing on the pier, under Contract No. 234.
December 27, 1886, and finished January 31, 1887.

Begun

Pier, new 57, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5386.— The sheathing was patched with 1,520 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun June 28 and finished June 29, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5700.— 1 spring pile was driven and fastened on south side of pier.
Begun September 3 and finished September 4, 1886.

Secretary’s Order 5272.—0Old gangway leading to float alongside the pier was replaced with
a new one, 25 feet long by 5 feet wide, with small wheels and axle at the lower end ; also the float
was buoyed up by placing 12 empty oil barrels under, and properly fastening them to it. Begun
April 24 and nnished June 19, 1886.

Engineer’s Order.— One fender pile was driven, chocked and fastened on the south side of the
pier. Begun and finished June 3, 18S6.

Pier, new 59, N. R.

Secretary’s‘Order No. 5678.— The sheathing was patched with 171 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished August 31, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5839. --Holes in deck were patched with second-hand plank, and the
old armature plates were removed and 4 new ones put on. Begun November 11 and finished
December 4, 1886.
Pier, new 60, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5523.— The dock was patched with 90 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished July 7, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5679.— The sheathing was patched with 90 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished August 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5931.— The sheathing was patched with 1,020 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce, and 1,270 feet of second-hand 3-inch plank. Begun November 30 and finished December
3, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6088.— The old armature plates were removed and broken piles pulled ; 1
bearing pile, 2 new oak and 1 second-hand pile were driven and fastened ; piles were pulled under
side caps ; 8 square fenders were made, put on and chocked ; 2 new armature plates were puton ;
384 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" yellow pine were used. Begun December 10 and finished December
18, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6328.— New sheathing was laid on deck with 33,498 feet, B. M., of new
3-inch spruce, chocked with 320 feet, B. M., of 8" x 8" yellow pine. Begun April 4 and finished
April 11, 1887.

Pier at West Thirty.fourth Street, N. R.

Engineer’s Order.— The deck was patched on south side with second-hand plank.
finished May 3, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5422.— The sheathing was patched with 180 feet, If. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun June 2 and finished June 3, i860.
Secretary’s Order No. 5461.— The sheathing was patched with 1,017 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished June 16, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5487.— The deck was patched with 360 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce
and 180 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun and finished June 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5505.—1,188 feet, B. M., of new 12" x 12" yellow pine backing log was
put on, and old backing logs were refastened. Begun June 28 and finished June 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5550.— The deck was patched with 220 feet, B. M., ofnew 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished July 22, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5680.— The sheathing was patched with 978 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun August 27 and finished August 28, 1886.
Secretary's Order No.5729.—The deck was patched with 660 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished September 8, 1886. '

Secretary’s Order No. 5784.— The deck and sheathing were patched with 1,000 feet, B. M., of
3-inch spruce. Begun and finished September 22, 1886.

Secretary’s Order, No. 5887.— The deck and sheathing were patched with 1,148 feet, B.M ., of
3-inch spruce. Begun and finished October 13, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.6071.— The sheathing was patched with 500 feet of second-hand 3-inch
plank. Begun and finished December 2, 1886.
Contract 240.— Backing logs were removed and towed to West Fifty-seventh Street Yard.
Begun February 17 and finished February 19, 1887.

The old pier has been removed and a new pier and approach is being built, under Contract
No. 240. Begun February 17, 1887 ;in progress.

Begun and

Pier at West Thirty-fifth Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6394.—Chocks were refastened, and the deck was patched with 45 feet,
B. M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun April 16 and finished April 18, 1887.

Pier at West Fortieth Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5357.— The deck was patched with 225 feet, M B., of new 3-inch spruce.
Begun May 12 and finished May 13, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5381.— The sheathing was patched with 180 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished May 24, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5485.— The deck was patched with 405 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce
and 380 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun and finished June 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5637.—The sheathing was patched with 750 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
pruce. Begun and finished August 12, 1886.

1887.
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Secretary’s Order No.5730.—The deck was patched with 300 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished September 8, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5827.—The deck was patched with 339 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun October 2 and finished October 4, 1886..

Secretary’s Order No. 6403 — The pavement at entrance to pier was repaired and a drain was
put in ; 330 feet, B. M., of 5" x 12" yellow pine and 1,158 feet, B. M., of 4-inch yellow pine and of
10" x 10" yellow pine were used. Begun April 21, 1887 ; in progress.

Pier at West Forty.sixth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5382.— The sheathing was patched with 180 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished May 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5649.— The sheathing was patched with 3,015 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun August 18 and finished August 20, 1886.

Secretary’s Ordef No. 5828.—The sheathing was patched with 170 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce plank. Begun and finished October 4, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6066.—A hole in deck was repaired with 458 feet, B. M., of 4-inch
yellow pine, and sheathing patched with 990 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun December 22
and finished December 23, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6020.— 2 old armature plates were removed and two new ones put on
and painted. Begun December 29 and finished*December 31, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6338.—The sheathing on deck was repaired with 1,258 feet, B. M., of
new 3-inch spruce. Begun April 25 and finished April 26, 1887.

Pier at West Forty.seventh Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5270.— 3 oak fender piles were fastened on corner, and the old backing
log was fastened ; a fence was put up on outer end of pier with second-hand material ; new sheath-
ing was laid on deck with 8,025 feet, B. M., of second-hand- 3-inch plank, and pier was blocked up
with 420 feet, B. M., of 12"x 12" second-hand timber. Begun May 5 and finished November
27, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5509.— The deck was patched with 495 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished July 1, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5731.—The deck was patched with 45 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished September 10, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5903.— Holes in deck were patched with 220 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished October 26, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5986.— Hole in deck was patched and understructure was repaired with
900 feet, B. M., of 12"x 12" second-hand timber ; new sheathing was laid on deck with 1,575 feet,
B. M., of second-hand 3-inch plank. Begun November 19 and finished November 23, 1886.

Pier at West Fifty-first Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5358.— The deck was patched with 135 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished May 12, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5472.— The sheathing was patched with 315 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished June 17, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5510.—The sheathing was patched with 1,035 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished July 1,1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5595.—The sheathing was patched with 4,934 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun July 30 and nnished July 31, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5732.—Holes in deck were patched with 139 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce and 526 feet, B. M., of second-hand 3-inch plank. Begun September 8 and finished Sep-
tember 10, 1886. V.

Secretary’s Order No. 5928.—The deck was patched with 660 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
| spruce. Begun November 1 and finished November 3, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5977.— Holes in deck were patched with 638 feet, B. M.,
spruce. Begun and finished November 10, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 6045— 2 fender piles were pulled, redriven and fastened ; 3 new spruce
fender piles were driven and fastened ; side-cap was put in and blocked up, and bearing piles were
blocked up ; 240 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" second-hand timber being used. Begun December 18,
1886, and finished January 3, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6241.—The deck was patched with 180 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished March 15, 1887.
Secretary's Order No. 6374.— The sheathing was patched with 215 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished April 12, 1887.

of new 3-inch

Approach to Piers at West Fiftyfifth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6067.— Holes were patched with 90 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished December 3, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5941.— The sheathing was patched with 14,587 feet, B. M., of 4-inch
yellow pine and 4,533 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce. Begun December 10 and finished December
6.

Pier at West Fifty fifth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5383.— The sheathing on outer end of pier was patched with 2,556 feet,
B. M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun and finished May 25, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5473.— The sheathing was patched with 3,366 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun June 18 and finished June 19, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5596.— The sheathing was patched with 1,020 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished July 29, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5849.— New chocks were put on between fenders with 899 feet, B. M., of
8" x 8" yellow pine ; refastened loose chocks and new sheathing laid on outer end of pier with
4,008 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun October 7 and finished October 12, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5978.—The deck was patched with 382 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished November 11, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 6162.— One oak fender pile was pulled, redriven and fastened on the
outer end of the pier, and loose* fender piles were refastened. Begun January 24 and finkfrpd
January 26, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6449.— Loose fender piles on northwest comer of pier were refastened.
Begun and finished April 29, 1887.

Timber Basin at West Fifty.seventh Street, N. R.
(General Expense.)

The following work has been done from time to time, as required, to maintain the basin, and
to receive and deliver material init:

Piles and timber were secured. Begun and finished May 14, 1886.

Boom-logs were refastened. Begun and finished May 26, 1886.

A scow was prepared to load with oak piles, etc., for General Repairs use.
June 1, 1886.

A raft of 12" x 12" square yellow pine timber from A. J. Murray, under Treasurer's order
11907, was received and inspected. Begun and finished June 2, 1886.

Boom-logs were refastened. Begun and finished June 8, 1886.

100 half-round oak fenders from A. J. Murray, under Treasurer’s Order No. 11916, were received
and inspected. Begun and finished July 19, 1886.

Piles from A. J. Murray, under Treasurer’sOrder No. 11958, were received and inspected. Begun
and finished August 2, 1886.

Boom logs were fastened to secure piles and timber. Begun and finished August 9, 1886.

Boom logs were fastened to secure piles and timber. Begun and finished August 18, 1886.

Piles and timber in basin were secured. Begun and finished September 6, 1886.

Boom logs were refastened to secure piles and timber. Begun and finished October 11, 1886.-

Boom was fastened to secure piles and timber. Begun and finished December 21, 1886.

~  Piles and timber were rafted and old scows moved. Begun January 4 and finished January 26,

Begun and finlsbgrt

Old piles were pulled and redriven, and timber and piles in basin secured and regulated.
Begun February 19 and finished March 7, 1887.
Boom was refastened to secure logs and piles. Begun and finished April 19, 1887.

Bulkhead between West Seventy-eighth and Seventy-ninth Streets, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6079.— Backing pieces were put on with 1,416 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12"
yellow pine. Begun December 20 and finished December 24, 1886.

Pier at West Seventy-ninth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6131.— 3 old stumps were pulled ; 3 new spruce bearing and 4 second-
hand oak fender piles were driven and fastened ; braces were fastened at low water; 6 new oak
chocks were put on with 134 feet, B. M., of second-hand material; bearing and spring piles were
pulled; 5 new and 6 second-hand oak piles were driven and chocked, and 5 half-round oak fenders
were put on ; 360 feet, B. M., ofyellow pine timber being used. Begun January 5 and finish**
February 12, 1887. .
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Bulkhead at West Ninety-sixth Street, N. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5920.— The surface was leveled off. Begun November 29 and finished
November 30, 1886.
Bulkhead Platform at West One Hundred and Thirtieth Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5397.— Dirt and rubbish were removed from backing logs.
19 and finished June 24, 1886.

Begun June

Pier at West One Hundred and Thirty-first Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5397.— Dirt and rubbish were removed from backing logs.
15 and finished June 16, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 6177.— Fenders and fender piles were refastened ; broken piles and old
stumps were pulled ; 57 new spruce piles driven and fastened, and comer bands put on and
fastened. Begun February 7 and finished March 12, 1887.

Begun June

Pier at West One Hundred and Fifty-second Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5567.— 10 old stumps were pulled ; old fenders were taken off; 5 spruce
bearing and 17 spruce fender piles were driven and fastened ; 5 half-round oak fenders were put on,
“ A,” and horizontal braces were refastened; spring piles were chocked, bearing piles pulled to
place ; 338 feet, B. M., of hewn yellow pine, and 387 feet, B. M., of 5-inch yellow pine being used.
The deck and sheathing were patched with 600 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce, and 250 feet, B. M., of
second-hand plank. Begun August 11 and finished August 19, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5982.— Portion of pier was fenced off with 793 feet of second-hand 2-inch
plank, and deck patched with 2,790 feet second-hand 3-inch plank. Begun November 29 and fin-
ished November 30, 1886.

O’Connell & Coffey, contractors, repaired the superstructure, under Contract No. 239.
March 16, 1887; in progress.

Begun

Pier at West One Hundred and Fifty fifth Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6235.— 6 new spruce fender piles driven and fastened ; 96 feet, B. M., of
12"x 12" yellow pine used for 2 new cleats ; 2 second-hand oak piles driven, chocked with 312 feet,
B. M., of second-hand 12" x 12" yellow pine. Begun March 7 and finished March 10, 1887.

EAST RIVER.
Pier6,E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5440.— Pavement at entrance was repaired. Begun June 15 and fi

June 16, 1886.
Pier7, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5285.— New rangers were put in and cross-caps were spliced with 984
feet, B. M., of yellow pine ; 9 bearing piles were dnven, chocked and fastened; 2 second-hand
fender piles were driven, the sheathing was patched with 2,000 feet, B. M., of 4-inch and 2,587 feet,
B. M., of 3-inch spruce ; 2 oak fender piles were driven and fastened ; vertical sheathing was put
on, 2,872 feet, B. M., of yellow pine being used ; | half-round oak fender was put on. Begun May
11 and finished May 20, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5465.— The sheathing was patched with 5,013 feet, B. M.,
spruce. Begun June 17 and finished June 19, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5727.— The deck and sheathing were patched with 5,233 fee't, B. M., of
3-inch spruce. Begun September 9 and finished September 13, 1886.

Secretary’s Order N0.6142.— The deck was patched with 296 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished January 15, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6214.— The deck was patched with 560 feet, B. M.,
Begun February 26 and finished February 28, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6392.— Fenders and chocks were repaired and fastened on easterly side
of pier. Begun April 15 and finished April 16, 1887.

of 3-inch

of 4-inch spruce.

Pier 12 (westhalf\, E.R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5500.— The deck was sheathed with 1,200 feet, B. M.,
Begun and finished June 30, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5521.— Fender pile was fastened with chain on comer of pier.
and finished July 7, 1886.

of 3-inch spruce.
Begun

Pier 18 (eastside), E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5574.— The sheathing was patched with 1,010 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce ; 14 half-round oak fenders were put on ; 3 spruce bearing piles and five oak fender piles
were driven ; 15 feet of backing log was put on ; 2 old oak piles were pulled ; 3 oak fender piles were
chocked, etc.- Begun July 23 and finished August 4, 1880.

Bulkhead Platform between Piers 18 and 19, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5466.— The platform was patched with 90 feet, B. M., of 3-inch second-
hand plank. Begun and finished June 22, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5575.—The sheathing was patched with 1,490 feet, B. M.,

spruce. Begun and finished July 24, 1886.
Fearon & Jenks, contractors, removed the old bulkhead platform, and rebuilt the bulkhead

from low water up, under Contract No. 236. Begun January 18 and finished February 12, 1887.

of 3-inch

Pier 19 (westhalf), E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5576.-3 pine bearing piles were driven, and 14 half-round oak fenders
were puton. Begun July 27 and finished July 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5830.— | mooring post was put on lower outer cornerofpler and chocked
and staved. Begun and finished September 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5793.— Vertical sheathing was patched with 300 feet, B. M., of <J-nch
yellow pine, and sheathing on deck with 1,333 feet»B- M~ of second-hand, and 450 feet, B. M.,
of new 3-inch spruce plank. Begun September 28 and finished October 1, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6001.— The old backing log, vertical fenders and mooring posts, were
removed and outer end of pier raised ; a mooring post was set and staved, and 1 piece of backing
was put on ; 1,080 feet, B. M., of 12"x12" second-hand timber, and 83 feet, B. M., of yellow pine
was used. Begun November 19 and finished November 23, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6031.— A mooring post was chocked and fastened, and backing log was
repaired with 300 feet, B. M., of yellow pine, and 300 feet, B. M., of 12"xi2" second-hand timber.
Begun and finished November 24, 1886.

Bulkhead westofPier 19, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5791.— The pavement was repaired.
1886.

Begun and finished September 25,

Pier 37, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5455.— The sheathing was patched with 490 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.

Begun and finished June 12, 1886.
Commissioners’ Order.— Ice-bridge and scales were removed, and the Jock was patched where

scales were located with second-hand material. Begun June 23 and finished June 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5493— Obstructions across upper comer were removed by pulling piles
and tearing up side caps. Begun and finished July 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5632.— Spring piles were refastened and the fence repalred
and finished Augusl 14, 1886. [ "

Secretary’'s Order No.5681.— The deck was patched with 750 feet, B.
Begun September 3 and finished September 4, 1886.

8 Secretary’s Order No.5816.— The deck and sheathing were patched with 125 feet B. M

second-hand plank, and 135 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun and finished September 30

Begun

M., of3-inch spruce

*~nSecretary’s Order No. 5835.— A hole in the pavement at entrance was repaired. Begun and
AN reUiVs Order No. 5964.— A fence was erected about 50 feet from outer end of pier with 600
feet, B.M ., of second-hand plank. Begun and finished November 6,

Secretary’s Order No.5926.— Holes in deck were patched with 125 feet B.M.,
3-inch plank. Begun and finished November 4, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6194.— The fence was replaced on outer end ofpler W|th 300 feet, B. M.,
of second-hand 3-inch plank, and spring piles were refastened with chain. Begun and flnlshed

of second-hand

FCblSewtstfy’sOrder No. 6408.— The sheathing on deck was repaired with 3,990 feet, B. M., of
new 3-inch spruce. Begun April 23 and finished April 26, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers 39 and 40, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5623.— A portion of bulkhead about 42 feet west of Pier 40, was fenced

off. Begun and finished August 11, 1886.
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Bulkhead adjoining and west of Pier 40, E. R.

Secretary’s Order N0.5778.— The fence was repaired with second-hand plank. Begun and
finished September 18°1886.
Bulkhead south ofPier 40, E. R.
Secretary’s OrderJNo. 5792.— The bulkhead was rebuilt from low water up.
27 and finished October 12, 1886.

Begun September

Pier41, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5349,— Hole at entrance to pier was filled in with dirt and stone and
repaved. Begun and finished May 21, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5386.— Fender piles were pulled and reset, and 7 fender piles were
fastened with chain-; 1 new spruce fender pile was driven. Begun May 18 and finished May 18,
1886.

Secretary's Order No.5426.— The vertical sheathing was repaired ; 2 oak spring and 3 spruce
fender piles were driven, chocked and fastened, and horizontal sheathing was put on ; 1 square
fender and 1 chock put on with 545 feet, B. M., of yellow pine and second-hand plank. Begun
June 7 and finished June 22, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5495.— Old stringers were removed and new ones and new short caps
put in; side caps were patched and 2 short rangers were put in, with 672 feet, B. M., of hewn yellow
pine ; 1 pile stump was pulled ; 1 oak spring pile driven and fastened, and 1 mooring pile put in
and fastened; 1,720 feet, B. M., of 4-inch, and 1,491 feet, B. M., of 3-inch second-hand plank
were relaid, and sheathing was patched with 6,193 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun June 28
and finished July 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5592. —1 spruce spring pile was driven and fastened on west side, and 2
half-round fenders were put on, and | old stump was pulled. Begun August 4 and finished August
5, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5831.— The deck and sheathing was patched with 359 feet, B. M., of
3-inch spruce, and 125 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun October | and finished October
2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5914.— Fence was erected 50 feet from outer end of pier ; 1 piece of old
side cap was removed and replaced with new ; the deck and sheathing was patched with 6,200 feet,
B. M., of second-hand plank ; 3 spring piles were pulled and redriven ; 6 spring piles were refast-
ened ; 4 old fender piles were pulled, and | piece of backing log put on. Begun October 30 and
finished November O, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6061.— 3 spruce piles were driven for cluster and fastened ;
pile was driven and fastened, and spring piles and half-round oak fenders were fastened.
November 30 and finished December 1, 1886.

1 bearing
Begun

Bulkhead at Pier 43, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5963.— A hole at entrance was repaired and paved.
November 8, 1886.

Begun and finished

tier 43, E. R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5886.— Spikes projecting from sheathing were driven in ; the backing
log was refastened ; fenders and sheathing were fastened with screw bolts, and “A” and horizontal
braces refastened. Begun October 14 and finished November 8, 1886.

Pier 44, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5468.— 2 oak spring piles were refastened on comer of pier.
finished June 19, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5469.—Doors and gate on shed were refastened.
June 17, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5633.— 1 old pile stump was removed.
August 18, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5829.— 1 mooring post on lower outer comer of pier was refastened.
Begun and finished October 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5985.— 10 old half-round oak fenders were replaced with new ones, and
2 old mooring posts were replaced with new ones. Begun November 22 and finished November
27, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6030.— 3 second-hand bearing piles were driven and fastened.
November 25 and finished November 27, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No. 6158.— Fenders on outer end of pier were repaired and refastened.
Begun and finished January 22, 1887.

Begun and
Begun and .finished

Begun August 17 and finished

Begun

Secretary’s Order No. 6165.— | second-hand oak fender pile was driven and fastened. Begun
and finished January 25, 1887.
Secretary’s Order No. 6416.— Loose spikes were driven in and plank refastened. Begun and

finished April 22, 1887.
Secretary’s Order N°* 6393.— 2 white oak spring piles were driven, chocked and fastened on
upper outer comer of pier. Begun April 29 and finished April 30, 1887.

Bulkhead Platform west of Pier 44, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5869.— The old platform was removed and one course of backing pieces
and backing log were put on with 1,320 feet, B. M., of 12"xi2" second-hand timber ; fenders were
replaced and fastened; 1 cleat was put on, and hole in bulkhead repaired and paved. Begun
October 27 and finished November 11, 1886.

Pier 46, E. R.

Secretaty’'s Order No. 5531.—7 stumps were pulled and 6 bearing piles driven and deck
patched with 180 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun July 8 and finished July 12, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5572.—Six oak fender piles and 1 spruce pile were driven ; mooring
posts were staved ; 4 chocks were put on and piles fastened with 65 pounds of chain; 23 halt-
round oak fenders put on ; 4 bearing piles were pulled under side cap and fastened, and wearing
pieces were put on. Begun July 26 and finished August 9, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5726.— The deck was patched with 156 feet, B. M.,
Begun and finished September 11, 1886.
Secretary’'s Order No. 5979.— 1 piece of side cap was put in and fastened, 192 feet, B. M., of
12" x 12" second-hand timber being used. Begun and finished November 12, 1886.

of 4-inch yellow
pine.

Pier, 53, E. R.

Engineer’'s Order.— 1 oak spring pile on outer easterly corner was refastened with chain.
Begun May 20 and finished May 21, 1886.

Pierfoot of Corlears Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6353.—7 spruce fender piles were driven, chocked and fastened, and
backing piece was put in with 12"xi2" second-hand timber. Begun April 16 and finished April 18,
1887.

Bulkheadfoot of Cherry Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5402.— 8 half-round oak fenderswere put on. Begun and finished June
7, 1886.

Pier 55, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5336.— The sheathing was patched with 632 feet, B. M.,
Begun May 18 and finished May 19, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5848.— The sheathing was patched with 2,010 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce, and 210 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun October 7 and finished October 9,1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6015.— Holes in deck were repaired with 90 feet, B. M., of second-
hand 3-inch plank. Begun and finished November 20, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6312.— | new oak pile and 17 new spruce fender piles were driven and
chocked, 1,237 feet, B. M., of 12"xi2" yellow pine being used ; the sheathing was patched with
1,035 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch spruce. Begun March 28 and finished April 2, 1887.

of 3-inch spruce.

Pier 57, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5559.— The sheathing was patched with 1,751 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun July 23 and finished July 24, 1886.
Secretary’s Order N0.5779.— Holes in deck were patched with second-hand plank. Begun and

finished September 18, 1880.
Pier 58 (north half), E. R.
Secretary’'s Order ,No. 5312.— The sheathing was patched with 3,024 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun May 5 and finished May 6, 1886.
Secretary’s Oraer No. 5560.— The sheathing was patched with 779 feet,
spruce. Begun July 23 and finished July 24, 1886.

B. M., of 3-inch
Pier 59, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5650.— 13 spruce piles were driven for clusters on outer southerly comer
of pier. Begun August 20 ana finished August 21, 1886.
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Pier 60, £. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5573.— 6 old stumps were pulled ; 3 pieces of side-cap and 3 half-round
oak fenders were put on ; 3 spruce bearing and 15 spruce fender piles were driven ; 2 second-hand
fender piles were driven ; 11 chocks were put on and rangers were blocked%p, 888 feet, B. M., of

12" x 12", and 427 feet, B. M., of 8" x 8" yellow pine being used ; the sheatning on the deck was
patched with 1,284 feet, B. M., of 4-inch yellow pine. Begun August 9 and finished August 17,
1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6016.— Old mooring-posts were removed and 2 new ones were put in,
chocked and fastened with second-hand material, and 1 piece of backing-log was put on ; 720 feet
of 12" x 12" second-hand timber were used. Begun November 27 and finished November 30, 1886.

Pier 61, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6017.— 1 mooring pile was set, braced and chocked ; 340 feet, B. M., o™
second-hand 12" x 12", and 100 feet 3-inch timber being used. Begun and finished December 11>
1886. 8

Pier 62 {north half), E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 53S1.— The sheathing was patched on east side outer end of pier with
2,160 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun May 7 and finished May 10, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5437.— 13 spruce and 3 oak fender piles were driven, chocked and
fastened on out-shore end, and loose fenders were fastened ; 288 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" spruce,
and 451 feet, B. M., of hewn yellow pine being used. Begun June 11 and finished June 18, 1886.

Pier at Fifth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5306.— Examinations of obstructions, etc., upper side.
and finished May 8, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5394.— Projecting crib timbers and obstructions were removed
pulled and stone hoisted. Begun June 1, 1886 ; in progress.

Begun April 30

; stumps

Bulkhead at East Fourteenth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5330.— 2 courses of timber were taken off and replaced with 3,192 feet,

B. M., of yellow pine ; 16 naif-round oak fenders and backing-logs were put on and fastened, and
2 spruce fender piles driven. Begun May 12 and finished May 17, 1886.

Bulkhead at East Fifteenth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6084.— 3 courses of timber were put on ; old mooring post was removed
and a new one put on ; | piece of backing-log and 4 half-round oak fenders were put on ; 2,040
feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" second-hand timber being used. Begun December 20 and finished
December 24, 1886.
East Seventeenth Street Yard, E. R.

(general expense.)

Treasurer’s Order No. 11598.—Piles from E. McCue & Co. were received and inspected.

Begun and finished July 8, 1880.

Treasurer's Order No. 11957.—Piles from E. McCue were received and inspected. Begun
and finished September 13, 1886.

Treasurer's Order No. 11957.—Piles from Edward McCue were received and inspected.

Begun and finished September 20, 1886.

Bulkhead between East Sixteenth and East Seventeenth Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6108.— 9 old stumps were pulled and 4 second-hand oak piles driven
and fastened. Begun December 27 and finished December 28, 1886.

Bulkhead along the Centre Line of East Seventeenth Street, E. R ., Extended.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5342.— 1 broken pile was pulled and | spruce fender pile was driven
and fastened. Begun May Il and finished May 12, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5548.— 13 white oak fender-piles were driven, chocked and fastened at
the north bulkhead of the yard. Begun July 20 and finished July 23, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6366.— 1 new spruce fender pile was driven in place of one broken by
tug “ Twin Brothers.” Begun and finished November 19, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6068.— 1 second-hand oak fender pile was driven and fastened.
and finished December io, 1886.

Begun

Bulkhead south of East Eighteenth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5964.— The fence was replaced with 765 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
86.

spruce. Begun and finished November 8, 1886

Bulkhead at East Eighteenth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5547.-6 spruce fender piles were driven and fastened, braces put on
with 303 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce. Begun July 1 and finished July 20, 1886.

Bulkhead rear of Pier at East Twenty-fifth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5388-—The bulkhead was refilled and new planking was laid on surface
with 1,250 feet, B. M., of 3-inch, and 200 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce. Begun and finished May
27, 1886.

Pier at East Twenty-eighth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5392.— The deck and sheathing on outer end of pier were patched with
1,530 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun and finished May 26, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5664.—The backing log was repaired with 252 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce, and the sheathing was patched with 528 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun and finished
August 21, 1886.

Secretory’s Order No. 5790.— The sheathing was patched with 850 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished September 25, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5881.— The sheathing was patched with 1,000 feet, B. M., of 3-inch

spruce. Begun and finished October 13, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5984.—The deck and sheathing were patched with 2,025 feet, B. M.,
of new 3-incn spruce. Begun November 2 and finished November 16, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6164.— The backing log was repaired and refastened, and a loose fender
pile was fastened with chain. Begun January 26 and finished January 27, 1887

Secretary’s Order No. 6293.— A hole at entrance to pier was repaired. Begun and finished
March 22, 1887.

Bulkhead at East Thirtieth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5398.— Backing pieces were cut out and facing timbers put down with
2,208 feet, B. M., 12" x 12" yellow pine ; 2 mooring posts were reset, and 16 half-round oak fenders
put on. Begun June 2 and finished June 7, 1886.

Bulkhead at East Thirty-second Street, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5787.—A hole was repaired. Begun and finished September 25,1886.

Pier at East Thirty-second Street, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5433.— 9 oak spring piles were driven, chocked and fastened with chain.
Begun June 15 and finished June 17, 1886.

Pier at East Thirty seventh Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5538.— Fence on southerly side was repaired with second-hand material.
Begun July 12 and finished July 14, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5688.— The sheathing was patched with 990 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun September 2 and finished September 3, 1886.

Contract No. 242.—John W. Flaherty, contractor,
Begun March 21, 1887 ; in progress.

repairing, widening and extending pier.

Bulkhead at East Thirty-eighth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6351.—5 second-hand, 1 new spruce fender pile and 1 new spruce bear-
ing pile were driven, fastened and chocked with second-hand material; braces and backing pieces
were puton, and a fence was built; excavating and grading were done. Begun April 12 and
finished April 15, 1887.

Pier at East Thirty-eighth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6219.— A hole on south side was repaired with stone and earth.
March 5 and finished March 21, 1887.

Begun
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December 2, 1887.

Bulkhead at East Forty-second Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5579.— The top of the bulkhead was leveled off, and 1 course of timber
on with 1,620 feet, B. M., of yellow pine ; 10 spruce fender piles driven, chocked and fastened,
un July 23 and finished July 27, 1880.

Pier at East Forty-sixth Street, E.R.
Secretan”'s'Order No. 5516.— The pavement at entrance was relaid, and sheathing was patched
with 3,245, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun July 2 and finished July 7, 1886.

SmallDock atEast Fifty -first Street, E. R.

Secretary's Order No. 5989.— Old timbers and bearing pile were removed. Begun November

17 and finished November 18, 1886.

Bulkhead at East Fifty fourth Street, E. R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5494.— Backing logs were put down with 948 feet, B.M., of 12" x 12'"
yellow pine ; 8 half-round oak fenders were put on. Begun June 28 and finished June 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5685.— The sheathing was patched with 1,020 feet, B. M., of 3-incb
spruce. Begun and finished September 1, 1886.

Bulkhead Platform from East Sixtieth to East Sixty-second Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5552.— Holes in platform were patched with 220 feet, B.M .,
spruce. Begun and finished July 22, 1886.

of 3-inch

Bulkhead Platform south o fEast Sixtieth Street to south side o f East Sixtyfirst Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5568.— 6 half-round oak fenders were put on and fastened. Begun and
finished April 23, 1886.

Bulkhead Platform between East Sixtieth and East Sixty-first Streets, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6331.— 1 new spruce bearing pile was driven ; bearing piles were pulled
to place and fastened ; 3 half-round oak fenders were put on, and platforrn blocked uda. Begun
April 6 and finished Aprll 7, 1887. 8

Bulkhead Platform at East Sixty-first Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5395.— 1 spruce spring pile and 2 spruce bearing piles were driven, and
1 mooring post was chocked and fastened; sheathing was patched with 500 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
spruce. Begun June 1 and finished June 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6064.— Holes were patched with 250 feet, B. M.,
spruce. Begun and finished December 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6328.— 1 new spruce pile was driven for mooring post, and piles and
caps were blocked up. Begun and finished April 8, 1887.

of 3-inch second-hand

Pier at East Sixty-first Street, E. R,

Secretary’s Order No. 6140— Holes in deck were patched with 212 feet, B. M., of new 3-inch
spruce. Begun and finished January 5, 1887.

Bulkhead Platform between East Sixty-first and East Sixty-second Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5395.—Ten stumps were pulled, 8 fender and 2 bearing piles were
driven and fastened, and*the sheathing was patched with 2,998 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce. Begun
May 26 and finished June 5, 1886. r 8

Secretary’'s Order No. 5568.-4 new spruce and 1 second-hand fender piles were driven and
fastened, and the platform was sheathed with 3,046 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce, and 75 feet
B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun August 16 and finished September 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5723.— The sheathing was patched with 2,025 feet, B. M.,
spruce. Begun and finished September 9, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5884.— Holes were patched with 200 feet, B. M.,
lank, and new sheathing was laid with 2,745 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
inished October 15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6000.—The sheathing was repaired with 2,517 feet, B. M.,

spruce. Begun November 17 and finished November 19, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6330.— Bearing and fender piles were pulled, reset and fastened, and 2
mooring posts were put in and planked around with 100 feet, B. M., of second-hand 4-inch spruce
Begun April 2 and finished April 6, 1887.

of 3-inch

of 4-inch second-hand
Begun October 14 and

of new 3-inch

Bulkhead Platform at East Sixty-second Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order, No. 5463.— The sheathing was patched with second-hand plank. Begun
and finished June 15, 1886.

Pier at East Sixty.second Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order, No. 5614.— The deck was patched with 1,013 feet, B. M., of3 inch spruce
Begun and finished August 7, 1886.

Secretary’s Order, No. 5676.— The sheathing was patched with 1,301 feet, B. M.,
spruce. Begun September 2 and finished September 3, 1886.

Secretary's Order, No. 5915.— New sheathing was laid on deck with 15,000 feet, B. M. of
new 4-inch spruce. Begun November 11 and finished November 18, 1886.

Secretary’s Order, No. 6329.— 1 bearing pile was pulled, and 1 second-hand pile driven : 2
half-round oak fenders were put on, and the backing log was repaired with second-hand 12" x 12"
timber. Begun and finished April 4, 1887.

of 4-|nch

Bulkhead Platform between East Seventy-eighth and East Seventy-ninth Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order, No. 5675.— The deck and sheathing were patched with 400 feet, B. M. of
~ptemter 51° “*= B’ M of 3-inch spruce. Begun September 6 and finished

Secretary s Order, No. 5766.— Dirt and rubbish were removed from around backing log ; new
Sepfemblr 24 3°7436 ** B' M>*°f 4'inch sPruce- Begun September 20 and finished

Secretar¥s Order, No. 5441.—3 oak fender piles were driven, chocked and fastened. Begu
June 17 and finished June 19, 1886.
Pier at East Eighty-sixth Street, E. R.

Secretary’sOrder, No. 5760.— The.deck was patched with second-hand yellow pine 4-inch plank
Begun and finished September 16, 1886.

Bulkhead between East Eighty-sixth and East Eighty-seventh Streets, E. R.

andfiS h S'g~rllo0,663- BUIkh'*d ~ fto August .6
HARLEM RIVER.
Pier at East One Hundred and Ninth Street, H. R.
Secretory’s Order, No. 5751.—The sheathing was patched with 615 feet, B. M., of 3-inch
3

ace. Begun September 15 and shed September 16, 1886.

Pier at East One Hundred and Sixteenth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order, No.5689— A float was removed. Begun and finished August 28, 1886.

Pier at East One Hundred and Seventeenth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order, No. 5373.— The deck and sheathmg were patched with 1,008 feet, B. M.
of 3-mch spruce. Begun and finished May 21, 188t

Secretary’s Order, No. 5594— The deck and sheathlng were patched with 2,520 feet, B. M. of
3-mch spruce. Begun August 9 and finished August 10, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5752.— The sheathing was patched with 615 feet,
spruce. Begun September 15 and finished September 16, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6406.— The sheathing was patched with 2,015 feet, B. M.,
spruce. Begun April 20 and finished April 23, 1887.

B. M., of 3-inch

of new 3-inch
J

Pier at East One Hundred and Twenty-fifth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5374.— The deck and sheathmg were patched with 1,008 feet, B. M.. of
3-mch spruce. Begun and finished May 21,

Secretary’s Order No. 5406.— A portion of the pier was fenced off with 748 feet, B. M., of
3-mch spruce. Begun and finished May 28, 1886.
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D ecember 2,

Pier at One Hundred and Fifty-fifth Street and Seventh Avenue, H. R.

Secretary's Order No. 5612.— Dirt was removed from the deck ; backing-log was put on and
fastened, ana the deck was patched with 750 feet, B. M., of second-hand plank. Begun August 9
and finished August 10, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5836.— The deck was removed and the stringers and rangers were
shimmed up ; new sheathing was laid with 4,053 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce, and 180 feet, B. M.,
of second-nand plank. Begun October 11 ana finished October 13, 1880.

General Expense.

Secretary’s Order No. 6002.— Piers on North, East and Harlem rivers are being numbered.
Begun December 10, 1886 ; in progress.

Secretary’'s Order No. 6213.— A. small office was removed from East Seventeenth Street Yard
to Thirteenth street, North river, and a coal-box was built at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard for use
-of Dock Master. Begun February 25 and finished March 2, 1887.

Work Done for the Department of Charities and Correction.
Bulkhead north of East Twenty-sixth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5517.— 20 braces, 5 stanchions, 8 chocks and 2 courses of yellow pine
timber were put on with 2,160 feet, B. M., of 12" x 12" yellow pine, 372 feet, B. M., of hewn yel-
low pine, and 312 feet, B. M., of 4-inch spruce ; 13 spruce piles were driven. Begun July 7 and
finished July 15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6369.— The piles driven at bulkhead on the site of the old Dead House
were removed. Begun April 27 and finished April 29, 1887.

New Dead House Pier, opposite Bellevue Hospital.

Secretary’s Order No. 5913.— 16 second-hand fender piles were driven ; 12 chocks were made,
put on and fastened ; heads of piles were trimmed; cleats were fastened, and 2 old piles were
pulled ; 182 feet, B. M., of second-hand 12" x 12" timber were used. Begun November 10 and
finished November 17, 1886.

Piers on Blackwell's Island, E. R.
WORKHOUSE PIER.

Secretary’s Order No. 5715.— Iron cleat placed on deck.
September 7, 1886.

Begun September 6 and finished

CHARITY HOSPITAL PIER.

Secretary’s Order No. 6078.— 5 oak piles in cluster were pulled ; 13 second-hand oak piles for
1 cluster were driven ; braces, backing log and 2 courses-of 12" x 12" second-hand timber were put
on ; fenders were refastened. Begun December 13 and finished December 20, 1886.

STOREHOUSE PIER.

Secretary’s Order No. 6218.— Test piles were driven.
1887.

Begun April 9 and finished April 12,

Work Done for the Department of Public Works
PUBLIC BATHS— NORTH RIVER.
Pier, new 21 (north side), N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5901.— Gangway closed to Public Bath.
25, 1886.

Resolution of Board, November 24, 1877, and November 27,
Public Bath was repaired. Begun June 16 and ished June 17,1886.

Resolution of board, November 24, 1877, and November 27, 1878.— The braces underneath the
approach to the Public Bath were refastened. Begun and finished August 6, 1886.

Begun and finished October

1878.— The approach to the

Pier at Horatio Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5491.— Gangway was opened on north side for access to Public Bath.
Begun June 25 and finished June 26, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5901.— The gangway was closed with second-hand material.
and finished October 15, 1886.

Begun

Pier, new 57, N. R.

Secretary's Order No.5901.— The gangway was closed to Public Bath.
October 15, 1886.

Begun and finished

Pier at West Fiftyfirst Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5490.— The gangway was opened for access to Public Bath.
June 25 and finished June 26, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5901.— The gangway was closed with 75 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce.
Begun and finished October 15, 1886.

Begun

« EAST RIVER. '

Pier 51, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5490.— The gangway was opened for access to Public Bath.
B.M., of 4-inch, and 520 feet, B. M., of 3-inch spruce plank being .used.

finished June 26, 1880.
Secretary’s Order No.5901.— The gangway was closed.

230 feet,
Begun June 25 and

Begun and finished October 15, 1886.
Pier at Fifth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order 5490.— The gangway was opened for access to Public Bath.

and finished June 25, 1880.
Secretary's Order No. 5901.— The gangway was closed.

Begun June 25
Begun and finished October 15, 1886.

Pier at East Nineteenth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5490.— A platform was built for access to Public Bath, 305 feet, B. M.,
of 4-inch, and 520 feet, B. M., of 3-incn spruce being used. Begun June 25 and finished June 26,
1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5901.— The gangway was closed. Begun and finished October 15,
1886.
Pier at East Thirty-seventh Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5490.— The gangway was opened for access to Public Bath.
andfinished June 26, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5901.— The gangway was closed, 270 feet, B. M., 3-inch spruce being
used. Begun and finished October 15, 1886.

Begun

HARLEM RIVER.
Bulkhead south side o f One Hundred and Twelfth Street, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5490.— The gangway was opened for access to Public Bath.
and finished June 25, 1886;
Secretary’s Order No. 5901.— The gangway was closed. Begun and finished October 15,
1886.

Begun

Work Done for Department of Street Cleaning.
Dumping Board at West Thirty-seventh Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5987.— Repairs were made to the understructure with 1,200 feet, B. M.,
of 12" x 12" second-hand timber. Begun November 17 and finished November 19, 1886.

Work Done for Alleged Owners, Lessees and others, on their refusal or neglect
TO COMPLY WITH THE ORDER OF THE BOARD, AND AT THE EXPENSE OF THE PARTIES
FOR WHOM THE WORK WAS DONE.

NORTH RIVER.
W est Fifty-seventh Street, N. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6258.— The damage done to the south side of the pier by a scow of the
Union Dredging Company was repaired. Begun and finished March 12, 1887.
EAST RIVER.
East Seventeenth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6144.— One oak fender pile was driven in place of one broken by steam
lighter “ Cement Rock.” Begun and finished January 13, 1887.
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Floating Property.

The Floating Property of the Department consists of the following:
ioo-ton derrick “ City of New York.”

io-ton derrick.

Tug “ Manhattan.”

2 dredges, Nos. 3, and 4.
10 pile drivers, Nos. 1, 2,3,5,6, 7, 8,9,
8 deck scows, “B,” “C, “ .
Boring machine “ Woodcock.
Diver's scow “ G.”

Small diver’s scow.

9 yawls, 2 bateaux, 3 skiffs and 3 sounding boats.

10 and 11.
“F,” “Jim” “ May,” and “ Willie.”

D,

The 100-ton Derrick “ City op New York."

May 10, 1886.—Placed pile driver No. 7 in the water from Pier at West Fifty-seventh Street
Yard, and placed pile-driver No. 5 on pier at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard, and on June 2 placed
itin the water.

June 4, 1886.—Placed pile driver No. 2 on pier at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard, and placed
it in the water on June 28, and placed diver's scow “ G ” on pier at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard,
and placed it in the water on July 12, and placed coal scow “F ™" on pier at West Fifty-seventh
Street Yard, and placed it in the water on September 10.

October 8, 1886.— Placed pile driver No.3 on pier at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard, and
placed it in the water on April 9, 1887.

November 11, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

December 17, 18 and 20, 1886.— Diver examined bottom of scow and reported that it was in
good order with the exception of being very dirty, also reported iron castings on comers all right.

January 29, 1887.—Shifted 2 ballast blocks from deck to pier at West Fifty-seventh Street
Yard.

March 31, 1887.— Loaded 6 concrete blocks on scows “ B” and “ C " (3 on each), at West
Fifty-seventh Street Yard, and towed to West Thirty-second Street Section on April 1, and set the 6
blocks in the bulkhead wall, and on April 7 towed back to West Fifty-seventh Street Yard.

March 24, 1887.— Alfred J. Murray, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12190, furnished 1,400 feet,
B.M., 4" x 12", and 1,500 feet, B. M., of 2" x 10" yellow pine for girders and flooring.

April 18, 1887.—Gaskell, Greenlie & Co., under Treasurer’s Order No. 12220, furnished brace
casting.

During the year the following work was done by the force of the Department :

The force of the Department cut out old and put in new yellow pine girders under deck ; laid
2-inch yellow pine flooring in hold ; put on wood and cast-iron braces; put in trass and circle
bolts ; repaired steam-pipes, pipes in tanks, beams, hatch-houses, hand-hole plates of boiler,
engines, fenders and machinery ; made core box for brace casting and fenders ; put on and painted
new wearing pieces ; put new life lines on boom ; calked deck; covered deck with crude turpentine :
pumped out bilges; cleaned boiler, engines and machinery; screwed up bolts in beams ana
capstans ; packed piston rods, valves, water gauges on boiler, valve stems, shifted and stowed
ballast in hold ; examined tower and braces ; painted circle and scow ; putin panes of glass and
cleaned out hold.

The 10-ton Derrick.

May 12, 1886.—Towed from West Fifty-seventh Street Yard to West Thirty-second Street
Section, and set 132 pieces of granite in the bulkhead wall, towed back to West Fifty-seventh Street
Yard onJuly 29, 1886.

June 16, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

The force of the Department repaired deck, house, roof, water tank, steam pipes, hatch,
engines and machinery ; covered deck with crude turpentine ; put floor in coal bunker ; overhauled
blocks; oiled mast and boom ; cleaned boiler, engine and machinery ; calked deck and water tank ;
took down boom and rigging and painted.

lug “ Manhattan.”

May 10, 1886.— Began ruuning (having been laid up for repairs since August 15, 1885), and
did all the towing required by the Department up to July 15, 1886, when she was laid up by order
of the Commissioners of Docks.

September 26, 1886.— Resumed running and has done all the towing required up to April 28,
1887, then laid up for repairs. The hired tugs of Victor Vierow have done all the towing required
by the Department while the “ Manhattan ” was laid up.

May 5, 1886.— The United States Local Inspectors inspected the donkey boiler.

May 31, July 6, November 3 and December 14, 1886, and January 8, February 18 and April
9, 1887.— Laid up at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard to clean boiler.

The force of the Department recalked and painted deck ; scraped, calked and painted hull;
covered smoke stack with paraffine varnish ; removed old and put in new grate bars ; repaired and
painted water closet; put strips of wood on deck in front of doors ; fitted and put up two 24-foot
flag staffs; made mould for ice cutter, rope fenders, coal plank for deck, certificate frame, drip
pans, balls for flag staffs and ladder; put up radiator in cabin and pilot house ; repaired bell wires,
house windows, doors, taffrail, steering gear, boiler, machinery, etc., made and painted hickory
fenders ; put on and removed new wrought iron ice breaker on bow and put large rope fender in its
place ; removed old and put in new galvanized limber chain ; cut scuppers under engine ; cut out
bulwarks; put down floor in engine room ; put in glass.

April 26, 1887.— Placed on Tebo's Dry Dock at Twenty-third street, South Brooklyn, for
examination of bottom. Found the bottom in a fair condition and quite clean, and all that is required
at present is painting.

April 27, 8.30 A. M.—Run off the dry dock.

Wm. M. Tebo, under Treasurer's Order No. 12300, furnished dry dock to examine bottom.

April 28 to 30, 1887.— Patterson Brothers, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12273, furnished 160
feet /7-inch galvanized iron chain and links, and one 4-inch flue brush.

April 28, 1887.— Laid up for repairs to engine, which are being done by Pioneer Iron Works
(at Atlantic Basin dock), under Treasurer’s Order No. 12282.

May 18 to 31, 1880.—W. & J. Sloan, under Treasurer's Order No. 11882, furnished and laid
31$ yards of oil cloth in cabin and engine room.

May 27 to 31, 1886.—John Morris, under Treasurer's Order No. 11884, furnished 2 single
blocks for steering gear.

July | to 15, 1886.— Patterson Brothers, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 11883, furnished 1
dozen galvanized pails (14 quarts each).

July 3 to 15, 1886.— George H. Mercer, under Treasurer's Order No. 11934, furnished 100
pounds solidified oil.

July 21 to 31, 1886.—E. C. Hazard & Co., under Treasurer's Order No. 11933, furnished 1
cask sal soda, 448 pounds.

October 25 to 31, 1886.— Annin & Co., under Treasurer's Order No. 12049, furnished one
American ensign, one Union Jack, one Municipal flag and one Dock Department signal flag.

October 30 to 31, 1886.—John F. Walsh, under Treasurer's Order No. 12048, furnished 2
24-feet flagstaffs with gilt balls.

November 13, 1886, to January 15, 1887.— Thomas C. Dunham, under Treasurer’'s Order No.
12051, furnished 5 gallons paraffine varnish and can.

January 24 to 31, 1887.— Samuel A. Suydam, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12127,
1 galley stove No. 6 range.

March 8 to 15, 1887.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer's Order No. 12100, furnished 1
wrought iron ice cutter.

April 4 to 15, 1887.— Hodgman Rubber Company, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12253, fur-
nished 100 feet 2J-inch 3-ply rubber hose and 2 pair couplings.

April 18 to 30, 1887.— Gaskell, Greenlie & Co., under Treasurer's Order No. 12220, furnished
2 cast-iron bearing bars.

furnished

Dredges.

Dredges Nos. 3 and 4 are in the possession of the Union Dredging Company.

Dredge No. 4 was laid up near the foot of One Hundred and Twenty-ninth street and Second
avenue, Harlem river, from August 21, 1885,'until August 31, 1886, when she was towed back to
Twenty-ninth street, North river, and returned to the Union Dredging Company.

October 15, 1886.— Towed to East Ninety-ninth street, East river, and placed in the ferry slip
of the Long Island Ferry Company, under Secretary’s Order No. 5805, and on November 8, 1886,
towed to East One Hundred and First street, East river; and on November 9, 1886, to Twenty-
ninth street, North river, and returned to the Union Dredging Company.

Pile Drivers.

Pile Driver No. 1.— Laid up at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard.

Pile Driver No. 2.—June 4, 1886.— Placed on pier at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard by the
derrick “ City of New York.”

The force of the Department removed wearing pieces; scraped and calked bottom, sides and
ends ; put on wearing pieces ; painted scow ; repaired ways, house and machinery ; and placed in
the water June 28, 1886 ; the old boiler condemned by the Police Department was stripped and
removed ; removed old and put in new grate bars; made plugs for pump holes ; laid small platform
on deck ; put in glass; cleaned water tank ; painted ways; made window sash ; cleaned engines
and machinery, and will fit up the new boiler as soon as possible.

December 1 to 15, 1886.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer's Order No. 12016, furnished
1 new upright boiler.
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April 28 to 30, 1887.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12099, furnished drum
frame*and cap fittings.

April 28 to 30, 1887.— Pioneer Iron Works, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12246, furnished new
smoke pipe.

Pile Driver No. 3.— October 8, 1886.— Placed on Pier at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard. The
force of the Department cut out old and put in new plank and timber ; repaired house, hatches,
machinery, etc., laid new deck plank ; made and put in bit; removed and put on wearing pieces ;
calked sides, ends and bottom ; put in four new hackmatack knees ; removed old and put in new
grate bars ; made plugs for pump holes; painted, cleaned engines and machinery.

April 9, 1887.— Placed in the water.

June 9, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

Pile Driver No. 5 (fitted up as a pile cutter).— May 10, 1886.— Placed on pier at West Fifty-
seventh Street Yard. The force of the Department removed and put on wearing pieces; scraped
and calked bottom, sides, ends and water tank ; painted, made smoke stack and plugs for pump
holes; repaired machinery ; ceiled water tank witn new white pine and calked same ; removed ola
and put in new grate bars.

June 2, 1880. —Placed in the water.

May 21, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

Pile Driver No. 6.— The force of the Department ceiled water tank with ij-inch white pine
and calked same; repaired ways, house, roof deck, hatches, cleats and machinery ; made and
painted window sash ; put in glass; calked deck; painted house ; removed old and put in new grate
bars ; made plugs for pump holes ; cleaned boiler, machinery, etc.

September 11, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

Pile Driver No. 7.— May 10, 1886.— Placed in the water from pier at West Fifty-seventh street.
The force o: the Department calked bottom, sides, ends, water tank and deck ; repaired roof,
house, ways, sides, ends, water tank and machinery ; put new iron on ways; removed old and put
in new grate bars ; painted house ; cleaned boiler, machinery, etc.

July 24, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

October 8 to 15, 1886.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer’s Order No. 11918, furnished 1,089
pounds x 4" x 18" iron for ways.

Pile Driver No. 8.—The force of the Department repaired ways, roof, house, ash pans, cleats,
hatches, machinery, water tank, etc.; removed old and put in new grate bars ; packed valves ; put
in glass ; made plugs for pump holes ; painted house ; cleaned water tank and machinery.

May 21, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

Pile Driver No. 9.— The force of the Department repaired ways, hatches, house, deck, coal
bunkers, cleats, water tank, machinery, etc., calked deck and water tank, stripped and removed
old boiler and put up and fitted new boiler (upright) with pipes, fittings, etc.; put on new smoke
stack.

March 25, 18S7. —Police Department inspected boiler.

December 1 to 15, 1886.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer’'s order No.
I upright boiler (new).

December 27 to 31, 1886.— McNab & Harlin Manufacturing Co.,
12122, furnished 1 Utica Gauge No. 6.

October 8 to 15, 1886.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 11918,
labor and material to fit up wood cones.

April 28 to 30, 1887.— Pioneer Iron Works,
new smoke stack.

September 11, 1886.— PoliceDepartment inspected and condemned old boiler.

Pile Driver No. 10.—The force of the Department repaired ways, house, hatch, engines and
machinery; cleaned boiler and machinery; calked water tank and deck; removed old and put in
new grate bars.

May 21, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

Pile Driver No. 11.— The force of the Department repaired house, deck and machinery; packed
valves ; calked water tank and deck ; removed old and put in new grate bars.

April 12, 1887.— Police Department inspected boiler.

October 8 to 15, 1886.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer's Order No. 11918, furnished
labor and materials to fit up wood cones.

12016, furnished
under Treasurer’s Order No.
furnished

under Treasurer's Order No. 12246, furnished

Scow “ B.”—The force of the Department calked sides, ends and deck ; put new pieces in
deck ; painted and put fernoline on deck.

Scow “ C."—The force of the Department put stanchions under deck beams ;
palnted and covered deck with crude turpentine.

Scow “ D.”—The force of the Department calked sides, ends and deck ; painted and covered
deck with crude turpentine.

Scow “ E.”—The force of the Department cut out old side plank and replaced with new ; put
on wearing pieces, cleats, chocks, corner bands, plank shear, etc.; laid, repaired and calked deck ;
framed hatch coamings ; painted ; covered deck with crude turpentine.

Scow “ F.” (fitted up and used for carrying coal).—July 12, 1886.— Placed on pier at West
Fifty-seventh StreetYard. The force of the Department removed the old side plank, deck and
timbers ; put in new end logs, frame work, side plank, deck, 4 hackmatack knees, hatches, etc.;
calked all over; put on coal pockets ; covered deck with crude turpentine ; fastened iron work,
cleats, etc.; painted and lettered.

September 10, 1886.— Placed in the water.

Scow “Jim.”—The force of the Department repaired rails ; calked top, sides, etc.; now laid
up at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard, loaded with piles and timber for use of General Repairs.

Scow “ May.”"— Laid up at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard ; sunk and worthless.

Scow “ Willie.”— The force of the Department repaired wearing pieces, deck, comer bands';
fastened iron work ; calked deck, etc.

Diver’s Scow “ G.” —June 28, 1886.— Placed on Pier at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard. The
force of the Department put on new wearing pieces and rails; calked bottom, sides, end and deck ;
repaired doors, shutters, windows, sash, house, etc. ; put in glass ; painted and lettered, and made
and put on new hatch coamings.

July 12, 1886.— Placed in the water.

Scow “ Joe.”—The force of the Department broke up and removed the old material from
condemned scow “Joe,” in basin at West Fifty-seventh Street Yard.

Boring Machine “ Woodcock.” — The force of the Department cleaned engines and machinery,
and looked after boiler.

June 3, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

Small Boats. —The force of the Department calked, repaired and painted yawls, skiffs and
bateaux, and constructed and painted one 16-foot yaw! boat and five 15-foot yaw! boats, and broke
up seven old condemned yaw| boats.

The material used in building and repairing small boats was furnished by A. J. Murray, under
Treasurer's Orders Nos. 11923 and 11971, September 7, 1886.

calked sides ;

Miscellaneous.

Pier “ANorth River.

Under Treasurer’s Order No. 11997, a 15 horse-power boiler, to be known as boiler
No. 2, was placed in the building on Pier “ A,” with all the necessary appliances as railed for, by
the Babcock & Wilcox Company, in November, 1886, and the necessary steam fittings and connec-
tions were made ; put up sheet-iron partition for boiler room ; cemented floor; made, put up and
painted closet, steam-gauge board and coal box ; put up vise bench ; cleaned boiler and fittings ;
put number plates on boilers in accordance with orders from Police Department; pained and
fitted up.

December 18, 1886.— Police Departmentinspected new boiler No. 2.

December 21, 1886.— Police Department inspected'boiler No. 1.

November 15, 1886.— Patterson Brothers, under Treasurer's Order No. 12032, furnished 32
sheets best B galvanized iron, and on November 30, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12095 furnished
6 sheets.

December 27 to 31, 1886.—McNab & Harlin Manufacturing Company, under Treasurer's
Order No. 12122, furnished 1 brass marine clock, also furnished steam fittings under Treasurer's
Orders Nos. 10806, 10913, 11176, 11353, 11827 and 12070; returned on December 15, 1886.

Offices, etc.—Worked at doors, window sash, furniture, partition, railing, drawing boards,
pneumatic bells, fanlights, closets, chest of drawers, map case, press stand, shades, etc., covered
steam pipes with canvas and felting; varnished floor of the Engineer-in-Chief's office ; varnished
doors, etc. ; painted speaking tubes, closet, staff target, tide gauges, railings, etc. ; repaired win-
dows in winding stairway, storm windows, iron shutters, gates in hallway and fireproof room, door
in steam box, etc. ; put on outside window sashes; took down window awnings; made and put up
double doors on north side of shed for use of Police Boat “ Patrol's” crew; made, put up ana
painted iron pipe stands for holding boxes in fireproof room ; covered ventilators with canvas ;
painted roof of balcony and new iron work in trusses under roof of building; erected and took
down temporary platform on deck of pier for use of auctioneer ; made trestles for use of painter
and pipe-fitter; made, put up and painted closet in fireproof room ; fitted and put up one 25-foot
flag-staff on building and automatic tide gauge at pier ; shifted radiator in room No. 14 ; made
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trestles for drawing boards, cleaned out pipes in water-closet; cleaned, painted and varnished
furniture.
_ October 25, 1886.— Annin & Co.,
ensign.
October 30 to 31, 1886.—John F. Walsh, under Treasurer’s Order No.
25-foot flagstaff ana gilt ball.
September 7 to 15, 1886.— McNab & Harlin Manufacturing Co., under Treasurer’'s Order No-
11974, furnished 15 feet 10 inches galvanized pipe and one flange 10" x 16" for automatic tide
gauge.
September 18 to 30, 1886.—John Merry *& Co., under Treasurer's Order No.
dipped galvanized iron work for automatic tide gauge.
March 12 to 15, 1887.—McNab & Harlin Manufacturing Co., under Treasurer’'s Ojder No.
12205, furnished 2 number plates for boilers.
April 28 to 30, 1887.—John W. Sullivan, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12099, furnished 2
cast-iron fenders for deck.

under Treasurer’s Order No. 12049, furnished 1 American

12048, furnished 1

11973, double

East Seventeenth Street Yard.
Repaired steam pipe and machinery; cleaned boilers, etc., and overhauled and fitted guys,,
of hoisting derrick.
June 17, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler.

etc.,

Sections north of West Twenty-third Street.

Repaired tool house at Pier, new 57, North’ river ; made straight-edges and beetles for use of

masons at West Thirty-second Street Section.

Cromwell's Creek.
Repaired tide-gauge houses.
Surveyors.
Made and painted tide-gauge staffs and sight staffs.

M aterial receivedfor new Deck Scows.

January 12, 1887.—C. & R. Poillon furnished, under Treasurer's Order No. 12156, 36 hack-
matack knees.

January 25, 1887.— William B. Ferguson & Son, under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12161, furnished
6,000 i-inch deck plugs, 2,000 i-inch Y. P. wedges, and 1,000 1" x 16" locust trenails.

January 28, 1887.— Patterson Brothers, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12162 furnished 2 000
pounds wrought dock spikes, and 2,000 pounds galvanized dock spikes, 8" x i"

February 8, 1887.— Gaskell, Greenlie & Co., under Treasurer's Order No 12159, furnished
6,612 pounds galvanized iron work, 6,248 pounds iron work, 599 pounds composition sleeve nuts
255 pounds cast-iron washers, 6 gypsy winches, and 2,902 pounds cast-iron cleats.

February 8, 1887.—A.V. Abbott, under Treasurer’s Order No. 12180, furnished machine for
testing and preparing four specimens of iron work.

April 18, 1887.— Gaskell, Greenlie & Co., under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12220, furnished (221
pounds) 12 cast-iron caps.

A. J. Murray, under Treasurer's Order No. 12150, has delivered 198 pieces (out of the 1 076.
ordered) of gel!ow pine, and under Treasurer’'s Order No. 12151, delivered 61 pieces of white oak
out of the 78 pieces ordered.

W est Fifty-seventh Street Yard.

Repaired, caulked, and put up water tank used for cement tests made at yard ; repaired and
put up automatic tide gauge ; scraped and painted iron screens used by divers in locating piles -
made and painted profile frame for setting blocks ; made and painted tide gauge staffs for general”
use ; made, put up and painted closet in office of General Repairs ; put in new iron sink bowl for
wash-basin in office of Floating Property ; made and lettered new bulletin board for high-water
notices ; made capstan bars, pike poles, fenders, etc., for general use ; fitted up benches in carpen-
ter shops ; repaired pipe, tools, metal pumps, lamps, etc., for use of Floating Property 1 lettered
patterns ; steam was kept up in boiler of pipe shop until April 5, 1887, for the purpose of keepine
water pipe on pier from freezing ; repaired the steam fittings and put number plate on boiler in
accordance with orders from Police Department.

Slutted all the floating property from the north to south side of pier and back to make room
for dredging.

Inspected and shifted new yellow pine, white oak and iron work for proposed new deck scows.

Pumped out scows and pile drivers, and looked after floating property laid up.

December 18, 1886.— Police Department inspected boiler in pipe shop.

Contracts under which Work was done during the Year.

Under
Plan-  Plan Contract for. Work Work
Begun. Finished.
Con.No. Con. No.
Agreement to dredge under new
plan for improvement of water
front. Union Dredging Co., con
tractor May 9, x88X May , x88 In progress.
Granite Nov. 23,1886 Mar. 12, 1887 progress.
New Pier and approach, West For- ’ In progress
I deth street. North river.. Nov. 16, 1886 Nov. 17, x886  In progress.
Repairs to Pier, old 54, North river, Jan Jan. 17,1887  April 30, 1887
Dredging North and East rivers... Dec. 22, 1385 :
Mar. 24,1887 Mar. 29, 1887
! Jan. 28,1887 Mar. 28, 1887
North
- Dec. 97, 1886
Pier 4 (east side), East river. Feb. 19,1887
E::[g E:it mgr Jan. 25,1887 Mar. 9,1887
3 Dec. 29,1886 i
Bulkhead between April 21,1887
East river..... Mar. 2,1887 M 2,1887
Bulkhead between ' ar. 2188
East river.. Feb. 4,1887 Feb. xx, 1887
East Fifth street. East river. Feb. 15.1887 il o7,
Repairs to Pier at West Nineteenth April 97,1887
street, North river.. Dec. 23, x886 Dec. 97, x886 Jan. 3x, 1887
Repairs and painting shed on Pier, -
new 43, North river.. . 3%, 1887  April t, 1887
Repairs to bulkhead between Piers pril t In progress.
18 and 19, East river. Jan. xo, 1887 Jan. x8, 1887
Repairs to_Pier at Bogart street, ! Feb. 32, 1887
Jan. 61887 Jan. 18,4887 Feb. x2,1887
Dredging on the North river. Jan. xo, 1887 ' N
Work done as follows: In progress.
West Thirteenth street (north
side), North river.. Mar. 8,1887
West  Fourteenth street (half ! Mar. x8,1867
slip, south side), North river Feb. 28,1887 M 1887
West Fourteenth street (half ! ar. ax, 188
slip, north side) North river, Mar. 92,1887 April 14, 1887
West ' Fifteenth ~ street. North . prit 14,
Mar. 23,1887  In progress.
West Sixteenth street, North ar prog
river.... Apr. xx, 1887 In progress.
West Twenty-first street, North
river Apr. 14,1887  In progress.
Mar. 31, 1887  In progress.
West Fifty-seventh street. North
rive Jan. 8,887 Mar. 23,1887
Repairs T Pier ai West One Hun-
dred and Fifty-second street,
North river........ Mar. 16,1887  In progress.
Repairing, altering and _extending
Pier at West Thirty-fourth
street, North river Feb. is, 1887 Feb. X7,1887 |
Building Pier, new 32, East river. ) " progress
Repairing bulkhead foot of Pike) Mar. 14,1887 Mar. 15,1887  In progress.
slip, East river.. )
Repairing, widening and extendlng
Pier at East y-seventh
street, East river.. Mar. 14,1887 Mar. ax, 1887 In progress.
Building crib-bulkhead. West Sev- prog
enty-seventh to West Seventy-
eighth street, North river...... Apr. 61887 April 15,1887 In progress.
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Forms of Contracts and Specifications Submitted to the Board of Docks

Engineer's Order.— For granite for bulkhead wall.
as Contract No. 230.

Submitted September 22,1886; advertised

Secretary’s Order No. 5818.— For dredging at Pier, old 29, N. R .; at Pier, new 47, N. R .; at
Pier at West Fifty-eighth street, N. R .; at Pier 4 (east side), E. R .; at Pier 5, E. R .; at Pier 6,
E. R .; at bulkhead between Piers 4 and 5, E. R .; at bulkhead between Piers5 and 6, E. R .; and
at Pier at East Fifth street, E. R. Submitted September 28, 1886; advertised as Contract
No. 233.

Secretary’s Order No. 5767.— For repairing Pier at West Nineteenth street, N. R. Submitted
October is, 1886 ; advertised as Contract No. 234.

Secretary’s Order No. 5767.— For rep: g Pier, old 54, N. R. Submitted October 11, 1886;

advertised as Contract No. 232.

Secretary’s Order No. 5873.— For repairing the bulkhead between Piers 18 and 19, E. R.
Submitted October 20, 1886; advertised as Contract No. 236.

Secretary’s Order No. 5873.— For repairing the Pier near the foot of Bogart street, N. R.
Submitted October 20, 1886 ; advertised as Contract No. 237.

Secretary’s Order No. 5873.— For painting the shed on Pier, new 43, N. R., and for repairing
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Secretary’'s Order No. 5819.— For dredging; the slips from the north side of West Thirteenth
street, N. R., to the centre of the slip between West Twenty-second street and West Twenty-third
streets, N. R., exclusive of the ferry slip at the foot of West Fourteenth street, and for dredging
at West Fifty-seventh street, N. R. Submitted November 18,1886 ; advertised as Contract No. 238.

Secretary’s Order No. 3551.— For removing the old pier and for building a new pier at the
foot of West Fortieth street, N. R. Originally submitted, including dredging, on September 27,
1884, when it was laid on the table for want of funds. Resubmitted October 6, 1886, excluding the
dredging, and advertised as Contract No. 231.

Secretary’s Order No. 4115.—For repairing and extending Pier at West Thirty-fourth street,
N. R. Submitted December 13, 1886 ; advertised as Contract No. 240.

and for building Pier, new 32,
Submitted

Secretary’s Order No. 5965.— For removing Pier, old 41, E. R.,
E. R., and approach on the site thereof, and for repairing the crib-bulkhead thereat.
January 27, 1887 ; advertised as Contract No. 241.

Secretary’s Order No. 6073.— For building crib-bulkhead from West Seventy-seventh to West
Seventy-eighth street, N- R. Submitted February 18, 1887 ; advertised as Contract No. 243.

Engineer’s Order.— For raising boat landing and completing approach to Pier “ A,” N. R.
Submitted April 1, 1887.

Secretary’s Orders Nos. 6355 and 6356.— For dredging west side of Pier 19, E. R., east side
Pier 43, E. R., west side Pier 44, E. R., and bulkhead between Piers 43 and 44, E. R. Submitted

its metal work. Submitted October 20, 1886; advertised as Contract No. 235. April 0, 1887 ; advertised as Contract No. 244.
Secretary’s Order No. 5917.— For repairing the pier at West One Hundred and Fifty-second Secretary’s Order No. 6364.— For dumping board at East Eightieth street, E. R. Submitted
street, N. R. Submitted November 15, 1886 ; advertised as Contract No. 239. April 14, 1887 ; advertised as Contract No. 245.
Statement o f Dredging done during the Year ending April 30, 1887, by the Department of Docks.
Mud.  Crib. poopth
Cubic ~ Cubic Miscellaneous. \yo ) Authorization When Begun.
Yards. Yards Water,
Pier, old 29, North river, south side Mar., 10,387 Resolution of Board, Oct. 6, X Union Dredging Co. Mar. 34, 1887 Mar.
. . Secretary’s Order No. 5988... Nov. 30, 1886 Nov.
Canal street dump.... 3 X,is8 Treasurer's Order No. 13206 Secretary's Order No. 6323, Mar. 4, 1887 Mar.
Pier, new 46, North river, north side. eb., 4.733 Treasurer's Order No. 13183 Secretary’s Order No. 6x69. Feb. 7,887 Feb.
Bulkhead between Piers, new 46 and 47, North X
river.. Sept, Treasurer's Order No.120x1 Secretary’s Order No. 5822 Sept 39,1886  Sept.
Jan., 4569
Pier, new 47, North river. Feb. n 439 Contract No. 233.. . Resolution of Board, Oct. 6, X Jan. 38,1887 Mar.
Mar., 2,316
Dumping-board, West Twelfth street, North river Apr., 1,176 Treasurer's Order No. 12224 Secretary’s Order No. 6273... Mar. 31,1887 Apr.
West Thirteenth street Pier, North river, north
ide. Mar. 11,810 Contract No. 338.. Resolution of Board, Sept. 24, Mar. 8,1887 Mar.
West Fourteenth street, North river, half slip
south Mar., +3.558 Contract No. Feb. 28,1887 Mar.
West Fourteenth street. North river, half slip ~ Mar., x.701 Contract No. Mar. as, 1887 Apr.
Apr., *3,965
(Tern
West Fifteenth street Pier, North river... Mar., s70 Contract No. 338, Mar. 331887 { SU
pr. 2,3x8 (Apr.
West Sixteenthstreet Pier, North river... 3.038 Contract No. 238.
Dump board. West Nineteenth street, North .
river Sept., Treasurer's OrderNo. i Secretary's Order No. 5738............ Sept. 13, X880
West Twenty-first street Pier, North river........ Apr., Contract No. 338 Resolution of Board, Sept. 24, 1886. Apr. 14,1887
West Twenty-second street Pier, North river. | Aparr Contract No. 338. Mar. 31, 1887
West Thmy second street, section bulkheadj Nov., 14,526 Treasurer's Orders Oct 32,1885 Nov. x, 1886
wa ( Mar., 10,641 Treasurer's Orders. w33, Mar. 10,1887
Pier, new 61, North river. T f *6,837 *5 Treasurer’s Orders " Mar. x6, ** Apr. 2X 1887
West Thirty-fourth street Pier, North river.. j fc ! '? 7743 } 3605 35and30 Contract No. 240. - Dec. 15, * John Gillies... Mar.
Ap? 3 g}; Treasurer's Order No.12326 Secretary's Order No. 6275.... Union DredgingCo  Mar. 31, 1887
West Fortieth street, North river j g‘e’;’ . 32.374;4 Treasurer's Orders. Resolution of Board, Oct 6, 1886.. Nov. x, 1886
July. 2,90 Secretary’s Order No. 6536, f 13, 1886
{ Mar., *.34 Secretary’s Order No. 637 € 30 s
Jan., 9,564 .
West Fifty-seventh street Pier, North river..  Feb., 24,934 xoand 15 Contract No. 338. Resolution of Board, Sept. 24, 1886 Jan.  8,1887
Mar., 21,823
West Fifty-eighth street Pier, Northriver ... D" R Contract No. 333. voeg o Dec. 37, 1886
Crib-bulkhead, ~West Seventy-seventh and -
Seventy-eighth streets, North river. Apr., Contract No. 243. - Feb. 23,1887 William P.Kelly... Apr. 15,1887
Kkhead south of West Seventy-ninth street, . .
July, 3,963 Treasurer's Order No. 1x941 Secretary's Order No. 5496. Union Dredging Co. s0, *886
July. 3.483 Treasurer’s Order No. 1x942 Secretary's Order No. 5496 m 19.1886
uly. Treasurer’s Order No. 1x943 Secretary’s Order No. 5496.... July 16.1886
Bulkhead between West One Hundred and] oo
Dec, s Treasurer’s Order No. 12109 Secretary’'s Order No. 6050..... Dec. 23.1886
Dec.,
Jan., Treasurer's Order No.xaixo Secretary’s Order No. 6050.. Dec. 34,1886 Feb. 3, 1887
Feb., 421
Pier 4, East river, east side... FM?E' i Contract No. 333. Resolution of Board, Oct 6, 1886., Feb. 19,1887 Mar. 8,1887
Bulkhead between Piers 4and 5, East river. Mar 758 Contract No. 233., = T6 L Mar. s, 1887 Mar. 3,1887
4.286
Pier 5, East river. 5.256 Contract No. 333, “ “ 6 ", Jan. 35,1887 Mar. 9,1887
3.399
Bulkhead between Piers 5and 6, East river.... Feb., 2956 Contract No. 333, *f 6 * Feb. 41887 Feb. xx, 1887
Dec., w447
Jan., *5,38i . o “ .
Pier 6, East river. Feb., Q2 Contract No. 233. 6, ¢ Dec. 39, 1886 Apr. ax, 1887
Miar 8
Apr., 646 )
Bulkhead between Piers 18 and 19, East river... Feb., 780 Treasurer’s Order No. 12192 Secretary’s Order No. 6x87... Feb. 23,1887 Feb. 33,1887
Pier at, East river, west side.... tx Treasurer's Order No.13012 Secretary's Order No. 5830. Oct. 9,1886 Nov. so, 1886
Pier 34, East river, east side and bulkhead.. ... | gecixt.. . 356 Treasurer's Order No. 120x3 Secretary's Order N 0.5821. Sept. 30, x886 Oct. 5,1886
Dump board. Pier 37. East river Sept., 43% 5 Treasurer’s Order No. x Secretary’s Order No. 574 Sept. 18,1886 Sept. 18,1886
Pier 37, Blastrriver, east side. 503 so Treasurer’s Order No. 1 Secretary's Order N0.5600 Aug. 16,1886 Aug. 17,1886
Pier 41, East river, or propos 576 25and 35 Treasurer’s Orders. Resolution of Board, Dec. x, 1886. Dec. 15, x886
4237 Treasurer’s Orders Dec. 151886 LN progress.
Pier 46, East river. f&tg Treasurer's Order No. Secretary’s Order No. 6091 Dec. 27,1886 Jan. 6,1887
Pier 48, East river, west side. 2245 Treasurer’s Order No. 13131 Secretary’s Order No. 6003. Jan  7,*887 Jan. x8,1887
Pier 55, East river, south side. 457 Treasurer’s Order No. 12x26 Secretary’s Order No. 6087. Jan. 19,1887
Bulkhead along Rivington street, East river.. 1035 Treasurer’s Order No. 13081 Secretary’s Order No. 598 Nov. 32,1886
Pier at East Fifth street. East river.... .| Mar, Contract No. 333. Resolution of Board, Oct 6,1886... Feb. 15,1887
Apr.,
Dump board at East Seventeenth street, East
river Treasurer’s Order NO.X1945 Secretary’s Order No. 5537 July 26,1886 July 38, 1886
Foot East Eighteenth street, East nver, Treasurer’s Order No. 12x70 Secretary’s Order No. 0147 Jan. 31,1887 1887
Dump board East Twenty-second street. East
Aug., 4.458 Treasurer's Order No. 1x967 Secretary's Order No. 5603... Aug. 3, X886 Aug. 7,1886
Bulkhead, East Thirtieth street, East Aug., Treasurer's Order No. 11960 Secretary’s Order No. 5569. Aug. 31886 Aug. 3, 1886
Pier, East Thirty-seventh street, East river. j\'ﬂ)é” Treasurer's Order No. 11961 Secretary’s Order No. 5570...... July 31, 1886 {ﬁt‘lg- g: ngg
Dump board. East Thirty-eighth street. East
Aug., 538 Treasurer's Order No. 1x964 Secretary’s Order No. 5603. Aug. 9,x886 Aug. 9,1886
Bulkhead, East Forty-second street, East river.. Rip-rap, 130... Treasurer’s Order No. **959 Secretary's Order No. 5571 July 30, x856 July 31,1886
Bulkhead, East Fifty-third sreet. East river...... 0/ Rip-rap, 176... Treasurer’s Order No. 11857 Secretary’s Order No. 5351, July 39,1886 July 30,1886
p.lIrl.gadrEast One Hundred and Sixth street,
Harlem river.. Aug., 94 Treasurer's Order No. 11972 Secretary’s Order No. 5640..... Aug. 13,1886 Aug. 14,1886
Dump board, East One Hundred and Tenth
street, Harlem river.. Aug/-, * 3w Treasurer’s Order No. 11965 Secretary’s Order No. 5601, Aug. 10,1886 Aug. xi, 1886
Foot East One Hundred and Fourteenth street,
Harlem river. eb., sand and stone. Treasurer's Order No. 13x73 Secretary's Order N0.6146........ Jan. 31,1887 Feb. 3, *887

501,676
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Statement of Dredging done during the Year ending April 30, 1887, by Lessees and Owners, by order or under Permit of the Board.
Depth of
Water Madi
at Authorisation. By Whom Performed. W hen Begun
Mean Low
Water.
North River. Feet.
Pier, old 27 . so under permit 13.1887
Pier, new 34, south side...... 351033 Under permit 1S, 1886
Pier, new 3! +5 Resolution of Boart 15.1887  In progress.
West Fourteenth street Ferry premises... 30 By order of Board.. 3, 1887 (Temporarily
g {suspended.
5110 OhdererorRoan 32,1886 Nov. aa, 1886
o nder permi 1886 .
Between West Forty-first and West Forty-second stree 13t0 30  Under per: ;56 1886 Seﬁtc 399&%
Pier at West Forty-ninth street.... 8to 15  Under permi 90,1836 Yov. to, 1886
Bulkhead between West Forty-ninth and West Fiftieth streets 7t0 13 Under permi 11,188 Nov. 12,1886
Half bulkhead west of Pier 27.......
Pier 27 . . £ 1
Bulkhead between Piers 27 and 28. . ¢ By order ofBoard.... Alleged owner: June to, 1886 Oct. 15,1886
Pier 28... 30
Halfbulkhead east of Pier 28. +5 J
pier ) 25 Under permit W.P.Clyde...... May 11, X856 g;‘*s";‘epr?d':;'y
Between Piers 39 and 40.......... to to 30 Screw Dock Company. May 10, 1886 May is, 1886
East Twenty-ninth street dump. *3 to 15 M. Goodwin 1May May ao, 1886
East Twenty-ninth street dump. 5 Under permit M i Apr. Apr. 11,1887
East Forty-ninth street dump X0 Under permi M. Goodwi Apr. Apr. is, 1887
Harlem River.
Bulkhead foot Second avenue. 3 O O Under permit Manhattan Railroad Company. Dec. Dec. 15,1886
Ferry slip south of High Bridge O O Under permit. Jan. Feb. 3, 1887
1Work tem-
One Hundred and Fifty-ninth street. 10 Under perm <poranly sus-
(pended.
Report of Stock on hand, PurchasedFabricatedreceived from Sections, and issued, at West I Issued to the following sections :
Fifty-seventh Street Yard, during the Year ending April 30, 1887. General Repairs... $1,666 727
Amount of Stock on hand May 1, 1886 $7,090 00~ Tweslt FAlfty-se\{tenth Street Yard 55 63
Purchased from May 1, 1886, to April 30, 1887 7,847 98 E°°t K °°°f“ S 45 47
Purchased (no bills) 276 70 Sas eventeen reet vard. 91 18%
Received from Section south 23d Street, N. R ......co..coooveomveeooreeereeeereeeeeeessee e ceeeeeesene 120 45 S“rt‘{eyo" e PR 288 ggo
Fabricated “ Tool account ” 63 48 P?grul)\n T\‘mR of Twenty-third street, N. 4'146 S o//:
Fabricated “ 8 Concrete Blocks” 2,64233 PR . 0
Concrete Block accoun i,49i 71
Total to be accounted for. $18,040 947
Total $8,581 17%
Issued to the following sections : Balance on hand April 30, 1887.... 9,459 77
Floating Property... $930 05& e $18,040 94#
Sections south of Twenty.third street, N. R 117 00

Statement of Granite on hand at East Seventeenth Street Yard, May 1, 1887.

Date OF

Returned

Contract or Treasurer's On Hand Issued to
Headers and Stretchers Cut. rdeb, N umber CTD””“' Or May i, 1886, O Works,
i reasurer’s . . a
Furnished Under. Order. Cubic Feet. ¢ i roc ey Cubic Feet.
Headers and Stretchers, cut.... .....j Treasurer's Order, NO 7.944- Oct 18,1874 3-77 377 $0 50 $16 38
8391 Nov. 7, 1879 5.3 15.3° 59tb 37 14
8.391. 34.60 34.60 54ft 18 97
8,800. 18.00 18.00 99
8,960. 903.90 586.24 317-66 85
Contract No. 25. %49-95 *49-95 111 166 6x
a5- “ g 116.00 116.00 111 128 89
Sept 30.1874 142.48 142.48 55 57 Cutting, after receipt, 91 cents per cubic foot additional.
55. 33-00 33.00 13 o7
Feb. 14,1877 62.56 6256 33 79
0! 1May 17,1879 | 31.87 31.87 30 39
i Mar. 26,1880 3,750.14 ,708.82 1,209.14 761 75
. - 12 Feb. 2 1581 884,63 X y 357 33
Coping, Treasurer'sOrder, Nov. 7,1879 81.60 sea07 oo 48 83
Contract No. 10: May 17, 94-9® - 4%0 48
“ 11 Mar. 36,1880 419-00 3588 364 34
12! Feb. 2,1881 7,566.64 7,566.64 6,791 06
Voussoirs, 5. Apr. 4, 1874 845.87 845.87 1,649 45
Spandrel and end stones, * 457-75 457-75 823 95
Corner endand key stones, 5a 442 265.30  Cutting, after receipt, $1.41 per cubic foot additional.
12,931.22
Work Done by Alleged Owners and Lessees of Piers and Others, bv Order or Pier 3, N. R.
Under Permit of the Board of Docks, and Under the Supervision of the

Engineer-in-Chief.
on the north

Castle Garden Pier, at Battery, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5261.— Repairs were made to landing, by the N.Y., L. E. and Western
Railway Co., under permit of the Board. Begun May 3 and finished May 6, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6249.— Thorough repairs to platform and shed were made in accordance
with plans and specifications submitted, by Commissioners of Emigration, under permit of the
Board. Begun March 10 and finished April 29, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6440.— 3 oak piles were driven about 20 feet from Castle Garden wharf,
by Commissioners of Emigration, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished April 29, 1887.

river.

Pier, new I, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5411.—4 oak spring fender piles on the north side, and 2 on the south
side, were driven and chocked by the New York Central and Hudson River Railroad Company, by
order of the Board. Begun June 19 and finished June 21, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5669.— On the north side of Pier 2 oak fender piles were driven and
fastened, and others repaired; chocks were put on, backing log on outer northerly corner was
repaired, and 4 new oak piles driven in group, by Iron Steamboat Company, by order of the
Board. Begun November 30 and finished December 17, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5442 — The asphalt pavement on the surface of the pier was repaired by
the Iron Steamboat Company, by order of the Board. Begun and finished December 19, 1886.

Pier 1, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5384.— 1 oak spring pile was driven and fastened, and others refastened
with chain on outer northerly corner, by Pennsylvania Railroad Company, under permit of the
Board. Begun May 20 and finished May 25, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6264.— Repairing of damage done to sheathing, at outer end of pier, by
the tug “ America,” by Pennsylvania Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun Marcn
18 and finished March 26, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers 2 and 3, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5698.— Bulkhead platform between the piers was extended, and tempo-
rary shed was built on same by the Lehigh Valley Railroad Company, under permit of the Board.
Begun September 4 and finished December 6, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5972.— The pavement at entrance was repaired by the Lehigh Valley
nglgoad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun November | and finished November 9,

Secretary’s Order No. 5415.— The deck was resheathed from bulkhead line to entrance to shed
with 4-inch spruce plank by F. Alexander & Sons, under permit of the Board. Begun June | and
finished June 9, 1886.

Pier 6, N .R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6342.— Spring piles driven and backing log at outer end of pier repaired
by F. R. Bonnell, under permit of the Board. Begun April 11 and finished April 13, 1887.

Bulkhead at Rector street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6008.— Sewer is being extended through the bulkhead by Department of
Public Works, under permit of the Board. Begun December 6, 1886; in progress.

Pier 9, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6229.— Repairs are being made by the Cromwell Steamship Company,,
under permit of the Board. Begun March 21, 1887 ; in progress.

Secretary’s Order No. 6327.— Sheds are being erected on Pier 9 and platform between Piers 8
and 9, North River, bythe Cromwell Steamship Line, under permit of the Board. Begun March

| 29, 1887 ; in progress.

Secretary’s Order No. 6304.—-Driving of about 30 bearing piles within existing lines at inner
end of pier by Cromwell Steamship Line, under permit of the Board. Begun March io and finished
April 6, 1887. 6 9

Secretary’s Order No. 6307.— Damage done by fire repaired by William Cruikshank, under
permit of the Board. Begun April 11 and finished April 30, 1887.

Pier 11, N .R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5298.— 10 bearing piles and 10 spring piles were driven, chocked and
fastened, rangers repaired and new 5-inch yellow pine deck puton by Metropolitan Steamship
Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 24 and finished May 20, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6400.— 8 oak piles replaced and 4 bearing piles driven by Metropolitan
Steamship Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 18 and finished April 26, 1807.

Piers 12, 13, 14 and 15, N .R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5125.— Making necessary repairs to ferry racks, longitudinal fendering,
caps repaired, chocks put on, confined to existing lines by Philadelphia and Reading Railroad
Company, to whom permit was granted. Begun March 15 and finished November 20, 1886.

Pier 16, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6003.— About 12 fender piles placed and driven within existing lines by
Pennsylvania Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun November 25 and finished
December 5, 1886.
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Pier 18, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5006.— Repairs to north side of pier are being made by alleged owners,
by order of tne Board. Begun October 16, 1886 ; in progress.

Secretary's Order No. 6207. —Alterations to the shed on pier are being made by John H.
Starin, under permit of the Board. Begun April 16, 1887 ; in progress.

Bulkhead Platform between Piers 21 and 23, N. It.

Secretary’s Order No.5615.— Il oak spring piles driven and fastened in front of bulkhead by
lessees, by order of the Board. Begun September 13 and finished September 15, 1886.

Approach to Pier, old 23, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5343.— Sheathing on deck of approach was repaired by Department of
Public Works jointly with lessee, by order of the Board. Begun May 11 and finished May 17,
1886.

Pier, old 23, N .R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6332.— Repairing damage to outer northerly comer of pier by Buck &
Styles, under permit of the Board. Begun March 30 and finished April 5, 1887.

Pier,old 24, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5998.— Removed and replaced old piles with new ones on outer north
corner, by New Brunswick, Amboy & New York Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board.
Begun March 30 and finished Aprils, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6363.— The sheathing on deck.was repaired by owners of north half and
lessees of south half, by order of the Board. Begun April 21 and finished April 28, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6426.— Movable platform erected on wooden horses on south side of pier
by Glascoe Ice Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 27 and finished April 29, 1087.

Ferry foot of Barclay Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No.5947.— 10 oak piles were driven and fastened on north rack by the
Hoboken Land and Improvement Company, under permit of the Board. Begun November 4 and
finished November 8, 1886.

Piers, old 25 and 27, N.R,

Secretary’s Order No. 6129.— Repairs were made to the piers and to the bulkhead between,
in accordance with specifications submitted by New York Central & Hudson River Railroad
Company, under permit of the Board. Begun January 17 and finished February 19, 1887.

Pier, old 27 (south side), N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5221.— 9 spring piles and 5 bearing piles were driven and repairs to
sheathing, side caps, etc., made by New York & Charleston Steamship Company, under permit of
the Board. Begun April 19 and finished July 30, 1886.

* Pier, old 28, N .R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5456.— The platform on the north side of the pier was extended and
shedded over by the Old Colony Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board. Begun June 17
and finished September 25, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5721.— 12 oak spring piles replaced on the outer southerly corner of the
pier by the Old Colony Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board. Begun September 13
and finished September 15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6299.— 7 spring piles driven on north side and 6 spring piles on south
side by the Old Colony Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board. Begun March 30 and
finished March 24, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 5843.— Sewer outlet extended by the Old Colony Steamboat Company,
under permit of the Board. Begun March 25 and finished April 11, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers, old 28 and 29, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6151.— A platform on piles in front of the bulkhead was built by the Old
Colony Steamboat Company, and a shed is being, built thereon, under permit of the Board. Begun
February 18, 1887 ; work in progress.

Secretary’s Order No. 6152.— A platform on piles in front of the bulkhead was built by the
Stonington Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board. Begun February 28 and finished
March 30, 1887.

Pier, old 29, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5309.— Deck of pier and small bulkhead adjoining sheathed by Provi"
dence Line, under permit of the Board. Begun April 26 and finished May 31, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6190.— 2 white oak spring piles on outer north comer of pier replaced
by New York, Lake Erie and Western Railway Company, under permit of the Board. Begun Feb-
ruary 14 and finished February 17, 1887.

Secretary's Order No. 6297.— The platform adjoining the south side of the pier was extended
by the Providence and Stonington Steamship Company, under permit of the Board. Begun March
10 and finished March 24, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6315.— 6 new oak fender piles replaced and fastened by'Providence Line,
under permit of the Board. Begun March 28 and finished March 29, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6388.— 6 white oak fender piles were driven by the Providence Line,
under permit of the Board. Begun April 11 and finished April 12, 1887.

Pavonia Ferry.

Secretary’s Order No. 5264.— The ferry rack was repaired by the New York, Lake Erie and
Western Railway Company, under permit of the Board. Begun May 17 and finished May 27, 1886.

Foot o f Chambers Street, N.R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5924.— Railroad tracks were laid on the new-made land by the Cham-
bers and Grand Street Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun December 16, 1886,
and finished January 22, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 5937.— Railroad tracks were laid on the new-made land by the Houston,
West Street and Pavonia Ferry Company, under permit of the Board. Begun December 16, 1886,
and finished January 22, 1887.

Piers, new 20 and 21, N.R.

Secretary's Order iJo. 5867.— Necessary repairs, consisting of new armature plates and refas-
tening of fenders, were made by New York, Lake Erie & Western Railway Company, by order
of the Board. Begun October 20 and finished December 18, 1886.

Pier, new 21, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6343.— Spring piles on the northwest comer of the pier were fastened by
the New York, Lake Erie & Western Railroad Company, by order of the Board. Begun and fin-
ished April 1, 1887.

Pier, old 33, N. R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 4449.— An extension on piles on the southerly side of the pier at itsinner
end was constructed, by Providence and Stonington steamship Company, under permit of the Board.
Begun June 11, 1885 ; all finished but erection of shed.

Secretary’s Order No. 4778.— The sheathing was repaired by the New York, West Shore and
~Buffalo Railway Company, by order of the Board. Begun February 16, 1886 ; suspended.

Secretary’s Order No.4610.— 9 feet of the old backing log on the south side of tne pier, close to
the outer end of shed, was cut away by the Catskill Evening Line, under permit of the Board.
Begun and finished July I, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5842. Repairs made by New York Central and Hudson River Rail-
road Company, lessees of West Shore and Buffalo Railroad Company, by order of the Board.
Begun October 12 and finished October 16, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5187.— Damage done to pier by a ferryboat of the New York, West
Shore and Buffalo Railroad Company repaired by the New York Central and Hudson River Rail-
road Company, lessees of said West Shore and Buffalo Railroad Company, by order of the Board.
Begun March 26 and finished June 5, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No.5412.— Door on outer end of pier repaired by Catskill Evening Line,
by order of the Board. Begun and finished June 7, 1886.

Bulkhead south side ofPier, old 34, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5660.— The pavement in front of bulkhead was repaired by the New
York West Shore and Buffalo Railroad Company, by order of the Board. Begun and finished
September 2, 1886.
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Pier, old 34, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5529.— 2 spring piles and 2 bearing piles were driven, chocked and
fastened ; and 2 bearing piles were replaced on the south side of the pier by the lessees, by order
of the Board. Begun July 16 and finished July 17, 1886. > ,

Secretary’s Order No. 5666.— The sheatning on the deck was repaired with 3-inch spruce
by New York, West Shore and Buffalo Railroad Company, by order of tne Board. Begun August
23 and finished August 27, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6203.—The backing log was repaired, new fender and bearing piles
driven, bid stumps of piles pulled, and sheathing on deck repaired, all on the south side of the pier,
by New York Central and Hudson River Railroad Company, by order of the Board. Begun March
30 and finished April 11, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6333.— Damage done to northerly side by a boat of the West Shore Rail-
road Company was repaired by lessees, by order of the Board. Begun April 4 and finished April
7, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers, old 34 and 35, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5307.—The pavement was repaired by alleged owner, by order of the
Board. Begun May 13 and finished May 20, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers, old 35 and 36, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5993.—The pavement in front of the northerly half of bulkhead was
repaired by Louisiana and Texas Railroad and Steamship Company, by order of the Board. Begun
November 18, 1886, and finished April, 1887.

Bulkhead Platform south ofPier, old 36, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6216.— Sheathing on deck repaired by Louisiana and Texas Railroad
and Steamship Company, by order of the Board. Begun April 13 and finished April 19, 1887.

Pier, new 27,N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5144.— Two partitions built of wood covered with tin, with openings 46
feet wide by 15 feet 5 inches high, provided with steel rolling shutters, were erected across the pier,
one about 180 feet from the outer end and the other about 368 feet from the outer end, by the
Pennsylvania Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 4 and finished Novem-
ber 13, 1886.

Piers, new 27 and 28, N. R.

Secretary’s Order 6021.— The longitudinal fendering was renewed with 7" x 10" white oak by
the Pennsylvania Railroad Company, by order of the Board. Begun December 13 and finished
December 17, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers, new 27 and 28, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5080.— A shed on the bulkhead between piers was built by the Pennsyl-
vania Railroad Company under permit of the Board, in accordance with plans and specifications
approved by the Board. Begun March 12 and finished November 13, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5951.— The bulkhead was partly paved by the Pennsylvania Railroad
Company, under permit of the Board. Begun October 25, 1886 ; in progress.

Pier, old39, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6330.—Pier extended by A. Van Santvoord, under permit of the Board.
Begun April 14 and finished April 29, 1887.

Bulkhead north ofPier, old 39, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6160.— 2 old oak fender piles were pulled, 2 new ones driven in place
thereof and about 30 feet of ribbon piece was repaired by Pennsylvania Railroad Company, by
order of the Board. Begun January 28 finished February :, 1887.

Ferry at Desbrosses Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order N0.3323.— Ferry-rack and piling repaired by Pennsylvania Railroad Com-
pany, under permit of the Board. Begun April 30 and finished May 15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6114.— Approaches, capping, string-pieces and planking of bulkhead
platform repaired by Pennsylvania Railroad Company, under permit bf the Board. Begun Decem-
ber 6, 1886, and finished January 18, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6272.— Platform on north side repaired by splicing side cap, driving,
bearing and fender piles, etc., by Pennsylvania Railroad Company, by order of the Board. Begun
March 28 and finished April I, 1887.

Piers, old 40 and 41, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6337.— Sheathing patched and pavement repaired by People’s Line of
steamers, under permit of the Board. Begun March 30 and finished April 26, 1887.

Pier, old41, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5663.— Flagging raised in front of pier west of telegraph pole, by Albany
Evening line, under permit of the Board. Begun August 23 and finished August 27, 1886.

Pier, new 35, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5921.— 7 fender piles were driven on southwest corner of pier, by Ocean
Steamship Company, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished November 2, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 6431.— A new pier is being built on the site of Pier, new 35, North river,
by the Ocean Steamship Company, under resolution of the Board of June 6, 1883. Begun April 4,
1087 ; in progress.
Bulkhead at Pier, new 37, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5530.— Shed from the middle of the bulkhead between Piers, new 36 and
37, to middle of the bulkhead between Piers, new 37 and 38, North river, was nearly completed
(before the fire on Pier, new 37, North river, February 28, 1887), by C. P. Huntington, lessee, under
permit of the Board. Begun September 13, 1886; said shed was built in accordance with plans
and specifications approved by the Board.

Secretary’s Order No. 6086.— Iron chocks and bits were connected to the coping inside of the
new iron shed, by Morgan’s Louisiana and Texas Railroad and Steamship Company, under permit
of the Board. Begun December 6, 1886, and finished February 27, 1887.

Pier, new 40, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6250.— Four iron mooring bits are being placed on the south side of the
pier by Messrs. Vernon H. Brown & Co., under permit of the Board. Begun April 14, 1887 ; in
progress.

Secretary’s Order No. 6305.— A piece of horizontal fender on south side of pier replaced, by
Cunard Steamship Company, byorderof the Board. Begun April 13 and finished April 20, 1887.

Pier, new 41, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No.5515.— Iron mooring posts on north side, outer end of pier, replaced by
State Line of steamboats, by order of the Board. Begun July 7 and finished July 13, 1880.

Bulkhead at Pier, new 41 N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5967.— A shed extending from half-way between Piers 40and 41 to half-
way between Piers 41 and 42 is being erected by the Delaware, Lackawanna and Western Railroad
Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 14, 1887 ; in progress.

Slip between Piers, new 41 and42, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No0.5514.— Sunken canal boat, “ A.Roberts,” was raised and towed to
Hoboken, N.J., by consignees Berwin, White & Co., by order of the Board. Begun July 2 and
finished July 3, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5646.— Sunken canal boat, “ May Queen,’’ was raised and towed tb Jersey
flats by alleged owners, by order of the Board. Begun August 17 and finished September 3, 1886.

Pier, new 42, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5414—Alterations in sides of shed on the pier to conform to the hatches
of the steamers are being made by the Compagnie Generale Transatlantique under permit of the
Board. Begun June 6, 1886 ; this work is in progress.

Pier, new 43, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5265.— Two doorways were cut on the south side of the pier, one 11 feet
6 inohes wide, about 153 feet west of the bulkhead wall, and the other about 13 feet 6 inches wide,
about 81 feet east of the outer end of the pier. Both doorways were fitted with hanging doors and
covered with galvanized iron, and the side posts were protected with angle iron. A water meter
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was put in 9 feet west of the inshore face of the shed and connected with the water main, all by the
Anchor Line Steamship Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 22 and finished Sep-
tember 9, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5281.— Damage to shed repaired and wire rope fastenings of 4 spruce
fender piles replaced by National Line of Steamers, by order of the Board. Begun April 26 and
finished May 1, 188

Secretary’ s Order No. 5953.—Changes made in office on north side of pier, and portable platform
erected as per plans submitted by lessee, under permit of the Board. Begun November 1 and
finished November 9, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6172.— A telegraph instrument placed in the office on the soutli side of
pier, by Police Department, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished January 24, 1887.

Christopher Street Ferry and Pier, new 44, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5498.— The south ferry rack was repaired by driving 12 new oak piles,
and putting a few new pieces of oak plank in the upper waling piece ; in the centre a few new
pieces of oak plank were put in and 33 oak piles driven ; the north ferry rack was entirely rebuilt,
72 oak piles being driven, and new sheathing and waling pieces put in throughout; the south-
west comer of Pier, new 44, North river, was cut off on a diagonal line 17 feet in length ; same
built up with yellow pine timber and new iron corner bands put on. All by the Hoboken Land and
Ilrcr;p{gggment Company, under permit of the Board. Begun July 24 and finished September

Bulkhead between Piers, new 44 and 45, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5772.—Backing log replaced by Oceanic Steam Navigation Company,

by order of the Board. Begun October 12 and finished October 18, 1886.
Bulkhead north op Pier, new 45, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5863.— Backing log repaired by Oceanic Steam Navigation Company, by

order of the Board. Begun October 12 and finished October 18, 1886.
Pier, new 46, N R .

Secretary’s Order No. 6436.— Water pipes altered and water meter placed on the pier by the
Southern Pacific Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 29 and finished April 30*
Pier, new 47, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6023.— Repairs, including new armature plates, 3 new oak fender piles
and 6 new bearing piles, and patching and chocking, were made by Quebec Steamship Company,
by order of the Board. Begun December 8, and finished December 28, 1886.

Bulkhead north ofPier, old 54, N R .

Secretary’s Order No. 5832.—Surface of bulkhead repaired by alleged owners, by order of the
Board. Begun and finished October 12, 1886.

Bulkhead south ofand adjoining Pier at Bethune Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 59*6*— Damage done by steamer “ Gulf Stream,” repaired by T. Decker
& Co., by order of the Board. Begun October 20 and finished October 22, 1886.

Pier at Horatio Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5451— Temporary ice bridge (on movable horses) was erected on outer
end of pier, hy Consumers’ Ice Company, under permit of the Board. Begun June 3 and finished
June 4,

Bulkhead between Bogart and Bloomfield Streets, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5746.— Dumping board erected by J.A. Bowker, under permit of the

Board. Begun September 16 and finished September 18, 1886.
Bulkhead north of Thirteenth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5016.— About 120 feet of bulkhead north of pier rebuilt from low water

up, by alleged owners, by order of the Board. Begun April 12 and finished May 17, 1886.
Bulkhead between Thirteenth and Fourteenth Streets, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6319.— Ice platform erected on northerly half by English & Best, under

permit of the Board. Begun April 26 and finished April 28, 1887.
Ferry at West Fourteenth Street, N .R.
Secretary’s Order No. 4073.—New ferry premises at foot of West Fourteenth street, N. R.

were built by Hoboken Land and Improvement Company, under permit of the Board. Begun on
or about December 31, 1884, and finished and first used May 3, 1886
Secretary’s Order No. 5870.— Ferry racks extended by Hoboken Land and Improvement

Company, under permit of the Board. Begun October 12 and finished October 27, 1886.

Bulkhead south side o fFifteenth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6320.—Half round oak fenders were put on and 4 spring piles driven
and fastened, by Glascoe Ice Company, under permit of the Board. Begun March 24. and finished
April 29, 1887.

Bulkhead between Fifteenth and Sixteenth Streets, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5404.— Repaired by alleged owner, by order of the Board. Begun

August 2 and finished August 18, 1886.

Bulkhead at Twenty-first Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5661— A cast-iron pipe through southeast comer of bulkhead was
removed by Lumber Auction Company, under permit of the Board. Begun August 31 and finished
September’3, 1886.

Pier at Twenty-first Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5377.—A %angway was cut by lessee, under permit of the Board.
Begun May 19 and finished May 22, 18
Secretary’s Order No. 5346.— Deck and sheathing were patched with 3-inch spruce by lessees,
2, 1886.

by order of the Board. Begun May 19 and finished May 2:

Pier at Twenty-second Street, N R.

iAke Erie and Western Railway Company, under permit of the Board.
finished May 21, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5974.— Repairs were made by Van Santvoord, under permit of the
Board. Begun November 30, 1886, and finished April 11, 1887.

Begun Mag 18 and

Ferry at West Twenty-third Street, N R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 4937.— The ferry-house was repaired and painted by the New York
Lake Erie and Western Railway Company, under permit of the Board. Begun November 20
1885, and finished November 13, 1886. J

Secretary’s Order No. 6010.— A new platform was built south of Twenty-third street by the
New York, Lake Erie and Western Railway Company, under permit of the Board. Begun
November 17, 1886, and finished March 17, 1887. 8

Pier, new 54, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6159.— 2 pole derricks were erected, and a boiler and hoisting engine
are to be erected by Messrs. Sanderson & Son, under permit of the Board. Begun June, 1886 « in
progress. '

Secretary’s Order No. 6255.— Iron mooring post replaced on outer end of pier by the Wilson
Line of Steamers, under permit of the Board. Begun March 26 and finished March 28, 1887.

Pier, new 55, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5597.-2 boilers of 60 horse-power each; 6 hoisters for cargo, and 2
hoisters for coal are being placed on the pier by Messrs. Pirn, Forwood & Co., under permit of the
Board. Begun October 5, 1886 ; in progress.

Pier, new 57, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5360.— 1 fender was refastened by Pennsylvania Railroad Company bv
order of the Board. Begun May 17 and finished May 19, 1886.
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Secretary’s Order No. 5434.—Temporary stanchions were erected and connected with iron
chains inclosing the space in front of the berth of the steamer “ Minnesota,” by Commander Kane,,
under permit of the Board. Begun and finished June 25, 1886.

Pier foot of West Twenty-ninth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5781.— Decayed pile replaced with new ones; new rangers and deck
put on, and tender piles driven bv Dunbar Box and Lumber Company, under permit of the Board.
Begun September 22 and finished October 11, 1886.

North side of West Thirtieth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6215.— Filling in strip of land under water, north side of West Thirtieth
street, is being done by Mr. Robert Ray Hamilton, attorney, under permit of the Board. Begun
March 15, 1807 ; in progress.

Bulkhead between Thirty-fifth and Th'rty-sixth Streets, N R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6326.— Bulkhead and shed thereon were repaired by Pennsylvania Rail-
road Company, under permit of the Board. Begun March 31 and finished April 15, 1887.
Pier at Thirty-ninth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6076.—6 oak fender piles were driven by Wm. Montgomery & Co.*
under permit of the Board. Begun December 2 and finished December 3, 1886.

Bulkhead south of Pier at West Fortieth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6180.— Repairs are being made by John R. McPherson.
ruary 15, 1887 ; in progress.

Secretary’s Order No. 6263.—A portable engine was erected thereon by J. R. McPherson,
under permit of the Board. Begun March 28 and finished April 9, 1887.

Begun Feb-

Ferry at West Forty-second Street, N R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5124.— The bulkhead, pile platform, racks, etc., were repaired by New
York Central and Hudson River Railroad Company, lessee of West Shore and Ontario Terminal
Company, under permit of the Board. Begun March 15 and finished May 3, 1886.

Approach to Pier at Fortyfourth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5527.— Sewer was repaired by Department of Public Works, under
permit of the Board. Begun July 12 and finished July 22, 1886.

Pier at West Forty-sixth Street, N. R.

~G r™ary's ®rder No. 4967.-—The backing log at the outer end of the pier was repaired by
John H. Starin.  Begun July 20 and finished July 22, 1886.

Bulkhead north of Pier at Forty-sixth Street, N. R&

Secretary’s Order No. 5540.— Bulkhead was repaired by Robert Gordon, under permit of the
Board. Begun July 19 and finished July 23, 1886.

Bulkhead Platform between Forty-sixth and Forty-seventh Streets, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5742.— Repairs were made by order of the Board. Work on the south
half was done by Robert Gordon. Begun September 10 and finished September 15, 1886. Work
on the north half was done by Barber Asphalt Company. Begun November 30 and finished
December 2, 1886.

Secretary’'s Order No.5132— Rubble retaining wall and filling deposited in rear of same by
John and James C. Gillies, under permit of the Board. Begun March 27 and finished July 24, 1886.

Pier at Fifty-first Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6038.— Hoisting post moved from east to west side of ice platform, and
platform extended by Kennedy, Rheinhart & Co., under permit of the Board. Begun November
24 and finished November 29, 1886.

Bulkhead between Fifty-first and Fifty-second Streets, N R.

in accordance with

Secretary’s Order No. 5897.—A platform on piles erected at bulkhead,
Begun
s

plans and specifications filed by George H. Brown, executor, under permit of the Board.
October 22 and finished December 23, 1886.

Bulkhead between Fifty-second and Fifty-third Streets, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6026 — 2 spring piles were driven at bulkhead by Bishop & O’'DonnelL
under permit of the Board. Begun November 26 and finished November 27, 1886.

Bulkhead at Fifty-fifth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6116.—6 fender piles were driven on south side by Canda & Kane, under
permit of the Board. Begun December 22 and finished December 23, 1886.

Pier at Sixty-fourth Street, N R. (Pier “D.’j

Secretary’s Order No. M40.--1 bearing pile and 1 fender pile were driven and fastened by New
York Central and Hudson River Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun Anril 14
and finished May 4, 1886. v *

Pier between Sixty-seventh and Sixty-eighth Streets, N R . (Pier “ G.”J

Secretary’s Order No. 5140— 15 fender piles were driven and fastened by New York Central
May 4 1886 RIVer Railroad ComPany>under permit of the Board. Begun April 14 and finished

Secretary s Order No. 6019.— New armature plates were placed on the upper corner (outer) of
the pier by New \ ork Central and Hudson River Railroad Company, under permit of the Board
Begun December 15 and finished December 29, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6424.— Damage by fire is being repaired by the New York Central and
Hudson River Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 21 1887+ in
progress. r ! T
Pier south of Seventieth Street, N R.

Secretary’'s Order No.6424.—Damage by fire is being repaired by the New York Central
and Hudson River Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 21, 1887; in
Bulkhead south of West Seventy-eighth Street, N R.

Secretary’s Order No. 4924.—In February and March some preliminary work was done in
building a retaining wall by Thomas Ward, under permit of the Board. Nothing has been done
since those dates ; order returned March 22, 1887.

Bulkhead between Ninety-fifth and Ninety-sixth Streets, N R.

fmmSwiLtKry4 9"*? Nk'£?17; ~ £ temporary shed was erected on new made land, 50 feet easterly
finLhed Sctoir ij, *886. & C°" Permit of the Board- Begun September 28 and

™ 5694.-Fence erected by E. S. Higgins, under permit of the Board.
Begun May 15 and flmshed November 11, 1886. 4 99 P

Bulkheadfoot o fNinety-sixth street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5308.— Sewer outlet was extended by Department of Public Works
under permitof the Board. Begun September 6, 1886, and finished September 24, 1886.

Bulkhead between ninety-sixth and Ninety-seventh Streets, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5*7°-— A crib-bulkhead was built and filling deposited in rear ofsame by
John D. Crunmins, under permit of the Board. Begun April 12, 1886, and finished March 24, 1887.

. Crib-bulkhead north o f Ninety-sixth Street, N. R.

_ Secretary’s Order No. 6204.—An office, shed, 2 steam derricks, etc., are being erected by John
Cox & Co., under permit of the Board. Begun March 21, 1887 ;jn progress.

~eci‘etary’'« Order No. 6308.—A fence along the northerly line of Ninety-sixth street, from
bulkhead to Twelfth avenue, along the west side of Twelfth avenue to Ninety-seventh street, and
along the southerly side of Ninety-seventh street to bulkhead, was put up by John Cox & Co.
under permit of the Board. Begun March 14, 1887 ; in progress.
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Pier at One Hundred and Twenty-ninth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6233.— 12 oak spring piles were driven and fastened by D. G. Yuengling,
Jr., lessee, under permit of the Board. Begun March 10 and finished March 12, 1887.

Ferry Premises at One Hundred and Thirtieth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5363.— Fenders and ferry racks were repaired by E. H. Coffin, lessee,
sunder permit of the Board. Begun May 18 and finished June 21, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5773.— A cable vault was built by the Tenth Avenue and One Hundred
and Twenty-fifth Street Cable Road, under permit of the Board. Begun September 18, 1886,
and finished on or about January 1, 1887.

Pier at One Hundred and Thirty-first Street, N.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5278.— An area of about 140 x 18 feet was paved with Belgian blocks by
J. D. Kennedy & Co., under permit of the Board. Begun April 26 and finished May 10, 1886.

Foot o f One Hundred and Fifty-eighth Street, N. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5629.— A small house for bathing purposes was erected by Washington
Heights Swimming Club, under permit ofthe Board. Begun and finished August 28, 1886.

EAST RIVER.
Battery, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No.6347.-3 new oak piles driven in place of those worn out, at southwest
1 end of Battery, by Isaac Hall's Sons, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished April 29,
1887.

Bulkhead westofPier 1, E. R.

Secretary's Order No. 5450.— Small office removed, and old shed torn down by Staten Island

Rapid Transit Company, under permit of the Board. Begun June 11 and finished June 18, 1886.

Ferry westofPier 1, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6413.— Repairs are being made by Staten Island Rapid Transit Com-
pany, under permit of the Board. Begun April 30, 1887 ; in progress.

* Pier 2, E. R., and Bulkhead east.

Secretary’s Order No. 5535.— The easterly half of Pier 2 was removed and ferry-houses, racks,
bridges and platforms were erected by South Brooklyn Ferry and Steam Transportation Company,
under permit of the Board. Begun July 29, 1886, and finished April 18, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 5876.— A ferry-house and shed was built by the South Brooklyn Ferry
and Steam Transportation Company, under permit of the Board. Begun October 13, 1886, and
finished April 18, 1887.

Pier 3, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5328.— Sheathing on deck was repaired by James Cruikshank, under
permit of the Board. Begun May 4 and finished June 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5435.— Holes in deck were repaired by James Cruikshank, under permit
of the Board. Begun and finished June 10, 1886.

Pier 5, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6106.— Repairs were made by New York Central and Hudson River
Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun January 21 and finished April 5, 1887.

Pier 6, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5883.—The backing log and mooring post on outer end of pier were
refastened, and 4 fender piles were driven by New York Central and Hudson River Railroad Com-
pany, under the permit of the Board. Begun October 23 and finished October 25, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6106.— Repairs were made to pier and shed by New York Central and
Hudson River Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun January 7 and finished
April 2, 1887.

Pier 7. E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6285.—A new derrick was erected in place of an old one, at inner east
side of pier, by Western Transit Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 6 and finished
April 7, 1887.

Secretary”s Order No. 6387.— Deck in front of berth occupied by Western Transit Company
was resheathed to bring same on a level with adjoining surface by Western Transit Company, under
permit of the Board. Begun April 20 and finished April 22, 1887.

Pier 8, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5262.— 8 fender piles were driven and fastened, and 2 new mooring
posts put in by New York, Lake Erie and Western Railway Company, under permit of the Board.
Begun May 6 and finished May 10, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5896.—Broken piles were removed and 4 spring piles driven and fast-
ened by New York, Lake Erie and Western Railway Company, under permit of the Board. Begun
October 16 and finished October 19, 1886.

Pier 9 and 10, E. R.
Secretary's Order No. 5462.— The sheathing on deck was repaired by T. E. Nesmith, Jr.,
under permit of the Board. Begun June 17 and finished July 7, 1886.
Pier 11, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5321.— The sheathing was repaired by D. Whipple, under permit of the
Board. Begun April 26 and finished May 3, 1086.
Bulkhead between Piers 13 and 14 E. R,
Secretary’s Order No. 6098.— A sewer pipe was run through same by Geor&e Thwaites, under
epermit of the Board. Begun December 16 and finished December 20, 1886.
Pier 14, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 4787— Piles were driven and sheathing on deck patched by D. Whipple,
under permit ofthe Board. Begun December 2, 1885, and finished, under Secretary’s Order No.

5716, October 4, 1886.
Secretary’'s Order No.5716.—50 bearing piles were driven, 10 new cross-caps put on, and

1 deck sheathing and mooring post repaired by D. Whipple, under permit of the Board. Begun
-September 13 and finished October 4, 1886.

Pier 16, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5878.— Repairs were made by S. A. Frost, under permit of the Board.
Begun October 12 and finished October 22, 1886.
Pier 17, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6341.—5 spruce bearing and 3 new oak fender piles driven and fastened
by S.A. Frost, under permit of the Board. Begun April 5 and finished April 6, 1887.
Pier 18, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5946— Repairs were made by lessees of east half and alleged owners of
west half, by order of the Board. Begun November 1 and finished November 8, 1880.
Pier 19, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5793.— Repairs were made to east half by alleged owners, under permit

«of the Board. Begun September 28 and finished October 1, 1886.
Secretary’s Older No. 5999.— Repairs were made by S. A. Frost, under permit of the Board.

Begun November 12 and finished November 27, 1886.
Pier 20,E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6053— 18 bearing piles were driven in place of like number worn out, by
«C.H.Mallory S Co., under permit of the Board. Begun November 27 and finished December
*®86' E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 3415-— Temporary posts were erected for a support for canvas awning,
by C. H. Mallory & Co., lessees, under permit of the Board. Begun October 15, 1883 ; not yet

finished.

Pier si,
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Secretary’s Order No.5922.—A tin roof is being put on the shed and the sides covered with
corrugated iron by C. H. Mallory & Co., under permit of the Board. Begun December 27, 1886 ;
n progress.

Pier 23, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5448.— The deck sheathing was repaired by S. G. Smith, under permit
of the Board. Begun June 11 and finished June 12, 1886. -

Secretary’s Order No.5888.-6 spring piles were driven and fastened by S. H. Mills, under
permit of the Board. Begun July 30 and finished August 2, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers 23 and 24, E.R.

Secretary’'s Order No.5310.— An ice bridge 80x 5 feet, on movable wooden horses, a small
weigh house 6x3 feet, and a scale were erected by Mutual Benefit Ice Company, under permit of
the Board. Begun May 15 and finished May 17, 1886.

Pier 24, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5459—2 broken spring piles were replaced with new ones by S. G. Smith,
agent, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished June 15, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5449.— The sheathing on deck was repaired by S. H. Mills, under
permi tof the Board. Begun June 17 and finished June 21, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5506.— The rangers at entrance to west side of pier were repaired,
sheathing on deck patched and 3 oak fender piles drawn by Frank Tweed, agent, under permit of
the Board. Begun July 6 and finished July 7* 1886.

Secretary’s Order N<* 5835.— 20 piles were driven in place ot defective ones, and other neces-
sary repairs made to east side of pier by Hartford and New York Transportation*Company, under
permit of the Board. Begun October 22 and finished November 27, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6075.— A new oak spring pile was driven in place of one broken, by
Frank Tweed, agent, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished December 2, 1886.

Pier 257E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5799.— Repairs were made to east side by New Haven Steamboat Com-
pany, under permit of the Board. Begun about October 7 and finished about October 16, 1886.

Pier 26, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5799.— io bearing piles at outer end of pier were driven by New Haven
Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board. Begun October 7 and finished October 16, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers 26 and 27, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5301.—A sewer pipe was carried through bulkhead from No. 155 South
street by Jeremiah Murphy, under permit of the Board. Begun April 28 and finished May 3, 1886.

Pier 27, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5774.— Repairs to pier are being made and a new shed is being erected
by Baltimore and Ohio Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun September 17,
1886 ; in progress.
Pier 28, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6298.— Repairs are being made to the north side by William P. Clyde
& Co., under permit of the Board. Begun April 18, 1887 ; in progress.

Bulkhead between Piers 28 and 29, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5413.— The bulkhead and approach to Pier 29 was rebuilt by William P.
Clyde, under permit of the Board. Begun May 28 and finished October 5, 1886.

Bulkhead at Roosevelt Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6007. —A sewer is being extended through the bulkhead by Department
of Public Works, under permit of the Board. Begun December 6, 1886 ; in progress.

Piers 33 and 34, E. R., and Bulkhead between.

Secretary’s Order No. 6004.— Repairs, including 9 half round oak fenders put on, 5 bearing
piles driven and fastened, and backing log and deck were made to Pier 33.

Repairs, including 4 oak spring piles driven and fastened, deck and backing log patched
and new fenders put on, were made to Pier'34.

Repairs, including 10 fender piles driven and fastened, 8 half-round oak fenders put on and
“ A" and horizontal braces patched, were made to bulkhead platform ; all by William'P. Clyde
& Co., under permit of the Board. Begun November 23 and finished December 31, 1886.

Pier 35 E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6123.— 7 fender piles were driven in place of those worn out, by Bridge-
port Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board. Begun December 29, 1886, and finished

January 4, 1887. Pilr E. R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 5889.— 5 -new spring piles were driven, and several old ones refastened,
by Vermont Central Railroad Company, under permit of the Board. Begun October 13 and
finished October 21, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers 36 and 37, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5801.— Repairs made by alleged owners, by order of the Board. Begun
September 29 and finished September 30, 1886.
Secretary’s Order No. 5625.— Repairs made by alleged owners, by order of the Board. Begun

and finished August 9, 1880.
Pier 38, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5866.— Repairs made by Maine Steamship Company, by order of the
Board. Begun and finished October 16, 1886.

Pier 39, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5491.—Temporary ice bridge and platform scale erected on south side
of pier, by the Mutual Benefit Ice Company, under permit of the Board. Begun June 24 and
finished June 28, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5740.— 8 spruce piles driven alongside of pier, in place of same number
worn out, by Borden & Lovell, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished September 10, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5997.— Shed thereon repaired by Ola Colony Steamboat Company, under
permit of the Boaid. Begun November 16 and finished November 18, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 6381.—4 fender piles driven by Borden & Lovell, under permit of the

Board. Begun April 28 and finished April 30, 1887.
Secretary’s Order No. 6324.—2 new fender piles driven by alleged owners, by order of the
Board. Begun April 28 and finished April 30, 1887.

Bulkhead between Piers 39 and 40, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 3586.— Repairs made by Trustees of Floating Chapel, by order of the
Board. Begun July 27 and finished August 14,1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6368 — A sewer pipe from 224 South street was run through by C. & R.
Poillon, under permit of the Board. Begun April 18 and finished April 20, 1887.

Pier 40, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5424.— Repairs were made to roof of shed by lessee, under permit of the
Board. Begun June 18 and finished June 24, 1886.

Secretary's Order No. 5492.— 2 spring piles were replaced on north and east comer by lessee,
by order of tne Board. Begun June 6 and finished July 7, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5277.— Shed on pier was repaired by lessee, by order of the Board. Be-
gun May 5 and finished May 20, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers 42 and 43, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5877.— The bulkhead was rebuilt from low-water mark up, by alleged
owners, who were notified to do the work. Begun October 15, 1886, and finished January 4, 1887.

Pier 44, E .R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6287.— A gangway for propeller “ Mary E. Gordon” was cut by Ged-
ney’s Freight and Transportation Company, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished March
26, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6284.— A gangway was cut by Portchester Transportation Company,
under permit of the Board. Begun and finished March 26, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 6292.— A gangway was cut for propellers “ Alert” and “ Captain John,”
by the owners of said propellers, under permit of the Board. Begun and finished March 26, 1887.
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Pier 45, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 53°2*—3° bearing piles were driven and sunken portion of pier on west
erly side leveled up by Norman Hitchcock, under permit gt the Board. Begun April 26 and fin*
ished April 29, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers 46 and 47, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5378.— Repairs were made by alleged owners, under permit of the Board.
Begun May 20 and finished June 12, 1886.

Bulkhead between Piers 48 and 49, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5847.— Repairs were made by alleged owners, by order of the Board.
Begun and finished October 4, 1886.

Bulkhead at Pier 49, E.R.

Secretary's Order No. 6228.— The bulkhead was rebuilt from low-water mark up by Sectional

Dry Dock Company, by order of the Board. Begun March 3 and finished April 11, 1887.
Secretary’s Order No. 5370.— The pavement was repaired by New York, New Haven and

Hartford R. R. Co., under permit of the Board. Begun May 17 ana finished May 31, 1886.

Pier 49, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5464.— 6 piles were replaced by N. Y. Floating Dry Dock.Co.,
permit of the Board. Begun June 15 and finished June 17, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 0202.—Boom was shitted from Pier 49 to Pjer 48, by the N. Y. Float-
|r{\;g8 Dry Dock »Co., under permit of the Board. Begun February 17 and finished February 18,
1887.

under

Secretary’s Order No. 5834.— Repairs were made to pier and shed, by alleged owners, by
order of the Board. Begun February 10 and finished April 30, 1887.
Bulkhead Platform between Piers 49 and 50, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 57~4*—Fender piles were driven and sheathing on deck repaired by New
York, New Haven and Hartford R. R. Co., under permitof the Board. Begun September 17 and
finished October 14, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6322.— 15 spruce fender piles were driven, and damages done by a tug
of the New \ ork, New Haven and Hartford R. R. Co., to the outer end of platform, were repaired
by the New York, New Haven and Hartford R. R. Co., under permit of the Board. Begun April
18 and finished April 21, 1887. 6 r

Secretary’s Order No. 6300.— Backing log on platform was repaired by the New York, New
Haven and Hartford R. R. Co., under permit of the Board. Begun and finished April 20, 1887.

Bulkhead Platform between Piers 50 and 51, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5299.— Stumps of piles were pulled, 20 fender piles were driven, chocked
and fastened, and vertical sheathing was patched with 5-inch oak, by New York, New Haven and
Hartford R. R. Co., under permit of the Board. Begun April 22 and finished May 3, 1886.

Pier 51, £. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 4902. —Repairs were made by alleged owners, by order of the Board.
Begun December 10 and finished December 24, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5°33«—A fender and a fender pile were refastened on east side near
outer end of pier, by New York, New Haven and Hartford R. R. Co., by order of the Board.
Begun and finished December 6, 1886.

Bulkhead westofPier 51, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5668.— A hole was filled up with earth, and stone, by New York, New

Haven and Hartford R. R. Co., by order of the Board. Begun and finished August 31, 1886.
Bulkhead 150feet eastofPier 54, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5980.— A hole was filled up with stone and earth, by alleged owners,

by order of the Board. Begun and finished November 13, 1886.
Bulkhead east o f Corlears Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 4926.—The bulkhead for about 150 feet was rebuilt from low water up,

by alleged owners, by order of the Board. Begun May 25 and finished June 15, 1886.
Bulkhead between Water and Cherry Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5483.— The bulkhead was straightened by alleged owners, under permlt

of the Board.” Begun June 21 and finished July 2, 1886.
Bulkhead south ofPier 55, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5403. - The bulkhead was rebuilt by alleged owners, by order of the
Board. Begun June 12 and finished July 2, 1886.

Pier 55, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6445.— A scale was erected by the Hazelwood Ice Company, under
permit of the Board. Begun April 26 and finished April 29, 1887.

Slip between Piers 56 and 57, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No.5958. —A sunken scow was removed to Pottery Beach, Hunter's Point,

by owners, by order of the Board. Begun November 3 and finished December 4, 1886.
Pier 57, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5225.— A dump was erected on east side, by New York and Brooklyn
Ferry Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 30 and finished May 15, 1886

Secretary’s Order No. 6309 — The premises were cleaned and the deck sheathing patched with
3-mch spruce, by New York and Brooklyn Ferry Company, by order of the Board. Begun March
20 and finished April 3, 1887. g

Bulkhead south ofPier 60, E . R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5405.— Repairs made by alleged owner, by order of the Board.
June 17 and finished June 24, 1886.

Be%un
Pier 60, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5882.— A scale and tally house was erected by Hazelwood Point Ice
Company, under permit of the Board. Begun July 26 and finished July 27, 1886.
Pier fa, E.R.
Secretary’s Order No.5837.— The damage done by boiler was repalred by alleged owners bv
order of the Board. Begun October 20 and finished October 25, i886f
Ferry at East Houston Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5905.— The ferry racks were repaired by the Nassau Ferry Company.
under permit of the Board. Begun November 3 and finished November 20, 1886.
Pier atEast Third Street, E.R.
Secretary’s Order No.5957.— Repairs were made by Ridgewood Ice Company, lessee, by
order of the Board. Begun December 13 and finished December 18, 1886.
Bulkhead Platform between East Fourth and Fifth Streets, E.R.

tSecretary's Order, No. 5670.— Repairs were made by lessees, by order of the Board. Begun
September 6 and finished October 2, 1886. 8
Pier atEast Fifth Street, E.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5332.— 20 spring piles were driven, chocked and fastened at end and
V' Br°wn' lessee’ under Permit of the Board. Begun May 17 and finished May

20i886Pier’ by

Secretary’s Order No. 6127— 8 spring piles were driven on upper side of pier by J. V. Brown
Begun December 29, 1886, and finished January 3, 1887.

lessee, under permit of the Board.

Pier at East Sixth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 3087.— Repairs were made by Wm. H. Webb, under permit of the
Board. Begun June n and finished July 12, 1886.
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D ecember 2
Pier at East Ninth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5782.— 5 oak spring piles were driven by assignees, etc., of John Roach
& Son, under permit of the Board. Begun October 5 and finished October 6,1886.
Ferry at East Tenth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5798.— The rack was repaired by Grednpoint Ferry Company, under
permit of the Board. Begun September 28 and finished October 6, 1886.
Pierfoot of Eleventh Street, E. R,
Secretary’s Order No. 5802.— Repairs are being made by Mutual Gas-light Company, under
permit of the Board. Begun September 27, 1886; in progress.
Pier at East Twelfth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5504.— Repairs made by Mutual Gas-light Company, under permit of
the Board. Begun June 24 and finished October 16, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6134.—3 bearing and 4 spring piles were driven on north side by
Mutual~Gas-light Company, under permit of the Board. Begun January 7 and finished January

East Thirteenth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5750.—The ash dump was raised and flooring and beams relaid by
Mutual Gas-light Company, under permit of the Board. Begun September 14 and finished
October 7, 1886.

Bulkhead north of East Fifteenth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6135.— Three courses of timber were laid, one mooring post set, three
fender piles driven and chocked, and pavement repaired, by Consolidated Gas Company, under
permit of the Board. Begun January 10 and finished January 28, 1887.

Pier at East Nineteenth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5322.— An ice brldge was erected by Archibald Scott, under permit of
the Board. Begun April 28 and finished May 1, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6435.-An ice brldge was erected by A. Scott & Sons, under permit of
the Board. Begun April 25 and finished April 26, 1887.

Pier at East Twenty-third Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6354.— Portable hoisting engine was erected on north side of pier by

Hecksher Coal Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 4 and finished April 6, 1887.
Pier at East Twenty-sixth Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5658.—A building on piles was erected on north side of pier by Depart-
ment of Public Charities and Correction, under permit of the Board. Begun September 20 and
finished December 31, 1886. . r

Bulkhead between East Thirtieth and East Thirty-first Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6028.— Repairs were made to bulkhead, within existing lines, by H. D
Brookman, under permit of the Board. Begun November 22 and finished December 8, 1886

Secretary’s Order No.5256.—A cluster of piles was removed by the New York, Lake Erie and
Western Railway Company, by order of the Board. Begun and finished December 20, 1886.

Pier at East Thirty-second Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5400.— Two gangways were cut, tank was erected and a canvas awning
PUt 4p by Tohn H. Stann, under permit of the Board. Begun June 15 and finished June 24, 1886T

Bulkhead at East Thirty-fifth Street, E. R,
Secretary’s Order No. 5376.—Repairs were made J. W. Duryea, under permit of the Board.
Begun May 20 and finished September 28, 1886.
Pier at East Forty.seventh Street, E. R.

Secretary's Order No. 5996.— Repairs were made by Owens & Co., lessees, by order of the

Board. Begun November 24 and finished November 27, 1886.
Bulkhead between East Fiftyfirst and Fifty-second Streets, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6410.—A water tank was repaired by the F. & M. Schaefer Brewing
Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 18 and finished April 21, 1887.
Bulkhead north of East Fifty-fourth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5477.— A fence was removed by Claussen & Guggenheimer, by order of
the Board. Begun and finished June 28, 1886.
Bulkhead between Fifty-fourth and Fifty fifth Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6434.— A 12-inch pipe is being run through bulkhead for the purpose of
drawing salt water, by John Kress Brewing Company, under permitof the Board.  Begun April 21,
1887 ; in progress. r *

Bulkhead between East Sixtyfirst and Sixty-second Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5280.— The sheathing on the deck was repaired by James Millward, by
order of the Board. Begun and finished May 17, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 6441.—An ice bridge, platform scale and weigh office are being erected
by the Knickerbocker Ice Company, under permit of the Board. Begun April 30, 1887 ; in
progress.

Bulkhead between East Sixty-second and Sixty-third Streets, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5747*—A trestle work for hoisting coal was repaired by Ehrenreich Bros.,
under permit of the Board. Begun September 9 and finished October 2, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No.5780,— 11 fender piles were driven at platform by Ehrenreich Bros.,
under permit of the Board. Begun October 4, 1886, and finished October 5, 1886.

Bulkhead at East Seventy-fifth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5484.— A dumping board was erected by O’'Brien Bros. & Norman, under
permit of the Board. Begun June 24 and finished June 29, 1886.
Pier at East Eighty-sixth Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5284.— Damage done by steamer “ Vidette” was repaired by Mr*
Nickerson, by order of the Board. Begun June 14 and finished June 16, 1886.
Ferry at East Ninety-second Street, E. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5695.— The ferry racks, bridge and ferry house were repaired by Astoria
Ferry Company, under permit of the Board. Begun Augrfst 6 and finished November 13, 1886.
Pier north of East Ninety-first Street, E. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6428.— 10 bearing and 10 fender piles were driven, and the backing log
was repaired b the Kmckerbocker Ice Company, under permit of the Board. Beiun April 26 and
finished April 29, 1887. r

HARLEM RIVER.
Bulkhead between One Hundred and Second and One Hundred and Third Streets, H. R.
Secretanr’s Order No. 6418.— Erection of a boat-house in accordance with diagram submitted,
by Thomas S. McManus, under permit of the Board. Begun April 21, 1887 ; in progress.
Bulkhead between East One Hundred and Eleventh and East One Hundred and Twelfth
Streets, H. R.
Secretary's Order No. 5585* -Repairs were made by alleged owners, under permit of the Board.
Begun August 17 and finished August 20, 1886.

Premises East One Hundred and Fourteenth to East One Hundred and Fifteenth Streets

Secretary’s Order No. 5549*— A crib-bulkhead was built by John Dwight, under permit of
the Board. Begun October 11, 1886, and finished February 19, 1807.
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Premises East One Hundred and Fifteenth to East One Hundred and Sixteenth Streets,
H. E.

Secretary’s Order No. 5587.—A crib-bulkhead was built by the New York Steam Company,
under permit of the Board. Begun September 3 and finished December 1, 1886; filling in progress.

East One Hundred and Sixteenth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5443*—3 fender piles were driven by Vandervoort & Tucker, under
permit of the Board. Begun and finished June 14, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5689.— Float removed by Vandervoort & Tucker, by order of the Board.
Begun and finished August 28, 1886.

Pier south of East One Hundred and Twenty-fifth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5173.— Repairs were made to the pier and bulkhead, and the pier was
widened 16 feet on the south side, by Abraham Steers, under permit of the Board. Begun March
22 and finished May 11, 1886.

Bulkhead between East OneHundred and Twenty-fifth and East One Hundred and Twenty-
sixth Streets, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5305.— 6 fender piles were driven and braced to repair the boom, by
+George T. Gaden & Co., under permit of the Board. Begun and finished May 10, 1886.
Pier at East One Hundred and Tkuenty-eighth Street, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5906.—Repairs were made by Armour & Co., under permit of the
Board. Begun October 25 and finished December 7, 1886.
Secretary’'s Order No. 6027.—A shed was erected by Armour & Co., under permit of the
Board. Begun December 7, 1886, and finished February 26, 1887.
Bulkhead at East One Hundred and Twenty-ninth Street and east of Second Avenue, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5693-— Repairs were made by the Mahattan Railway Company under
permit of the Board. Begun September 6 and finished November 6, 1886.
Premises at W illis Avenue, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5120 and 5690.— A new slip was constructed by N. Y., N. H. & H. R.
R. Co., under permit of the Board. Begun February 10 and finished October 2, 1886.
Slip east side of Third Avenue, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6359— 3 piles were driven by James W. Colwell, under permit of the
Board. Begun April 5and finished April 7, 1887.
Pier at East One Hundred and Thirtieth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5583— 2 spring piles were driven and fastened in front of pier, by the
Harlem and Morrisania Consolidated Transportation Company, under permit of the Board. Begun
July 22 and finished July 26, 1886.

East One Hundred and Thirty-second Street, near Lincoln Avenue, H. R,

Secretary’s Order No. 6193.— A pile platform was erected by the North and East River
Steamboat Company, under permit of the Board. Begun February 17 and finished February 25,

Pier at East One Hundred and Thirty-third Street, east side of H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5073* Repairs made to pier and bulkhead, and small platform built by
Green Wright, under permit of the Board. Begun February 1and finished February 15, 1887.

Premises at East One Hundred and Thirty-third Street, west side of H. R.

Secretary's Order No. 5°75*-8 piles were driven by J. W. Colwell, under permit of the
Board. Begun October 12 and finished October 13, 1886. *

Premises north of One*Hundred and Thirty-fifth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6217.—A platform on piles was erected by H. A. Cram, under permit of
the Board. Begun March 18 and finished March 26, 1887.

Bulkhead north of One Hundred and Thirty-fifth Street, H R.

6321.— Spring piles were driven in front of bulkhead by Harlem River

Secretary’'s Order No.
under permit of the Board. Begun March 29 and finished March 30,

Transportation Company,

Secretary’s Order No. 6318.—A shed was erected by Harlem River Transportation Company,
under permit of the Board. Begun March 7 and finished April 5, 1887.

Prem ises between One Hundredand Thirtyfifth and One Hundred and Thirty-seventh Streets, H.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5534-— Crib bulkheads were built by H. A. Cram, under permit of the
Board. Begun August 26, 1886. Crib bulkhead finished ; filling in rear in progress.

Prem ises between OneHundredand Thirty-seventh and OneHundredand Thirty eighth Streets,H .R.

Secretary’'s Order No.5939— A crib bulkhead was built by H. A. Cram, under permit of the
Board. Begun October 12, 1886. Crib bulkhead finished ; filling in rear in progress.

Bulkhead south o f One Hundred and Thirty-eighth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6459.—Coal office, stable, etc., erected by John Dobbins, under permit
o f the Board. Begun about April 15, 1887 ; in progress.

Secretary’s Order No.3937.—Filling in rear ofcrib bulkhead was done by Wilson & Adams,
under permit of the Board. Work finished Juhe 30, 1886.

East One Hundred and 7 hiriy-eighth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5584.— 4 bearing piles and 4 spring piles were driven and fastened by
Vandervoort & Tucker, under permit of the Board. Begun July 22 and finished July 26, 1886.

East One Hundred and 7hirty-eighth Street—Rider's Comal—H.R.

Secretary’s Order No.6311.—The bridge was repaired by W. E. Rider, under permit of the
Board. Begun March 29 and finished April 20, 1887.

Bulkhead north o fEast One Hundred and Thirty-eighth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5489.— Repairs were made by James D. G. Burnett, under permit of
the Board. Begun June 20 and finished June 30, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5691*— A shed was ejected over hoisting engine by James D. G. Burnett,
under permit Of the Board. Begun August 31 and finished September 3, 1886.

Premises north o f Madison Avenue Bridge, east side H. R.

Secretary’'s Order No. 6230. —Plank walk on piles built by W. A. & S. Rudeman, under
permit of the Board. Begun about April t, 1887, and finished April 29, 1887.

Butkhead south o f Ode Hundred and Fiftieth Street, eastside ofH. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 366¢.—Filling in rear Of new crib was done by Thomas L. Sturgis,
under permit of the Board ; work in progress from time to time.
t!  Secretary’s Order No. 5797.—8 fender piles were driven by Thomas L. Sturgis, under permit
Of the Board. Begun and hed October 2, 1886.

Premises One Hundred and Fifty -fifth to One Hundred and Fifty-seventh Street, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5432.—A crib-bulkhead was erected by Mrs. Sarah Lynch, under
permit of the Board. Begun November 3, 1886; in progress.

RECORD. 3401

One Hundred and Fifty-ninth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6178.— A crib-dock is being removed by J. J. Coogan, under permit of
the Board. Begun February 2, 1887, and temporarily suspended.

FootofEighth Avenue,H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 597@&-— Supervising the erection of sewer outlet by Department of Public
Works, under permit of the Board. Begun October 25, 1886, and finished February 2, 1887.

Premises near One Hundred and Sixty-first Street, east side Cromwell's Creek.

Secretary’s Order No. 3649— Filling was putin in rear of new crib-bulkhead, by T. J. Astor,
under permit ofthe Board ; work in progress.

Premises near One Hundred and Sixty-first Street, west side Cromwell's Creek.

Secretary’s Order No. 5230.— A platform is being erected by James Colwell, under permit o*
the Board ; work in progress from time to time.

First Dock north of High Bridge, eastside H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 6189.— A gangway was built by C. H. Longstreet, under permit of the
Board. Begun March 26 and finished April 5, 1887.

Water Front on Ogden Estate, WestofHigh Bridge, H.R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5458. —4 fender piles were driven and fastened at float, and a platform
was erected on each side of gangway, by J. H. McConnell, under permit of the Board. Begun
June 16 and finished June 17, 1800.

Premises north o f One Hundred and Seventy-eighth Street, H. R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5533.—A crib-work was erected by Aqueduct Commissioners under
permit of the Board. Begun July 20 and finished September 13, 1886.

Premises at One Hundred and Eightyfirst Street, eastside H R.

Secretary’s Order No. 5586*— A stone wall was erected and filling put in rear of same by
Harlem Bridge Commissioners, under permit of the Board. Begun July 26 and in progress until
September 11, 1886, when it was temporarily suspended.

Secretary’s Order No. 5606.— A temporary platform on piles was built by Harlem River
Bridge Commissioners, under permit of the Board. Begun July 7, 1886, and finished February
19, 1887.

Secretary’s Order No. 5608.— A platform south'of Harlem River Bridge was erected by Harlem
River Bridge Commissioners, under permit of the Board. Begun August 5, 18861 in progress
from time to time. .

Secretary’s Order No. 5623.— False work for construction of new bridge was erected by Harlem
River Bridge Commissioners, under permit of the Board. Begun August 18, 1886; in progress
from time to time.

Secretary’s Order No. 5940.—Filling in of water front with surplus material from Harlem River
Bridge excavations was done by Harlem River Bridge Commissioners, under permit of the Board.
Begun March 26, 1887 ; in progress.

Water FrontofH. W. T. Mali, north ofHigh Bridge, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 5631.— A boat-house was erected by Nassau Boat Club, under permit of
the Board. Begun August 16 and finished August 23, 1886.
Premises at Fordham Heights Station, H. R.
Secretary’s Order No. 6085.— Repairs to pier were made by J. B. Haskins, under permit of the
Board. Begun December 15, 1886, and finished March 19, 1887.
Secretary’s Order No. 6349— An office was erected by John B. Haskins, under permit of the
Board. Begun about March 15 and finished April 9, 1887.
Kings Bridge, north side Spuyten Duyvil Creek.
Secretary’s Order No. 4686.— Filling was put in rear of bulkhead by T. & W.Thom & Co.
under permit of the Board ; work in progress from time to time.
North Brother Island, E. R.
Secretary’s Order N0.4609.—Filling put in rear of sea wall by Health Department, under
permit of the Board ; work recommenced October 28, 1886, and in progress from time to time.
Oak Point, Long Island Sound.

Secretary’s Order No. 5444.— 4 bearing piles were driven and fastened and several fender piles
were straightened at bathing resort by Vandervoort & Tucker, under permit of the Board. Begun
and finished June 12, 1886.

Secretary’s Order No. 5584.— 2 bearing piles and 4 spring piles were driven and fastened by
Vandervoort & Tucker, under permit of the Board. Begun July 22 and finished July 26, 1886.

New Wharfage Room, in Linear Feet, made during the Year by Private Parties, underpermito f
the Board o fDocks.

Location. Feet. Feet. Feet.
North River.
Ferry premises between West Twenty-second and West Twenty-third streets. 40
Pile bulkhead at West Fifity-first'street 90
Crib bulkhead West Ninety-sixth to West Ninety-eighth street... 949.15
Total pier and bulkhead extension on the North river. 3795
Eastand Harlem Rivers.

Ferry premises foot of Willis avenue %
Ctib bulkhead between One Hundred and Thirty-fifth and On: Hundred and

Thirty-eighth street 1.5
Platform north of Kyle's Pier. High Bridge. 5
Crib pier One Hundred and S lventy-eighth street. 50
Bulkhead olatform south of One Hundred and Eig 30
Pier at Fordham Height: 200
Total pier and bulkhead extension on East and Harlem rivers * 33900
Total new wharfage on North, East and Harlem rivers *TM-*5

New W harfage Room, in Linear Feet, to be made by work carried on during the Year by Ftivate
Owners, underpermit o fthe Board, but notyetfinished.

Location. Feet. Feet.
Harlem River.

Crib_bulkhead between East One Hundred and Fourteenth and East One Hundred and

Fifteenth streets....... ... 111.65
Crib bulkhead between East One Hundred and Fifteenth and East One Hundred and Six-

teenth street: : *58.65 1
Cib bulki.ead at One Hundred and Fiftieth street, Harlem River-.... 14950
Crib bulkhead Cromwell’s Creek 1.368.00
Crib bulkhead between One Hundred and Fifty-fifth and One Hundred and Fifty-seventh

street: 650.00
Crib bulkhead at Spuyten Duyvil Creek t00. 00
Total new wharfage room inprogre 9,631.00
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HEALTH DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK,
SANITARY BUREAU, DIVISION OF VITAL STATISTICS.

3402

REPORTED MORTALITY * for the week ending November 19, 1887, together with the ACTUAL MORTALITY for the week ending November 12, 1887.

W. De F. Day, M. D., Sanitary Superintendent and Register:

Sir— There were 670 deaths reported to have occurred in this city during the week ending Saturday, November 19, 1887, which is an increase of 12, as compared with the number_reported the
preceding week, and 13 less than were reported during the corresponding week of the year 1886. The actual mortality for the week ending November 12, 1887, was 650, which is 37.0 above
the average for the corresponding week for the past five years, and represents an annual death-rate of 22.56 per 1,000 persons living, the population estimated at 1,498,196.

Table showing the Reported Mortality for the week ending November 19, 1887, and the Actual Number of Deaths each day, from the Principal Causes, with the Ages of Decedents, for the week
ending November 12, 1887.

Week Week

Meteorology. ending
Nov 19 Actual Number of Age by Years
Mean temperature (Fahr.)for the week was.| 42.0 Deaths each Day during «
«" reading ofbarometer s+ * 30.696 Saturane Week ending a7 E‘D
“  humidity for the week was 3 aturday, November 12, 1887,

Number of miles traveled by the wind was.. 1,429
Total rain-fall,in inches,for the week.......  0.61
26
8M il
Caus'es of Death $|
91
i & Is.
89 107 xox 91 650 718 63 561 *3* 36 32 10 332
Total Deaths from all Causes, S PR IR Ios oa el - .
1710 113 *71 21 1*7 124 *57 143 6
Total Local Disease! . 40 39 148 49 53 ;49 46 313 309 261 .83 R
Total Developmental A 48
Deaths by Violence.s» |
i
Measle: |(
Scarlatina
Diphtheria
Membranous Croup.
Whooping Cough,
Erysipela
Typhus Fever
Yellow Fever
Typhoid. Fever
Cerebro-Spinal Fever .
Remittent, Intermittent. Typho-Malarial,|
Congestive andSimpleContinued Fevers, )
°! 33 j13
Bronchitis ..
Pneumonia.... 3
Heart Disease:
Aneurism.
Marasmus— Tabes Mesenterica and Scrofula
Hydrocephalus and Tubercular Meningitis.
Meningitis and Encephalitis....
Conv 34 8
Direct Effect of Solar Heat...
Apoplexy. |
All Diseasesofthe Brainand NervousSystem
Cirrhosis of Liver and Hepatitis..
Enteritis, Gastro-Euteritis, Peritonitis, and
Gastriti:
Bright's Disease and Nephriti
Cyanosis and Atelectasis. 1% ﬁ
Premature and Preternatu
Surgical Operations. 3 =
Deaths by Suicide. R ; JI 4
Deaths by Drowning . b
nder 1year.. o 147 120
Deaths in Children. g syears 34 34(26j3°i33 321 175
“  syears. 33 3+ 139 177 143 301 225
* Refers to the number of death certificates received.
DEATHS FROM ZYMOTIC DISEASES. -9 £
NEW YORK.—Deaths from Small-pox, Mrasles, Scarla- 'S
tina, Diphtheria, Croup, Whooping Cough, Typho 3
Fever, Typhus Fevrr, Malarial Fevers, Puerperal s
Fever, Diarkhceal Maladies, Cerebro-Spinal Fever, and !
Other Zymotic Diseases. o
s
ActualM ortalityduring the Week ending November 12, 1887. 5 K& |
v
Area g
Wards.  in'‘Acres. e a4 28
§ 5 8E8 28
mn . g 3 289% B £° °
v _Sgboescd 3
] 32 g 22 0q 5
i> 3 $23E °a<cf £ £
8 1 32°8 E° % £
9 4 o et 9 % Qs a § [
a8 d 5 - 38 £ Y B¢ a
7 é 9 Xk ¢ 28 9§ ¢ T2 -
g g 5= & £ EN %
[* N o = £ 8 o0 F k3 H
- — -
1
6 Castle Garden and Emigrant Depot Floating Hospital of St.John's Guild, -; First Precinct Station, -...
"1 6 Second Precinct Station-house, - .. . R
a # 131 81 6 3582 Twenty-seventh Precinct Station,  House of Relief, 160 Chambers street, 3 -
1 > 20996  Fourth Precinct Station ssion Home,  St.James Home,-; Sailor Home,
3 *5,845 Fifth Precinct Station, -; Trinity Infirmary, 50 Varick street,- -
4 City Prison, Home of Industry, 1; Centre Street Dispensary, Sixth Precinct Station, -
x 50066  Seventh PrecinctStation, ~ Gouverneur Hospital, 1; Deborah Nursery, -
| 35879  Eighth Precinct Station,-
28 54506  St.Vincent's Hospital, 8 Home for Old Men and Aged and Couples,  Jefferson Market Prison, - .
- Essex Street Prison, -; Eleventh Precinct Station, Ludlow Street Jail, -
Eleventh. 196 X 1 1 3 3 ax & St. Francis’ Hospital, 7; Thirteenth PrecinctStation, -
eception Hospital, 99th street, 1; Laura Franklin Free Hospital, N. Y. City Asylum for the
Insane, 2; Unsectarian Home, -; Ward's Island, 2; Randall's Island. 3; Bloomingdale Lunatic
) R Asylum, -; Magdalene Convent, -; Home of the Little Sisters of the Poor, 1; Idiot Asylum, Randall's
Twelfth... 5r504%i3 5 2 * 5 a 7 8a & 8800 Jsand, -: ‘Deat and Dumb Asylum. - House of Good Shepherd. N Y. Juvenile Asylum. -
House of Refuge, Homoeopathic Hospital, 7; Hebrew Orphan Asylum, -; Manhattan Hospital,
St. Joseph's Hospital, 1; Harlem Hospital, 1; Old Ladies’ Home, ~Home for Aged and Infirm Hebrews, - j
Thirteenth a 5 20 20 37797 Twelfth Precinct Station, -; Fifth DistrictCourt,
9° 21 161 16 R. C. Orphan Asylum,  Lyin Asylum,  Fourteenth Precinct Station,-: House of Detention, -
Fifteenth . 198 1 1 31,882 Fifteenth Precinct Station, -; Mission of Immaculate Virgin, -; St. Benedict Home,
X | St.Joseph's Home for the Aged, 1; French Hospital, 4; Samaritan Home for the Aged,
Sixteenth........ 348-77 X 7T 33 28 5218 73,06 ofthe Church of the Holy Communion, - ; Trinity Hospital, -
Seventeenth « a a 8 36 g5 104837 Lodge and Association Hospital, -; N. Y. Lying-in Home, -; Eye and Ear Infirmary, -; St. Andrew’s Hosp.
Eighteenth 331 - X M - s661x [New, York Hospital, 5 Post Graduate Hospital, -; Home for Respectable Aged and indigent Females,
‘ghteent 449-89 3 X 1 7 3 5 " Willard Parker Hospital, 3; N. Y. Infirmary for Women and Chlldren,», skin and Cancer Hospital,
1 i fPresbyterian Hosp., 4; German Hospital, 1; Mt. Sinai Hospital, 3; Foundling Asylum,7; Women's
Hospital and College, -; City Lunatic Asylum, 3; Almshouse, 6 ; Penitentiary, 1; Small-pox Hospital,
I - Charity Hospital, 7; Colored Home Hospital, 1; Nursery and Child's Hospital, 1; St. Luke's
" Hospital, 4; Workhouse, a; Roman Catholic Orphan Asylum, -; Hospital for Ruptured and Crippled,
Nineteenth .... 1 1480.60 2, 8 4i 4 4 . 3 (7 107 66 *58191 -; Home for the Aged (Little Sisters of the Poor), -; Chapin Home for the Aged, Hahnemanns
Hospital, -; Hebrew Orphan Asylum, -; Institution of Mercy,-; Baptist Home,
Convent,-; Montefiore Home, 1; Manhattan Eye and Ear Hospital, -; Twenty-fifth_Precinct Station.
T T s 3 49 8606 -;_Presbyterian Home, -; Deborah Nursery, -; Convent of Lady of Rosary, -; Maternity Hospital, 1
) St. Elizabeth’s Hospital, -; St. Mary’s Hospital, -; Faith Home, -; St.Vincent de Paul’s Nursery, x
Twenty-first... 4 X X > 3 6 3@ 33 66,536  (Bellevue Hospital, 15; in Ambulances, -; Ophthalmic Hospital, -; Skin and Cancer Hospital, -; Home!
i \ " ofthe Friendless, -; Emergency Hospital, 1; Colombine Home, -; Twenty-first Precinct, )
Twenty-second. 1 5%9 42 a 14 57 50 1X,606 jRooseveltHospital, 3; St. John's Home,-; New York InfantAsylum, 4; Twenty-secondPrec 1
Twenty-third... 4,367.033 X X X 5 3 13 38338 |_N.Y.Orphan Asylum -5 N.Y. Med. Cullege and Hosp. for Women, -; In Ambulance,
* Thirty-third Precinct Station, -; Old Gentlemen's Unsectarian Home -; North Brother Island Hospital, x
Twer, ty-fourth. 8,050.333 . 4 3 13388 1Houseof Rest for Consumptives, x; Home for Incurables, ~ St.Joseph’s Institute far Deaf Mutes,-; Thirty-1
(' fifth Precinct Station,-; Peabody Home,-; St.Stephen’s Home,-; N. Y. Skin and Cancer Hospital, -.. J
Total. 24893156 X 6 xo 45 & X 5 7 « 29 & « v35 650 53 1306399 Total mortality in Public Institutions.

Very respectfully submitted, ROGER S. TRACY, M. D., Register of Records.
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Births * reported during the week ending November 19,1887.

Nativity of Parents.

NATIVITY OF NATIVITY OF
FATHER | MOTHER
STATED ONLY,STATED ONLY

$54 647 36* 203 567 87

Marriages * reported during the week ending November 19,1887.

379 2&4 27 25 4

1The returns ofbirths, marriages, and still-births are incomplete.

N ativity o f those who were M arried, and the Parents o f the Births and Still-Births, for the week
ending November 19,1887, and those who D ied [actual m ortality), week ending November 12,1887.

Deaths. Births. Marriages. Still-Births.
9
w2
°g - 5 wE  wE  wE w8 ]
- 5o o o
28 Country. SR ;§ S 38 SE J$-
20 $§ 58 5§ 52 5o £2
& ] = = =] S = =
s © T ] 5 T ]
z z z 2 z z z z
A itrin x9 X9 3 7 *9 3
British America....... 4 4 8 9 3 5<
xi 25 23 24 | 9 z
12 13 R 9 5 z
124 133 Xit 87 74 x§ 13
X30 219 330 83 86 5 XX 2z
2 % 9 6 5% 52 9 8
z.]. 7 25 25 5 4 2
z0 4 4 6 3 2
5 3 5 4 7 8 (2;
37, 143 if* 241 275 85 %8 3 z
L ome not stated 34 37 M 4
WestTndies 3
5 2z 19 55 53 39 24 5 6

Still-Births reported during the week ending November 19, 1887.

Period of Utero-Gestation.

Deaths reported during the week ending November 19, 1887.

Place of Death.

£ STATED.
o
ik é
u
u
uoz ¥ 6 B
£ B *
1 o | n| t
% 0 1 @B s £
6 8x 210 380
670 $54 * o

t Principally children and deaths in institutions.

Statement and Return of Moneys received by Wil
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LAW DEPARTMENT.

am A. Boyd, Corporation Attorney, for th

month of November, 1887, rendered to the Comptroller, in pursuance of the provisions of
Section 26, Article 1, Chapter V. of the Revised Ordinances of 1866; and of Sections 38
and 96 of Chapter 335 of the Laws of 1873.

WHAT FOR.

penalties.

Violation Corporation Ordinances
In the matter of the Commissioners of Public

Charities and Correction vs. Charles
Behrens and Theodore Behrens. 66 00 . 66 00
Violation Corporation Ordinance: 13 00 xi 39 26 39
35 00 6 39 4% 39
TO O 313 is 13
15 00
2 50
In the matter of the Commissioners of Public
Charities and Correction vs. James Ford 57 00 57 00
Violation Corporation Ordinances..... 5 350 50
5 00 300
105 00 14 63" ud &
35 00 889 43
80 QO 9$3 9 "3
80 0O 7 50 37 so
10 00 483 14
30 O x0 00 40
TR
15 00 7 50
5 00 350 7 50
350 3 O
3 0
Total amount collected o

Amount paid over to William Blake, Superintendent of Out-door Poor, in the case
of the People exrel. the Commissioners of Public Charities and Correcllun of the
8!

City of New York vs. Charles Behrens and Theodore Behrens.. 00
Amount paid over to William Blake, Superintendent of Outdoor P

of the People ex rel. the Commissioners of Public Charities and Correction of the

City of New York vs. James Ford 57 00
Disbursemer 67 as

Balance due the City.

WILLIAM A, BOYD, Corporation Attorney.

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT.

Mayor’s Office, New York, November 28, 188,7.

Whereas, It is provided in and by section twelve of chapter seven hundred and eighteen of the
laws of eighteen hundred and eighty-seven, entitled “ An Act to provide for the recording and
indexing of conveyances and instruments relating to land in the City of New York, according to
limited areas,” that if it shall be determined by the Mayor of said city and the Register of the City
and County of New York that said act cannot go into operation at the time therein designated
therefor, by reason of the non-completion of the map or indices referred to in said act, or for any
other reason, thereupon said Mayor, by notice published in the City Record, in the City of New
York for thirty days prior to the expiration of said time, may extend the time for said act to go into
operation, and for the books, maps and indices in said act referred to to be completed, not exceeding
six months from the time in said act designated therefor, and that said act, upon such publication,
shall thereupon go into operation in said Register’s office at the time so to be designated by said
M ayWhereas The said Mayor and Register have determined  that said act cannot go into operation
at the time therein designated therefor, by reason of the non-completion of said map and indices,
and for other reasons; .

Now, therefore, I, Abram S. Hewitt, Mayor of the City of New York, do hereby give notice
that | have extended and do hereby extend the time for said act to go into operation, and for said
books, maps and indices to be completed, to the thirtieth day of June, in the year one thousand
eight hundred and eighty-eight, which is hereby designated by me as the date upon which said act

go into operation in said Register's office. ABRAM s. HEWITT, Mnyor.

POLICE DEPARTMENT.

The Board of Police met on the 29th day of November, 1887.
Present— Commissioners French (President), Porter, McClave and Voorhis.

Leaves o f Absence Granted.

Sergeant Charles M. Granger, Ninth Precinct, two days, half pay.

Patrolman Christian Merckle, First Precinct, five days, half pay.

Report of the Superintendent enclosing $60, fees for masked balls, was referred to the Treasurer
to pa% into the Pension Fund.

eport of Captain Hooker, Twenty-mnth Precinct, on condition of East One Hundred and

Eleventh and One Hundred and Twelfth streets, was ordered on file.

Report of the Treasurer’'s Bookkeeper on unexpended balances for 1880 was referred to the
Comptroller. .

Mask Ball Permit Granted.

Emil D. Francois, at Nilsson Hall, December 7.

Applications for Full Pay while Sick Denied.

Patrolman Michael Savage, Seventh Precinct.
James Sullivan, Fifteenth Precinct.

Applications Referred to Committee on Pensions.

Euphemia M. Davis, widow of David C. Davis, for pension.
Emma F. Cope and Sarah E. Hennion, guardians of children of Gerard E. Beekman, for
increase of pension.

Applications Referred to Commissioners Voorhis and McClave.

William E. Thom and others— For appointment of John Foley as Stableman.

J. N. Hegeman & Co.— For detail of an officer at Broadway and Eighth street.

Sisters of Good Shepherd— For detail of officer at House of Good Shepherd.

Patrolman Edward M. Reagan, Nineteenth Precinct, for transfer.

Application of Patrolman Thomas Coughlin, Nineteenth Precinct, for promotion, was referred
to the Board of Examiners for citation.

Application of the Gorham Manufacturing Co.—For appomlmenl of James A. Murphy as
Special Patrolman, was referred to the Superintendent f§x report.

Application of Patrolman Samuel J. Campbell, Twenty-fifth Precinct, for leave to take balance
of vacatlon before December 31, was grante "

Application of Sergeant Michael M Ruoney, Twenty- ~first Precinct, for retirement, was referred

to the Board of Surgeons for report.

Application of "the Counsel to the Corporation for return to writ in case of Edward Baumann,
was referred to the Chief Clerk to furnish.

Communications Ordered on File.

Elizabeth Adler, relative to her son Julius.
Nathan Seurs, President Sanitarium for Hebrew Children, thanking Board for detail of Patrol-
man William Belton on excursions.
Communications Referred to Chief Clerk to Answer.

Exchange Bath Co., relative to permits for advertising.
Charles M. Preston— Relative to blanks for appomtment of Patrolmen.
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Communications Referred to the Superintendent.

From the Mayor— Sundry complaints, etc.

From Board of Excise— Licenses rejected, 4 cases ; as to character, etc., of Charles Pilkington,
No. 2313 Third avenue ; August Baur, No. 2412 Third avenue.

from Commissioner of Street Cleaning— Relative to change of time for collection of ashes, etc.

Transfer.

Patrolman John Cusick, from Thirty-first Precinct to Twenty-second Precinct.
Resolved, That the Superintendent be directed to detail three officers at the store of Stern Bros.,
on West Twenty-third street, during the holidays, if they can be spared— Inspector Byrnes to name
the officers to be so detailed.
Resolved, That the Committee of Surgeons be directed to examine the following applicants for
appointment as Patrolmen :
Hubert Farrell,

Francis Joseph Muller.

Resignation Accepted.
Edgar Castle, Special Patrolman.

Employed on Probation.
William F. Reagan.
Retired—all ave.

Patrolman John Murphy, Third Precinct, $600 per year.

Resolved, That permission be and is hereby given to the managers of the Masonic Fair to use
two ballot-boxes, to be returned in good order at the close of the fair.

Resolved, That the following changes be made in the boundaries of the Twenty-third and
Twenty-fifth Precincts:

The northern boundary of the Twenty-third Precinct shall be the centre line of Fifty-seventh
street, from Fifth avenue to East river, and the northern curb-line of Fifty-ninth street, from the
westerly curb-line of Fifth avenue to the centre line of Sixth avenue.

The southern boundary of the Twenty-fifth Precinct shall be the centre line of Fifty-seventh
street, from Fifth avenue to East river.

Resolved, That the Superintendent be directed to transfer four Patrolmen to the Twenty-fifth
Precinct, and report.

Resolved, That the resolution of the 25th instant, directing the opening of the new Twenty-
fifth Precinct Station-house, be amended by making the time for opening on Wednesday, November
30, 1887, at 6 o'clock P. M.

Resolved, That the pay-rolls of the Police Department and force, and of the Central Depart-
ment for the tponth of November, 1887, when properly audited and approved, be and are hereby
ordered to be paid by the Treasurer—all aye.

Resolved, That full pay while sick be granted to the folioing officers—all aye :

Roundsman Herman Weiss, Twenty-seventh Precinct, from November 1 to November 30, 1887.

Patrolman F. A. V. Terpening, Twenty-eighth Precinct, from November 12 to November 21,
1887.

Patrolman Ellsworth S. Drew, Twenty-ninth Precinct, from October 16 to October 27, 1887.
Resolved, That the Superintendent be directed to issue an order to the force, directing them
to assume the winter hat on December 1, 1887, at 8 o’clock A. M.

Judgments— Dismissals—all aye.

Patrolman William Gibson, Ninth Precinct, under influence of liquor.
“ Patrick Masterson, Twenty-seventh Precinct, under influence of liquor.
Francis Murphy, Twenty-seventh Precinct, under influence of liquor.
Adjourned.
WM. H. KIPP, ChiefClerk.

LAW DEPARTMENT.

The following schedules form a report of the transactions of the office of the Counsel to the

Corporation for the week ending November 26, 1887 :

The Mayor, Aldermen and Commonalty of the City of New York are defendants, unless
otherwise mentioned.
SCHEDULE “ A.”
SUITS AND SPECIAL PROCEEDINGS INSTITUTED.
Supreme Court.

Daniel Hoflman— That assessment for Boulevard sewers, between 'One Hundred and Sixth and One
Hundred and Fifty-third streets, on Ward Nos. 20 to 27, 29 to 32, Block 1187, and Ward No.
31, Block 1291, be declared void and to recover back, etc., $458.40.

Thomas B. Gilford—That assessment be reduced and for the excess paid February 15, 1883, for
assessment for sewer in Avenue A, between Fifty-ninth and Sixty-first streets, with branches,
on Ward Nos. 17, 18, 19 and 20, Block 86, $1,592.28.

The Mayor, etc., of the City of New York, vs. The Metropolitan Ferry Company— For possession
of wharf premises at Eighth street and East river, held adversely by defendant since July 1,
1887, and damages for unlawful detention, $20,000.

The Citizen’s National Bank of Yonkers—That assessment for Boulevard sewers, between One Hun-
dred and Sixth and One Hundred and Fifty-third streets, on Ward No. 49, Block 1180, and
Ward Nos. 15 and 45, Block 1181, be declared void, and that plaintiff recover back, etc.,

37-93-

DaviﬁaFrank— For excess of assessment paid for regulating, grading, etc., One Hundred and Sixth
street, from Third avenue to East river, on Ward Nos. 39 and 40, Block 134, Twenty-first
Ward, $183.20.

The Mayor, etc., of the City of New York vs. Emeline Roach— For possession of dock premises at
Eighth street and East river, held adversely by defendant since June 20, 1885, and for damages
for unlawful detention, $10,000.

In re petition of Joseph G. Mills, Trenor W. Park, Edwin M. Martin and others—To vacate an
assessment for Sixty-sixth street outlet sewer, Eighth avenue to Tenth avenue, etc.

Superior Court.

Dina Hake— For excess of assessment paid for regulating and paving Third avenue, between West-
chester avenue and One Hundred and Sixty-third street, on Ward No. 93 and south half of 92,
Map Nos. 43 and 44, $385.76.

Common Pleas.

The People of the State of New York on the relation of Simon E. Bemheimer and August Schmid
vs. The Department of Public Parks— Mandamus to compel granting to relators permission to
lay pipes under the surface of the Riverside Park.

U. S. District Court.
Charles Marcellus, Jr.— Citation.
S. B. New York Lighterage and Chartering Association et al.— Salvage, $200.

SCHEDULE “B.”
JUDGMENTS ENTERED AND ORDERS OF THE GENERAL AND SPECIAL TERMS.

John H. McCoy— Entered General Term order of reversal and ordering new trial with costs to abide
the event.

Charles W. Lowerre et al.— Entered General Tom order reversing judgment and overruling the
demurrer with leave to plaintiffs to reply twenty days after service of this order.

The Mayor, etc., vs. Jeremiah W. Dimick— Entered order overruling demurrer with costs, with leave
to withdraw demurrer and answer in twenty days on payment ofcosts.

Matter of Joseph Kuntz (an alleged lunatic)— Order entered discontinuing action without costs by
consent.

George W. McLean, as Receiver, etc., vs. Edison Electric Light Company of Europe—Order entered
discontinuing action without costs by consent.

Leonard W. Johnson—Judgment entered in favor of plaintiff for $1,247.64, after trial,
Donohue, J., and jury.

The St. Paul Evangelical Church—Order entered discontinuing action without costs by consent.

In re David Hall, sewers in Third avenue— Order entered reducing assessment pursuant to decision
in re New York Lumber and Wood Turning Company.

Joseph Walsh— Entered General Term order denying plaintiff's motion setting aside verdict and
directing judgment for defendants with costs.

Matter Michael Mere, One Hundred and Fifty-fifth street regulating, etc.,
confirming report of referee upon motion before Freedman, J.

Virgilio Del Genovese— Order entered denying motion for new trial on the minutes before Truax, J.

New York, Lake Erie and Western Railroad Company— Decree entered in favor of libelant for
$182.10; no defense.

Thomas McCusker—Decree entered in favor of libelant for $90.91 after trial before Brown, J.

Catharine L. Ryan—Judgment entered in favor of the City, dismissing the complaint and for
$111.82 costs.

before

award— Order entered

1887.
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Charles McCay—Judgment entered in favor of plaintiff, $146.20 after trial before O'Gorman J.,
and jury.

James Earley—Judgment entered in favor of plaintiff for $549.40 after trial before Allen, J., and
jury.

People ex rel. New York Electric Lines Company vs. John Newton as Commissioner of Public
Works— Order entered denying motion for mandamus with costs before Potter, J.

Joseph Walsh—Judgment entered in favor of the City, setting aside verdict and for $196.45 costs,
etc., against plaintiff upon order of General Term.

SCHEDULE “C.”

People ex rel. William E. Demarest et al. vs. James A. Flack, as County Clerk, and The Mayor,
etc.—Motion for mandamus submitted to Barrett, J. ; decision reserved; D. J. Dean for the
City.

Charles Mccayaned before O'Gorman, J.,
claimed ; W. Carmalt for the City.

Matter New York and Harlem Railroad Co.— Motion to remove Commissioners made before

and jury ; verdict directed for plaintiff for full amount

Barrett, J. ; denied without prejudice to going to General Term ; D. J. Dean for the City.

Alexander B. Crane, executor, etc.— Argued at General Term ; decision reserved ; G. S. Coleman
for the City.

Gustav Reetz— Tried before Truax, J. and jury ; verdict for plaintifffor $2,000; E.J, Freedman for
the City.

James Earley— Tried before Allen, J. and jury ; verdict for plaintiff for $400; T. P. Wickes, for the
City.

Department of Public
D. J. Dean

People of the State of New York, Simon E. Bemheimer and another vs.
Parks— Motion for mandamus argued before Bookstaver, J. ; decision reserved ;
for the City.

Henry B. Metcalf— Tried before Beach, J.,
send for the City.

incoln avenue opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate and Assessment made
before Barrett, J .; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

Claremont avenue opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate and Assessment made
before Barrett, J .; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

Elton avenue opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate and Assessment made before
Barrett, J. ; papers to be submitted ; I.. McLaughlin for the City.

College avenue opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate and Assessment made before
Barrett, J. ; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

Brown place opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate and Assessment made before
Barrett, J. ; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

Alexander avenue opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate and Assessment made
before Barrett, J. ; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

East One Hundred and Sixty-second street opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate
and Assessment made before Barrett, J .; papers to-be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

East One Hundred and Fifty-fifth street opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate and
Assessment made before Barrett, J .; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

East One Hundred and Fifty-second street opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate
and Assessment made before Barrett, J .; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

East One Hundred and Forty-eighth street opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate
and Assessment made before Barrett, J.; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

East One Hundred and Forty-sixth street opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate
and Assessment made before Barrett, J .; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

East One Hundred and Forty-second street openmg— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate
and Assessment made before Barrett, J.; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

East One Hundred and Forty-third street opening— Motion to appoint Commissioners of Estimate
and Assessment made before Barrett, J .; papers to be submitted ; L. McLaughlin for the City.

Matter Railroad avenue—Argued at General Term ; decision reserved ; D. J. Dean for the City.

Matter Simon Bemheimer and another, Manhattan street outlet sewer— Motion to dismiss appeal
abandoned ; papers on appeal and briefs submitted to General Term ; G.S. Coleman for the
City.

William Anderson—Argued at General Term ; decision reserved ; W. L. Turner for the City.

Josiah T. Lockwood vs. Artemas S. Cady, as Clerk of Arrears—Argument concluded ; briefs to be
submitted ; W. Carmalt for the City.

Thomas McCusker—Tried before Brown, J .; verdict for $59.04 ; W. T. Cox for the City.

Matter of Michael Merz, One Hundred and Fifty-fifth street award— Motion to confirm report of
referee made ; granted ; R. H. Smith for the City.

Denis W. Moran— Reference proceeded and adjourned without day ; W. Carmalt for the City.

Henry K. S. Williams— Reference proceeded and adjourned to December 9, at 11 A.m. ; F.
Irish for the City.

William M. Kingsland— Reference proceeded and adjourned to December 9, at 11 A.m.
Irish for the City.

and jury ; verdict for plaintiff for $1,297 ; J. J. Town-

s FOOAL

MORGAN J. O'BRIEN, Counsel to the Corporation.

CIVILSERVICE SUPERVISORY OFFICIAL DIRECTORY.
AND EXAMlNlNG BOARDS. Catomentofihe hoursduring which
S all the Public Offlcesm the City are open for business.,
and at which each Court regularly opens and adjourns, as
R Ciuvi well as of the places where such offices are keptand such
City of New York—Civil Service \' ' Courtsare held; together with the heads of Departments
Supervisory and Examining Boards, |  and Courts.

Secretary’s Office,. >
Room it, City Hall, 1
New York, June 3,1887. J

Thomas Costigan, Esq.,
Supervisor City Record:

Dear Sir — The following amendment to
Regulation 16 of the New York City Civil
Service Regulations has been made :

If the appointing officer shall notify the Sec-
retary of more than one vacancy at any one time,
the Secretary shall certify to the appointing of-
ficer for appointment, the names of as many
persons as there are vacancies to be filled, with
the addition of two names for the first vacancy
and one name for every two vacanciesin addition
to the first.

Yours respectfully,

LEE PHILLIPS,
Secretary and Executive Officer.

City of New York—Civil Service \
Supervisory and Examining Boards, f
Secretary’s Office,
Room 11, City Halu,
New York, May 31, 1887. J

Thomas Costigan, Esq.,
Supervisor :

Dear Sir—The following resolution was
passed by the Supervisory Board at their meet-
ing, held May 27, 1887 :

' Resolved, That in view of the inadequate
space in the Secretary's office and in order to
enable him more readily to discharge the business
of the same, the Secretary is authorized to
arrange the business of the office so that the same
shall be open for personal interviews with appli-
cants ana the public during a part of the day
only.”

Pursuant to the above action, | hereby desig-
nate the two hours between 2 and 4 o'clock in
afternoon as the time for which the offices shall
be open for personal interviews with applicants
and the public.

Very rcspectfally,
LEE PHILLIPS,
Secretary and Executive Officer.

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT.
Mayor's Office.
No. 6 City Hall, 10 a. m.to 3 r. m.
ABRAM S. HEWITT, Mayor; Arthur Berry.
Secretary and ChiefClerk.
Mayor's Marshalls Office.
No. x City Hall, 9a. m. to 4p. m
Thomas W. Byrnes, First Marshal
George W. Brown. Jr., Second Marshal

COMMISSIONERS OF ACCOUNTS.
Rooms X14and 115, Stewart Building, 9 a. m.to 4 p. m—
Wm. Pitt Shearman, J. B. Adamson.

AQUEDUCT COMMISSIONERS.

Room aoo, Stewart Building, 5th floor, 9 a.m.to 5 p.m.

Jambs C. Spencer, President; John C. Sheehan,.
Secretary; Benjamin S. Church, ChiefEngineer;J. C.
Lultey, Auditor.

BOARD OF ARMORY COMMISSIONERS.
The Mayor, Chairman; President op Department-
op Taxes and Assessments, Secretary.
Address M. Coleman, Staats Zeitung Building, Tryon-
Row. Office hours, 9a. m to4 p.m. ; Saturdays, 9 a. m.
toxaM

LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT.
Office of Clerk of Common Council,
No.8City Hall, xoa.m.to 4 p.m
Henry R. Bbkkman, President Board of Aldermen
Francis J. Twomey, Clerk Common Council.
(My Library.
No. xa City Hall, 10a. m.to 4 p. m.
Bernard Jacobs, City Librarian.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.
Commissioner's Office.
No. 31 Chambers street, 9 A. **- to 4 P.m.
John Newton, Commissioner; D. Lowber Smith,.
Deputy Commissioner.
Bureau.of Chief Engineer.
No. 31 Chambers street, 9 a. M. to 4 PM.
George w. Birdsall, Chief Engineer.
Bureau 0/ Water Register.
No. 31 Chambers street, 9 A M. to 4 P.m.
John H. Chambers. Register.
Bureau o f Street Improvements.
No. 31 Chambers street, 9a.m. to 4r. m
Wm. M. Dean, Superintendent.
Engineer-in-Charge o f Sewers.
No. *1Chambers street, oa. m. to 4_p.M.
Horace Loomb, Engineer-m-Charge.
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Bureau i f Repairsand Supplies.
No. 31 Chambers street, 9a.m. to 4 p.m.
am G. Bergen, Superintendent.
Bureau of Water Purveyor.
No. 31 Chambers street, g a. m. to 4 p. m.
Alston Culver, Water Purveyor.
Bureau ofLampsand Gas.
No. 31 Chambers street, 9 A. m. to 4 p. m.
S tephen McCormick, Superintendent.
Bureau of Streets.

No. 31 Chambers street, 9 A. m. to 4 p.m.
-Geo. E. Babcock, Superintendent.

Bureau  Incumbrances.
No. 31 Chambers street, 9 a. m. to 4 p. m.
John Richardson, Superintendent.
Keeperif Buildingsin City HallPark.
Martin J. Keese, City Hall.

FINANCE DEPARTMENT.

Com ptrollers Office.
No. 15 Stewart Buulding. Chambers street and Broad*
1 vway, 9 A.m. to
Edward V. Loew Comptroller; Richard A. Storrs,
Deputy Comptroller.
Auditing Bureau.
Nos. 19, ax, S3 Stewart Bullding‘ Chambers street an
foroadway, 9a. m. to 4
Wi

tiam J. Lyon, First Auditor.
E. Austen, Second Auditor.

Dav

Bureaufor the Collection of Assessmentsand Arrears
of Taxesand Assessmentsand tf Water Rents.
Nos. 31, 33, 35, 37, 39 Stewart Building, Chambers
1 streetand Broadway, 9A.m. to4P.M
Artbmas S. Cady, Collector of Assessments and
Clerk of Arrears.

Bureaufor the Collection of City Revenue and qf

Nos. 1 and 3 Stewart Building, Chambers street and
Broadway, 9a.m. to 4

James J. Kelso, Collector of the City Revenue and
Superintendent of Markets,

Graham McAdam, ChiefClerk.

Bureaufo r the Collection of Taxes.

No. 57 Chambers street and No. 35 Reade street,
Stewart Building.

George W. McLean, Receiver of Taxes;
Vrbdbnburgh, Deputy Receiver of Taxes.

Bureau ofthe City Chamberlain.

Nos. as, 37 Stewart Building, Chambers street and
Broadway, 9 A.m. t0 4 P. m

w Ivins, City Chamberlain.

Alrfred

Office o fthe City Paymaster.

No. 33 Reade street, Stewart Building.
John H. Timmerman, City Paymaster,

LAW DEPARTMENT.

Officeo fthe Counselto the Corporation.
Staats Zeitung Building, third floor, 9 A.M to 5p.m.
Saturdays, 9 a.m. to 4 p. m.
Morgan J. O'Brien, Counsel to the Corporation
A ndrew T. Campbell, ChiefClerk.
Officeo f the Public Administrator.
No. 49 Beekman street, 9a. m. to 4 p.m.
Richard J. Morrisson, Public Administrator.
Officei f the Corporation Attorney.

No. 49 Beekman street, 9a. m. to4p M
William A. Boyd, Corporation Attorney.

POLICE DEPARTMENT.

Central Office.
No. 300 Mulberry street, 9a.m. to 4 p.m.
Stephen B. French, President; William H. Kipp,
ChiefClerk;John J. O’Brien, ChiefBureau of Elections.

DEPARTMENT OF CHARITIES AND CORREC-
TION.

Central Office.
No. 66 Third avenue, corner Eleventh street, 9 a. m. to

Charles E. Simmons, President; George F. Brittof

1 Secretary.
Purchasing Agent, Frederick A. Cushman Office
hours, 9 A p.m. Closed Saturdays, xa m.

Contracts, Proposals and Estimates for Work ana Ma-
terials for Building, Repairs and Supplies, Bills and
Accounts. 9 a. m. to 4p.m. Closed Saturdays, 12 m
Rufus L. Wilder, General Bookkeeper and Auditor.

FIRE DEPARTMENT.
Office hours for all except where otherwise noted from
AAMtodp. M Saturdays, to 12 m.
Headquarters.

Nos. 157 and 159 East Sixty-seventh street.
Henry D. Purroy, President; Carl Jussbn, Sec-

retsry. .
Bureau ofChiefo fDepartment.

Charles O. Shay, Chiefof Department.
Bureau qfInspector o f Combustibles.
Peter Seery, Inspector of Combustibles.
Bureau ofFire Marshal.
G eorge H. Sheldon, Fire Marshal.
Bureau of Inspection o fBuildings
A Ibert F. D'Oenck, Superintendent of Buildings.
Attorney to Department.
W m. L. Findley.
Fire Alarm Telegraph.
J. Eltiot Smith, Superintendent
Central Office open at all hours.
Repair Shops.
Nos. xs8 and 130 West Third street.
John Castles, Foreman-in-Charge, 8a.m. to 5p.m.
Hospital Stables.

Ninety-ninth street, between Ninth and Tenth avenues
Joseph Shea, Foreman-in-Charge.
Open at all hours

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

No. 301 Mott street, 9 a. m.
Jambs C. Bayles, Preslden(
Secretary.

p.M
Emmons Crark,

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC PARKS.
Immigrant Industrial savings Bank Building Nos. 49
and si Chambers street, 9 a.m.
M. Borden, President; CharlesDeF Burns,

Secretary. L B
Civiland Topographical Office.

Arsenal, Sixty-fourth street and Fifth avenue, 9A. M
to5p. M

Officet f Superintendentofa3d and a4th W ards.

One Huudred and Forty-sixth street and Third ave-
nue, 9AM. to s P.M.
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DEPARTMENT OF DOCKS.

Battery, Pier A, North River, 9a.M to 4P M
L.J.N .Stark, President; G. Kemble, Secret*ry.
Office hours from 9 a. M to 4 p. m. daily, except Satur-

days ; on Saturdays as follows: from October x to June
1, from9a. M to 3 p.m. ; from June x to September 30,
from9A M to 12 M.

DEPARTMENT OF TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS,
Staats Zeitung Building, Tryon Row, 9a.m.to 4P.M.

saturdays, 12 m
Michael Coleman,

Secretary.

Office Bureau Collection i f Arrearso fPersonal Taxes
Brown-stone Building, City Hall Park, 0 a.m.to 4p. m.
Charles S. Beardsley, Attorney; William Com-

brford. Clerk

President; Floyd T. Smith,

DEPARTMENT OF STREET CLEANING.
Nos. 31 and 32 Park Row, “ World” Building, Rooms
X, 2and 3, 9a.m. to 4 p.M.
James S. Coleman, Commissioner; Jacob Seabold,
Deputy Commissioner : R. W. Horner, ChiefClerk,

CIVIL SERVICE SUPERVISORY AND EXAMIN-
ING BOARDS.

Room No. ix, City Hall.

Everett P. Wheeler, Chairman of the Supervisory
Board; Lee Phillips, Secretary* and Executive Officer.

BOARD OF ESTIMATE AND APPORTIONMENT
Office of Clerk, Staats Zeitung Building Room 5.
The Mayor, Chairman: Charles V. Adbe, Clerk.

REGISTER'S OFFICE.
East side City Hall Park, 9A.M to 4 p.m.
James J. Slevin, Register; James J. Martin, Deputy
Register.

COMMISSIONER OF JURORS.

Room 127, Stewart Building, Chambers street and

Broadway, 9 a. . m.

Charles Reilly, Commissioner; James E. Conner,
Deputy Commissioner

COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE.

Nos. 7 and 8 New County Court-house, 9 a.m. to 4 p. m.

Jambs A. Flack, County Clerk; Thomas F. Gilroy,
Deputy County Clerk:

DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE.
Second floor, Brown-stone Building, City Hall Park,
a.m todp.
Randolph B. Martinb, District Attorney; Andrew
D. Parker, Chief Clerk.

THE CITY RECORD OFFICE,
AndBureau if Printing, Stationery, and Blank Books
No. 2 City Hall, 9a.m. lo 5 p.m., except Saturdays, on
which days 9a.m. to 3 p.
Thomas Costigan, Superwsor R.P.H.Abell, Book-
keeper.

BOARD OF ASSESSORS
Office City Hall, Room No. xxJfo 9a. m. to 4
Edward ton. Chairman ; Wm. H. jasper, Secre(ary

BOARD OF EXCISE
No. 54 Bond street, 9 a. m. t
Charles H. Woodman, President; DavldS White,
Secretary and ChiefClerk.

SHERIFF'S OFFICE
Nos. 3and 4 New County Court-house, 9 a.m. to 4 p. m.
Hu . Grant, Sheriff; John exton, Under
Sheriff: BernardF Martin, Order Arrest Clerk.

CORONERS' OFFICE

Nos. 13 and 15 Chatham street, 8a.m.to 5P.M  Sun-
days and holidays, 8a. m. to 12.30 p. m.

Michael J. B. Messemer, Ferdinand Levy, Ferdi-

nand Eidman, John R. Nugent, Coroners; John T.
Toal, Clerk of th Board of Coroners.

SUPREME COURT.

Second floor, New County Court-house, opensat 10.30a. m.
Charles H. Van Brunt, PresidingJustice ; Jambs A.
Flack, Clerk; Thomas F. Gilroy, Deputy County
Clerk.
General Term, Room No. 9, Wil liam LAMBJr., Clerk.
Special Term, Part |., Room No. 10, Hugh Donnelly,
Clerk.
Special Term, Part II.,
Hilr, Clerk
Chambers, Room No. 11, Walter Brady, Clerk.
Circuit, Part I., Room No. 12, Samuel Barry, Clerk.
Circuit, Part I1., Room No. 14, RichardJ. Sullivan,

Room No. 18, William J

Clerk.
Circuit, Part 111,
Clerk.
Circuit, Part IV., Room No. 15, J. Lewis Lyon, Clerk.
Judges' Private Chambers, Rooms Nos. 19 and 20,
Edward J. Knight, Librarian.

Room No. 13, George F. Lyon,

SUPERIOR COURT.
Third floor, New County Court-house, Xx A. m.
General Term, Room No. 35.
Special Term, Room No. 33.
Chambers, Room No. 33, 10A. m.
Part Iy Room No. 34.
Part I1., Room No. 35
Part I11., Room No. 36.
Judges’ Private Chambers, Room No. 30.
Naturalization Bureau, Room No, 32.
Clerk’s Office, Room No. 31, 9 A.'m. to 4 p. M.
John Sedgwick, Chief Judge; T homas Boesb, CI
Clerk.

COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.
Third floor, New County Court-house, XX a. m.
Assignment Bureau, Room No. 23,9 a.m.to 4 p.m
Clerk’s Office, Room No. 22, 9a. m.to 4p. m.
General Term, Room No. 24, Xi o'clock a.m. to ad-
journment. _
Special Term, Room No. ax, it o'clock a. m. to adjourn

it.
Chambers, Room No. ax, 10.300'clock A M. to adjourn-

., Room No. 25, xx o'clock a. m. to adjournment.
Room No. 26, xx o'clock a. m. to adjournment.

Room No. 27, xx o'clock a. m . to adjournment.
Naturalization Bureau, Room No. 23, 9a.m.to 4P.M
Richard L. Larremore, Chief Justice; Nathaniel
Jarvis, Jr., Chief Clerk.

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS.

No. 32 Chambers street. Parts 1. and I1. Court opens
at xx o'clock A.

Frederick Smyth, Recorder; Henry A. Gilder-
sleeve and Rufus B. Cowing, Judges of the said Court.

Terms, first Monday each month.

John Sparks, Clerk. Office, Room No. xx, 10 a. m. till

P.M.

CITY COURT.
City Hall.

General Term, Room No. 20.
Trial Term, Part I., Room No. 20,
Room No. 19.
, Room No. 15.
erm, Chambers, Room No. ax, 10a. m. to4 p. m.
Clerk’s Office, Room No. xo, City Hall, ga.m.to4p. m.
David McAdam, ChiefJusuce; John R eid, Clerk.

PartI1.,

OYER AND TERMINER COURT

New County Court-house, second floor, southeast cor-
ner, Room No. Xa. Court opens at xoJE o'clock a. m.

Clerk's Office, Brown-stone Building, City Hall Park,

second floor, northwest corner, Room No. xx, o a. m. till

COURT OF SPECIAL SESSIONS
At Tombs, corner Franklin and Centre streets, daily
at 10.30 a. m., excepting Saturday.
Clerk’s Office, Tombs.

DISTRICT CIVIL COURTS.

First District—First, Second, Third and Fifth Wards,
southwest corner of Centre and Chambers streets.

Michael Norton, Justice.

Clerk’s office open from 9 A. m.to 4 p. m.

Second District— Fourth, Sixth and Fourteenth Wards,
corner of Pearl and Centre streets, 9 A. M. to 4 p. m.

Charles M. Clancy, Justice.

Third District—Ninth and Fifteenth Wards, southwest
corner Sixth avenue and West Tenth street. Court open
daily (Sundays and legal holidays excepted) from9 a. m.
to4P.M

George W. Parker,Justice.

Fourth District—Tenth and Seventeenth Wards, No
30First street, comer Second avenue. Courtopens9a. m.
daily; continues to close of business.

Alfred Steckler, Justice.

Fifth District—Seventh, Eleventh and Thirteenth
Wards, No. 154 Clinton street.

John H. McCarthy, Tustice.

Sixth District— Eighteenth and Twenty-first Wards,
No. 6x Union place, Fourth avenue, southwest comer of
Eighteenth street. Court opens 9 a.m. daily; continues
to close of business.

illiam H. Kelly, Justice.

Seventh District— Nineteenth and Twenty-second
Wards, No. xsx East Fifty-seventh street. Court opens
every morning at 9 o'clock (except Sundays and legal
holidays) and continues to the close of business.

Ambrose Monell, Justice.

Eighth District—Sixteenth and Twentieth Wards,
southwest corner of Twenty-second street and Seventh
avenue. Courtopens at9 a. m. and continues to close O
business. Clerk’s office open from g a. m. to 4 p. m. each
court day.

On and after Monday, October 3,1887, the trial days
of this Court will be Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays,

Frederick G. Gbdney, Justice.

Ninth District—Twelfth Ward, No. 225 East One Hun-
dred and Twenty-fifth street.

Henry P. McGown,_Justice.

Clerk’s office open daily from 9 a. m.to 4 p. m. Trial
davs Tuesdays and Fridays. Court opens at oH a.m.

Tenth District—Twenty-third and Twenty-fourth
Wards, corner of Third avenue and One Hundred and
Fifty-eighth street.

Offlce hours, from9a.m.to4 p. m.

Court opens at

Andrew J. Rogers, Justice.
Eleventh District—No. 919 Eighth avenue; Twenty-
second Ward, and all that part of the Twelfth ward
lying south of One Hundred and Tenth street and west
of Sixth avenue. Court open daily (Sundays and legal
holidays excepted) from 9 a. m. to 4 p. M.
o C. Dessar, Justice.

POLICE COURTS.

Judges—Maurice J. Power, J. Henry Ford, Jacob
Patterson, Jr., James T. Kilbreth,JohnJ. Gorman,
Henry Murray, Solon B.Smith, Andrew J. White,
Charles Welde, Daniel O'Reilly, Patrick G.
Duffy.

George W. Cregier, Secretary.

Office of Secretary, Fifth District Police Court, One
Hundred and Twenty-fifth street, near Fourth avenue.

First District—Tombs, Centre street.

Second District—Jefferson Market.

Third District— No. 69 Essex street.

Fourth District— Fifty-seventh street, near Lexington
avenue.

Fifth District—One Hundred and Twenty-fifth street,
near Fourth avenue.

Sixth_District—One Hundred and Fifty-eighth street
and Third avenue.

THE CITY RECORD.

OPIES OF THE CITY RECORD CAN BE
obtained at No. a City Hall northwest comer
basement). Price three cents each.

SUPREME COURT.

In the matter of the application of the Department of
Public Works, forand on behalfofthe Mayor, Aldermen
and Commonalty of the City of New York, relative to
the opening of ONE HUNDRED AND SEVEN-
TIETH STREET, from Tenth avenue to the Kings-
bridge road, in the City of New York.

E, THE UNDERSIGNED, COMMISSIONERS

| of Estimate and Assessment in the above-
entitled matter, hereby give notice to the owner or
owners, occupant or occupants, of all houses and lots and
improved or unimproved lands affected thereby, and to
all others whom it may concern, to wit:

First—That we have completed our estimate and
assessment, and that all persons interested in these pro-
ceedings, or in any of the lands affected thereby, and
who may be opposed to the same, do present their
objections in writing, duly verified, to us at our office,
No. 200 Broadway (fifth floor), in the said city, on or
before the thirteentn day of January, 1888, and that
we, the sai Commissioners, will hear parties so
objecting wi the ten week-days next after the said
thirteenth day of January, 1888, and for that pur-
posewill be inattendance at our said office on each of
said ten days, at 12 o'clock m.

Second— That the abstract of'the said estimate and
assessment, together with our maps, and* also all the
affidavits, estimates and other documents which were
used by Us in making our report, have been deposited in
the office of the Department of Public Works, in the
City of New York, there to remain until the thirteenth
dav ofJanuary, 1

Third—That the limits embraced by the assessment
aforesaid are as follows, towit: All those lots, pieces or
parcels of land, situate, lying and being in the City ofNew
York, which taken together are bounded and described
as follows, viz.: Northerly by the centre line of the
blocks between One Hundred and Seventieth street and
One Hundred and Seventy-first street; easterly by the
westerly side of Tenth avenue ; southerly by the centre
line of the blocks between One Hundred and Sixty-
ninth street and One Hundred”™ and Seventieth street;
and westerly by the easterly side of Kingsbridge road
and the easterly sideof Eleventh avenue; excepting from
said area all the streets and avenues heretofore opened
and all the unimproved land included within the lines of
streets, avenues, roads, public squares or places shown
and laid out upon any map or mapsfiled by the Commis-
sioners of the Department of Public Parks, pursuant to
the provisions of chapter 604 of the Laws of 1874, and the
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laws amendatory thereof, or of chapter 410 of the Laws
of 1882, as such area is shown upon our benefit map
deposited as aforesaid.

Fourth—That our report herein will be presented to
the Supreme Court of the State of New York, at a
Special Term thereof, to be held at the chambers
thereof, in the County Court-house, at the City Hall,
in the City oi New York, on the twenty-seventh day of
January, 1888, at the opening of the Court on that day,
and that then and there, or as soon thereafter as counsel
can be heard thereon, a motion will be made that the said
report be confirmed.

Dated New York, December x, 1887.

CHARLES A. HERRMANN,

JOHN A. GOODLETT,

JACOB P. BERG,
Commissioners.

Carroll Berry, Clerk.

In the matter of the application of the Board of Street
Opening and Improvement of the City of New York,
for and on behalf of the Mayor, Aldermen and Com-
monalty of the City of New York, relative to the
opening of ONE HUNDRED AND SEVENTY-
THIRD STREET, from Tenth avenue to the Kings-
bridge road, in the Twelfth Ward of the City of New
York.

URSUANT TO THE STATUTES IN SUCH
cases made and provided, the Mayor, Aldermen and
Commonalty of the City of New York hereby gives notice
that the Counsel to the Corporation will apply to the
Supreme Court in the First Judicial District of the State
of New York, at a Special Term thereof, to be held at
Chambers of said Court, in the County Court-house in
the City of New York, on the 8th day of December, 1887,
at 10.30 oclcck in the forenoon of that day, or as soon
thereafter as COunseI can be heard thereon, for the ap-
pointmentofa Col ner of Estimate and Assessment
in the above proceedlng in the place and stead of Augustus
J. Requier, deceased.
Dated New York, November 3,1887.
MORGAN J. O'BRIEN,
Counsel to the Corporation,
No.2Tryon Row, New York City.

In the matter of the application of the Commissioners of
the Department of Public Parks, for and on behalf of
the Mayor, Aldermen and Commonalty of the City of
New York, relative to acquiring title, wherever the
same has not been heretofore acquired, to that part
of BURNSIDE AVENUE (although notyet named
by proper authority), extending from Sedgwick ave-
nue to Webster avenue, in the Twenty-fourth Ward
of theCity of New York, as the same has been here-
tofore laid out and designated as a first-class street or
road by said Department.

E, THE UNDERSIGNED COMMISSIONERS

of Estimate and Assessment in the above-entitled
matter, hereby give notice to the owner or owners, oc-
cupant or occupants, of all houses and lots and improved
or unimprovedlands affected thereby, and to all others
whom it may concern, to wit

First—That we have completed our e: ate and as-
sessment, and that all persons interested in these pro-
ceedings, orin any of the lands affected thereby, and who
may be opposed to the same, do present their objections
in writing, duly verified, to us at our office, No. 200
Broadway  (fifth floor), in the said city, on or before the
twenty-ninth day of November, 1887, and that we, the
said Commissioners, will hear parties so objecting within
the ten week-days next after the said twenty-ninth day of
November, 1887, and for that purpose will be in attend-
ance at our said officeon each of said ten days at twelve
o'clock M.

Second—That the abstract of the said estimate and
assessment, together with our maps, and also all the
affidavits, estimates and other documents which were
used by s in making our report, have been deposited'in
the office of the Department of Public Works, in the City
of New York, there to remain until the twenty-ninth
day of November, 1887.

Third—That the limits embraced by the assessment
aforesaid are as follows, to wit: All those lots, pieces or
parcels of land, situate, lying and being in the City of
New York, which taken together are bounded and
described as follows, viz.: Northerly by a line drawn
parallel, or nearly so, with the northerly line or side of
Burnside avenue, and ant 1,000 feet therefrom, and
extending from the eastern line or side of the New York
City and Northern Railroad to the westerly line or side
of Vanderbilt avenue west; easterly by the westerly
line or side of Vanderbilt avenue west; southerly by an
irregular line drawn easterly and parallel, or nearly so,
with the southerly side of Burnside avenue, and extend-
ing from a point in the eastern line or side of the New
York City and Northern Railroad, distant too feet north
of Morris Dock Station, to the easterly side of Aqueduct
avenue, an irregular line drawn easterly and parallel, or
nearly so, with the southerly side of Burnside avenue,
and distant 1,000 feet therefrom, and extending from the
easterly side of Aqueduct avenue to a point distant about
x60 feet easterly from the easterly side of Morris ave-
nue, and about 100 feet northerly from the northerly side
of Tremont avenue, a line drawn easterly and parallel
with the northerly side of Tremont avenue, and extend-
ing from the last mentioned point to the westerly side oi
Anthony avenue, and by the northerly line or side of East
One Hundred and Seventy-sixth street, and westerly by
the easterly line or side of the New York City and North-
ern Railroad and the easterly side of Anthony avenue;
excepting from said area all the streets and avenues here-
tofore opened, and all the unimproved land_ included
within the lines of streets, avenues, roads, public squares
or places shown and laid out upon any map or maps filed
by the Commissioners of the Department of Public
Parks, pursuant to the provisions of chapter 604 of the
Laws ot 1874, and the laws amendatory thereof, or of
chapter 410 of the Laws oi 1882, as such area is shown
upon our benefit map deposited as aforesal

Fourth—That our report herein will be presented to
the Supreme Court of the State of New York, at a
Special Term thereof, to be held at the chambers
thereof, in the County Court-house, at the City Hall, in
the City of New York, on the sixteenth day of December,
1887, at the opening of the Court on that day, and that
then and there, or as soon thereafter as counsel can be
heard thereon, a motionwill be made that the said report
be confirmed.

Dated New York, October 19, 1887.

EDWARD HOGAN,

CHARLES PRICE,

CHARLES REILLY,
Commissioners.

Carroll Berry, Clerk.

POLICE DEPARTMENT.

Police Department of the City of New York,
0.300 Mulberry Street,
New York, November 26,1887.

TENTH AUCTION SALE OF UNCLAIMED
PROPERTY; ALSO, POLICE AND
CARTAGE PROPERTY.

T/AN TASSELL & KEARNEY, AUCTIONEERS,
- will sell at public auction at Police Headquarters,
No. 300 Mulberry street, on Wednesday, December 7,
1887, at xo o'clock A M, the following articles;

Watches, Jewelry, Silverware, etc., Men’s and
Women's Clothing, Revolvers and Pistols, Iron, Glass,

Lamps, Rope, Chairs, Lead, Carpet, Window-sash,
Saddles, Harness, Blankets, Clows, Water-coolers,
Br.iss, Closet-basins, Furniture, and miscellaneous
articles.

JOHN F. HARRIOT,
Property Clerk
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Police Department—City of New Yo |

Office of the Property Clerk (Room No. 9),1
. 300 Mulberry Street,

New York, 1887. J

WNERS WANTED BY THE PROPERTY
Clerk ofthe Police Department of the City of New
York, No 300 Mulberry street, Room No. 9, for the
following property, now in his custody, without claim'
ants: Boats, rope, iron, lead, male and female clothing,
boots, shoes, wine, blankets, diamonds, canned goods,
liquors, etc., also small amount money taken from
prisoners and found by patrolmen ofthis Department

JOHN F. HARRIOT,
Property Clerk

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC CHAR
ITIES AND CORRECTION.

Department uf Public Charities and Correction
No. 66 Third Avenue,
New York, November 25, 1887.

he undersigned will sell public
-[ auction, for accountof the Commissionersof Public
Charities and Correction, at their office, No. 66 Third
avenue, on Wednesday, December 7,1887, at 11 o’'clock
A. M, the following articles, viz.:
is,000pounds Mixed Rags, more or less.
20,000 pounds Mixed Scrap Iron, more or less
70 Iron-bound Barrels, more or less.
—to be delivered at the foot of East Twenty-sixth street
and to be paid for as follows:
Twenty-five per cent of estimated value to be paid on
day of sale ana the remainder on delivery.
R. E CLEARY,
Storekeeper.

TO CONTRACTORS.

PROPOSALS FOR GROCERIES,
GOODS, LIME AND CEMENT.

JEALED BIDS OR ESTIMATES FOR FURNISH
1 ing

GROCERIES.
6000 pounds Dairy Butter, sample on exhibition
ursday, December 1, 1887.
1.000 pounds Dried Apples.
300 pounds Cocoa.
3,0do pounds Rio Coffee, roasted.
500 pounds Maracaibo Coffee, roasted.
500 pounds Chicory.
3,500 pounds Hominy, price to include packages.
300 pounds Macaroni.
1.000 pounds Prunes.
5.000 pounds Rice.
13,000 pounds Brown Sugar.
1,500 pounds Coffee Sugar.
1.000 pounds Cut Loaf Sugar.
1,250 pounds Granulated Sugar.
3000 pounds Oolong Tea.
too bushels Beans.
250 Bushels Rye.
15 Barrels pure Cider Vinegar.
15 Barrels Pickles, 40 gallon barrels, 3000 per
arrel.
3,330 dozen Fresh Eggs, all to be candled.
10 dozen Canned Peaches.
15 dozen Canned Tomatoes.
10 dozen Sea Foam.
12 dozen Potash.
600 barrels good sound Irish Potatoes, to weigh 172
pounds net per barrel.
50 barrels prime Red Onions, 150 pounds net per

100 bags Bran, 50pounds net each.
50 bags Coarse Meal, too pounds net each.
300 bushels Oats, 32 pounds net per bushel.

50 bales prime quality Timothy Hay, tare not to
exceed three pounds; weight charged as re-
ceived at Blackwell’s Island.

300 bales prime quality long, bright Rye Straw,
tare and weight same as on nay.

25 gross Matches.

10 gross Safety Matches.

DRY GOODS, BTC.

500 yards Linen Diaper.
5 bales Cotton Batts, 50 pounds each, 16 ounces to
ind.

350 dozen pairs Men's Seeks.
35 great gro»s Suspender Buttons.
100 bunches Leather Laces

LIME AND CEMENT.

30 barrels first quality Rosendale Cement.

15 barrels first quality Portland Cement

30 barrels first quality Common Lime.

30 barrels first quality W. W. Lime.

10 barrels first quality Chloride of Lime, contain-

ing not less than 32 per cent, of chloride,

—will be received at the Department of Public Charities
and Correction, in the City of New York, until 9.30
o'clock a. m. of Friday, December 2,1887. The person
or persons making any bid or estimate shall furnish the
same in a sealed envelope, indorsed “Bid or Estimate
for Groceries, Dry Goods, Lime and Cement,” with
his or their name or names, and the date of pres-
entation, to the head of said Department, at the said
office, on or before the day and hour above named, at
which time and place the bids or estimates received will
be publicly opened by the President ofsaid Department
ana read.

The Board of Public Charities and Correction
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ALL BIDS OR ESTI-
MATES IF DEEMED TO BE FOR THE PUBLIC INTEREST,
AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 64, CHAPTER 410, Laws OF
1883.

No bid or estimate will be accepted from, or contract
awarded to, any person who is in arrears to the Corpo-
ration upon debt or contract, or who is a defaulter, as
surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to the Corpora-
tion.

Th; award of the contractwill be made as soon as
practlcable after the opening of the bids.

* Delivery will be required to be made from time to
time, and in such quantities as may be directed by the
said Commissioners.

Any bidder for this contract must be known to be
gaged inand well prepared for the business, and n__
have satisfactory testimonials to that effect; and die
person or persons to whom the contract may be awarded
will be required to give security for the performance of
the contract by his or their bond, with two sufficient
sureties, in the penal amount of fifty (50) per cent, of the
ESTIMATED amount of the contract.

Each bid or estimate shall contain and state the name
and place of residence of each of the persons making the
same; the names of all persons interested with him or
them therein ; and if no other person be so interested, it
shall distinctly state that fact; also that it is made without
any connection with any other person making an estimate
for the same purpose, and is in all respects fair and with-
out collusion or fraud; and that no member of the Com-
mon Council, Head ofa Department, Chiefof a Bureau,
Deputy thereofor Clerk therein, or other officer of the
Corporation is directly or indirectly interested therein,
orin the supplies or work to which it relates, or in any
portion of the profits thereof. The bid or estimate must
be verified by the oath, in writing, of the party or parties
making the estimate, that the several matters stated
therein are in all respects tr Where more than one
person is interested, it is requisite that the verification be
made and subscribed by all the parties interested.

Each bid or estimate shall be accompanied by the con-
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sent, in writing, of two householders or freeholders in
the City of New York, with their respective places of
business or residence, to the effect that if the contract be
awarded to the person making the estimate, they will, on
its being so awarded, become bound as his sureties for
its faithful performance ; and that if he shall omit or re-
fuse to execute the same, they shall pay to the Corpora-
tion any difference between the sum towhich he would be
entitled on its completion and that which the Corporation
may be obliged to pay to the person or persons to whom
the contract may be awarded at any subsequent letting.
The amount in each case to be calculated upon the esti-
mated amount of the work by which the bids are tested
The consent above mentioned shall be accompanied by
the oath oraffirmation, in writing, of each of the persons
signing the same that he is a householder or freeholder in
the City of New York, and is worth theamount of thesecu-
nty required for the completion of this contract, over and
above all his debts of every nature, and over and above
his liabilities, as bail, surety or otherwise ; and that he
has offeted himselfas a surety in good faith and with the
intention to execute the bond required by section 13 of
chapter 7 of the Revised Ordinances of the City of New
York, if the contract shall be awarded to the person or
persons for whom he consents to become surety. The
adequacy and sufficiency of the security offered to be ap-
proved by the Comptroller of the City of New York.

No bid or estimate will be considered unless accom-
panied by either a certified check upon one of the State
or National Banks of the City of New York, drawn to
the order of the Comptroller, or money to the amount of
five per centum of the amount of the security required
for the faithful performance of the contract. Such check
or money must not be enclosed in the sealed envelope
containing the estimate, but must be handed to the officer
or clerk of the Department who has charge of the Esti-
mate-box, and no estimate can be deposited in said box
until such check or money has been examined by said
officer or clerk and found to be correct. All such deposits,
except that of the successful bidder, will be returned
to the persons making the same, within three days after
the contract is awarded. If the successful bidder shall
refuse or neglect, within five days after notice that the
contract has been awarded to him, to execute the same,
the amount of the deposit made by him shall be forfeited
to and retained by the City of New York, as liquidated
damages for such neglect or refusal; but if he snail exe-
cute the contract within the time aforesaid, the amount
ofhis deposit will be returned to him.

Should the person or personsto whom the contract may
be awarded neglect or refuse to accept the contract
within five days after written notice that the same has
been awarded to his or their bid or proposal, or if he or
they accept, but do not execute the contract and give
the proper security, he or they shall be considered as
having abandoned it, and as in default to the Corpora-
tion ; and the contract will be readvertised and relet as
provided by law.

The quality 0/the articles, supplies,goods, wares,and
merchandise must conform in every respect to the sam-
plesof the sameon exhibition at the officeof the said
Department, Bidders are cautioned to examine the
specifications for particulars of the articles, etc., re-
quired, before making their estim ates.

Bidders will state the price for each article, by which
the bids will be tested.
Bidders will write out the amount of their estimate in

addition to inserting the same in figures.

Payment will be made by a requisition on the Comp-
troller, in accordance with the terms of the contract, or
from time to time, as the Commissioners may determine.

Bidders are informed that no deviation from the speci-
fications will be allowed, unless under the written instruc-
tion of the Commissionersof Public Charities and Correc-
tion.

No bid or estimate will be accepted from, or a contract
awarded to, any person who is inarrears to the Corpora-
tion upon debt or contract, or who is a defaulter, as
surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to the Corpora
tion.

The form ofthe agreement, including specifications, and
showing the manner of payment, can be obtained at the
office of the Department.

Dated New York, November 21,1887.

CHARLES E. SIMMONS. President,

HENRY H. PORTER. Commissioner,

THOMAS Ss. BRENNAN, Commissioner,
Public Charities and Correction,

Department of Public Charities and Correction,)
Third Avenue,
New York, November 23,1887. )

TN ACCORDANCE WITH AN ORDINANCE OF
I the Common Council, “ In relation to the burial of
strangers or unknown persons who may die in any of the
public institutions of the City of New York,” the Com-
missioners of Public Charities and Correction report as
follows:

At Morgue, Bellevue Hospital—From Sixth Precinct
Station-house, unknown man ; aged about 40years;
feet 8inches high; gray hair and eyes; sandy mous-
tache. Had on dark plaid coat and vest, dark pants,
brown striped hickory shirt, blue check shirt, brown cot-
ton socks, gaiters.

Unknown man from No. 107 Worth street; aged about
35 years ; 5 feet 11 inches high ; dark brown hair, blue
eyes. Had on dark coat, vest and pants, brown calico
shirt, gray undershirt, brown socks, brogan shoes.

At Charity Hospital, Blackwell's Island—Peter Duffy ;
aged 35 years; 5 feet nj£ inches high; dark brown
hair; blue ey Had on when admitted blade coat and
pants, white shirt, blue drawers, black derby hat, shoes.

At Workhouse, Blackwell’s Island—William Dunn;
aged 42 years. Committed November 9,1887

John Boreeka; aged 47 years. Committea November
5.1887.

At Lunatic Asylum, Blackwell's Island— Lizzie Kelly;
aged 31 years; 5 feet one inch high ; blade hair, gray
eyes. Had on when admitted black straw hat, blade
dress.

At Homoeopathic Hospital, Ward's Island— Michael
O’Connell; aged €0 years ; 5feet 8 inches high ; gray
eyes and hair. Had on when admitted brown overcoat,
black vest, gray pants, gaiters, blade glazed cap.

Michael Callahan; aged 27 years; 5 feet 10 inches
high; blue eyes, brown hair. Had on when admitted
brown coat and vest, gray overalls, blucher shoes, gray
felt hat.

Anna Dunn; aged 40years; 5 feet 1 inch high ; gray
eyes and hair. Had on when admitted brown calico
skirt and waist, blade shawl, blue woolen hood.

Nothing known of their friends or relatives.

By order.

G. F. BRITTON,
Secretary.

Department of Public Charities and Correction, j
0.66 Third Avenue,
Ngpr York, November 39, 1887. j
TN ACCORDANCE WITH AN ORDINANC
A the Common Council, “In relation to the burlal cf
strangers or unknown persons who may die in any of the
publje institutions of the City of New York,” the Com-

At Morgue, Bellevue Hospital, from New York Hospi-
tal-Unknown man, aged about 40 years ; 5 feet 8 inches
high ; dark eyes ; dark hair and moustache. No clothing
received with
_At Charity Hospital, Blackwell's Island — Stewart
Campbell, aged 41 years; 5 feet 8 inches high; brown
eyes; dark gray hair. Had on when admitted brown
coat, vest and pants, colored shirt, black derby hat,
shoes.

At Workhouse, Blackwell's Island— Bridget McGrath,
aged 60 years. Committed November 11, 1887.

At Homoeopathic Hospital, Ward's Island — Denis
Hurley, aged 70 years; 5 feet 3 inches high; blue eyes;
gray hair. Had on when admitted black coat and vest,
black striped pants, congress gaiters, black felt hat.

Nothing known of their friends or relatives.

By order. G. F. BRITTON,
Secretary

RECORD

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORK8<

Department of Public Works,
9, 1887.}

Commissioner's Office.
NOTICE OF SALE AT PUBLIC AUCTION,

No. 3L Chambers Stree
New York, November

N MONDAY, DECEMBER, 13, 1887, AT
oclock. 'm, the Department of Public Works
will sell at public auction, by Messrs. Van TSssell and
Kearney, Auctioneers, at the Corporation Yard, foot
Rivington street, East river, the following, viz.:

ABOUT ao TONS OLD IRON.
ABOUT 2000 PIECES OF 6" VITRIFIED PIPE,

Terms of Sale.

Cash payments in bankable funds at the time and place
of sale, and the immediate removal of the articles pur-
chased.

JOHN NEWTON,
issioner of Public Works,

Department of Public Works,
Commissioner’s Office,
No. 31 Chambers Street,
New York, September 39,1886

PUBLIC NOTICE.

ERSONS HAVING ANY BUSINESS IN THIS
Department which is not assigned to or transacted
by the several Bureaux in the Department, and which
should come under the immediate notice ofthe Commis-
sioner of Public Works, are requested to communicate
directly in person, or by letter, with the Commissioner
JOHN NEWTON,
Commissioner of Public Works.

Department of Public Works,
Commissioner’s Office,
No. 31 Chambers Street,
New York, June 31 1887.

PUBLIC NOTICE AS TO WATER RATES

IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT

in compliance with the provisions of chapter 559.
Laws of 1887, amending sections 350 and 921 of the New
York City Consolidation Act of 1882, passed June9,1887,
the following changes are made in charging and collect
ing water rents:

Ist. All extracharges for water incurred fromand after
June 9,1887, shall be treated, collected and returned in
arrears in the same manner as regular rents have hereto-
fore been treated.

ad. In every building where a water meter or meters
are now, or shall hereafter be in use, the charge for water
by meter measurement shall be the only charge against
such building, or such part thereof as is supplied through

UBLIC NOTICE

. The returnsofarrearsof water rents, including the
year 1887, shall be made as heretofore on the confirma-
tion of the tax levy by the Board of Aldermen, and shall
include all charges and penalties of every nature.

4th. A penalty of five dollars (85) is hereby established:
and will be imposed in each and every case where the
rules and regulations of the Department prohibiting the
use of water through hose, or in any other wasteful man-
ner, are violated, and such penalties will be entered on
the books of the Bureau against the respective buildings
or property, and, if not collected, be returned in arrears
in like manner as other charges for water.

5th. Charges for so-called extra water rents of every
nature, imposed or incurred prior to June 9, 1881, will
be canceled of record on the books of the Department.

D. LOWBER SMITH,
Deputy and Acting Commissioner of Public Works.

Department of Public Works,
Commissioner’s Office,
No. 31 Chambers Street,
New Y ork, November io, x886.}

NOTICE TO CROTON WATER
CONSUMERS.

umerous applications have been
made to this Department by citizens claiming
reductions or rebates on bills for water supplied through
meters, on the alleged ground of leakage caused by de-
tective plumbing and worn-out service pipes, or by willful
waste of water by tenants allowing the faucets to be
turned on in full force in water-closets, sinks, etc., with-
out the knowledge or consent of the owners of the prem-
ises.
The main object of the use of water-meters is to enable
this Department to detect and check the useless and un-
warrantable waste of an element so valuable and essential
to the health and comfort of all the citizens, and this ob-
ect can only be accomplished by enforcing payment for
the water wasted.

Under the law all charges for water supplied through
meters are a lien against the respective premises, and
the law therefore holds the owner of the premises re-
sponsible for the amount of water used or wasted.

Notice is therefore given to all householders that, inall
further applications for reduction of water rents, no
allowance will be made on account of waste of water
occurring through leaks, from defective service pipes or
plumbing, or wasteful use of water by tenants or occu-
pants of buildings, though such leakage or waste may
have occurred without the knowledge or consent of the
owners of the buildings.

House-owners are further notified that whenever their
premises become vacant, and are likely to remain vacant,
they must notify this Department in writing, and that
unless this requirement is complied with no deductions in
extra water rents will he allowed for any portion of one
year

JOHN NEWTON,
Commissioner of Public Works.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC PARKS.

Crnr of New York, Department of Pubuc Parks, 1
Nos. 49 and 51 Chambers Street. i

otice is hereby given that the
missioners of the Department of Public Parks, in
e City of New York, will, on the seventeenth day of
December, 1887, at ten o'clock a. m., at their office in the
Emigrant Savings Bank Budding, Nos. 49 and 51 Cham-
bers street, in said city, hear ana consider all statements,
objections and evidence thatmay then and there be offered
in reference to the proposed plan, as amended, for the de-
ression of the tracks and changing thegrades of the New
‘ork and Harlem Railroad, and carrying certain streets,
venues, roads, boulevards and parkways in the Twent,
third and Twenty-fourth Wards over said railroad, in
accordance with the provisions of chapter 721 ofthe Laws
of 1887.
The map showing the contemplated changes is on
exhibition in said office.
The general character and extent of the contemp’ated
changes is as follows:
The railroad tracks are to be lowered in various parts,
the maximum depression being about ten feet.
Bridges will be required over the railroad at—
East One Hundred and Thirty-eighth street.
East One Hundred and Forty-fourth street

com-

D ecember 2, 1887.

East One Hundred and Forty-ninth street.

East One Hundred and Fifty-third street.

East One Hundred and Fifty-sixth street and Morris-
avenue.

East One Hundred and Fifty-eighth street.

East One Hundred and Sixty-first street.

East One Hundred and Sixty-fifth street, Brook and
Webster avenues.

East One Hundred and Sixty-eighth street.

East One Hundred and Seventieth street.

Wendover avenue.

East One Hundred and Seventy-third street (formed
“ Warren street ™).

East One Hundred and Seventy-fifth street.

Tremont avenue (75 feet wide east of the railroad).

Samuel street.

East One Hundred and Eighty-third street.

East One Hundred and Eighty-seventh street.

Pelham avenue.

Southern Boulevard.

Woodlawn road.

Olin avenue.

Convenient approaches to the various bridges by way
of the adjacent streets and avenues are to be provided.

Dated New York, November 33,1887.

M. C. D. BORDEN,
WALDO HUTCHINS,
THEODORE W. MYERS,
J. HAMPDEN ROBB,
Commissioners of Public Parks.

a

City of New York, Department of Pubuc Parks, 1
Nos. 49 and 51 Chambers Street. j

otice is hereby given thatthe com-
missioners of the Department of Public Parks, in

e City of New York, will, on the fourteenth day of
December, 1887, at it o'clock a. m., at their office in the
Emigrant Savings Bank Building, Nos. 49 and 51 Cham-
bers street, in said city, hear and consider all statements,
objections and evidence that may then and there be
offered 'in reference to proposed changes in the street
system in a portion of the Twenty-third Ward, in accord-
ance with the provisions of chapter 731 of the Laws of
1887.

A map showing the contemplated changes is on exhi-
bition in said office.

The changes proposed are as follows:

Discontinuing and closing portions of East One Hun-
dred and Sixty-seventh, George and Home streets,.
Trinity, Forest and Tinton avenues.

Extending East One Hundred and Sixty-sixth street,
from Union avenue to Prospect avenue.

Widening Home street, between Boston road and
Union avenue, and between Union avenue and One Hun-
dred and Sixty-ninth street and Intervale avenue; and
Lyon street, between One Hundred and Sixty-ninth
street and Westchester avenue.

Laying-out and re-opening Home street, between
Union avenue and One Hundred and Sixty-ninth street
and Intervale avenue.

Dated New York, November as, 1887.

M. C. D. BORDEN,

WALDO HUTCHINS,

THEODORE W. MYERS,

J. HAMPDEN ROBB.
Commissioners of Public Parks.

City of New York—Department of Public Parks,)
Nos 49 and 51 Chambers Street,
November 10,1887. >

otice , IS hereby given that the
N‘ Commissioners of the Department of Public Paries,
the City of New York, will at their office, Nos. 40 and
mbers street, in the Emigrants’ Savings Bank
Building, in said city, at xr o'clock a m, on the 7th day
of December, 1887, attend and hear and consider all
statements, objections and evidence which may be then
and there offered in reference to the contemplated change,
alteration, amendment and revision, under the authority
ofchapter 73X of the Laws of 1887, of the maps or plans
heretofore adopted by said department by authority cf
law, showing streets, avenues, roads, boulevards, parks
public squares or places heretofore laid out in that part
of the Twenty-third and Twenty-fourth Wards of said
city bounded on the north by Belmontand Elliot streets,
on the east by Sheridan and Mott avenues, on the south
by the Spuyten Duyvil and Port Morris Railroad, and on
the west by Jerome, Claremont and Cromwell avenues.

T or plan showing such contemplated change is

Dn exhibition in said office.
he general character and extent of the contemplated
change is as follows;

To discontinue and close portions of Sedgwick, Sheri-
dan, Mott, Claremont, Hikhwood and Overlook avenues,
Juliet street, Marchwood place. Mars Crescent and
Cannon Crescent.

To prolong Juliet, One Hundred and Sixty-second and
One Hundred and Sixty-third streets, Endrow, Woolfand
Clark places, Cromwell avenue, Mott and Sheridan ave-
nues, and to change the class of “ Inwood avenue.”

CHARLES De F. BURNS,
Secretary.

Department of Public Parks, )
Nos. 49 and 51 Chambers Street,
New Y ork, November xo, 1887.

hJOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE COM-
1° .missioners of the Department of Public Parks in
the City of New York will, at their office, Nos. 49 and 51
Chambers street, in the Emigrants’ Savings Bank Build-
ing, in said city, on Wednesday, December 7,188
o'clock A. M., near and consider all statements, objectior
and evidence that may then and there be offered in refer-
ence to the contemplated change of width of Teasdale
dace, from Third avenue to Trinity avenue, in the
Twenty-third Ward of said city, in pursuance of the
provisions of chapter 721 of the Laws o f1887.

The general character and extent of the contemplated
change is to reduce the width of said Teasdale place
from 80 feet, as widened by the Department of Public
Parks, to 50 feet, as originally laid out.

The map or plan showing such contemplated change is
now on exhibition in said office.

CHARLES De F. BURNS,
Secretary.

BOARD OF EDUCATION.

NAUTICAL SCHOOL.

EALED PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED BY

the Executive Committee on Nautical School, at the

Hall of the Board of Education, No. 146 Grand street,

until Wednesday, December 14,1887, and until 4 o’clock

p.m. on said day, for New Deck-houses, etc., for the

Schoolship “ St. Marys,” lying at the foot of East Thirty-
first street.

Plans and specifications may be seen, and all informa-
tion obtained, on application to Comr. A. S. Crowinshield,
on board ship, foot of East Thirty-first street.

The Committee reserve the right to reject any or all
of the proposals submitted

The party submitting a proposal, and the parties pro-
posing to become sureties, must each write his name
and place of residence on said proposal.

0 responsible and approved sureties, residents of
thus city, are required in all cases.

No proposals will be considered from persons whose
character and antecedent dealings with the Board of
Education render their responsibility doubtful.

ISAAC BELL,

SAMUEL M. PURDY,

HENRY L. SPRAGUE,

WILLIAM A. COLE,

WILLIAM LUMMIS,
Executive Committee on Nautical School.

Dated New York, November 30,1887.




D ecember 2, 1887.

DEPARTMENT OF DOCKS.

(Work of construction under new plan.)

TO CONTRACTORS.
(No. fix)

(PROPOSALS FOR ESTIMATES FOR REMOVING
THE EXISTING PIER KNOWN AS PIER 37,
NEAR THE FOOT OF MARKET SLIP, EAST
RIVER, AND FOR PREPARING FOR AND
BUILDING A NEW EN PIER AND
APPROACH ON THE SITE OF SAID PIER,
TO BE KNOWN AS PIER, NEW 29, EAST
RIVER; AND FOR REPAIRING THE EXIST-
ING CRIB-BULKHEAD THEREAT

stimates for b ding a new wooden
pier, with its appurtenances, including an approach,
near the foot of Market Slip, East river, in place of Pier
37, East river; and for repairing the bulkhead at the
foot of Market Slip, East river, will be received by the
Board of Commissioners at the head of the Department
of Docks, at the office of said Department, on Pier “ A,”
foot of Battery place, North river, in the City of New
York, until 12 o'clock m. of

MONDAY, DECEMBER 5,1887,
at which time and place the estimates will be publicly
opened by the head of said Department. The award of
the contract, if awarded, will be made as soon as prac-
ticable sifter the opening of the bids.

Any person making sm estimate for the_work shall
furnish the same in a sealed envelope to said Board, at
said office, on or before the day and hour above named,
which envelope shall be indorsed with the name or
names of die person or persons presenting the same, the
date of its presentation, and a statement of the work to
which it relates.

The bidder to whom the award is made shall give
security for the faithful performance of the contract, in
the manner prescribed and required by ordinance, in the
sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars.

The Engineer’s estimate of the nature, quantities and
extent of die work is as follows:

Class I.—Crib-bulkhead.

1. New Cribwork complete, including
all Logs, Timbers, Spikes, Stone-
filling, Earth-filling, Fenders, and
Mooring-posts, Box-drains, Sewer
Opening, etc., above top of front
cap.

7,000 cubic feet.

FeetB. M.,
measured in
the work.

1,074

1a Yellow Pine Timber, front cap, ta” x 1a"..

Note—The above quantities of timber are exclusive
of extra lengths required for scarfs, laps, etc., and
of waste.

3. White Pine, Yellow Pine, Cypressor Spruce Piles. 41
(It is expected that these piles will have to be about

55 feet long, to mvet the requirements of the speci-
fications for driving.)

4. Round Logs, about.. .. *63 linear feet.

5. Square Wrought-iron Deck Spikes
and Wrought-iron Srew-bolts in
front cap, about... .. 23apounds.

1l Cast-iron Washers for x

Sc
bolts, in front cap, and Cast iron
Pile Shoes, about. 923
7. Labor and materials for relaying

Old Pavement forabout....... 1x8 square yards.
8. Labor and materials for laying

New Pavement, about...
9. Labor of excavating Old Crlbwork

and disposal of material, about. 275 cubic yards

to. Labor of framing and carpentry, including all

ing of timber, jointing, planking, bolting, spiking,
back-filling, etc., as set forth in the specifications.

Ciass Il.—New Pier and Approach.

FeetB.M.,

measured in
the work.

s. Yellow Pine Timber, xa" x ia" 6,405

" “ 5*xto" 1,300

Total 7.60s

Note—The above quantities of timber will require
to be in lengths of 36 feet and upwards to meet the
requirements ofthe specifications.

FeetB.M

measure

the work.
i3,iox
98.693
IC7' x12” 5,9x7
900
xa8
1,300
870
377
8,305
1,609
31,540
3,081
Total. 330,034
Note—The above quammes of timber may be in

lengths of less than 36 fee

Note.—Attention is called lo article 73 of the speci
fications, allowing creosoting under certain condi-
tions.

FeetB.M.,
measured in
the work.
3. Spruce Timber, 4"plank 44.640
“ 3" 12,960
Total.. 37,600
FeetB. M.,
measured in
the work.
4. White Oak Timber, 8" xxa" 7,392

(Note—The above quantities of timber, in items x, a,
3and 4, are exclusive of extra lengths required for
scarfs, laps, etc., and of waste.)

3. White Pine, Yellow Pine or Cypress Piles
for Pier..

(It is expected that these s will have to be from
about 65 feet in length to about 75 feet in length, to
meet the requirements of the specifications for
driving.

6. White Pine, Yellow Pine, Cypress or Spruce
Piles, for Approach... 96

(It is expected that these piles will have to be from
about 60 feet in length to about 65 feet in length,
to meet the requirements of the specifications for
driving;.)

7. White Oak Fender Piles, about 55 feet Iong . 14
8. Yellow or White Pine MooringFiles....... 4
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9.
and ft x to" , square, and ft"x 8",
and ft" x 8", round wrougnt-iron
spike-pointed Dock Spikes, and
. Nails, about.. 38,400 pounds.
xo. Boiler-plate Armatures and Wrought-
iron Strap-bolts and Washers,
abou 14,350 *
xx. a", tft", tft". 3
Wrought-iron Screw bolts, about 13,200 *
xa. Cast-iron Washers for tft", tft",
and 1" Screw-bolts, abou 7,000
13. Cast-iron Pile Shoes, about. 5800 *
14. Cast-iron Mooring-posts,about. . “
15. Materials for Painting and Oiling or Tarring
16. Labor of removing Pier, old 37, at the foot of Market
Slip, East river, and of removing all the old
material fromthe premises.
17. Labor of every description for about 16,530 square

feet of new Pier and Approach.
Class Il

Rip-rap stone furnished and put in place at outer end
of new pier, about 3,500 cubic yards.

N. B.—As the above mentioned quantities, though
stated with as much accuracy as is possible, in advance,
are approximate only, bidders are required to submit
their estimates upon the following express conditions,
which sl'éall apply to and become a part ofevery estimate
receive
xst. Bidders mustsatisfy themselves by personal exam-
ination of the location of the proposed work, and
by such other means as they may prefer, as to the
accuracy of the foregoing Engineer's estimate, and shall
not at any ti the st ission of an estimate, dis-
pute or complain of the above statement of quantities, nor
assert that there was any misunderstanding in regard to
the nature or amount of foe work to be done.

ad. Bidders be required to complete the entire
work to the satisfaction of the Department of Docks, and
in substantial accordance with the specifications of the
contract and the plans therein referred to. No extra
compensation beyond the amount payable for each class
of the work before mentioned, which shall be actually
fierformed at the price therefor, to be specified by the
owes( bidder, shall be due or payable for the entire

The work to be done under the contract is to be com-
menced within five days after the date of the contract,
and all the work contracted for is to be fully completed
on or before die 30th day of April, 1888, or within as
many days thereafter as the site of the new pier and
approach shall be occupied by the Department of Docks
in dredging, and the damages to be paid by the con-
tractor for each day that the contract may be unfulfilled
after the time fixed for the fulfillment thereof has ex-
pired, are, by aclause in the contract, determined, fixed
and liquidated at Fifty Dollars per day.

All the old material taken from the said pier and bjlk-
head to be removed under this contract, will be relin-
quished to the Contractor, and bidders must estimate the
value of such material when considering the price for
which they will do the work under the contract.

Bidders will state in their estimates a price for the
whole of the work to be done in each class in con-
for with the approved form of agreement and the
specifications therein set forth, by which prices the bids
will be tested. These prices are to cover all expenses
ofevery kind involved in or incidental to the fulfillment
of the contract, including any claim that may arise
through delay from any cause, in the performing of the
work thereunder The award of the contract, if awarded,
will be made to the bidder who is the lowest for doing
the whole of the work comprised in the three classes, ana
whose estimate is regular inall respects.

Bidders will distinctly write out, both in wordsand in
figures, the amount of their estimates for doing each
class of the work

The person or persons to whom the contract may be
awarded will be required to attend at this office with the
sureties offered by him or them, and execute the contract
within five days from the date of the service of a notice
to that effect; and in case of failure or neglect so to do,
he or they will be considered as having abandoned it,
and as in default to the Corporation; and the contract
will be readvertised and relet, and so on until it be
accepted and executed.

Bidders are required to state in their estimates their
names and places of residence; the names of all persons
interested with them therein, and if no other person be
so interested, the estimate shall distinctly state the fact;
also that the estimate is made without any connection
with any other person making an estimate for the same
work, and that it is in all respects fair and without
collusion or fraud ; and also, that no member of the
Common Council, Head of a Department, Chief ofa Bu-
reau, Deputy thereofor Clerk therein, or other officer of
the Corporation, is directly or indirectly interested
therein, or in the supplies or work to which it relates, or
in any portion of the profits thereof; which estimate must
be verified by the oath, in writing, ofthe party making
the estimate, that the several matters stated therein are
in all reflects true. Where more than oneperson is
interested, it is requisite that the verification be made
and subscribed to by a [l the parties interested.

Each estimate shall be accompanied by the consent, in
writing, of two’householders or freeholders of the City of
New York, with their respective places o f business” or
residence, to the effect that if the contract be awarded to
the person or persons making the estimate, they will, on
its being so awarded, become bound as his or their sure-
ties for its faithful performance; and that if said person
or persons shall omit or refuse to execute the contract,
they will pay to the Corporation of the City of New Fork
any difference between the sum to which said person or
persons would be entitled upon its completion and that
which said Corporation may be obliged to pay tothe per-
son to whom the contract may be awarded at any sub-
sequent letting; the amount in each case to be calcu-
lated upon the estimated amount of the work to be done
in each class, by which the bids are tested. The con-
sentabove mentioned shall be accompanied by the oath or
affirmation, in writing, of each of the persons signing the
same, that he is a householder or freeholder in the City of
New York, and is worth the amount of the security re-
quired for the completion of the contract, over and above
all debts of every nature, and over and above his
liabilities ess bail, surety and otherwise: and that he
has offered himselfas surety iugood faith and with the
intention to execute the bond required by law. _The
adequacy and sufficiency of the security offered will be
subject to approval by the Comptroller of the Citjr of
New York, after the award is made and prior to the sign-
ing of the contract.

No estimate will be received or considered unless ac-
companied by either a certified check upon one of the
State or National Banks of the City of New York, drawn
to the order of foe Comptroller, or money, to the amount

of five per centum of foe amount of security required
for foe faithful performance of the contract. Such check
or money must not be enclosed in foe sealed envelope
containing the estimate, but must be handed to foe officer
or clerk of foe Department who has charge of foe Esti-
mate-box, and no estimate can be deposited in said box
until such check or money has been examined by said
officer or clerk and found to be correct. All such de-
posits, except that of foe successful bidder, will be re-
turned to foe persons making foe same, within three days
after the contract is awarded. If foe successful bidder
shall refuse or neglect, within five days after notice that
the contract has been awarded to him, to execute foe
same, foe amount of foe deposit made by him shall be
forfeited to and retained by foe City of New York as
liquidated damages for such neglect or refusal; but if
he shall execute foe contract within the time aforesaid,
foe amount of his deposit Will be returned to him.

Bidders are informed that no deviation from the speci-
fications will be alloweo, unless under foe written in-
structions of the Engmeer-in-Chief.

No estimate will be accepted from, or contract awarded
to, any person who is in arrears to foe Corporation, upon
debt or contract, or who is a defaulter, as surety or other-
wise, upon any obligation to foe Corporation.

The right to decline all foe estimates

reserved, if

Bidders are requested, iu making their bids or esti-
mates, to use foe blank prepared for that purpose by the
Department, a copy of which, together with foe form of
foe agreement, including specifications, and showing foe
manner of payment for the work, can be obtained upon
application therefor at foe office of foe Department.

LUCIUS J. N. STARK,

JAMES MATTHEWS,

CHARLES H. MARSHALL,
Commissioners ofthe Department of Docks.

Dated New York, November x8,1887.

CORPORATION NOTICE.

UBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE
owner or owners, occupant or occupants of all
houses and lots, improved or unimproved lands affected
thereby, thatthe following assessments have been com-
pleted and are lodged in the office of the Board of Asses-
sors, for examination by all persons interested, viz.:

List 1767, No. 1. Regulating and grad ng Third ave-
nue, in the Twenty-third Ward, and grading approaches
to the same at intersecting streets, between Harlem river
and One Hundred and Forty-seventh street.

List 2333, No. a. Regulating, grading, setting curb-
stones ana flagging in One Hundred and Fifty-third
street, from a pomt sixty feet east of Seventh avenue to
the first new avenue west of Eighth avenue.

List 2334, No. 3. Regulating, grading, setting curb-
stones and flagging in One Hundred and Eighty-fifth
street, from Tenth avenue to K. ngsbridge road.

List 2420, No. 4. Regulating, grading, setting curb,
gutter and flagging and laying crosswalks in East One
Hundred and Fortieth street, from North Third avenue
to Willis avenue.

List 2438, No. 5. Regulating, grading, setting curb and
gutter stones and flagging and laying crosswalks in East
One Hundred and Fifty-fourth street, from the westerly
curb-line of North Third avenue to the easterly curb-
line of Courtland avenue.

List 2439, No. 6. Regulating, grading, setting curb and
gutter stones and flagging and laying crosswalks in East
One Hundred and Fifty-first street, between the westerly
curb-line of North Third avenue and the easterly curb-
line ofcourlland avenue.

t 2498, No. 7. Paving One Hundred and Second
street from Lexington to Fufth avenue

List 3501, No. 8. Basin on the northeast comer of
Nineteenth street and Avenue B.

List 2502, No. 9. Fencing vacantlots on block bounded
by Eighteenth and Nineteenth streets, Avenues B and

List 2503, No. xo. Paving Eighty-seven fo street, from
Madison to Park avenue.

List3504.No.it. Paving carriageway in One Hun-
dred and Fifth street, from the easterly crosswalk at
Firstavenue to the bulkhead line on East or Harlem
river, and laying crosswalks across One Hundred and
Fifth street at intersection of Pleasant avenue.

List 3505, No.xa. Laying crosswalks in One Hun-
dred and Twenty-sixth street, on the west side of St.
Nicholas avenue.

List 2506, No.13. Paving Washington street,
Little Twelfth to Fourteenth street.

List 2307, No.14 Fencing vacant lots both sides of
Ninety-ninth street, between Ninth and Tenth avenues.

List 2508, No. 15; Laying crosswalks on the north,
south, east and west sides of Tenth avenue and One
Hundred and Thirteenth street.

List 2509, No. 16. Regulating, grading, curbing and
flagging One Hundred and Twenty-ninth street, from
Twelfth avenue to foe Hudson River Railroad.

List 25x0, No.17. Fencing vacant lots on block
bounded by One Hundred and Seventeenth and One
Hundred and Eighteenth streets, Eighth and St. Nicholas
avenues.

List 2511, No. x8. Setting curb, gutter and flagging on
Ninetieth street, from Eighth to Ninth avenue.

List 251a, No. xo. Paving Ninety-sixth street, from
Lexington to Third avenue.

List 2513, No. ao. Regulating, grading, curb and flag-
ging One Hundred and Twenty-eighth street, from
Eighth avenue to Avenue St. Nicholas.

List 2514, No. ax. Regulating, grading, curbing and
flagging’ Ninety-fourth street, from Boulevard to River-
side Drive.

List 25x5, No. aa. Regulating, grading, curb and flag-
ging One Hundred and Thirty-second street, from
Tenth avenue to Broadway.

List 25x6, No. 33. Curbing and flagging One Hundred
and Twenty-second street, between New avenue, west,
andSixth avenue.

List 25x7, No. 24. Curbing and flagging One Hundred
and Seventeenth street, from Eighth to St. Nicholas
avenue.

List 2518, No. as. Crosswalks in Sixth avenue, on both
sides, across the intersecting streets, from One Hundred
and Twenty-fifth to One Hundred and Forty-fifth street.

List 3510, No. 36. Extending sidewalks from the inter-
section of West End avenue and Seventy-second,

from

ghtie
rd, Eighty-fourth, Elghly fifth. Eighty-
ghth, Ninety-third, Ninety-sixth, Ninety-
ninth, One Hundredth and One Hundred and First
streets to the new curb-line on West End avenue.

sixth, Eighty-

List 2530, No. 27. Fencing vacant lots on block
bounded by One Hundred and Thirty-fifth and One
Hundred and Thirty-sixth streets, Seventh and Eighth
avenues.

List 3521, No.28. Sewer in Seventy-fourth street,
between Ninth and Tenth avenues.

List 3522, No. ag. Sewer in Ninety-first street, between
Eighth and Ninth avenues.

List 2523, No. 30. Sewer in One Hundred and Eigh-
teenth street, between Seventh avenue and Avenue St.
Nicho'as.

L sta,24, No. 31. Sewer in One Hundred and Thir-
teenth street, between Boulevard and Riverside avenue.

List 2525, No. 33. Sewer in Third avenue, between
Twenty-first and Twenty-second streets.

The limits embraced by such assessments include all
the several houses and lots of ground, vacant lots, pieces
and parcels of land situated on—

No. 1. Both sides of Third avenue, from Harlem river
to One Hundred and Forty-seventh street, and to the
extent of half the block at foe intersecting streets; also
both sides of One Hundred and Thirty-sixth street, from
Lincoln to Rider avenue; both sides of One Hundred
and Thirty-seventh and ()ne Hundred and Thirty-eighth
streets, from Alexander to Rider avenue, and both sides
of One Hundred and Thirty-ninth, One Hundred and
Fortieth and One Hundred and Forty-first streets, from
Alexander to Morris avenue.

No. a. Both sides of One Hundred and Fifty-third
street, from a point 60 feet east of Seventh avenue to the
first new avenue west of Eighth avenue, and to foe ex-
tent of half the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 3. Both sides of One Hundred and Eighty-fifth
street, from Tenth avenue to Kingsbridge road, and to
the extent of one-half foe block at foe intersecting
avenues.

No. 4. Both sides of East One Hundred and Fortieth
street, from North Third to Willis avenue, and to foe
extent of half the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 5. Both sides of East One Hundred and Fifty-fourth
street, from North Third to Courtland avenue, and to
the extent of half the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 6. Both sides of East One Hundred and Fifty-first
street, between North Third and Courtland avenues,
and to foe extent of half the block at the intersecting
avenues.

No. 7. Both sides of One Hundred and Second street,
from Lexington to Fifth avenue, and to the extent of
half the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 8. Commencing at the northeast corner of Nine-
teenth street, extending northerly on the east side of
Avenue B about xo8 feet, and extending easterly on
north side ofNineteenth street about aao feet.

No. 9. Block bounded by Eighteenth and Nineteenth
streets, Avenues B and C.

No. to. Both sides of Eighty-seventh street, from
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Madison to Park avenue, and to foe extent of half the
block at the intersecting avenues.

No. xx. Both sides of One Hundred and Fifth street,
from First avenue to Harlem river, and to the extent
of half the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 12. Both sides of One Hundred and Twenty-sixth
su-eet, extending westerly from Avenue St. Nicholas

feet, and westerly side of Avenue St
Nicholas from foe centre of tne block between One
Hundred and Twenty-fifth and One Hundred and
Twenty-sixth streets to foe centre line of One Hundred
and Twenty-seventh street.

_ No. 13, Bu(h sides of Washington street, between

urteenth streets, and to foe extent
olualt the block ot the | intersecting streets.
"4 Both sides of Ninety-ninth street, between
Ninth and Tenth avenues,

No. 15. To the extent of half foe block on all sides
fro5d 2 e Inter?ection of Tenth avenue and One Hundred
and Thirteenth street.

No. 16. Both sides of One Hundred and Twenty-n nth
street, from Twelfth avenue to foe Hudson River Rail-
road, and to the extent of half the block at foe inter-
section of Twelfth avenue

No. 17. Block bounded by One Hundred and Seven-
teenth and One Hundred and Eighteenth streets, Eighth
and Avenue St. Nicholas.

No. 18. Both sides of Ninetieth street, between Eighth
and Ninth avenues.

No. 19. Both sides of Ninety-sixth street, between
Third and Lexington avenues, and to the extent of half
the block at the intersecting avenues.

.No. 20. Both sides of One Hundred and Twenty-
eighth street, from Eighth to St. Nicholas avenue, and to
the extent of half the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 21. Both sides of Ninety-fourth street, from the
Boulevard to er ide Drive, and to the extent of half
the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 22. Both sides of One Hundred and Thirty-second
str@J from Tenth avenue to Broadway, and to the extent
of half the block at the intersecting avenues.

No. 23. Both sides of One Hundred and Twenty-second
street, between Sixth avenue and new avenue west.

No. 24. Both sides of One Hundred and Seventeenth
St"rel between Avenue St. Nicholas and Eighth avenue.

B sides wenue, between One
Hundred ‘and Thirty-t ird and One. Hundred and Forty,
fifth streets, and west side of Sixth avenue, between One
Hundred and Thirtieth and One Hundred and Thirty,
third streets, and to the extent of half foe block at foe
intersecting streets.

No. 26. Northeast, northwest, southeast and southwest
corners of West End avenue, and Seventy-sixth, Seventy,
ninth, Eightieth, Eighty-first, Eighty-fifth, Eighty-sixth,
Ninety-sixth. Ninety-ninth, One Hundredth and One
Hundred and First streets; also northeast and northwest
corners of Seventy-second street, northeast, northwest
and southwest corners of Seventy-third street, southwest
corner of Seventy-fourth street, northeast corner of
Seventy-fifth street, northeast, southeast and southwest
corners of Seventy-eighth street, northeast, northwest
and southeast corners of Eighty-third street, northwest
southeast and southwest corners of Eightv-fourth street
and northeast, sou(heas( and southwest comers of Ninetv-

third street and West End avenue
- 2n. Block bounded by One Hundred and Thirty-
] e Hundred and Thirty-sixth streets, Seventh

ank Eighth Svenuse,
No- 28. Both sides of Seventy-fourth street, between
Nmm and Tenth avenues.
*9- Both sides of Ninety-first street, between
Eignin and Nimth Svenuce
No. 30. Both sides of One Hundred and Figh.a~th
street, between Seventh and Avenue St. Nicholas
No. 31. Both sides of One Hundred and Thirteenth
street, between Boulevard and Riverside Drive.
No. 32-West side of Third avenue, between Twenty,
first mid Twenty-second streets
All persons whose interests are affected by foe above-
named assessments, and who are opposed to foe same or
either of them, are requested to present their objections
in writing to the Chairman of the Board of Assessors,
at their office, No. itft City Hall, within thirty days
from the date of this notice. 9
The above-described lists will be transmitted, as pro-
vided by law, to the Board of Revision and Correction of
Assessments_for confirmation, on foe 27th dav of
December, 1887.

EDWARD GILON, Chairman,
PATRICK M. HAVERTY
CHARLES E. WENDT,
VAN BRUGH LIVINGSTON,
Board of Assessors.
Office of the Board of Assessors. 1
o. nft City Ha
New York, November 26, 1887. )

T3 UBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBYGIVEN TO THE
a  owner or owners, occupant or occupants of all
houses and lots, improved or unimproved lands affected
thereby, that the following assessments have been com-
pleted and are lodged in foe office of the Board of Asses-
sors. for examination by all persons interested, viz.:

List 33x0, No. x. Paving First avenue, from Ninety,
second to One Hundred and Ninth street, with granite-

lock pavement.

The limits embraced by such assessments include all foe
several houses and lots ofground, vacant lots, pieces and
parcels of land situated on—

No. 1. Both sides of First avenue, from Ninety-second
to One Hundred and Ninth street, and to foe extent of
half foe block at the intersecting streets; and also the
corporation known as foe Second Avenue Railroad Com-
panv of the City of New Yol

All persons whose |n(erests are affected by foe above-
named assessments, and who are opposed to the same, or
either of them, are requested to present their objections
nwriting to foe Chalrman of the Board of Assessors,
at their office, j* City Hall, within thirty days
from the date oflhls notice.

The above-described lists will be_transmitted, as pro-
vided by law, to the Board of Revision and Correction
of Assessments for confirmation, on the 23d dav of
December, 1887.

EDWARD GILON, Chairman.
PATRICK M.HAVERTY,
CHAS. E. WENDT,
VAN BRUGH LIVINGSTON,
Board of Assessors.
the Board of Assessors,i
ttft City Ha

Office

New York, aa, 1887. )

AQUEDUCT COMMISSION.

Aqueduct Commissioner’s Office, >
Room 209, Stewart Building, No. a8o Broadway, J
New York, November 17,1887. )

TO CONTRACTORS.

s or proposals for doing the

work and furnishing the materials called for in foe
approved form of contract now on file in foe office of
foe Aqueduct Commissioners, for building a Masonry
Dam and work connected therewith on the East Branch
oi the Croton river, in foe Town of Southeast, Putnam
County, New York, will be received at this office until
Wednesday, foe 7th day of December, 1887, at 3 0'clock
p. M., at which place and hour they will be pub-
licly opened by foe Aqueduct Commissioners, ana foe
award 01 foe contract for doing said work and furnishing
said materials will be made by said Commissioners as
soon thereafter as practicable.

Blank forms of said approved contract and foe speci-
fications thereof, and bids or proposals, and proper
envelopes for their enclosure, and form of bonds, and
also the plans for said work, and all other information
can be obtained at foe above office of foe Aqueduct Com.
missioners, on application to the Secretary.

By order of foe Aqueduct Commissioners.

JAMES C. SPENCER.
President.

John C. Sheehan,
Secretary,
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Aqueduct Commissioners’ Office,
Room 209, Stewart Building, No. 280 Broadway,
New York, November 24,1887.

TO CONTRACTORS.

idsor proposals for doing the work
and furnishing the materials called for in the ap-
proved form of contract now on file in the office of the
Aqueduct Commissioners, for building the Gate-house
superstructure, roof and floor system for the blow-off
chamber at South Yonkers, on Section 9 of the
New Croton Aqueduct, will be received at this office until
Wednesday, the 14th day of December, 1887, at 3 o'clock
f.m., at which place and hour they will be publicly
opened by the Aqueduct Commissioners, and the award
of the contract for doing said work and furnishing said
materials will be made by said Commissioners as soon
thereafter as practicable.

Blank forms of said approved contract, and the specifi-
cations thereof, and bids or proposals, and proper envel-
opes for their enclosure, and form of bonds, and also the
plans for said work, and all other information can be
obtained at the above office of the Aqueduct Commis-
sioners on application to the Secretary.

By order of the Aqueduct Commissioners.

JAMES C. SPENCER,
re

John C. Sheehan,
Secretary.

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT.

NOTICE TO ARCHITECTS.

TN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF
J. chapter 371 of the Laws of 1887, entitled “An Act to
provide for the erection ofa building for Criminal Courts
and other purposes in the City of New York,” the
Commissioners of the Sinking Fund will receive plans and
specifications until the first day of March, 1888, for the
building provided for in the said act, to be erected in
connection with the City Hall and the new Court-house,
in accordance with a general plan which has been ap-
prover! by the said Commission, and which can be
examined at the offlce ofthe Com troller.

fhe planssubmitted must g he deration of the said
bulttig 6n all feur sides QHE BH the IAABF court, aRE
must be accompanied by floor plans and specifications for
the construction of the said building in sufficient detail to
enable the working drawings to be made therefrom. An
estimate of the cost of the structure must accompany
each plan in sufficient detail to enable the Commission to
modify the plans if desired.

For the plan which may be adjudged by the Commis-
sion to be the best submitted, a premium of FIVE
THOUSAND DOLLARS will be paid ; for the second
best, a premium of FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS;
for the third best, a premium of THREE THOUSAND
DOLLARS ; for the fourth best, a premium of TWO
THOUSAND DOLLARS, and for the fifth best, a
premium of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS. But
obligation shall rest upon the Commission to award
to any plan which shall not be regarded as

ms
meritorious.
The premiated plans shall become the property of the
City, and may be used and combined in any manner
which the Commission may approve. No obligation
shall becreated by the acceptance of any plan to employ
the author thereof as the architect to construct the
building, it being discretionary with theC mmissioner of
Public Works to determine in what manner the super-
vision of the building shall be provided for. Each plan
submitted shall be marked with such assumed designa-
tion as the architect may select, provided there shail be
filed with the Mayor a se led envelope giving the real
name of the author of the plan so des-gnated, which will
not be opened until after the award of the premiums
Lithograph copies of the general plans of the
building, adopted by the Commissioners of the Sinking
Fund October 7, 1887, can be obtained by architects
upon application at the Comptroller's Office, Stewart
Building, No. 280 Broadway, in the City of New York,
together with a pamphlet containing special instructions.
By order of the Commissioners of the Sinking Fund.

ABRAM S. HEWITT,
Mayor and Chairman.

City of New York, November 1,1887.

FINANCE DEPARTMENT.

City of New York, 9
Finance Department,
Comptroller’s Office, _ j

December 1, 1887. j
NOTICE TO PROPERTY-OWNERS.

TN PURSUANCE OF SECTION 916 OF THE
J. “New York City Consolidation Act of 1882, the
Comptroller of the City of New York hereby gives public
notice to all persons, owners of property affected by
the following assessment lists, viz.

Madison avenue and One Hundred and Eleventh street
fencing, southeast corner.

Manhattan avenue curbing and flagging, from One
Hundred and Sixteenth to One Hundred and Twentieth
street

Morris avenue regulating, grading, setting curb and
gutter stones and flagging sidewalks, from One Hundred
and Thirty-eighth to One Hundred and Fifty-sixth
street.

Pleasantavenue laying crosswalks, at the northerly and
southerly sides of One Hundred and Fifteenth street

st. Nicholas place paving with lelford- Macadam pave-
ment, from One Hundred and Fifty-fifth street to Avenue
St Nicholas.

Westchester and St Ann's avenues basin, northeast
corner.

Seventh avenue fencing, west side, between One Hun-
dred and Twenty-eighth and One Hundred and Twen[y—
ninth streets, ana on the north side of One Hundred and
Twenty-eighth street for about 100 feet west of Seventh
avenue, and on the south side of One Hundred and
Twenty-ninth street for about 75 feet west of Seventh
avenue

Tenth avenue and One Hundred and Forty-first street
laying crosswalks, at intersection

Twenty-first street and Thlrleenlh avenue basin, south-
east corner.

Fiftv-fifth street paving with trap-block pavement,
from the present pavement to a line about 36 feet westerly,
to the present bulkhead line at the North river.

Fifty-ninth street flagging, south side, between Fourth
and Madison avenues.

Sixty-second street and Avenue A basin, southwest
corner.

Sixty-second street setting curb-stones and flagging
sidewalks, between Eighth avenue and the Boulevard.

Sixty-seventh, Sixty-eighth and Sixty-ninth streets
sewers, between West End avenue and the land of the
New York Central and Hudson River Railroad.

Sixty-sixth street paving with trap-block pavement,
from Boulevard to Tenth avenue

Se\'{‘entleth street flagging, both sides, from Ninth to
Tentl

Seventy-third street paving with granite-block pave-
ment, from Avenue A to First avenue.

Seventy-fifth street paving with granite-block pave-
ment, from Tenth avenue to the Boulevard.

Eightieth and Elghly —first streets basins, southwest
corners of, and Avenue A.

Eighty-first street regulating, gradlng, curbing and
flagging, from Avenue A to Avenue B.

THE CITY

Eighty-third street paving with granite-b'oek pave-
ment, from the Boulevard to Riverside Drive.

Eighty-eighth street paving with granite-block pave-
ment, from First to Second avenue.

Eighty-eighth street regulating, grading, setting curb-
stones and flagging, from Tenth to Riverside avenue.

Ninety-first street paving with granite-block pave-
ment, from Fourth to Fifth avenue.

Ninety-third street paving with granite-block pave-
ment, from Ninth to Tenth avenue.

Ninety-fifth street regulating, grading, setting curb-
stones and flagging, from Eighth to Ninth avenue.

Ninety-seventh street sewer, between Ninth avenue
and summit west of Ninth avenue.

_Ninety-sixth street sewer extension at the Hudson
river.

One Hundredth street sewer, between Boulevard and
West End avenue

One Hundred and First street paving with trap-block
pavement, from Second to Third avenue.

One Hundred and Third street sewer, between Ninth
and Tenth avenues.

One Hundred and Sixth and One Hundred and
Seventh streets fencing vacant lots, from Fourth to Madi-
son avenue

One Hundred and Eighth street baslns northeast and
southeast corners of Lexington aven

One Hundred and Eighth street regulaling and grad-
ing, from Tenth avenue to the Boulevard.

One Hundred and Ninth street fencing vacant lots,
north side, ninety feet east of Madison avenue.

One Hundred and Tenth street fencing vacant lots,
south side, between Fourth and Madison avenues.

One _Hundred and Tenth street fencing vacant lots,
northside, tetween Fourth and Madison avenues.

One Hundred and Eleventh and One Hundred and
Twelfth streets fencing vacant lots, from Madison to
Fifth avenue.

One Hundred and Twelfth street regulating, grading,
setting curb-stones and flagging, from Eighth avenue to
New avenue.

C)ne Hundred and Twelfth and One Hundred and
Thirteenth streets fencing vacant lots, from Seventh to
Eighth avenue.

One Hundred and Thirteenth and One Hundred and
Fourteenth streets fencing vacant lots, from Fourth to
Madison avenue.

Seventeenth street sewers between
Fifth and Sixth avenues, andm Avenue St. Nicholas, be-
tween One Hundred and Sixteenth and One Hundred
and Seventeenth streets, and in One Hundred and Seven-
teenth street, between Avenue St. Nicholas and Eighth

-One Hundred and Eighteenth street sewer, between
Fifth and Sixth avenues.

One Hundred and Eighteenth and One Hundred and
Nineteenth streets feccing vacant lots, from Avenue St.
Nicholas to Eighth avenue.

One Hundred and Nineteenth street sewer, between
Seventh avenue and Avenue St _Nicholas.

One Hundred and Twenty-first street paving with
granite-block pavement from Sixth to Seventh avenue.

One Hundred and Twenty-second street fencing
vacant lots, south side, about 100 feet west of Pleasant
avenue

One Hundred and Twenty-second street fencing
vacant lots, south side, between Seventh and Eighth
avenues.

One Hundred and Twenty-second street flagging,
south side, from First avenue to Avenue A

One Hundred and Twenty-second and One Hundred
and Twenty-third streets fencing vacant lots, from Ave-
nuebt. Nicholas to Manhattan avenue.

RECORD.

Finance Department,
Bureau for the Collection of Taxes, |
No. 57 Chambers Street (Stewart Building),
New York, December a, 1887.  j

NOTICE TO TAXPAYERS.

'PHE RECEIVER OF TAXES OF THE CITY OF

i New York hereby gives notice to all persons who
have omitted to pay their taxes for the year 1887 to pay
the same to him at his office on or before the first day of
January, 1888, as provided by section 846 of the New
York City Consolidation Act of 1882.

Upon any such tax remaining unpaid on the first day of
December, 1887, one per centum wul be charged, received
and collected in addition to the amount (hereof; and
upon such tax remaining unpaid on the first day of Janu-
ary, 1888, interest will be charged, received ana collected
upon the amount thereofat the rate of seven per centum
per annum, to be calculated from the third day of Octo-
ber, 1887, on which day the assessment rolls and warrants
for the taxes of 1887 were delivered to the said Receiver
of Taxes, to the date of payment, pursuant to section 843
of said act

CORPORATION SALE OF LEASE.

LEASE OF THE FOLLOWING-DESCRIBED

vacant lot, piece or parcel of land, will be sold at
public auction for the term of ten years from January x,
1888, to the highest bidder, on THURSDAY, the 8th day
of December, 1887, at is o'clock m., at the office of the
Comptroller of the City of New York, to wit:

All that certain piece, parcel or plot of vacant land in
the Nineteenth Ward of the City of New York,
bounded as follows: Beginning at a point on the
southerly line of Eighty-second street, one hundred
(100) feet westerly from the southwesterly cor-
ner of Fourth avenue and Eighty-second street; thence
westerly along the southerly line of Eighty-second street,
one hundred (too) feet; thence southerly and parallel
with said Fourth avenue, one hundred (too) feet; thence
easlerly parallel with said Eighty-second street, one hun
dred (100) feet; thence northerly parallel with saw
Fourth avenue” one hundred (too) feet to the point or
place of beginning.

49* The terms and conditions of the lease will be an
nounced at the time of sale.

By order of the Commissioners of the Sinking Fund.

EDWARD V. LOEW,
Comptroller.
City of New York—Finance Department, 1
Comptroller’s Office, November 25,1887, j

City of New York, 1

Finance Department,
Comptroller’s Office, }
November 17, 1887]

NOTICE TO PROPERTY-OWNERS.

TN PURSUANCE OF SECTION 997 OF THE
I “New York City Consolidation Act of 1882 the
Comptroller of the City of New York hereby gives

Une Hundred and Twenty-third street and Manhattan public notice to all persons, owners of property affected

avenue basin, southeast corner.

Une Hundred and 1 wenty-third street and Manhattan
avenue basins, northeast and northwest corners.

One Hundred and Twenty-third and One Hundred
and 1 wenty-fourth streets fencing vacant lots, between
Manhattan and Ninth avenues.

Une Hundred and Twenty-fifth street and First avenue
baun northwest corner.

ne Hundred and Thirtieth street flagging, south side,
belween Lexington and F

One Hundred and Thlrty flrsl street paving with
granite-block pavement, from Sixth to Seventh avenue.

One Hundred and Thirty-first and One Hundred and
Thirty-second streets fencing vacant lots, from Madison
to Fourth avenue. o

fine Hundred and Thirty-first and One Hundred and

streets fencing vacant lots, from Madison
to tilth avenue.

One Hundred and Thirty-second street paving with
trap-block pavement, from Madison to Fifth avenue.

One Hundred and Thirty-fifth street paving with
§ranJ$?* ‘&t Pavement, from Eighth avenue to Avenue

= Nicholas, and laying crosswalks at Avenue St
Nidholas.
Une Hundred and Thlrly Slxlh street and Lincoln

avenue basin, northe:
ine Hunared and Thirty.soxth and One Hundred and

Thuty-seventh streets fencing vacant lots, from Seventh

to2Eighth avenue

1 One Hundred and Thirty-seventh street regulating,

grading, setting curb-stones and flagging, from Eighth

avenue to Avenue St. Nicholas.

One Hundred and Thirty-eighth street regulating,
grading, setting curb and gutter stones and flagging, be-
tween the Boulevard and Twelfth avenue, Hudson river,
which was confirmed by operation of law January x.

One Hundred and Forty-third street sewer, between
Seventh and Eighth avenues.

One Hundred and Forty-third street regulating, gra
ing, setting curb and gutter stones and flagging, from
Willis to Brook avenue.

One Hundred and Forty-eighth street regulating, grad-
ing, setting curb and gutter stonesand flagging and laying
crosswalks, from North Third avenue to St. Ann's
avenue.

One Hundred and Fiftieth street paving with granite-
block pavement, from Mott to Wafton avenue, and laying
crosswalks.

One Hundred and Sixty-fifth street sewer and appur-
tenances, from Washington to Third avenue, with a
branch in Third avenue, between One Hundred and
Sixty-fifth and One Hundred and Sixty-fourth streets.

One Hundred and Sixty-sixth street sewer and
appurtenances, between Washington and North Third
avenues.

— which were confirmed by the Board of Revision and
Correction of Assessments, November 11, 1887, and
entered on the same date, in the Record of Titles of As-
sessments, kept in the “ Bureau for the Collection of

by the assessment list for the opening of Ninety-fourth
street, between First and Second avenues, which was con-
firmed by the Supreme Court, November 4,1887, and en-
tered on the 15th day of November, 1887, in the Record
of Titles of Assessments, kept in the “ Bureau for the Col-
lection of Assessments and Arrears of Taxes and Assess-
ments and of Water Rents,” that unless the amount

1 assessed for benefit on any person or property shall be

j paid within sixty days after the date of said entry of the
assessment, interest will be collected thereon as provided
in section 998 of said “ New York City Consolidation
Act of 1882."

Section 998 of the said act provides that, “ If any such
assessment shall remain unpaid for the period of sixty
da 3‘5 after the date of entry thereof in the said Record of
Titles of Assessments, it snail be the duty of the officer
authorized to collect and receive the amount of such

| assessment, to charge, collect and receive interest

I thereon, at the rate of seven per centum per annum, to
be calculated from the date of such entry to the date of
payment.”

The above assessment is payable to the Collector of
Assessments and Clerk of Arrears at the « Bureau for
the Collection of Assessments and Arrears of Taxes
and Assessments and of Water Rents,” Room 31, Stewart
Building, between the hoursof9 a. m. and 2 P. M, and all
payments made thereon, on or before January 23, 1888,
will be exempt from interest as above provided, and

| after that date will be subject to a charge of interest at
the rate of seven per cent, per annum from the date of
entry in the Record of Titles of Assessmentsin said
Bureau to the date of payment.
EDWARD V LOEW,
Comptroller,

City of New York, 1
Finance Department,

Comptroller's Office, f

October 20,1887. j

NOTICE TO PROPERTY-OWNERS.

N PURSUANCE OF SECTION 997 OF THE
“New York City Consolidation Act of 1882 the

Comptroller of the City of New York herebygives public
notice to all persons, owners of property affected by the
following assessment lists, v/

One Hundred and Seventeenth street opening, between
Eighth and Ninth avenues.

One Hundred and Forty-ninth street opening, between
Eighth avenue and Hudson river.
—which were confirmedby the Supreme Court October 3,
1887, and entered on the 18th day of October, 1887, in the
Record of Titles of Assessments, kept in the “ Bureau
for the Collect on of Assessments and Arrears of Taxes
and 1its and of Water Rents,” that unless the

Assessmentsand Arrears of Taxes and ments and
of Water Rents,” that unless the amount assessed for
benefit onany person or property shall be paid within sixty
days after the date of said entry of the assessments,
interest will be collected thereon as provided in section
917 of said "New York City Consolidation Act of 1882.”

Section 917 of the said act provides that, * If any such
assessment shall remain unpaid for the period of sixty
days after the date of entry thereofin the said Record of
Titles of Assessments, it shall be the duty of the officer
authorized to collect and receive the amount of such
assessment, to charge, collect, and receive interest
thereon at tbe rate of seven per centum per annum, to
be calculated from the date of such entry to the date of
payment.”

The above assessmentsare payable to the Collector of
Assessments and Clerk of Arrears, at the “ Bureau for
the Collection of Assessments and Arrears of Taxes
and Assessments and of Water Rents,” between the
hours of9a. m. and 3 p. M, and all payments made there-
on, on or before February n, 1888, will be exempt from
interest as above provided, and after that date will be
subject to a charge of interest at the rate of seven per
cent, per annum from the date of entry in the Record of
Titlesof Assessments in said Bureau to the date of pay-

EDWARD V. LOEW,
Comptroller.

amount assessed for benefit on any person or property
shall be paid within sixty days after the date of said
entry of the assessments, interest will be collected thereon
as provided in section 998 of said “ New York City Con-
solidation Act 0f1882.”

Section 998 of the said act provides that, * If any such
assessment shall remain unpaid for tbe period of sixty
days after the date of entry thereof in the said Record of
Titles of Assessments, it shall be the duty of the officer
authorized to collect and receive the amount of such
assessment, to charge, collect and receive interest
thereon, at the rate of seven per centum per annum, to
be calculated from the date of such entry to the date of
payment.”

The above assessments are payable to the Collector of
Assessments and Clerk of Arrears at the “ Bureau for
the Collection of Assessments and Arrears of Taxes
and Assessments and of Water Rents,” Room 31, Stew-
art Building, between the hpursof9a.m.ana 3p. m.,
and all payments made thereon, on or before December
27,1887, will be exempt from interest as above provided,
and after that date will be subject to a charge of interest
at the rate ofseven per cent, per annum from the date of
entry in the Record of Titles of Assessments in said
Bureau to the date of payment.

EDWARD V. LOEW,
Comptroller.

2, 1887.

D ecember

Finance Department,

Bureau for the Collection of Taxes, !
No.57 C hambers Street (Stewart Building), f
New York, November k, 1887.  J

NOTICE TO TAXPAYERS.

otice is hereby v

Receiver of Taxes of the City of New York to alL.
persons whose taxes for the year 1887 remain unpaid on
the xst day of November of said year, that unless the
same shall be paid to him at his office on or before the
xst day of December of said year he will charge, receive
and collect upon such taxes so remaining unpaid on that
day, inaddition to theamount of such taxes one per centum
on the amount thereof, and charge, receive and collect
upon such taxes so remaining unpaid on the Istday of
January thereafter, interest upon the amount thereof at
the rate of seven per centum per annum, to be calculated
from October 3,1887, the day on which the assessment
rolls and warrants therefor were delivered to the said
Receiver of Taxes, to the date of payment, as provided

GEORGE W. MCLEAN,
Receiver of Taxes.

City of New York,
Finance Departmeint, f
Comptroller's @rfice, f

October xx, 1887..)

NOTICE TO PROPERTY-OWNERS.

IN PURSUANCE OF SECTION 997 OF THE
-L *“ New York City Consolidation Act of 188*" the
Comptroller of the City of New York hereby gives public
notice to all persons, owners of property affected by
the assessment list for the opening of One Hundred and
Sixtv-seventh street, between Tenth avenue and Edge-
comb road, which was confirmed by the Supreme Court
September 19,1887, and entered on the 3d day of October,
1887, in the Record of Titles of Assessments, kept in the
“ Bureau for the Collection of Assessments and Arrears
of Taxes and Assessments and of Water Rents,” that
unless the amount assessed for benefit on any person
or property shall be paid within sixty days after the date
ofsaid entry of the assessment, interest will be collected
thereon as provided in section 998 of said “ New York
City Consolidation Act of 1882.”

Section 998 of the said act provides that, =If any such
assessment shall remain unpaid for the per of sixty
days after the date ofentry thereofin the said Record of
Titles of Assessments, it shall be the duty of the officer
authorized to collect and receive the amount of such
assessment, to charge, collect and receive Interest
thereon, at the rate of seven per centum per annum, to
be calculated from the date of such entry to the date of
payment.”

The above assessment is payable to the Collector of.
Assessments and Clerk of Arrears at the “ Bureau for
the Collection of Assessments and Arrears of Taxes
and Assessments and of Water Rents,” Room 31, Stew-
art Building, between the hours of 9a.m.ana 2 p. m.,
and all payments made thereon, on or before December
16,1887, will be exempt from interest as above provided,,
and after that date will be subject to a charge of interest
at the rate of seven per cent, per annum from the date of.
entry in the Record of Titles of Assessments in said
Bureau to the date of payment.

EDWARD V. LOEW,
Comptroller.

REAL ESTATE RECORDS.

he attention lawyers, real
. Estate Owners, Monetary Institutions engaged in
making loans upon real estate, and all who are interested,
in providing themselves with facilities for reducing the-
cost of examinations and searches, is invited to these
Official Indices of Records, containing all recorded trans-
fers of real estate in the City of New York from 1653 to-
IBfSR7 preé)ared under the direction of the Commissioners
o
Grantors, grantees, suits in equity, insolvents’
and Sheriff's sales in 61 volumes, full bound,
rice ...; $10(

000
The same in 25 volumes, half bound 50 00
Complete sets, folded, ready for bindin i$ 00
Records ofJudgments, 25 volumes, bound 10 00

Orders should be addressed to * Mr. Stephen Angell
Room 23, Stewart Building.
EDWARD V. LOEW,
Comptroller.

NOTICE
IN RELATION TO JURORS
COURTS.

IIOR STATE

Office of the Commissioner of Jurors, 1

Room 127, Stewart Building,
Chambers Street and Broadway, f
New York, June 1, X887. J

A PPLICATIONS for exemptions WILL BE
heard here, from 9 to 4 daily, from all persons-
hitherto liable or recently serving who have become
exempt, and all needed information will be
Those who have not answered as to their liability, or
proved permanent exemption, will receivea “jury en-
rollment notice,” reauiriiig them to appear before me
this year. Whether liable or not, such notices must be
answeied (in person, if possible, and at this office only)
under severe penalties.  If exempt, the party must bring
i f liable, he must also answer in
, residence, etc., etc-

No attention pald to letter:

Persons “ enrolled” as Ilable must serve when called
or pay their fines. No mere excuse will be allowed or
interference permitted. The fines if unpaid will be en-
ter*fi as judgments upon the property of the delinquents.

All good citizens will aid the course of justice, and
secure reliable and respectable juries, and equalize their
duty by serving promptly when summoned, allowing
their clerks or subordinates to serve, reporting to me any
attempt at bribery or evasion, and suggesting names for
enroliment. Persons between sixty and seventy years of
age, summer absentees, persons temporarily ill, and
United Statesjurors are not exempt.

Every man must attend to bis own notice. Itisa mis-
demearior to give any jury paper to another to answer.
It is also punishable by fine or imprisonment to give or
receive any present or bribe, directly or indirectly, in
relation to ajury service, or to withhold any paper or
make any false statement, and every case will be fully
prosecuted

CHARLES REILLY,
Commissioner ofJurors.

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

Headquarters Fire Department, )
Nos. 157 & 159 East Sixty-seventh Street,j
tice is hereby given hat the
Board of Commissioners of this Department will,
for the transaction ofr

N’
meet daily, at xo o'clock a. m.,
business.
By order of
HENRY D. PURROY, President
RICHARD CROKER
: Commissioners.
Carl Jussbn,
Secretary.



